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SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED
ANNUAL REFORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODFE, AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
1. For the fiscal year ended: 31 December 2023
2. SEC Identification Number: CS201627300 3. BIR Tax Identification No.: 009-468- 113-000

4. Exacl nume of issuer 38 specified in its Charter:
SPNEW ENERGY CORPORATION

5. Metro Manila, Philippines 6. [ secuseomy)
Provingce, country, or other jurisdiction of Industry Cluasification Code
incorporation or arganization

7. 112 Legaspi Street, Legaspl Village, Barangay San Lorenzo, Makati City, Philippines 1229
Address of principal office and postal code

K. 02 B817 2585
Issuer's telephone mumber, including aren code

9. Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation, June 30 of every year
Former nume, former address, and former fisca! year, if changed since |ast report

10, Securities registered pursuunt (o Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Ench Cliss Number of Shares ol Comuon Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debl Outstanding
Cummon 50,073,050,000°

I'l. Aresny or all of these securities listed on a stock exchange?
Yes[X] No| |

If yes, state the name of such stock exchuige sod the classes of securities listed therein:
Phillppine Stock Exchange (“PSE™); commeon shares,

12 Check whether the [ssuer:

(1) hus fited all reports required to be fled by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Role 171 thereunder, o
Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule | 1{a)-) thereunder, or Sections 26 und 141 of the Corporation Code of
the Philippines during the preceding rwelve (12) months (or for such shovter period that the Registrant was
required to file such reports); and

Yes [X] No])

' The Company s busmess niddress is the 20% Flopr ATA Tower (femerly PhilamLife Towse), K767 Pasco de Rimas, Rarangay Bol-Alr,
Makati Uy, Philmpines 1226,
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(b) has been subject 10 such fling requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [X] No| ]

13, Stute the nggregate market value of the voting stock beld by non-affiliates of the registrunt, The ageregate
markel value shall be compiited by reference to the price at which the stoek wis sold, or the average bid and
asked prices of such stock; as of & specified date within sixty (60) days prior 1o the date of filing. If a
determinstion as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be made withou! invalving
unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affilintes may
be calenlated on the basis of assumphons reasonuble under the circumstances, provided the assumptions are

set forth i this Form.
Number of Shares Owned by Non-Affilintes (Public) R, 182,153,995
Closing Price as of December 31, 2023 1.32
e Market Value of Voling Stock Held by Non- Php 10,800,343 273 4
AMlintes (Public) as of December 31, 2023

[ This portion of the Annual Report was ientionally left Mlank.)
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PART 1 - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Trem 1. Business

SP New Energy Corparation (“SPNEC.” the “Corporation”, the “Company” or the
“Issuer™), formerly Solar Philippines Nuevn Ecija Corporation, was incorporsted and
registered with the Securitics and Exchange Commussion ("SEC™) on 23 November 2016,
prismrily (W construct, erect, assemble, commssion, opemte, and maintain power-gencraling
plunts, installations, shops, laboratorics, pipelines, repair shops, electrical works, powerhouses,
warehouses, terminals, and related fucilities For (he conversion of renewuble energy into usuble
form fit for electricity generation and distnibution; to promote and undertake research,
development, utilization, manufacture, sale, murketing. distribution, and commercial
application of new, renewable, non-conventional, and environment-friendly energy sources
and systems, including, bot not limited to, solar, wind, water, heat, steam, ocean, tidal, biomass,
biogas, chemical, mechanical, electrical, synthetic, agricultural, und other natural, fossil or non-
fossil fucl-based, artificial, organic, or otherwise, and of cncrgy systems that use new,
renewable, and any energy resource applying new and efficient energy conversion and/or
utilization technologics for commercial application, and to perform other ancillary and
meidental activities as may be provided by and under contract with the government of the
Republic of the Philippines or any subdivision, instrumentality, or agency thereal, or any
government-owned and controlled corporation, or other entity engaged in the development,
supply, and distribution of renewable energy,

SPNEC holds 100% and, therefore, sheolute controlling interest in Terrs Nueva, Inc. (TNI)
TN was incorporated and registered with the SEC on 3| August 2022, primarily to purchuse,
or otherwise nequire the stocks, bonds, and other securitics or evidence of indebtedness of any
other corporation, association, firm or entity, domestic or foreign, and (o issue in exchange
therefor its own stocks, bonds, or ather obligations or to pay therefor in cash, or otherwise; to
hold or own, use, sell, issue, deal m, dispose of, and tum o gecount, any such stocks, warrants,
options, bonds, or other securities, and while the owner or holder thereof, w exercise all the
rights and powers of ownership including the nght to vole thereon for any purpose; to acquire,
take over, hold and control all or any part of the business, goodwill, property and other assets,
and 1o assume or undertwke the whole or any part of the liabilities and obligations of any person,
firm, association, or corporation, whether domestic or foreign, and whether a going concem or
not, tngaging in or previously engaged in business which the corporation is or may become
muthorized o carry on or which may be appropriate or suitable for any und all of the purposes
of the corporation or otherswise, and to pay for the same in cush or in stocks, bonds or securitics
of the corporation or otherwise, and to hold, manage, operate, conduct and dispose of, in any
munner, the whole or part of any such ncquisition, and to exercise all the powers necessary or
converient for the condyuct and management thereof; provided that the eorporation shall not act
a5 dealer and broker of securities.

Aeguisition of Solar Philippines Assets

On 15 May 2023, SPNEC entered into o Contract (o Sell Shares with SPPPHI and individual
stockholder (Sellers) for SPNEC (Buyer) to purchase SPPPHI and Leandro Anfonie L
Levisie's (“Mr. Leviste™) rights, titles, and interests in and to the Solar Philippines Assets (as
defined below), using the proceeds of SPPPHI’s subscription 1o 24.37 billion SPNEC common
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shares, premised on the SEC approval of SPNEC s increase in suthorized capital stock.

On the same date, SPNEC entered into Deeds of Absolute Sale (“DOAS") with SPPPHI for
SPNEC to purchise SPPPHI's rights, titles, and interests in and to Solar Philippines Tarlac
Carporation (“SPTC”) and Solar Philippines Rooftop Corporation (*SPRC™) for a purchase
price of P2.325.0 million.

On 9 June 2023, SPNEC entered into another DOAS with SPPPLHI for SPNEC o purchase
SPPPHI's nghts, utles, and interests in and to the following for a purchase price of #79.9
mlhon;

Solar Philippines Batangus Corporation (“SPBATC™)

Solar Philippines Batangns Bascload Corporation (“SPBBC™)
Solar Philippines Central Luzon Corporation ("SPCLC™)

Solur Philippines Central Visayas Corporation (“SPCYC™)
Solar Philippines Eastern Corporation (“SPEC™)

Solar Philippines Retail Electrivity, Inc. (“SPREI™)

Solar Philippines South Luzon Corporation (“SPSLC™)

Solar Philippines Southern Mindanao Corporation (“SPSMINC™)
Solar Philippines Southern Tagalog Corporation (“SPSTAGC™)
Solar Philippines Tarlac Baseload Corporation (“SPTBC™)
Solar Philippines Visayas Corparation ("SPVC”)

Solar Philippines Western Corporation (“SPWC™)

l.aguna Rooftop Solar Corporstion (“LRSC™)

Terra Solur Philippines, Ine, (“TSPI")

® & & & ® % ® & @& F 8 B 8 8

On 29 June 2023, SPNEC entered into & DOAS with SPPPHI for SPNEC to purchase SPPPHI"s
rights, titles, and interests in and 1o Solar Philippines Calatagan Corporation (“SPCC™) for a
purchase price of P499.1 million,

(the rights, titles, and interests in and to SPTC, SPRC, SPBATC, SPBBC, SPCLC, SPCVC,
SPEC. SPREI, SPSLC, SPSMINC, SPSTAGC, SPTBC, SPVC, SPWC, LRSC, TSPT and
SPCC shall collectively be referred (o as the “Solar Philippines Assets™)

On 9 November 2023, SPNEC entered into a Deed of Donation and Acceptance with
Countryside Investments Holdings Corporation (“CIHC"), where the latter voluntarily and
absolutely ceded, transferred, and conveyed by way of donation unto the former all its rights
over, title and interests in and to the SP* Holdings, Inc. (“SPHI™) shares,

On 20 November 2023, SPNEC and Mr. Leviste entered into a DOAS for SPNEC 1o purchase
the rights and imterests o SPCC’s 60.0 million common shares for a purchase price of P245.4
million. As of 31 December 2023, SPNEC is still waiting for the issuance of ECAR regarding
the transler of SPCC shares from Mr, Leviste to SPNEC,

Investment of Metro Pacific Investments Corporation (“"MPIC")

On 27 March 2023, MPIC entered into o Shure Purchase Agreement (“SPA") with SPPPHI o
acquire its rights, title and interest in and to SPNEC for a total of 1,600.0 million common
sharcs

(Sule Shares) for a wtal consideration of B2,000.0 million,

SP New Energy Corporation and Subsidiary
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On S May 2023, SPNEC entered mnto an Option Agreement with SPPPHI and MPIC, which
grants the MPIC Group the option to acquire up to 17,400.0 million shares of the SPNEC,
comprising up to 10,000,0 million primary shares for up to P12.500.0 millson (Primary Option)
und up o 7,400.0 million secondary shares for up to P9.250.0 million (Secondary Option),
supported by the approval of SPNEC'S merease in authorized copital stock from 10,0000
million to 50,000.0 million shares. Together with the initial acquisition by MPIC from SPPPHI
of the Sale Shares, a full exercise of these options may resull in the MPIC Group investing »
total of #23,750.0 million for 19,000.0 million shares and becoming the lurgest sharcholder
with approximately 42.82% ownership m SPNEC.

fvestment by MGen Renewable Encry, Inc. ("MGreen™)

On 30 November 2023, SPNEC entered into o Subseription Agreement with MGreen, the
renewahle energy development arm of Meraleo Powergen Corporation ("MGen'™), to subseribe
(i) 15,7 billion common shires with par value of P1.0 per share and (1i) 194 billion preferred
shares with par value of M.01 per share for a total subsenption price of P15.9 billion. MGen
is 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of the Manila Electric Company, the country’s largest private
sector electric distribution utility company. The trunsaction will suppon the expansion of the
Company's project portlolio, including the development of o plunned 3. SGW solar power plant
and 4 GWh of banery storage,

On the same date, SPNEC received partial cash subseription from MGreen amounting to P7.0
billion, and the balance amounting to PR.9 billion was received on 27 December 27 2023

On 6 December 2023, SFNEC filed its application for an imcrease o authorized capital stock
(the “ACS Increase Application™) with the SEC, On 17 Junuary 2024, the SEC approved
SPNEC's ACS Increase Application, which approvel was received by SPNEC on 19 January
2024, On the same day, SPNEC issued the subscription shares to MGreen, resulting in the latter
owning 50.53% of the wotal ouistending capital stock of SPNEC,

Subsequently, on 26 January 2024, MGreen purchased 2,173,913,000 commeon shares held by
SPPPHI for a totul consideration of PhP2.499,999.950.00, With this, MGreen's resulting
ownership in SPNEC is now at 53.66%.

Acquisition of contralling tnterest in Terva Soler Philippines, Inc. ("TSPIT) frem Prime
Infrastructure, Inc. (“Prime”)

On 11 December 2023, SPNEC executed o DOAS to sequire 100% of the shares of Prime m
TSP for P6,000,0 million. Together with SPNEC's previously pequited shares in TSPL, SPNEC
is now the legal and heneficial owner of 100% of TSPL

The aforementioned scquisitions resulted in 100% interest in the Solur Philippines Assets,
except for SPCC, LRSC, and SPCLC in which SPNEC scquired 62%, 60%, and 1% interests,
respectively, and excluding preferred shires in SPTC.

Asof 3] December 2023, SPNEC, TNL SPHI, Terrn Retewables Holdings, Inc. and the Solar
Philippines Assels are referred to herein as the "Group”,

SPNEC's disclosures may be viewed on the PSE Electronic Disclosure Generation Technology,
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Item 2. Propertics

The Group's principal office address based on its Articles of Incorporation; as amended, s 112
Legaspi Swreet, Legaspi Village, Barangay San Lorenzo, Makati City, Philippines 1229, The
Company is, however, holding its business offices at the 20th Floor AIA Tewer (formerly
PhilamLife Tower), 8767 Paseo de Roxas, Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City, Philippines 1226,

As of December 31, 2023, the Group is in the process of developing and acquiring land in
support of its plan to develop 10 giguwats (“GW"™) of solar projects.

The Company had mitially secured rights over a total of |18 parcels comprising 352,42
hectares of land composed of leases in Las Pifias, Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija. The Group has since
been continuing the process of securing land and land rights trough TNL

SPNEC has leases with 25 years tenin with the carliest lease commencement and expiry dates
being | Junuary 2020 and 30 April 2047, respectively. The leases may be renewed for another
five (5) yewrs or for a reasonable period upon agreement between the Compuny and the
lundowner. In the case however of the lease agreement with Las Pifias Agro Industrial
Corporation, the term shall be extended for another five years after its expiry, subject to further
extensions by written agreement between the Campany and the landowner.

In February and April 2021, the Company also entered into 8 Memorundum of Agreement
("MOA") with Provincia Investments Corporation (“PIC") and Lupang Hinirang Holdings
Caorporation (“"LHHC™), respectively, to acquire land for potential expansion with a total arca
of 12543 hectares. The Company is currently surveying proposed project sites for possible
future acguisitions.

I 2022 and 2023, The Parent Company and TNI entered into Contracts 1o Sell (“CTS") with
various landowners for the acquisition of parcels of land with a total land area of 1,287.63
hectares and 798.57 hectares, respectively. TN also entered into various Deeds of Absolute
Sale Agreement for a total land area of 534.76 hectares which wre intended for the Group's
projéeet and for future expansion.

In addition, as part of the husiness combination under common contral, the land with o toral
aret of 135.68 hectures, deposits for land acquisition with a total land area of 93,53 hectares,
and leased properties with a total land area of 102.49 hectares, which were owned by SP Tarlac
and SP Calatagan were consolidated as part of the Group's propertics as of December3 1, 2023.

The Company is developing Phase | of the project, a 225 megawatis of direct current
("MWde") solar power plant (“Phase 17) in Barangay Las Pifias, Peflaranda, Nueva Ecija with
sub-phases of Phase | A al 50 MWdc and Phase 1B at 175 MWde. The Parent Company targets
thar Phase 1A shall be commissioned by mid-2024 while Phase |B is planned w be
commissioned by end of 2025.

Further, SP Calatagan, SP Tarlae and among others were also consolidated through business
combination. SP Calstagan Solar Power Project is a 63.359 megawatt (MW) solar photovoliaic
(PV) facility situated in Batangas and SP Tarlac is a solar power of 100-megawatt (“MW™)
svlar photovoltaic (“PV”) facility situnted in Tarlac. SP Tarlac has also al SMWexpansion in
the same location.
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Oiher than those mentioned, the Group did not own any other properties as of 31 December
2023,

Item 3, Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Group's knowledge, as of 31 December 2023, it is not involved in any
minterial legal proceedings and is not aware of any such proceedings pending or threatened
againgt it or any of its propertics, which are or might be material. The Company has a pending
application with the Energy Regulatory Commission ("ERC™) for the approval of & power
supply agreement and a pre-filing applicution for dedicated point-to-point limited transmission
fiscilities, but it does not consider these materinl us the filing of such applications is done in the
ordinary course of business. Marcover, the Compuny has threatened legal action by suppliers
for payment of outstanding payables which it does not consider material a5 they are also in the
ordinary course of business.

Further, to the best of the Group's knowledge, as of 31 December 2023, its affiliates arc
involved in n few routine crimmnal cascs for complaints of theft or pilferage of company
property. To the best of the Group's knowledge, some of jts affiliates have threatencd legal
action by suppliers for payment of outstanding payables. The Group docs not consider any of
these as material as these legal proceedings will not affect the datly operations of its business
nor will they have a material effect on the present financial position of the Group.

Finnlly, some affilintes with power supply agreements have filed applications for rate approval
before the ERC which are required in the ordinary course of business for a company engaged
in the business of renewable energy development, opération, and production.

Item 4. Submission of Mutters to a Vote of Security Holders

A. The Company held its annual stockholders” meeting for the year 2023 (the “Annual
Meeting”') on 8 June 2023,

The following matters were voted upon during the Anmual Meeting:

The following were elected to the BOD during the Aanual Mecting:

Mr. Leandro Antonio L. Leviste, as regular direcior,
Mr. J, Carlitos G. Cruz, as independent direcior,

Mr. Benjamin 1. Espiritu, as independent director,

Mr. Carlos Jose P. Gatmaitan, as independent direcior,
Ms. Hazel Inis P, Lofuente, as regulur director,

Mr. Aresty M. Lapitan, as regular dwector, and

Mr, Martin Charles Crotry, as regular director,

N -l

SP New Enerpry Corporation and Subsidiary
2023 Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A)



Below is a tabulation of the votes cast for cach of the above-named individinls:'

F amge ol um
Votes

| n . LUy U] 34

4 | J Carliios O, Lz I, £E]

e B B e

Oh JORE 1 §

51" Hagel Tris P, Lafusnle 7. UR.06% 883

b rmv% 7,088, 004,833

7 [ Mariin Charles 7.007.391.5;

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Stockholders’ Mestinos

Approval by the stockholders of the minutes of the annual meeting held on 30 August 2022
was sought.

For this item, 5,409,551 948 shares or 77.17% of the Compuany's shares present or represented
it the meeting were voted in favor of the approval of the minutes of the previous meeting of
the Companys stockholders.

Upon recommendation of the Company's Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
BOD, stockholders” approval of the Audited Financial Statements and Management Report
for the calendar year ended 31 December 2022 was sought.

For this item, 5,409,711,947 shares or 77.1 7% of the Company's shares present or represented
at the meeting were voted in favor of the approval of the Audited Financial Statements and
Management Report for the calendar year ended 31 December 2022

tm:k, th: Suhgumt Ammdmcnt nf thr.' Cmﬁn?&hmcln nf l‘n:qmnmlmn Fnr

Purpuses Enwmenated

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing ut least two-
thirds (273) of the total outstanding capital stock of the Company was sought to: (i) increase
the Company s suthorized capital stock from PhP1 Billion divided wato 10 Billion counnon
shares at 2 par value of PhPO.10 per share to PhPS Billion divided o 50 Billion common
shares ot a par value of PhPO.ID; (i) Ale an amendoent of the Company’s Arucles of
Incorparation for the purpose, including (x) the issuance of 24,373 Billion shares to SPPPHI,

I Note: The Tollowing dircctors resigned and were replaced by individuals sét out opposite their names, effective

o the dutes provided below:

{ _Incoming Direcvor :
Jesusa Lorctn A. Areilano Martia Charles Crotty 31 Jangury 2023
Carlos Jope P, Garmaitan Rochel Dosato B, Glords 11 December 2023
1. Carliws (3. Cruz: Pedro Emdlio O Roxes 27 December 2021
Martim Charlis Crotty Amanida Roselle A. Benguon 27 December 2023
Aresty M. Lapitan Manel V. Pangilinan 27 December 2023
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{y) the acquisition by SPNEC of Solar Philippines Assets, and (2) subsequent issuance of
shares to MPIC.

Far this item, 7,009,685,073 shares or 70,09% of the Company s wital outstanding capital
stock were voted in favor of the aforemesitioned items.

5 Approval of the Waiver of Any Applicable Reguired Rights Offiers or Other Required
Public Offering in Respect of Certain Transuctions

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least o
majority of the shares owned by the Company's minority shareholders present or represented
at the meeting was sought to waive any applicable required rights offers or other required
public offering in respect of: (i) issuance of 24,373,050,000 shares to SPPPHI; (i) nequisition
by SPNEC, paid at cost and in cash. of 100%, of the shares of SPPPHI in Solar Philippines
Assets; and (ii1) subsequent issuance of shures to MPIC in relation to SPNEC's increase in
authorized capital stock.

For this item, 3,361,715,945 shares or 100% of the shares held by the Company’s minority
sharcholders present or represented at the meeting were voted in favor of the aforementioned
items.

A i af i o & Co. the Co s Externul

{or the Ensuing Fi Year

Upon recommendation of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and BOD, approval by
the stockholders of the appointment of SGV as extemal auditor of the Company for the
ensuing fiscal year was sought.

For this item, 7,009,711 948 shares or 100% of the Company's shures present or represented
at the meeting were voted in favor of the appointment of SGV as the Company’s external
anditor for the ensuing fiscal year.

Stockholders® ratification of the acts, resolutions, and decisions of the BOD, its commuttees,
and Management taken and adopted since the previous annual meeting of the sinckholders
held on 30 August 2022 up to present was sought.

For this item, 5,409,71 1,948 shares or 77.1 7% of the Company's shares present or represented
ut the meeting were voled in fuvor of the ratification.

B. The Company held i special stockholders” meeting (the *Special Meeting”) on 4
December 2023,

The following mamers were vated upon during the Special Mesting:
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Approval by the stockholders of the minutes of the annual mecting held on 8 June 2023 wis
sought.

For this item, 31,038,152987 shares or 99.99% of the Company's shares proseni or
represented al the meeting were voted in favor of the approval of the minutes of the previous
mecting of the Company's stockholders,

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least two-
thirds (2/3) of the total outstanding capital stock of the Company was sought to; (i) amend the
Company's Articles of Incorpemtion to increase its authonzed capital stock from PhPS Biltion
divided into 50 Billion common shares at a par value of PhPO.10 per share 1o
PRI7.750,000,000.00 divided into 75 Billion common shares with a par value of PhP0.10 per
share and 25 Billion preferred sharey with a par value of PhPD.0I per share, which shares shal!
be voting, redeemable and preferved in payment in case of liquidation and subject to such
retums on investment i such class of shares as may be determined by the Bozrd of Directors;
(11) accept the subscription of MGreen to 15,700,000,000 common shares and 19,404,202,552
preferred shares o be issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock; and (iii) amend
the Corporations” Articles of Incorporation to increuse the number of dircctors from seven (7)
to nine (9).

For this itern, 31,038,152,987 ghares or 90.30% of Compuany’s total outstunding cupital stock
were voled in favor of the sforementioned items.

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at Jeast a
majotity of the shares owned by the Company’s minority sharcholders present or represented
ut the meeting was sought to waive the applicable mandatory rights offer or public offering in
relution to the issuance of shares to MGreen of 15,700,000,000 commuon shares and
19,404,202,552 preferred shares to be issucd ont of the increase in authorized capital stock.

For this item, 1,417,106,982 shares or 99.99% of the shares held by the Company’s minority
shureholders present or represented st the meeting were voted in fuvor of the aforementioned
items.

4 ﬁm@mmuuﬂ.m_ﬁnmm%&umm of the Company’s Project

Portfolio ond Increase the Public Ownership of its Shares

Upan recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least a
majority of the total outstanding capital stock of the Company was sought to; (1) offer for sale
and issue common shares and/or preferred shares, as may be determined by the BOD, from
the wmissued suthorized capital stock and/or from increase in the authorized capitul stk by
way of public offering or private placement transactions, (ii) do a follow-on offering of the
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Company’s shares, subject to the registralion requirements of the SEC und the listing
requirements of the PSE; and (i) ascertain the number of shares to be offered for sale and its
offer price, appoint the Sole Issue Manager, Bookrunner, and Lead Underwriter end designaie
authorized representutives therefor.,

For this item, 31 038,152,987 shares or 99.99% of Company s tota! outstanding capiial stock
were voted in favor of the aforementioned items,

5. Ratificati 1, Resolutions, and Decigions of the B Manag
2023

Stockholders” mtification of the acts, resolutions, and decisions of the BOD, its committees,
and Management taken and adopted since the previous annunl meeting of the stockholders
held on 8 June 2023 up to present was seught.

For this item, 31,038,152.987 shar¢s or 99.99% of Company”s total outstanding capital stock
were voted in favor of the ratification.

PART 11 - OPERATTONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Markel for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Secorities

As of date, the Issuer has an authonzed capital stock of B7,750,000,000.00 divided into
75,000,000,000 common shares with a par vidue B0, 10 per share and 25,000,000,000 preferred
shures with o par value of #0.01 per share divided into 5,595,797 448 Class A preferred shares
and |19.404,202,552 Class B preforred shares,

The total issuecd and subscribed capital stock of the Company is #5,201,347,025.52.00, divided
into 50,073,050,000 common shares with a par value of B0.10 per share and 19,404,202 552
Class B preferred shares with a par value of 20,01 per share,

The Articles of Incorporation deleguted to the Board of Directors of the Company the
determination of the features of Class A Prefirred Shares, Class B Preferred Shares, on the
other hand, are (1) voting: (2) non-cumulative; (3} not entitled 1o any economic retums or
dividends: (4) redeemable at the option of the Company, at issue peice, and at such other terms
and conditions as may be determined by the Board of Directors (and shall be immediately
retireable upon redemption thereof); and (5) in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company (whether voluntary or mvoluptary), have preference over the
Common Sharcs in respect of the assets of the Company available for distnbution after
pavment of the liabilities of the Company.

Common shires are not entitled to pre-emptive rights.

Except for those exempt from the registration reguirement under the Securities Regulation
Code (“SRC"), no siles of unregistered securities were made in the past three (3) years,
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No debt securities were registered or cotternplated to be registered.
Stock Rights Offering

On 28 March 2022, pursuant to the approval of its BOD, SPNEC confirmed is plan to file the
SRO based on its current unissued authorized capital stock of 1,875,649.995 shares, at an
entitlement ratio of | share for every 1.28 shares held (from its current public float of
2,399 614,000 shares), at an offer price range that has been fixed at 81.60 to B1.76 per share,
with the middie of this range being #1.68 per share.

On B April 2022, SPNEC filed with the SEC an application for Confirmation of Exempt
Trangaction coveting the common shares to be issued relative to the SRO, pursuant to Section
10.11 (in respect of the Rights Offer) and 10.1(I} (in respect of the QB Take-Up) of the
Securities Repulstion Code (“SRC™) under which the exemption is based. The SEC issied the
Confirmution of Exempt Transaction on 19 July 2022,

On 18 August 2022, SPNEC notified the PSE of the final offer price of ®1.50 per share, and
offered the oprion to pay in installments, with & down payment of 25% und the balunce of 75%
within three months of the offer period.

On 15 September 2022, SPNEC completed its SRO and issued 1.875,649.995 new common
shares for a total consideration of #2,813.5 million or at B1.50 par value. This resulted o an
additionn] paid-in capital of #2,591.4 million, nel of transsction costs of #34.5 million.

On | December 2022, SPNEC extended the payment period for partially paid Right Shares for
& period of three months, from 5 December 2022 o 5§ March 2023,

Asof31 December 2023 and 2022, subscription receivable resulting from those that subscribed
on installment payment amounted 1o P1.3 million and P651.1 million, respectively. SPNEC
has already received at least 99.84% of the payments and is currently coordinating with the
relevant parties for the completion of the requirements of its SRO.

As of 29 February 2024, only 1,171,603 Rights Shares remain partially paid. The Issuer deems
the remaining partially paid shares as delinguent shares in accordance with the terms of the
Fitul Prospectus for the Rights Offer and the Revised Corpormtion Code. Specifically, all
delinquent shares will be sold at auction pursuant to law, In case there are no bidders ar such
auction, the Issuer may purchase the delinquent shares, in which case they will become its
treasury shares. Downpayments made on delinguent shares shall be forfeited in favor of the
[ssuer)

As of 29 Februnry 2024, 9,998,828 397 of the Issuer's common shares are listed with the PSE
Market Information
The Company’s shares dre traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange. The high and low sules

prices of SPNEC shares for cach quarter for the last two fiscal years and the first quanier of
2024 are us follows:

2022 2023 2024
High | Low High | Low High | Low
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Jan=Mar 229 1,15 .79 1.17 1.40 1.02

Apr-Jun 1.90 1.43 1.76 1.36 - -

Jul-Sep .78 112 Not Not - -
Traded Traded

Oect-Dec 1.42 0.99 1.40 1.04 - -

The closing price of the Corporation’s common shares as of 12 April 2024 is P1.03 per shure.
Holders

Haged on the report of the Stock Transfer Apent for the period ended 31 March 2024, the
following are the stockholders of the Company:

|Ne. of Shares | No. of Shares
Mo, nf Shares
Name Natfonuiity | with Option 1 | With Option. |with Option | | Percentage
(100% full | (100%, full (bised an
payment) (25%, partial | payment) &  [lssned commaon
payment) (Option2 (25% |  shares)
partial
__payment)

SOLAR PHILIPPINES FILIPINGy 1,993 (50 000 LB, 993 050,000 | 379306832717
POWER PROJECT

HOLDINGS, INC*

MGEN RENEWABLE FILIPIMNO 15, 700,000,000 15,700, 000,000 (31 3541915262
ENERGY, INC.** . el
PCD NOMINEE FILIPING 7073914225 LITHAOS | 7075105828 | 14.1295683566
CORPORATION -

FILIPINO o L
ASIA PACIFIC FILIPING 4,1 50,000,000 4,150,000, 000 | E2IRTROLIAGT
INSTITUTE FOR

GREEN

DEVELOPMENT INC.**

METRD PACIFIC FILIPING 0, 30, £ 00 1,600,00,000 | 319533 16305
NVESTMENTS

CORPURATION

PAMULINAWEN FILIPING 1,580, 000,000 LSS0 000000 | 31553899752
HOLDINGS D0

POD NOMINEE NCY 973,724,699 GILII8E21 | 19446083252
CORPORATION - NON FILIPING

FILIPING

MYRA P FILIPING 210,125 JH12S | DDD04 196169
VILLANUEVA -

JOSEIVANT. FILIPING 2000110 200 000 [ 00003994463
JUSTINIAND O MA.

JEMA V., JUSTINIAND

ELVIRA M. CRUZ OR FILIPING 140,000 150000 | 0.0D0299363%
| AERNARDO A. CRUZ

TOHANMA THERESA FILIFTND LRI TTN0INND | TR 9TOR2
AUSTRIACID

DOUGLAS TAN FILIPING 101100 100,000 | 00001997082
MARK LOUIE APAD FILIPIND 104,000 100,000 | 00001997082
MYRNAP, FILIPING 89,062 80062 | 0.00017TTRE
VILLANUEVA

MILAGROS . FILIPING 59,067 #9042 | 00001 TTRAL)
VILLANUEVA
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No. of Shares No. of Shares | No. of Shares
Numne Nationulity | with Option 1 |With Option |with Option | | Percentage
(LN full 2 (100% full (hesed om
payment) (25% partizl | paymeni) & Jasued commaon
payment)  |Optlenl (25% shares)
partial
payiment)
MARIETTA V. FILIPING 44 831 #3301 0000048932
CARREFA
JUANCARIOS Y. FILIPTNGe 44531 42531 00DOORESITE
| CABREZA
NEME RAFAEL FILTPIN: 18.154 25156 | 0000036229
VALIENTE ABAY(ON
TOSEMARIA GABRIEL FILIMING 5,004 5000 | DO0MO0TEESE
0, FADRI
OFFLIA R BLANCD FILIPMNO 5000 000 [ 0 00N0EE Y
JENNIFER T. RAMOS FILIPTNS 4,000 4000 | D.00D00TINRT
PEDRO O. RONAS FILTPING 1 1] 0000000002
BENIAMIN |. ESPIRITU FILIPING 1 1| 00000000020
ROCHEL DONATO R. FILIPING 1 1| 00006000020
| GLORIA
MANUEL V. FILTPEND | 1| G.0000000020
PANGILINAN
AMANDA ROSELLE A FILIPIND | 1] DO0GHONOGI0
HENGSON
LEANDIRO ANTONIO FILIPTNGS i I ] OO0
L LEVISTE
Total| 29,071 478.307 171,603 | S0,073,050,000 | 1000000080u0
*includes 18.643.050.000 not ver listed
**not yet listed

**%does not include 2,1 73,913,000 commaon shares which are scripless and indirectly
hetid or currenily under the name of PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipinag) and
19.4004,202.552 voting Class B preferred shares which are unlisted.

The public floal of thee Issuer as of 31 March 2024 i 20,02%.

Background of Sharcholders Owning At Least 10% of the Totul Outstanding Stock

L. en R Et I

MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. (MGreen) is the renewable energy (RE) nrm of MERALCO
Power(en Corporation, which is focused on investing in and developing energy projects that
utilize ¢lean and sustainable energy sources. MGreen plays a vital role in the attainment of
MGen's goal of building a balanced power generation portfolio,

Currently, MGroen hns an RE portfolio that includes the PowerSource Firsi Bulacan Solar Inc,
nlso called as BulacanSol, 8 55MWae solar plant in San Miguel, Bulacan in partnership with
PowerSource Energy Holdings Caorporation; the Nuevo Solar Energy Corp. (NSEC), a
O8MWae solar farm in Curmimao, llocos Norte with Vena Energy’s Pasuquin Energy Holdings
Inc.; and the PH Renewables, Inc. (PHRI). a 75MWace solur farm in Baras, Rizal with Mitsui
& Co."s Mit-Renewables Philippine Corporation.
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2. Salar Philionisics Power Proiect Holdings. 1

SPPPHI is u domestic holding corporation duly organized und existing under and by virtue of
the Iaws of the Republic of the Philippines, with principal office at 112 Legaspi Strect. Legaspi
Village, Barangay San Lorenzo, Makati City. Among others, it was primarily created to invest
in, hold, purchase, acquire, lease, contract, or otherwise, within the limits allowed by law, any
and all real und personul properties of every kind and description whatsoever which it may
deem necessary or appropriste, However, SPPPHI shall not sct as dealer and broker of
secunities,

3. PCD Nominee Corporation

PCD Nominee Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of the PDTC, a corporation
estublished to improve operstions in securities tmnsactions and to provide a fast, safe, and
mghly efficient system for securities settiement in the Philippines. PCD Nominee Corporation
aets as trustee-nominee for 0l shares lodged in the PDTC system, where trades effected on the
PSE are finally settled with the PDTC,

PDTC is a private institution established in March 1995 to improve operations in securities
transactions. Regulated by the SEC, PDTC is owned by major capital market plavers in the
Philippines, namely the PSE, Bankers Association of the Philippines, Financial Executives
Institute of the Philippines, Development Bank of the Philippines, lnvestment House
Association of the Philippines, Social Security System, and Citibank N A

All PSE-member brokers arc participants of the PDTC. Other participants include custodian
banks, institutional investors, and other corporations or institutions that are active players in
the Philippine equities market.

Dividends

The Issuer is authorized to distribute dividends out of its surplus profit, in cash, propertics of
the Issucr, shares of stock. andfor securities of other companies belonging to the Tssuer,
Dividends puid in the form ol cash or property are subject to approval of the Board of Directors.
Dividends paid in the form of additional shares are subject to the approval of the Board of
Directors and stockholders that own at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of
the Issuer. In case the stock dividends will be coming from an increase in suthorized capital
stock, such declarution shall be subject o SEC approval. Holders of outstanding commen
shares us of a dividend record date will be entitied to full dividends declared without regard to
any subsequent transfer of such shares,

On 6 Seprember 2021, the Bowrd of Directors upproved s dividend policy that gave the Bourd
af Direetors the discretion to declare dividends as they see it afier considering the funding
requirements for fulure projects subject to the reyuirements of applicable laws and regalations,
capital expenditure requirements, compliance with the Issuer's covenants, if any, and other
circumstances that may restrict the payment of dividends. There can be no gusrantee that the
[ssuer will pay any dividends in the future, Dividends may be declared only from the lsster’s
unrestricted retained eamings.

The Issucr has not declared any kind of dividend to its shurcholders sinee its incorporation.
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Exempt Transactions

On 19 July 2022, the Corporation received 2 letter from the SEC confirming that ite planned
SRO as previously described is a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the
SRC, pursuani to Sections 10,11 snd 10.1(1) of the said Tow.

Ttem 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis and Plan of Operation

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND PLAN OF OPERATION

As of dute, SPNEC has subsidiaries that are in commercial operations including SPCC and
SPTC

The Company initially allocated 1,332 million of the net PO proceeds toward land for future
expansion. However, on 20 December 2021, the BOD resolved thut pending the use of said
nllocated amount for future land poquisitions, effective 19 January 2022, the Company shall be
authorized to allocate the same towards bid bonds, bid security, and other expenses for potential
offtake agreements to enable the Company to be responsive to controcting opportunitics as
soon as they anse, in support of the Company's strategy to pursue such offtake arrangemenis
an an oppartunistic basis, Further, on 14 February 2022, the BOD approved the acquisition of
land in suppon of the Company s plan 1o develop 10 GW af solar projects, o be funded from
proceeds of a stock rights offering (the “SRO™) and proceeds from the PO, as available, and
the delegation of authority to the Company's President or his suthorized representutive to
determine the location, particolar parcels, und terms for such land acquisitions, and suthority
to execute contracts for this purpose, On even date, the BOD approved the conduct of the SRO,
in accordance with existing laws and regulations, and subject to the terms to be determined by
Management, the increase of the authorized capital stock of the Company. and the requirements
wrid relevant spprovals of the SEC and the PSE

On 15 September 2022, the Company completed its SRO and 1ssued |,875,649,995 new
commot shares for a total consideration of P2,8 13.5 million or at an offer price of P1.50, This
resulted in an additional paid-in capital of P2,591.4 million, net of transaction costs of F34.5
million.

On | December 2022, SPNEC extended the payment period for partially paid Right Shares
for a period of three months, from 5 December 2022 10 5 March 2023.

Asof 31 December 2023 and 2022, subscription receivable resulting from those that subscribed
on instaliment puyment amounted 1o #1.3 million and P651. | million, respectively. As of April
2024, SPNEC has already reccived at least 99.84% of the payments and is currently
coordinating with the relevam parties for the completion of the requirements of its SRO.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The summury of financial mformation is based on the Consolidated Fmancial Statement as of
31 December 2023 and 2022, and for the twelve-months period Ended 31 December 2023, und
far the six-months period Ended 31 December 2022, which were propared in accordanie with
the Philippine Finutcial Reporting Standards (“PFRS") and should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and notes contined in this report.
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Investment by MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. ("MGreen™')

On November 30, 2023, SP New Energy Corporation (“SPNEC™ or “the Parent Company™)
entered into a Subscriptivn Agreement, whereby MUOreen subscribe (i) 15.7 billion common
shares with par value of P1.0 per share and (i7) 19.4 billion preferred shures with par value of
P00 per share for a wtal subseription price of PI5.9 billion.

On December 6, 2023, SPNEC filed s apphcation for the aforementioned increase in
authorized capital stock with the Philippine Securities and exchange Commission (“SEC™). On
January 17, 2024, the SEC approved the Parent Company's application for the increase in
authorized capital stock. Subsequently, on 26 January 2024, MGreen purchased 2,173 913,000
common shares held by Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Ine, ("SPPPHI™) for a total
consideration of PhP2,499,999,950,00. With this, MGreen's resulting ownership in SPNEC is
now at 53.66%,

Acquisition of Solar Philippines Asséts

In 2023, SPNEC executed several Deeds of Absolute Sule of Shares (“"DOASS™) with certain
affiliates for the following transactions:

Date Counterparty Asset Acquired Consideration
(in millions

SP Tarlac = ﬁ 241.7
SRR 10 S150 SP Roo 1007

SP Project Holdings fop :
June 9, 2021 Solar Philippines Assets 80.0
June 39, 2023 SP Calatagan 502.8
November 20. 2023 | Lemsdro L Leviste | SP Calatagnn 2459

On November 9, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Deed of Donation and Acceptance with
Countryside Investments Holdings Comporation (“Countryside”), wherehy Countryside
donated and conveyed all its rights and obligations in SP Holdings, Inc. (“SP Holdings™) to
SPNEC.

Leandro L. Leviste is the mujor sharcholder of SP Project Holdings and Countryside.
Acquisition of controlling interest in TSPH from Prime Infrastructure, Inc. (“Prime")

Ag provided under the Memorandum of Agreement (“"MOA™) between SP Project Holdings
and Prime Infra and Prime Metro Holdings Corporation (“Prime Metro™), SPNEC acquired
Prime Infra's 50.01% interest in Terma Solar on December 11, 2023 for P6,000.0 million.
Thereafter, Terra Solur became a wholly owned subsidiary of SPNEC.

Material Changes to the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December
31, 2023, compared to the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December
31,2022
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Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Financial Position December 31, 2023 vs December 31, 2022

P December 31, | December Horlzontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
P0.00 2023 31, 2022 Increase/{Decrease) December | December
) {Audited) (Andited) Amonunt Percentage | 2023 2022

Assuts

Cash 10,040,424,627 | 37,232,084 | 10,003,192,543 | 26867.13% | 19.62% ]  0.60%

“‘“F““l‘fe 386,288,062 | 286288062 [ 100.00% | 0.56% |  0.00%

Subscriplion " . .

o r 1319,056 | 651,115,661 | (649,796,605) | -99.80% |  000% |  10.50%

Inventories 24,800,913 | 24800913 | 10000% |  0.05%|  0.00%

e omEIHed | 126920310 | 821,388,320 | (694468,010) | w455 | 025% | 13245

Other current TA4366,136 | 18638843 | 725727293 | 3893.63% |.45% 0.30%

TOTAL

CURRENT 11.224,119,104 | 1,528,374,908 | 9,695,744,196 | 634.38% |  21.93% |  24.64%

ASSETS

Property, plant ;

. 10,136,123,220 | 1.671.233.6 64, : ; :

S50 et mioon 16,123,220 | 1,671,233,624 | 5.464889,596 | 506.51% | 1980% | 26.94%

Land 12.467,340,000 | 12467340000 | 100.00% | 2436% |  0.00%

[nvestment . 5 i " a
" 312,626,010 | (312,626,010) | -10000% |  000% |  s.04%

Deposits for land | 3 396 796 396 | 2,026.892.396 | 1.369.884000 |  67.59% |  664%| 3267%

aequisition |

i’-‘l"‘“““ 9,646,601 | 10,201,126 (554,525) | -s44% | 002% | 0.106%

E’l‘:::"“““m’“ 676,962,959 | 654395.146| 22567813 3.45% 132% | 10.55%

Intangible assets | 13,261,891 642 -1 13.261,891.642 | 100.00% | 2591%|  0.00%

Goodwill 9,954,384 ) 9954384 | 100.00% |  0.02%|  0.00%

TOTAL

NONCURRENT | 39,958,695,202 | 4,675.348,302 | 35283346900 |  754.67% |  78.07% |  75.36%

ASSETS

IEEF“% 51,182,814,306 | 6,203,723,210 | 44,979,091,096 |  72503% | 100.00% | 100.00%

Liabilities and

Fquity

Accounts payable

and oeried 482,626,040 | 65218072 | 417407968 | 64002% |  0.04% 1.05%

CRPENSES

;E"-“‘_ to related 608,442,826 | 22770220 | 585672507 | 257200% | L19%|  037%

Current portion 366,847,748 | se6sanzas| 10000% |  072% |  0.00%

of notes peynble
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Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Financial Position December 31, 2023 vg December 31, 2022

A : December 31, |  December Haorizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
'“;::;' “ 2023 31,2022 Increase/(Decrease) | December | December
’ (Audited) (Audited) Amonunt Pmﬂﬁgw 2023 2021
Current portion .
g i 8962861 | 4,538,676 4424185 |  o74%%|  002%|  0.07%
TOTAL
CURRENT 1466879475 | 92526977 | 1374352498 | 148535% |  287% |  Laow
LIABILITIES
Leasc linbilitics -
net of current IRLI09300 | 298,599 744 82.509.556 27.63% 0.74%, 4.81%
portion
Notes payable -
net of current 2,729,695.924 - | 2,729,695.924 100.00% 5.33% 0.00%
| portion
A 4,086,521,200 | 4086521200 10000% | 798% |  000%
Other noncurrent
e 98,633 404 | ese3zdoe| tso0on|  oa9n|  0.00%
TOTAL
NONCURRENT | 7298080828 | 298599744 | 6.997.360,084 | 234330% | 14.25% |  4.81%
LIABILITIES
TOTAL 8.762.839303 | 391,126,721 | 8371712582 | 214041% | 17.02% |  630%
LIABILITIES »148, ’ Q :
Capital stock 3,437,305,000 | 1,000,000,000 | 2437303000 | 243.73% |  6.72%| 16.12%
;‘.‘;‘:;‘1“' pud- | s913764.400 | 3938722430 | 775041979 |  15.69% | 11.06%| 79.61%
Deposit for future
stock 15.894.042.026 | 15894042026 | 100.00% | 31.05%|  0.00%
subseription
Equity rescrve 525,755,142 S| 525755042  100,00% 1.03% | 0.00%
Revaluation = ]
268,091 91263 | 100002 | 1615% |  0.00%
: ¥ 8,268,091,263 | 8268
Rﬂﬂin i
camings (Deficity | S1OISNOT | o e gqyy | 5672277008 | 4497315 | 1084% | 209%
39,385,108,907 | 5,812,596,480 | 33.572,512,418 | S577.58% | 76.95% | 93.70%
E‘“‘ Controlling | 4 534 266,006 | 303486609 [ 100.00%| 593%|  0.00%
Eg;#;‘, 42419975003 | 5.812.596.489 | 36,607378.514 | 620.79% | B288% | 93.70%
TOTAL
LIABILITIES | SLISLBI4306 | 6,203,723.210 | 44,979.091,096 | 725.03% | 100,00% | 100.00%
AND EQUITY
Cash

As of December 31, 2023, the Parett Company collected its subscription receivables
amounting to P64%9 8 million and received a net advance from related party of P163.3 million.
These amounis were used for the payment of construction-related expenses of P468.0 million,
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tnd deposits for land acquisition samounting to P297.5 million,

On May 10, 2023, SPNEC received P2.437.3 million from SPPPHI for the subscription of
24,373.05 million common shares at PO.10 par value. Further, in 2023 SPNEC has accepted
cash infusion from SPPPHI amounting to P776.9 million a5 additional paid-in capital to
SPPPHI's existing subsgription in

SPNEC. The proceeds were used for the purchase of Solar Philippines Assets.

On November and December 2023, the Parent Company received the full subscription of
MGreen mnounting to P15,894.0 million, which was partially used to acquire the 100% of the
shares of Prime in TSPI for P6,000.0 million, and payment for the Parent Company's general
and administrative expenses. The balance of the proceeds will be used for the development of
TSPI project.

During the period, the Parent Company's subsidiaries including SPCC. SPTC and SPRC
received payments from customers amounting fo P1,122.3 million, of which P339.3 million
were used for its operating expenses, SPCC and SPTC made loan payments amounting to
P328.4 million and P285.7 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, SPCC paid
dividends to its sharcholders amounting to P95.] million and capital expenditures amounting
to PA7.5 million,

Trude ivables

Trade receivable arises from the revenue from the sale of electricity. and sale of goods und
services of the subsidiaries. These are either interest or noni-interest bearing depending on the
clause indicated i the contract and generally collectible within 40 o 60 days.

Ouistanding receivable as of December 31, 2023, pertains to receivable by SPCC from National
Transmission Corporation (“Transco™) amounting to P178.7 million, receivable by SPTC from
Manila Electric Company (“MERALCO™) amounting to P78.8 million and the balance is
SPRC's transactions from its Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) and Engincering,
Procurement, Construction (EPC) services

Subscription Receivable

Subseription receivable represents shares of stock subscribed to and issued by the Parent
Company but payment from the sharcholders has not yet been received.

Asx of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company made collections For subscription reecivable
amounting to P649 8 million.

Inventones

This sceount pertaing (o the inventories on hand of SPRC which are to be used for the
construction of its contracted Projects amounting to P24.8 million.

e from Related Partios
As of December 31, 2023, the balance of the Parent Company's advances to related parties is
P29.9 million, while the subsidiaries' balance of ndvanees to related parties amounted 1o PO7.0
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million,

Other Current Assets

This necount miinly congists of short-tenm investments amounting to P575.8 million that wre
restricied inferest-bearing accounts opened wnd established by SPCC end SPTC in accordance
with certain loan and service agreements that will serve as u cash reserve or deposit for the
principal andior interest payments due on the loans, This also includes prepayments such as
isurance, taxes, rent, and trust fezs of PS03 million, input VAT of P35.5 million, cash bond
deposits of P20.3 million, advance payment to suppliers of #15,3 million, performance bond
of P| 5.8 million, VAT Receivable of SPTC and SPCC of P16.5 million, creditable withholding
tuxes of PR.7 million and other non-trade receivables of P6.3 million.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

At Cone

The substantial increase in this account is due to the addition of the Solar Power Planis of
SPTC, SPCC and SPRC totaling a net book value of P7,037.6 million as of December 31, 2023,
und Construction in Progress (CIP) of SPTC for its | SMW Solar Power Plant; SPRC and LRSC
for its PPA Projects, totaling to P779.7 million. During the period, the Parent Company has
incurred a tofal amount of P468.0 million which was capitalized to CIP for the ongoing
construction of its S0MW Solar Power Mant.

The Parent Compuny's Right of Use Assets (“ROU Asscts™) has o total land aren of 352.42
hectares with & nct book value of P234.0 million. Also, added 1o this secount are the ROU
Assets of SPTC comprising of 102.49 hectares of land with & net book value as of December
i1, 2023 of P200. 1 million,

As of December 31, 2023, the total land area under lease of the Group, including the Parent
and SPTC is ut 454,26 hectares.

At Fair Value

This pertains to the parcels of land currently owned by the Group, inc¢luding TNI, SPCC and
SPTC, which was reported at their fuir market value as of December 31, 2023,

As of December 31, 2023, the Group has a total area of 670,43 hectares of land.
Deposits for Land Acquisition (DFLA)

For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023, the Group made deposits for land
acquisition including land-related costs 1o various lindowners amounting 1o PES7.3 million.
The totul amount of ™434.2 million paid by SPTC and SPCC was ndded Lo this account,

Other Noncurrent Asssts

This secount mainly consists long-term receivable by SPCC from Trinsco related to the FIT
adjustments amounting to P319.0 million, input VAT of P216.5 million of SPNEC, TNI and
SPTC, TSPI project development cosi of P75.1 million, construction matenials of P50.6
million, loag-term security deposits on leased properties of P9.4 million and Right-of-Way
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("ROW") contracts of P6.3 million,
Intangible Assets

The inturgible assets recorded as of December 31, 2023, pertaing to the fir values of the
ientifiable assets of TSPL which is manly attnbutable to the Power Supply Agreement of
TSP that existed at the time of the acquisition amounting to P13,261 9 million.

Goodwill

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of TSPI because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the congiderntion paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in telation to the benefits of expected synergics and future market growth. The total
goodwill recognized as of December 31, 2023, amounted to P9.9 million which is the
differenice between fuir value of the identifinble net assets and the total consideration.

Trade and Other Paynbles

Trade and other payables include (i) Accounts payable ar¢ non-interest bearing and are
normally settled within one year (i) withholding tax payable pertains to withholding taxes on
prafessional fees and various payments to contractors for services rendered (iii) acerued
expenses consist mainly of accrual for benefits to host communities, light and water,
professional fees, and (iv) differential cost of replacement energy charged by MERALCO o
SP Tarlac.

The third-party payables for the purchase of goods and services by the Group totaling P50.0
million, acerued interests for the loan facilities of SPTC and SPCC amounting to P99,3 million,
related party payables amounting to P185, 1 million as a result of business combination, accrued
expenses totaling P100.3 million, income tax payable of P21.7 million, withholding taxes of
P13.0 milbon, deferred output VAT of PE.9 million, and statutory payables of P4.4 million,

Due 1o Belated Parfies
As of December 31, 2023, SPNEC s balance of the advances from SPPPHT amotnted to P129 8

million. Also, as a result of the consolidation of Solar Philippines Assets, the smount of P478.4
million was also added to this account.

Lease Liabilit

As of December 31, 2023, the total land arca under lease of the Group, including the Parent
und SPTC is at 454.26 bectures, The outstanding lease liabilitics of the Parent and SPTC are
P291.0 million and P99.1 million, respectively.

Nites, P

This account pertains to the loans payable of SPTC and SPCC which was recorded in the
Group's financial statements as of December 31, 2023 totling P3,096.5 million,

SPCC
Omunibus Loan and Security Agreement ("OLSA ") (P3.400.0 miltion Loan)
On February 14, 2017, SPCC signed an OLSA with BDO, PBB and United Coconut Planters
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Bank (UCPB) (collectively referred to as the “SPCC Lendens™) for a long-term loan facility of
P3,400.0 million to finance the repayment of short-term loan facility, mcluding acerued
interests, and its Project advances from SPPPHI and Solar Philippines Commercial Rooftop
Projects, Inc. ("SPCRPI™), which were used to partinlly finanee the construction of the Project.
The Jong-term loan from the OLSA carries an interest rate of 6.85% per annum up to April 3,
2022, at which a fixed repricing of the rafe has been made to 7.96% per anoum for the
remasinder of the long-term loan. An increase in the Giross Receipts Tax (GRT) rate is expected
on April 3, 2024. The principal repayment period shall be semi-annual from October 3, 2018
up 1o Apnl 3, 2029

As of December 31, 2023 the loan has an outstanding balance of P1,192.6 million.

SPTC

Omnibus Loan and Seeurity Agreement (P2,225.0 million Loan)

On June 18, 2019, SP Tarlac signed an OLSA with BDO Unibank, Inc. (BDO) for u long-term
loan facility of #2,225.0  miltion to solely finance the construction of the Coutepuion Solur
Project

The proceeds of the loan ameunting P2,002.5 million and P222.5 million were received on July
3, 2019 and July 25, 2019, respectively. The principal repayment period shall be semi-annual
beginning on January 3. 2021 up 1o July 25, 2031.

As of December 31, 2023, the loan has un outstunding balance of 11,9039 million.

This account arises from the recognition of ROU Assets, lease liabilities, and fair value
measurement of the Group's land.

Other N Linbilit

This account consists of the noncurrent portion of replacement enerizy costs payable by SPTC
to MERALCO of P95 .4 million, The current portion of this replacement encrgy amounting 1o
P12.1 million was presented as part of the trode and other puyables.

Capital Stock
On 15 May 2023, SPPPHI and the Parent Company entered into a Subscription Agreement,
whereby SPPPHI agreed to subseribe for 24,373,050,000 common shares ut the par value of

PO.10 per share out of the Parent Company’s increase in anthorized capital stock upon its
approval by the SEC.

On 31 Muy 2023, the Purent Company filed with the SEC its application for un increase of the
anthorized cupitul stock and the correspondinig Amended Articles of Incorporation of SENEC
increasing the authorized capital stock from One Billion Pesos (P1,000,000,000,00) divided
inta 10 billion common sharés ai par value of PO,10 per share to Five Billion Pesos
(PhP3,000,000,000.00) divided into 50 billion common shares ui par value of P0.10 per share,

On | June 2023, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for an increase of its
authorized capital stock.
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Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Comprebensive Income December 31, 2023 vs December 31,

2022
December December Horizontal Analveis Vertical Analysis
Amounts in PO.00 31,2023 31, 2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December
(12 Months) | (6 months) Amount | Percentage 2023 2022
B3252.107 -
Crovernment share 3.620.537 . 3,620,537 100.00% 0.03% 0,005
Benefits to host .
cattiisiniline 2346121 | 234602 | 10000% | 0.02% [  0.00%
Others 23,767 808 7.557.638 16,208,170 214.46% 020% | -18.70%
Ceneral and
Administrative 169,903,117 | 446.98% L73% | -94.06%
£ o~ 207,914,077 | 38,010,960
g icenses

This account consisis of the Group's payments for corporute business permit renewal,
insurance-related taxes, land-reluted puyments such as real property taxes, CTC of titles, tax
declarations, DAR filing fees, ete. This also includes PSE listing maintenance fees.

Managemeni Fee
For the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, the management fees

recorded amounted to P32.0 million and P12.8 million, respectively. The increase permains to
the recorded management fec for SPCC.

Professional Fees
These are audit fees, appraisal fees on properties of the Group, directors’ fees, legal, and other

consultancy services incurred by the Group. The significant increase to this account pertains to
the legal fees related to the TSPI project.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the twelve-month period ended Devember 31, 2023, the Group récognized nmortization of
ROU assets amounting to P5,2 million and the balance for the deprecintion of other fixed assets.

Penalties and Surcharges

This pertnins to the Group’s payment of interest on tax deficiencies, amendments of 2022 BIR
retums and PSE penalties for late disclosures.

Trust Fees

These are fees for the maintenance of the Group®s trast sccounts, specifically for SPNEC,
SPTC and SPCC
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As of December 31, 2023, with the abovementioned trunsactions during the period, the
outstanding capital stock of SPNEC increased from P1,000.0 million to P3,437.3 million.

it Paid-in Capital
In 2023, SPNEC received u cash infusion from SPPPHI amounting to P776.9 million as
ndditionnl paid-in capital lo SPPPHI's existing subscription in SPNEC. This was revognized
its additional paid-in capital under cquity.

Deposit for Future Stwek Subscription

On November 30, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Subscription Agreement with MGreen 1o
subscribe

(i) 15.7 billion common shares with par value of P1.0 per share and (i1) 19.4 billion preferred
shares with par value of PO.01 per share for a total subseniption price of P15.9 billion. On the
same dote, SPNEC received partial cash subseription from MGreen amounting to P7.0
billion, and the balance amounting 1o #8.9 billion was received on December 27, 2023,

On December 6, 2023, the Parenl Company filed its application {or the aforementioned ihcrease
in authorized capital stock with the SEC. As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company
presented the cash subscription amounting to P15.9 billion as “Deposits for future stock
subscription” under Equity.

Equity Reserves
This represents the impact of the common control business combination as a result of the Parent

Company’s modified acquisition of 100% of the outstanding shares of SPPPHI in various
entities (i.e.. Solar Philippines Assets.)

Revaluation Surplus

The Group’s land is comprised of parcels of land with a total land area of 67043 hectares 2s
of
December 31, 2023, which was recorded st fair value.

As of December 31, 2025, the fair value increment amounting to P6,041 .4 million, net of
deferred income 1nx, is recognized in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in equity
under “Revaluation surplus”™ account amounting to P8,268.1 million, net of deferred income
tox.

The Croup has guined a net income of P5,947.6 million and incurred PS50 million in stock
issuance costs which was churged against APIC for the twelve-month period ending Deécembier
31,2023,

Material Changes to the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the
Twelve (12) -months ended December 31, 2023, compared to the Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the Six (6) -months ended December 31, 2022,
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As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company has subsidinries that ore in commercial

operations.
Horizontal and Vertical Analvsis of Comprehensive Income December 31, 2023 vs December 31, 2022
December 31, | December Horizontal Analvsis Vertical Annlysis
Amounts in P0.00 2013 31,2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December
(12 Months) | (6 months) Amount Percentage 2023 2022
Kevenue 035451217 i 035,451,217 100,00% 5.30% D00
Cost of sales (327,103,277 -| {(327.103,277) 10:0.00% -2.73% 0.00%%
GROSS PROFIT 08 347,940 _ 308,347,940 100.00%% 1.57% D.00%
General and
administrative (207.914,077) | (3R.010,960) | (169.903,117) 446.98% -1.73%: 94.06%
expenses
Other income .
35,292 08,335,292 00" 129 A
(Expense) 6,008,335 | 6.008,335,29 100,00% 50,12% 0.00%
Finance costs (167.232.021) (4.532.695) (162,690 324) | 3580 44% =1 309 11.22%
Interest income | 20,993 447 2 308,960 27594487 | 1150.27% 0.25% -5.94%,
INCOME (LOSS) -
BEFORE TAX 5971,530,581 | (40,144,695) | 6,011,675.276 14975.02% 49.81% 99.34%
Provison forineome. | 23949830 | 265.138| 23684692 | $93297% |  020% |  -0.66%
NET INCOME i
(LOSS) AFTER 5,947,580,751 | (40,409,833) | 5.,987.990,584 14818.15% 49.61% | 100.00%
TAX
g:::ommwm 6,041.394.357 | 6041394357 | 100.00% | 50.39% |  0.00%
TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE | 11,988,975,107 | (40,409,833) | 12,029,384,940 I*iTﬁBAﬁﬂ; 100.00% | 100.00%
INCOME (LOSS)
Revenue

From the date of the acquisition of Solar Philippines Assets and up 1o December 31, 2023, the
Giroup has recorded a total of P635.5 million revenue, mainly contributed by SPCC, SPRC,
and SPTC from the sale of electricity.

Cost of Sales

2022

Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Comprehensive Tncome December 31, 2023 vs December 31,

Amounts in PLOD

December
31,2023
(12 Manths)

December
31,2012
{6 months)

Horizontal Analvsis

Vertical Analysis

Increase/{Decrease)

Amoung

Percentuge

December
2023

December
2022

Deprecintion and

amortization

210,672,075

210,672,075

100.00%

1.76%

0,004
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Insurance 26,389,038 .| 26389038 100.00% 0.22% 0.00%
Manpower services 25,163,828 .| 25163828 100.00% 0.21% 0.00%,
Security services 12,569,952 | 12.569.952 100.00% 0.10% (1.00%
I_Sllil’iﬂﬁ and wages 11123826 2| 11123826 100.00% 0.09% D.00%%
Inventories issued 8714838 - 8714838 100.00% 0.07% 0.00%
Rental 6,731,915 . emims 100.009% 0.06% 0.00%
Others 25737805 | 25737808 100.00% 0.21% 0.00%
Cost of Sales 327103277 - | 327003277 | 100.00% 2.73% 0.00%

Costs of sale of electricity include expenses incurred by those dirccily attributable to the

generation of revenues from solar en

ergy. From the date of the acquisition of Solar Philippines

Assels und up to December 31, 2023, the Group has recorded total cost of sales of P327.1
million This account mainly comprised of depreciation of the solar power plant and
amortization of ROU Assets which accounted for 64% of the total Cost of Sales. Other
components arc plant insurance, plant maintenance, power plant preventive maintenance
schedule, salaries and wages, utilities, and others,

General and Administrative Expenses

Horizoutal and Vertical Analysis of Comprehensive Income December 11, 2023 vs December 31,

2022
December December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analvsis

Amounts in 0,00 31,2023 31,2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December

(12 Manths) | (6 months) Amount | Percentuge 2023 022
Taxes and licenses 40,924 88 6,848,628 34,076,254 |  497.56% 034% | -16.95%
Management foes 32040000 12.800000| 19240000 | 150.31% 0.27% | -31.68%
Professional [ees 67.000,766 6,401,280 60,590 477 046.68% 0.56% -15.84%
Depreciation and
snortention 5,560,646 2584193 2978.453 115.26% 0.05% -0 399
Bid related cost 7.499.277 ] 7499277 100.00% 0.06% 0,00%
Penalties and
S 6,180,173 1819212 4,360,961 230.72% 0.05% -4.50%
Insurunce 7.503 489 | 7,503,489 100,00% 0.06% 0.00%
Trust fees 1218271 3227 | 10000% [ 0.03% | 0.00%
Rental 8252107 100.00% 0.07% 0.00%
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Rental

These are mostly vehicle rentals that the Group incurred in relation fo the land acquisition for
project development,

Guvernment Share

The government share shall be equal to one percent (1%5) of the gross income from the sale of
electneity generated from solar energy operations. The amount recorded to this account
pertains to SPCC and SPTC.

Benefits to Host C. »

Encrgy Regulations (E.R.) No. 1-94, grant finuncal benefits to the host communities/local
government units (LGLs) of the energy-generition compuny and/or energy sources. This
requires all encrgy gencration compunics and/or energy resource developers o provide
financial benefits equivalent to one centave per kilowatt-hour (P0.01/kWh) of the total
electricity sales of the generation facility to the region, province, city or municipality and
barangay that host the generation facility, us well as establishment of corresponding trust
accounts and the administration thereof by the DOE. The amount recorded 1o this account
pertains to SPCC and SPTC,

id Rel s/ o

This sccount pertaing to the amortization of performance/surety bond fees of the Group's
Others

This account consists of supplies, utilities, accommodations, repairs and maintenance, couriers
and postages, and other operating expenses for plant operations of the Group. This also
included provisions for impatrment losses that the Group has recognized for the period.
Finance Costs

This secount includes imterest aceretion on lease linbilities, accrunls of interest on loan fcilities
of the Group, and others,

Other Income (Expense)

This secount s mainly attribatable to the remeasurement of its previously held interest in TSPI
bused on the provisional {air value which resulted in u remegsurement gain of P5,964.0 million.

Net Income
For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023, the Group has gained u net income of

P5,947.6 million, which is bisically due o the remessureiment guin of P5.964,0 million as
discussed in the other income (expense ) account.
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Other Comprehensive Income

For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023, the fair value increment amounting to
P6,041.7.0 mullion, net of deferred income tax, pertains to the land of TNI, SPCC and SPTC.

Key Performance Indicators

Ratin

Formula

December
013

December
2012

Current ratio

Dividing total current asséts
over totul current linbilitics

7.65

16,52

Acid test ratio

Dividing total current assets
leas inventory over total
current labilities

7.63

16,52

Solvency ratio

Dividing net income
total
debr obligations

0.70

N/A

Debt-to-equity ratio

Dividing total liabilities
aver stockholders” equity

0.07

Asgset-lo-equity ratio

Dividing tolal assets over
total stockholders’ equity

1.07

Intetest mate covernge
raliu

| Dividing earnings before

mlerest and xes ol une

period over interest expense
of the sume period

N/A

Net debi4o-equity Ratio

Dividing total interest-
bearing debts less cash and
cash equivalenis over total
stockholders™ equity

-0.16

N/A

Return on equity (%)

Dividing the net income

(unnual basis) by total

stockholders” equity

(average)

14.02%

NIA

Retum on assets (%0)

Dividing the net income
(annual basis) by the total
assets (average)

11.62%

N/A
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Item 7. Finaneial Statements

Attached us Annexes “A™ and “B” are the (i) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2023 und 2022 and lor the vear ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month
period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022; and (ii) Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2022 and Junc 30, 2022 and for the
Period from July 1, 2022 w Decetnber 31, 2022 and for the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively, which include notes on the financial statements.

Item 8, Changes In and Disagreements with Acconntants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosures

SGV, a member firm of Emst & Young Global Limited, has acted as the Company’s external
auditor since its incorporation. The Audited Financial Statements of the Compuany as of
December 31, 2023 and June 30, 2023 and for the Period from July 1, 2023 to December 31,
2023 and for the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, were andited by SGV, as set forth in

their report appeuaring herein.

The Group has not had any material disagreements on sccounting matters or financial
disciosure matters with SGV.

There are no plans to replace SGV as extemal auditor for the succeading years.

PART I - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

As of date, the following are the seven (7) individuals comprising the Corporation's Bourd of
Directors:

- i <] y 21123 (o present
Muowel V| Proident & Chief | Filipino | 77
g Executive Officer

Leandro  Antonio | . : Filipino 31 | <Byears 2016 to present
L. Leviste Vice Chairmaun

Director, Treasurer =1 year 2023 to presem
el DOm0 R+ | ynd Chief Finance | Filipino | 58

Officer

Director, < | year 2023 to present

Corporate
Ammnds Rosdlle | e o | Eiliping: |49

A, Bengson Chief O i

Officer
Harel Iris P | .. b < 8 years 2016 to present
Liafustice Director Filipino 36
Benjamin L. | Independent _ <3 years | 2021 (o present
Espirity Di Filipino 70
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Pedro Emilio O. | Independent i <1 year 2023 w present
=t DI Filiptno 68

The profile and the business experience of the foregoing directors and key officers for the last
five (5) years are indicated below:

Dircctors
Manpel V. Pangilinan, 77, Filipino, Chairman, President and CEO

Mr. Manuel V. Pangilinan currently sits as the Chairman and President of Metro Pacific
Investments Corporation, He 1s the incumbent Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQO)
of Manila Electric Company. Mr, Pangilinun is the CEO and Managing Director of First Pacific
Company Limited. He also serves as the Chuirman of PLDT Inc., Smart Communications, Inc.,
PLDT Communications and Encrgy Ventures Inc., Landco Pacific Corporation; Metro Pacific
lospital Holdings, Inc,, Maynilnd Water Services, Inc., Mediaguest, Inc., Associnted
Broadeasting Corporation (TV3), Makati Medical Center, Cardinal Santos Medical Cemter,
Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital, Philex Mining Corporation, PXP Energy Corporation, NLEX
Corporation, Digital Telecommunications Phils. Inc., Digitel Mobile Philippines, Inc. and
MERALCO PowerGen Corpomation. In 2012, he was appointed as Vice Chairman of Roxas
Holdings Incorporated which owns and operates the largest sugar milling operations in the
Philippines. Effective January 1, 2024, Mr. Pangilinan assumed the role of Chairmn, President
and CEO of PLDT Group, He is the incumbent Chairman of the Board of Trustees of San Beda
College, Hongkomg Bayanihan Trust, Philippine Disuster Resilience Foundation, Disaster
Recovery Foundation, Inc. and Plalippine Business for Social Progress. Mr. Pangilinan serves
as Co-Chairmin of the USPhilippine Society. He also serves as the Vice Chairman of the
Foundation lor Crime Prevention, As i known patron of gports, he was nomed Chairmun
Emeritus of the Samahang Basketbol ng Pilipmas and Chairman of the Amateur Boxing
Association of the Philippines. Mr. Pangilinan is also a Member of the Board of Overseers of
The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, Mr, Pangilinan earned lus Bachelor of
Arte in Economics Degree from Atenco de Manila University where he gradunted cum laude.
He pursued his Master of Business Administrution in the Wharton School of Finance and
Commerce as a Procter & Gamble Fellow.

Leandro Antonio L, Leviste, 31, Filipino, Vice Chairman

Mr. Leandro Antonio L. Levisie founded Solar Philippines in 201 3 with a mission o acceleriue
the development of solar energy in the Philippines. He has received numerous awards,
including being ranked at the top of Forbes Muogazine's inaugural *30 Under 30™ List for Asia
in 2016 and being numed the Young Entreproncur of (he Year Philippines 2022 by Emst &
Young. His first solar project completed in 2014 wag awarded the “2016 Sustainable Encrgy
Finunce Award™ by The International Finance Corporation of the World Bunk. His ploncering
mnovations won for the company the Asian Power Awards for Independent Power Producer
of the Year and Solar Power Project of the Year in 201 7. He led the Solar Philippines Nueva
Ectja Corporation during its Inittal Public Offering in 2021, becoming the youngest ever
Charrman, President, and CEO of a Philippine-listed company.

He is the youngest ever member of the Management Association of the Philippines and Makati
Business Club. He currently serves as Chairman, President, and CEO of the Solar Philippines

Giroup,
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Rochel Donato R. Gloria, 58, Filipino, Director, Treasurer, and Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Rochel Donato R. Gloria serves as the Chief Finanee Officer (CFO) of Memlco PowerGen
Corporation (MGen). Concurrently, he serves as the CFO of Global Business Power
Corporution (GBP), a wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. He is 8 scasoned executive bringing
in 37 yvears of lendership expenience in corporate finunce, business development, and murketing
from various industries, including energy, lelecommunications, private equity, among others.
Prior to joiming GBP, he served as Vice President and Head of Business Development and
Carporate Plunning for First Philee, Ine. He also served as First Viee President and Head for
Energy Trading and Sales for Aboitiz Power Corporation,

M. Gloria holds a Master of Business Admmistration from the Ateneo de Manila University
Graduate School of Business. He graduated with 2 Bachelor of Science, majoring in Industrial
Manugement and minor in Mechanical Engineering from De La Salle University,

Amanda Roselle A. Bengson, 49, Filipino, Director, Corporate Secretary, and Chiel
Compliance Officer

Ms Amanda Roselle A. Bengson concurrently serves as the Senior Vice President and
Assistant Corporate Secretary of Memlco PowerGen Corporation (MGen), In addition to her
role, she serves as the Senior Vice President and Head of Corporate Services Division of Global
Busitiess Power Corporatian (GBP), a wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. Her role i2 key in
providing strategic directions for the Company, pasticulary on Legal, Human Resource
Management, Supply Chain Management, Corporate Communications, and Management
Information System metiers. She is a seasoned and highly respected legal and energy
professional given her extensive experience in her profession wnd the industry. Prior to joining
GBP in 2006, she was with Mirant Philippines where she managed the Company's legal
operations and held positions at the Puno and Puno Law Offices and SyCip Salazar Hermnandez
& Catmaitan Law Offices.

Ms. Bengson holds n Juris Doctor degree from the Atenco de Manili University and a Bachelor
of Arts in Economics from the same university. She passed the Philippine Bar in 2001,

Hazel Iris P. Lafuente, 36, Filipino, Director

Ms. Lafuente leads the project development, execution, and opemtions teams of Solar
Philippines, With a background in bath the private and public sectors, Ms. Lafuente brings over
15 years of experience in project development, management, land acquisition, permitting, and
regulatory compliance. Prior o joining Solur Philippines, she worked at the Philippine Senute
as & legislutive siaff. Ms. Lafuente graduated from the University of the Philippines with a
degree in Social Sciences (Arca Studies) cum laude. She is also a Certified Project Manager
und a hifetme Pi Gamma Mu Intemational Honor Society in Social Sciences member.

Benjamin 1. Espiritu, 70, Filipino, Independent Director

Dr. Espinitu is o Certified Public Accountant, President of Risks, Opportunities Assessment
and Management (ROAM) Inc., Chairman of Banco de Mindoro, Inc., President of EC
Ventures Corpormtion, and heads several other two-fumily foundations nnd privite firms, He is
also an Independent Director of two publicly-listed ¢orporstions — Central Azucnrern de Tarlac,
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SP New Energy Corporation, Dizott Copper Silver Mines, Inc., NiHao Mineral Resources
International, Inc., and of an insurance corporation — Intrastrata Assurance Corporation, He is
also President of the Mindoro Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Ine. and Chatrman of the
Board of Adviscrs of the Philippine Marine Corps.

He served a3 a Provincial Governor of Oriental Mindoto and a Brigadier General AFP (Res)
und former Commander of the 7* Marine Brigade for three consecutive years from 2013 w
2015 and Philippines Navy Reserve Unit of the Year for six consecutive years from 2012 w
2017,

In the academe, he was the former Chainman of the Bourd of Regents of Pamantasan ng
Lungsod ng Maynila concurrent Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Ospital ng Maynila
Medical Center, President of Don Besco Technical College Mandaluyong, and Dean of Far
Eastern University — Mukati, He was slso Chairmun of the Accounting, Finance, Business and
Govermnanee Depurtment of De La Salle University Graduaie School of Business, Program
Coordinator of the Doctor of Business Administration program, and Course Director of the
Carporate Governance and Risk Management program.

He earned his Doctor of Philosophy major in Public Administration degree from the University
of Santo Tomas, Master in National Security Administration from the National Defense
Callege of the Philippines, Master of Business Administration from De La Salle University,
Bachelor of Science in Commerce, Mujor in Accounting from De La Salle University, and
completed the Naval Commund sad Genernl Staff Course ot the Navil Command and Staff
College.

Pedro Emilio O. Roxas, 68, Filipino, Independent Director

Mr. Pedro Emilio O, Roxas is the Chairman of Roxas and Company, Inc., Roxaco Land
Corporation, Roxas Holdings, Inc. and Club Punta Fuego, Inc. Mr. Roxas also serves as
Independent Director of Manila Electric Company, Mgen Global Power, Cemex Holdings,
Ine., OCont Insurance Corporation, and an Independent Advisor Metro Pacific Investment
Corporation. Mr, Roxas obtained his degree in Business Administration from the University
of Notre Dame in Indiana, USA,

Key Officers
Dominador M. Camu, Jr., 62, Filipino, Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Dominadar M. Camu is the Executive Vice President anid Chief Operating Officer (COO)
of Memlco PowerGen Comoration (MGen). Concurrently, he serves ns the COO of Global
Business Power Carporution (GBP), 4 wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. Mr. Camu also
serves as officer and/or director of vanous MGen subsidiaries and affilintes. He is a seasoned
Energy and Infrastructure executive bringiog in 38 years of leadership expericice in strategic
planning, project development, construction, negotiation, assel management & organization
development from different temitories in Asin

Prior 10 joining MGen, e was the Semior Vice President for Enginecring & Project
Management, Operations & Maintenance at Energy Development Corporation where he held
a key role in developing and implementing the Company's strategic business recovery and
cominuity plan, Mr. Camu also held leadership positions at Genera! Electric International, Inc.
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— Taiwan, Ogden Energy Philippines Holdings, Inc., and Philippine National Electrification
Administiation.

He has recorded successtul accomplishments in mobilizing and managing culturnlly diverse
EPC and O&M teams who are tasked to construct, commission, opérate and muintain complex
power plant facilities. His strong background in truining and coaching has encouraged local
plant staff to ke on greater respunsibilities. As an effective communicator, coupled with
customer-centric approach, he has effectively maintamed cordial relations with different
unhines, demanding owners, and parmers in Asis (India, Bangludesh, Taiwan, Thailand, and
the Philippines). He is well-versed in aligning the imterests of various stukeholders which are
typically centered on exceeding project retums and maintaining a high level of plant
availability, capacity, and efTiciency.

Mr. Camu is a Licensed Electrical Engineer. He carned his Bachelor of Science in Electrical
Engineering Degree from Mapua Institute of Technology. Took Advance Professional
Educntion on Power Engingering ut Carl Dulsberg Gesellshaft, Germany,

Alicia G. Brion, 55, Filipino, Head of Controllership

Ms. Alicia G. Brion is the First Vice President and Controller of Memlco PowerGen
Corporation (MGen). Concurrently. she also serves as the First Vice President and Controller
of Global Business Power Corporation (GBP), n wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. She is a
seasoned executive bringing in her expertise in finnneinl controllesship snd strategic insight,
which are pivetal in enhancing the fiscal health of the organizations she munages.

Prior 1o joining MGen in 201 1, she heid various senior leadership positions in sccounting and
audit at Buuang Private Power Corporation, AmTrust Financial Holdings Corporation, und LC
Diaz and Company.,

Ms. Brion completed her Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration —
Accountancy
from University of the Enst.

Aresty M. Lapitan, 38, Filipino, Assistant Chief Information Officer

Mr. Lapitan leads the accounting and financial management and opemtions teams of Solar
Philippines. As a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Forensic Accountant, Mr, Lapitan
brings over 16 years of experience in streamlining business operations for growth and
profitability. He bolds a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy wnd gradustid cum lande from the
Polytechnic University of the Philippines and & Master of Business Administration from the
Atenco Graduate School of Business. He is 2 member of the Philippine Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Anthony Matthew N. Co, 34, Filipino, Assistant Treasurer

Mr. Anthony Matthew N. Co serves as Vice President for Business Development Manila
Electric Company (Meralco). He brings 1o the Company over 10 vears of end-to-end
experienee in finance and mergers & acquisitions, with broad-based experience ncross the
power utilities sector. Prior (o joining Meralco, Mr. Co previously worked as Vice President at
Abuitiz Power Corporation where he spearheaded commiercial strategy together with business
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development trnsuctions, investment analysis, and fundraising initistives. His experience
extended to post-investment initiatives including corporate strategic planning.

Mr. Co camed his Bachelor of Science in Management Engincering from Atenco de Manila
University and has successfully comipleted all three levels of the Chartered Financial Analyst
oxam.

Jo Marianni P, Ocampo, 39, Filipino, Assistant Corporate Secretary

Auty. Jo Marionni P. Ocampo is the Head of Corporate Legal of Meralco PowerGen
Corporation (MCien) and Global Business Power Corporation (GBP). She is a seasoned legal
professional bringing in her expertise in legal advisory, due diligence, and transaction
negotiation She is highly adept in contract drafting and review, whether in the ordinary course
of business or in relution to big-ticket projects covering merpers and acqiisitions, and loans
und finameings, umong others.

Prior 1o joining MGen in 2022, she was the head of Legal for MetroPac Mavers, Tne., the
logistics arm of Metro Pacific Investment Corporution. Atty. Ocampo received her primary
legal practice truining from SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan.

Atty. Ocampo completed Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo de Manila University where she
groduated Tth in her cluss. She completed her Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
Degree al the University of the Philippines — Diliman.

Significant Employees

The Company considers the collective efforts of all of its employees as insirumental to the
overall success of its performance. There is no employee who is not an executive officer who
is expected to make, on his'her own, & significant contribution to the business.

Family Relationships

There are no known family relationships up to the fourth civil degree cither by consanguinity
or affinity among the current members of the Board of Directors and key officers of the
Caorporation.

Item 10, Executive Compensation

The Carporation did not employ any personnel from 31 December 2017 to 30 April 2021,
During this period, the Carporation’s operations, business development, administrative, and
finance functions were handled by its then parent Corporation, SPPPHI. On 30 April 2021, the
Corporation entered into a Management Service Agreement with SPPPHI to provide exccutive
and leadership support and execule ils stralegic dircction while managing its business
operations from | May 2021 w 30 April 2024, which may be rencwed or extended upon
agreement of the parties, for a monthly fee of PhP 2,000,000.00 or PhP24,000,000.00 per vear.
The Management Service Agreement covers all necessary administrative and advisory services
on management, investment, and technical matters involving the Corporation’s operations,
including but not limited to human resources, legal, fimance, and information technology,
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The executive compensution of the Corporation’s officers 15 part of the Munagement Service
Agreement paid to SPPPHI for itk executive and leadership support.

Regulur directors do not receive per diem or monthly compensation.  Below are the fees
received by the Corporation’s independent directors:

Year Fees Bonus (her
Compensation

Actunl FY N.A.
30 June 2021
Actual FY B1.8 million
Aggregaie directors’ | 30 Junc 2022
fee for Independent | Actual 31 #1_8 million N.A. N.A.
Directors Decomber 2022
{6 months)

Actual 31 A3.6 milhon
December 2023

Employment Contracts and Other Arrangements

As of 31 December 2023, the Corporation has no existing arrangements with members of the
Board of Directors, executive officeérs, and emplovees other than the Management Service
Agreement. There are no special employment contructs between the Corporation and its
executive officers. Funther, there are no special retirement plans for executives, There is ulso
no spectal compensation to be received from the Corporation.

Warrants and Options Outstanding

As of 31 December 2023, there are no outstanding warrants or options held by directors and
officers nor are there any adjustments i the exereise price of said warrants ar options.

Item 11, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial
Owners

As of 31 March 2024, the following persoas or groups own moce Uag five percent (5%) of the
Corpomtion’s voling sccuritics:
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Commion MGEN Renewable Same us the recond | Filiping 17,873,913.000° | 53 66%
Class B | Energy, Inc. awner 19,404,202 552
Preferred | ("MGreen™)
(voling)
%* Floor, Rockwell
Business Center,
Tower 1, Ortigas
Avemue, Burangay
Ugong, Pasig City
Parent Corporation
Common | Solar Philippines M. Leandro | Filipino 18,993,622,998" | 27 34%
Power Project Antonio L. Leviste
Holdings. Inc. owns 100% of
("SPPPHI") SPPPHI's
outstanding capital
20™ Floor AIA Tower | stock.
(formerly PhilamLife
Tower), B767 Paseo de
Roxas, Burangay Bel-
Air, Makati City 1226,
Common | PCD Nominee PCD  Nominee | Filipino 4.900,619,830" | 7.05%
Corporation Corporation, u
{Filipina) wholly owned
subsiciary of the
29" Floor BDO|PDTC, s the
Equitable Tower, 8751 | registered owner of
Paseo de  Roxus, | the shares in the
Mudeuti City, | bocks  of  the
Philippines Comoration’s
Stock Trs e
Stockholder of record | Agent. The
Jor shaves Jodged with | beneficinl owner of
the Philippine such shares entitled
Depasitory and Trust | to vote the same are
Carporation, Ine. PITC's
("PDTC") participants  who
hold the shares

gither m their own
behulf or an behulf

' Composed of 15,700,000,000 common shares thin are certificated wnd directly behd or registered in the nume
of MGreen and 2,173,913,000 comman shares which are senipless and mdireetly held or currently under the
e of PCI Nominege Corporation (Filipmol _

' Composed of |8,993,050,000 commen shares that sre certificated and directly held or reghitered in the name
of SPPPHI 2nd 572,998 common shares which are scriplets snd fnidirectly held or curreatly uoder the name
of POT Nominet Corasation (Filipino)

' Shires presenied in this fow excludes shiares owned by SPPPHI and MGreen Todged with PDTC
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of their clients.

Caommon

Asia Pacific Institute
JSor Green
Development Inc.

48 Dunwoody Street,
University Hills,
Malabon City

Filipino

4,150,000,000

The following table shows the ownership of the following dircctors and officers in the
Corporation's common shares ns of 31 March 2024:

Common. | Manuel V. Pangilioan | Filipino I | Direcr* 0%
Lesndro  Antonio L. L} Liirpot>
Caimon Filipino | 18,093,622,99 | Indirect*™® |  37.93%
Leviste 8
Common: | Rochel Donato R. Gloria | Filipino e 0%
. : 0 | Direct
Common | Hazel Tris P. Lafuente Filipino 336,001 | Indirect**+* 0%
: Amanda  Roselle A, | ... | | Direct -
Common I Filipino 0 ln:l;l rec 0%
Cormon | Benjamin L. Espiritu Filiino : “""“I " 0%
Common | Pedro Emilia O, Roxas: | Filipino ['. m‘“‘l : 0%
Coiitmb | Arsity W, Laplian Filipiso i mg e 0%
NA. |Dontinador M. Camu, Je, | P00 g' Dl f’?"‘l 0%
: s Filipino 0 | Direct
M™A. Alicin G. Brion o [ndis 0%
NA: | JoMiiumiP; Ocumps || 0 g e = 0%
NA. | Anthony Matthew N. Co | FiliPIn0 e 0%
Total . | 18,996,983,00 37.94%

SPPPHI.
“*The single share of Mr. Levivte is held in trust for SPPPHI.
wWeMr. Leviste holds 18,993,622,998 shares through SPPPHI.
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®e=*Ms. Lafuente’s entire sharcholding is currently lodged with the PDTC under PCD
Nominee Corporation, including the qualifying share she holds in trust for SPPPHI.

The aggregate number of common shares dircetly and indirectly owned by all officers and
directors as a group a8 of 31 March 2024 is 18,996,983,005 or 37.94 % of the Corporation’s
tolsl outstanding common shares,

Voting Trust

The Corporation 1s not aware of any person holding more than 5% of voting shares under i
voting trust or similar agreement.

Changes in Control

MGEN Renewnble Encrgy lnc. ("MGreen™), the renewable energy development arm of
Mermlco Powergen Corporation (“MGen"™), announced on 12 October 2023 that it has agreed
with SP New Energy Corporation and is parent, Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings,
Inc., 1o invest Phpl5.9 billion (o subscribe o 15.7 billion common shares und 19.4 billion
redocmable preferred voting shares in the Company. MGen is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Manila Eleviric Company, (he conntry’s largest private scotor electric distribution utility
company. The transuction will support the expansion of the Company’s project portfolio,
including the development of a planned 3.5GW solar power plant and 4 GWh of battery
storuge.

The 15.7 billion SPNEC common shares have a total subscription price of Phpl5.7 billion and
represent 31.35% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company. The
19404202552 billion redeemable preferred voling shares have a tot] subscription price of
Php194.04202552 million and do not have the ability to eamn economic returns or dividends,

Upon full payment of the subscription price, MGreen's nominees were clected as directors and
officers of SPNEC. However, MGreen's shares and the corresponding share certificates were
not bssued unul 19 Jamuary 2024, when the Corporation received from the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC™) approval of its application for increase in authorized capital
atock,

Subsequently, on 26 January 2024, MGreen purchased an additional 2,173.913,000 common
shares held by SPPPHI for a total consideration of PhP2,499 999 950,00, With this, MGreen's
resulting ownership in SPNEC is now at 53.66%.

Item 12, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Pursuant to SPNEC's Material Related Party Transuctions (“RPT™) Policy, the Related Party
Transactions Committee shall review and consider the following factors for RPTs:

¢ The terms of the transaction;
» The aggregate value of the transaction;
«  Whether the transiaction is arm’s length;
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s Whether the transaction will benefit the Company or expose it to unwarranted risks or
contingencies, taking into account the size of the transaction and the overall financial
position of the related party;

The extent of the related party’s interest in the transaction;
Whether the transaction is properly supported and documented through teansfer pricing
documentation; and

»  Other factors the Related Party Transactions Committee deems relevant.

The RPT Commiitee is entitled 1o request for documentation and information it deems
necessary o complete its review.

In the event of & favorable recommendation, the RPT Committee shall endorse the material
RPT 1o the BOD for approval. The BOD should appoint an cxternal independent purty to
evaluate the faimess of the terms of the material RPT. An externul independent party may be
an suditing/accounting firm, third-party consultunt, or appraiser.

SPNEC has no other trunsactions with other parties (outside the definition of “related parties™)
that enables the parties to negotiate terms of material transactions that may not be available

from other, more clearly independent parties on an arm’s length basis.

Parties are considered to be related if, among others, onc party has the ability, dircctly or
indirectly, to contral the other party or exercise signiticant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions, the parties nre subject to common control, or the
party is an associate or  joint venture. Partics are also considered w be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence which inchude affilintes.
Affiliates are related entities of the Group by virtue of common ownership and representation
to munagement where significant influence is appurent.

Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding accounts with related parties shall be settled in
cash. The transactions are made at terms and prices agreed upon by the parties.

Following are the Group's related party transactions for the year ended December 31, 2023, for
the six-maonth period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended Jume 30, 2022, and the
related outstanding balances as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:
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Deed of Assignment between SPNEC and SF Project Haldings

On January 11, 2021, 2 Deed of Assignment was entered into by the Parent Company,
ay the nssignee, and SP Project Foldings, as the assignor, whereby, SP Project Holdings
assigned to the Parent Company all of its rights and obligations under the Scptember 6,
2016 leasc agreement covering a total land area of 169.9 hectares, among others, and
the Parent Compuny accepted and assamed all of the said rights and obligations thus

assigried, pursuant to the said Deed of Assignment.

Management Services Agreement (MSA"') between SPNEC and SP Project Holdings
On Apnl 30, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MSA with SP* Project Holdings
o provide executive and leadership support and execute its strategic direction while
managing its business operations for a period from May 1, 2021 1o April 30, 2024,
renewable upon mutual agreement of both parties, for a monthly fec of P2.0 million,
subject to 5% annual escalation.

The MSA covers all necessary administrative and advisory services on management,
investment and technical matters involving the Parent Company's operations, including
but not limited (o luman resources, legal, finance, and information technology.
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Prior to May 2021, the administrative and finance functions of the Parent Company
were being hnnd!ed by SP Project Holdings at no cost to the Parent Company. Starting
May 2021, the key adminisirative and finance functions are performed by SP Project
Holdings through the MSA., Management fee recognized for the year ended December
31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the vear ended
June 30, 2022 amounted ({1 #26.0 million,
P12.8 millian and P24.0 million, respectively, presented as “Munagement fees™ under
"General  and  adminigtrative  expenses™ in  the consolidated  statements  of
comprehiensive income,

Construction Suppert Services Agreemens ("CSSA ) with 8P Project Holdings

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a CSSA with SP Project
Hu]dutgs wherein SP Fm_;m Ilu!:!mgi shall provide support services, mcluding
engimeering, procurcment and construction ("EPC™), logistics, warchousing and other
contractor-related services during the construction of the Parent Compuny’s Phose |
Project.

Construction support services recognized for the vear ended December 31, 2023, for
the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022
amounted to B36.0 million. P68.0 million and nil, respectively, which were capitalized
as part of CIP.

Adminisirative Services Contract (“ASC™) between SP Calatagan and SP Project
Haldings

On May 27, 2020, SPCC entered into an administrative service contract with SPCRPI,
an affiliste, w provide necessary and sdvisory services on management, investment and
technical matters involving SPCC's operations, including but not limited to human
resources, legal, finance and information techmology. Under the contruct, SPCC shall
pay SPCRPI a monthly fee
P10 million for o period of ten (10) years from January 1, 2020. On January 22, 2021,
SPCRPI executed s Deed of Assignment trinsferring all of its rights and obligations
under the administrative service contract t0 SP Project Holdings, In 2023, SPCC
recognized professional fees amounting to P6.0 million, which is presented as
“Management fees” under “General and administrative expenses™ in the consolidated
statermnent of income.

Site Acquisition Services Agreement ("SASA”) between Terra Nueva and SP Project
Holdingy

On Decomber 26, 2022, Terma Nueva catered inio a SASA with SP Project Floldings (o
cover total land area of 992.73 hectares for a consideration of #150.0 mallion for site
acquisition services, exclusive of VAT, from October 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022,

As of December 31, 2022, Termn Nueva has fully paid for the site acquisition services
rendered by
SP* Project Holdings and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition™ in
the consolidated statement of financinl position.

Deposit and Services Agreemint berween Terra Nueva and SP Praject Holdings
On December 26, 2022, Terrs Nueve cnlered into an agreement with SP Project
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Holdings, wherein the latter shall provide assistance, representation, facilitution of
documentation and submission of necessary documents and liaison with relevant
govemment units, agencies and offices including government owned and controlled
corporations to secure land use conversion orders from the DAR for the 992 73 hectares
acqguired by the former including the delivery of the relevant conversion orders fram
the dute of the agreement until December 31, 2024, To facilitate and expedite the
performance of the services by SP Project Holdings, Terra Nueva has provided the
former a refundable deposit amounting o B500.0 million which was presented in
“Deposits” us part of “Other noncurrent assets” as of December 31, 2022,

In 2023, SP Project Holdings bas secured multiple land conversion orders from DAR
fior parcels of land with a total land arca of 992,73 hectares. Terra Nueva then
reclassified the Deposits amounting to B500.0 million as part of land-related costs under
“Deposits for land acquisition™ aveount.

Intercompany Advance Agreement (“IAA ") with 5P Profect Holdings and Terra Nueve
On May 5, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the authority fo enter in a loan
arrangement with SP Project Holdings in which SP Project Holdings may lend to
SPNEC an amount up to the net proceeds of the Share Purchase Agreement with MPIC
(net of taxes, costs, and fees), under the terms and conditions approved and
recommended for board approval by the Related Party Transactions Committee of
SPNEC, and the proposed on-lending from SPNEC to Terra Nueva of the proceeds of
this loan.

On June 2023, SPNEC entered into an IAA with SP Project Holdings whercby SP
Project Holdings shall extend s loan to SPNEC wherein the lotter shall exclusively use
the proceeds of the loan for on-lending to Terry Nueva. Per TAA, SPNEC shall not
directly or indirectly use the procecds of the Loan for any other purpose without SP
Project Holdings's prior written consent. The IAA shall have a term of one (1) year,
subject to extension mutually agreed by the parties.

On the same date, SPNEC entered into an IAA with Terra Nueva wherchy SPNEC shall
extend a loan to Terra Nueva wherein the latter shall exclusively use the proceeds 1o
acquire the Project Land, as defined in the IAA. Per [AA, Terra Nueva shall not directly
ar indirectly use the proceeds of the Loan for any other purpose without the Lender's
prior written consent. The IAA shall have a term of one (1) year, subject to extension
mutually agreed by the purties,

In 2023, SPNEC received advances from SP Project Holdings which were then
subsequently advanced to Terra Nueva amounting to P300.0 million.

Deed of Assignment of depasit between SPNEC ard SP Project Holdings

On December 11, 2023, SP Project Holdings entered into a Deed of Assignment with
the Parent Company whereby the former nesigned the deposits in Terra Solar amounting
to B25.96 million to the latter. In 2023, the Group recognized other income amounting
to P25.96 million presented as part of “Other mcome - net™ in the consolidated
sisternent of income.
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b. LHHC

MOA with LHHC
On April 19, 2021, the Parent Company entered into 8 MOA with LHHC to secure land
covering a wtal area of §6.81 hectares For a total smount of P270.0 million.

¢ RC

MOA with PIC

On February 20, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with PIC, which was
later amended on March 3, 2021, to secure lund covering a total ares of 68.62 hectires
for a total amount of P267.0 million.

d. SPCRPI

Project Development Services Agreement ("PDSA ") and Amendment Agreement with
SPCRPI

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company eatered into 8 PDSA with SP Project
Holdings wherein SP Project Holdings shall provide project development services,
including site identification, permitting and land acquisition, covering a total arca of
925.61 hectares, for a copsideration of P150.0 million, exclusive of VAT,

On October 5, 2022, SP Project Holdings assigned all of its rights and obligations under
the PDSA to SPCRPL.

As of December 31, 2022, the Purent Company has fully paid the services rendered by
SPCRPI and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition™ in the
consolidated statements of financinl position.

CS8A4 with SPCRPI

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a scpurate CSSA with
SPCRPI wherein SPCRPI shall provide support services, including EPC, logistics,
warehousing and other
contructor-related services during the construction of the Parent Company's Phase |
Praoject for a consideration of #100.0 million, exclusive of VAT,

On October 5, 2022, the parties agreed to amend the consideration of the CSSA fram
P100.0 million to P219.5 million, exclusive of VAT, As of December 31, 2022, #210.5
miillion wus capitalized m CIP.

e. Solar Maintenance Services Corporation (“SMSC™)

Support Services Agreement between SPNEC and SMSC

On September 29, 2022, the Pareni Company entered into u Support Services
Agreement with SMSC, an affiliate of the Parent Company, wherein SMSC shall
provide suppott services during the conétruction and development of the Parent
Compaiiy’s Phase | Project. Manpower services recognized for the year ended
December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the
year ended Junc 30, 2022, amounted 1o #43.6 million, P23.5 million and nil,
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respectively, which were capitalized in CIP,

Property Management Agreement between SP Calatagan and SMSC

SP Calatngan has snnoal property monagement ngreement with SMSC 1o muintain and
manuge the solur power plant. Tn Janvary 2022, SPCC renewed its contract for a period
of one year until December 31, 2022, The agreement was uutomatically renewed and
extended for another period of one year, subject to standird escalation of service fee at
the e of 10%. in 2023,
SP Calstagan recognized outside services amounnng to #9.9 million presented as pan
of “Costs of sales and services” in consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Operation and Maintenance Agreement between SP Tarlac and SMSC

SP Tarlac has Operation and Maintenance Agreement with SMSC for the lamer 1o
operate, maintain and manage SP Tarlac"s solir power plant for 20 years for an annual
fec of P21.5 million with an csculation rate of 2% on the second year of contract and
every other year thereafier. For the year endod December 31, 2023, SP Tarlae
recognized professional fees amouniing to P14.5 million, which was presented as part
of “Costs of sales and services™ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Praperty Maimienance and Management Agreement between SP Rooftop and SMSC
SP Rooftop has various property maintenance and management agreements with SMSC
whiere the latter shall maintaio and mangge the solar power plants with terms varying
for two (2) years up to 20 years, SP Rooflop shall pay the total of salarics and wages
cost plus 10% to SMSC for employees of SMSC who directly maintain and manage the
solar power plant, For the year ended December 31, 2023, SP Rooftop recognized
“Personnel cosis™ which was presented ns pan of “Costs of sales and services™ in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounting to #) .4 million.

€554 between SP Rooftap and SMSC

SP Rooftop has three (3) CSSAs with SMSC where the latter shall provide support
services, including EPC, logistics, warchousing, and other contractor-related services
during the construction of the different projects of SP Rooftop for one year. SP Rooftop
shall pay SMSC the total of salaries and wages cost plus 10% of the employees of
SMSC who directly nssisted to the construction of the power plants.

Construction support services recognized as part of CIP and “Personnel costs™ under
“Costs of sales and services” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
amounted to BS.| million and PS5 4 million, respectively, for the year ended December
31, 2023,

f.  Individual Stockholder
MOA with 8P Calaragan
On February 12, 2019, SP Calatgan enterad into 8 MOA with the Individual Stockholder
to purchase 87.50 heclares of land for B421.6 million.

On June 28, 2019, the 87.50 hectares of lund specified in the MOA were pledged as part
of the securities to obtain a loan facility of SP Tarlac,
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PART IV - CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Item 13a. Corporate Governance

This portion of the Annual Report has been deleted pursuant to SEC M.C. No. 3, series of 2013
In complionee with SEC M.C. No. |5, series of 2017, and PSE Circular No. 2017-0079 on
the Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report ("ACGR"), the Company’s i-
ACGR will be submitted separately using SEC Form i-ACGR. The Integrated Anmual

Comorate Governance Repon replaces this section of the Annual Report and the previous
SEC Form ACGR.

Ttem 13b. Sustainability Report
A copy of the Company ‘s Sustainability Report 1s atlached hereto as Annex #C.”

PART V - EXHIBITS AND
SCHEDULES

Item 14, Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

(a) Exhibirs

See the Index and Supplementary Schedules of SPNEC s Audited Financial Statements for the
fiscal years ended 31 December 2023, attached hereto as Annexes “A™ and “B.”

(h) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

Below is & list of the reports submitted on SEC Farm 17-C during the Laxt six (6)-month period
covered by this Annual Report:

Daie of Details of the Disclosure
Disclosure S
2 June 2023 Amendments o the Articles of Incorporation of the
Company

the Board of Directors of SPNEC approved amendments
to the Articles of Incorposation of the Company on 10
January 2022.

On 7 March 2022, the stockholders of SPNEC approved
the suid amendment. On 31 May 2023, the Company filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commssion (“SEC") its
application for increase of the authorized capital stock and
the corresponding Amended Articles of Incorporation of
SP New Energy Corporation (the “Company™) increasing
the authorized capital stock from One Billlon Pesos
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(PhP1,000,000,000.00) divided into 10 billion common
shares at par value of P0. 10 per share to Five Billion Pesos
(PhP5,000,000,000,00) divided inlo 50 billion common
shares at par value of PO, 10 per share. On 1 June 2023, the
SEC approved the Company's application for an increase
of its authorized capilal stock.

I3 June 2023

SPNEC held its Annual Meeting of the Stockholders
today, B June 2023, via videoconferencing.

The Stockholders of SPNEC approved, among others, the
Company's Increase in Authorized Capital Stock und
Amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
for the Purpose (“ACS Increasc™) including the 1ssuance
of 24,373,050,000 shares to SPPPHI and the subsequent
iwswnce  of shares 10 Metro Pacific Investments
Corporation as disclosed to the PSE over which waivers
of any applicable nights offers are being sought, in
compliance with applicable rules.

I8 Tuly 2023

SPNEC received the approval of the Seccurities and
Exchange Commussion (SEC) for its inmcrease in
Authorized Capital Steck from 10 billion to 50 billion
Shares (ACS Increage). 24.37305 billion Shares were
issued to SPPPHI upon the ACS Inerease on June 1, 2023,
and were accordingly recorded in the books of SPNEC.

Pursumnt to the disclosure dated May 16, 2023, wherein
SPNEC entered into a Contract to Sell on May 15, 2023,
to acquire 100% of the shares of SPPPHI in various
entitics um? the procecds of SPPPHI's subscription of
24.37305b Shares, SPNEC has acquired 100% of the
shares of SPPPHI in these entities.

31 July 2023

Change in sharcholding of a director and principal
officer as a result of the acquisition of SPNEC shares,

31 July 2023

02 August 2023

Acquisition of SPNEC shares by Solur Philippines Power
Project Holdings, Inc. (SPPPHI, an affiliste of SPNEC
controlled by Mr. Leandro Antonio L. Leviste.

" Press Release on the acquisition of SP New Energy

Corporation (SPNEC) and its subsidiaries of aver 4000
hectures of lund, mostly in the provinces of Noeva Ecij,
Bulacan, Tarlac, und Batangas.

Of these, over 3000 hectures have been secured through
deeds of sale or contracts to sell and over 1000 hectares
through contracts to lease. Over 2000 hectares have
already been approved for convetsion to industrial use.

SPNEC has been growing its assets as part of its
consolidation of projects of Solsr Philippines Power
Project Holdings, Inc, (SF)

On May 15 2023, SPNEC entered into a contract to
acquire the shares of SP in various entities using the
proceeds of SP's subscripnion of 24,.37305 billion shares
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of SPNEC. This was coabled by the approval by the
Sccuritics and Exchange Commission of SPNEC's
increuse in suthorized capital stock on June | 2023,

I8 August 2023

Clanfication of news article entitled “SPNEC in talks with
fund managers for private placement™ on 12 June 2023,

SPNEC cofirmed that it is in talks with various
stakeholders, advisers, and polential investors o increase
is public float. SPNEC is also preparing to submit o
disclosure with further information on its ol Acton to
resume trading, mcluding requesting for a temporary
minimum public ownership exemption, mn consideration
of the actions that it is taking to increase its public float.

12 October 2023

Results of the October 11 2023 Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Approval of the amendment of the Company's Articles of
Incorporation to increase its Authorized Capital Stock from
50 billion common shares to 75 hillion common shares and
25 billion preferred shares and incresse the Company's
number of directors from seven to nine.,

Approval of the setting the date of a Special Stockholders'
Meeting on December 4 2023 with Record Date of
November 14 2023,

Approval of authoniziition (o execule an agreement for an
investor to subgeribe to shares in the Company to support the
above-mentioned increase in Authorized Capital Stock.
Approval of the conduct of a Follow-On Offering, with an
aim to support the cxpansion of the Company's project
pottfolio and increase the public ownership of its shares.

12 October 2023

Notice of Special Stockholders' Mecting held on 4
Decernber 2023 at 9:00 am via videoconferencing, with
14 November 2023 as the Record Date.

13 October 2023

Update on Corporate Actions/Materiall
Transactions'Agreements

MGen Renewable Energy Inc. signs agreement with SP
New Energy Corporation

16 Octiober 2023

Report on the use of IPO and SRO proceeds as
of the quarter ended 30 September 2023

13 November
2023

Clarification that the P200-billion mentioned i Business
Wotld news article perfains to the estimated project cost of
the olur projects that the parties intend bo pursue.

14 November
2023

Amendmenis to the sixth and seventh anticle of the
Articles of Incorporation of the Com to support the
expansion of the Company's project portfolio

73 Navember
2023

‘Compliance Plan for Minimum Public  Ownership
{lrn.[m-}
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24 November
2023

Disposal of SPNEC Shares by Leandro Antonio Levisie
Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, and Chie
Exeautive Officer
For clarity. this refers o a donation of shares owned by
Solar ilippines  Power ject  Holdings, Inc.

I December 2023

("SPPPHI"), and not a donation of shares ﬁ SPNEC.,
gwgﬁn Compliance with Minimum Public P

5 December 2023

SPNEC held its Annual Meeting of the Stockholders on 4
December 2023, via videpconferencing.

The Stockholders of SPNEC Iﬂlm\fﬂi among others, the
Company’s Amendment of the Company's Articles of
Incorparation to increase its Authorized Capital Stock and
the subseription of shares Meraleo PowerGen
Cotporation or its ufMilintes (MGen) in sup theseof,
and ncrease in the number of directors from 7 o 9;
Elmifn :f ;-r:hn Rochel Dﬂmax_ oR. ﬁ]ﬂﬁs‘ and Ms. Amunda

osclle A. as Directors, upon the approval of the
amendment ﬂfmnlﬂ of | ration to increase the
number of directors from 7 to 9 and Waiver of any
:;plinhlu mmdmgvr:nghu offer or public offering in

ation to oOr unsing the 1ssuance of'shares to M&n;

5 December 2023

Appomiment of New Officers of SP New Energy
Corporation

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved,
effective 30 November 2023, the appointment of Rochel
Donato R. Gloria a5 Treasurer and Chiel Finance Officer
(CFO), Alicia G. Brion as the Head of Contrallemship, in
place of Aresty M. Lapitan, who has been uppoinied as
Assistunt Chief Information Officer.

12 December
2023

SP New Energy Carporation (SPNEC) executed a Deed of
Absolute Sale w acquire 100% of the shares of Prime
Infrastructure, Inc. in Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (TSPI) for
Php 6,000,000,000.00.

Together with SPNEC's previously acquired shares in
EE?SFNEC is now the beneficial r!?nﬂ*uf 100% of
PL

12 Decembier
2023

Results of the December 11 2023 Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Approval of acquisition of 100% of the shares of Prime
Infrastruciure, toc. m Term Solar Philippines, Tnc. (TSPI) for
Php 6,000,000,000.00 (resulting in SPNEC becoming the
beneficial owner of 100% of TSPI), and suthorizing Leandro
Antonio L, Leviste to sign any und all documents, necessary
and proper, to effect the foregomg transaction.
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Election of Manuel V. Pangilinun and Amanda Rosclle A
Bengson as new directors of the Company, and election of
Pedro Emilio O. Roxas as independent director, effective on
December 27, 2023, Appointment of the following persons
to the following positions in the Company, effective on
December 27, 2023;

Manuel V. Pangilinan as Chairman, President. and CEO,
Leandro Antonio L. Leviste a8 Viee Chairman,
Amanda Roselle A, Bengson as Chief Compliance Officer

and Corpornte Secretary.
Dominador M. Camu, Jr. 6s Chiel Operating Officer,

Anthony Matthew N. Co as Assistant Treasurer,
Jo Marianni P Ocampo as Assistunt Corporate Secretary.
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Election of its recently clected 1rcasurer and Chict
Finunce Officer, Rochel Donato R, Gloria, as a member
of the Board of Directors effective 11 December 2023,

19 December Acquisition of Terra Solar Philippines, Inc.
2023
Prior 1o this nequisition, SPNEC owned 49999 shures of
TSP (49.999%) acquired from SPPPHI through a Deed
of Absolute Sale executed on 2 June 2023 and Prime Infra
owned 50,000 shares of TSP1 (50.001%). With this
l:_qfu;sg?um SPNEC is now the beneficial owner of 100%

21 December Election of New Director to the Board of the Company

The Board of Directors of the Compiny has approved on 11
December 2023 the election of the Company’s recently
elected Treasurer and Chief Finance Officer, Rochel Donato
R. Glona, ns a member of the Board of Directors effective
11 December 2023,

22 December Resignation of Mr. J. Carlitos G. Cruz.

27 December Subscription Payment by MGen Renewable Energy Inc. and
2023 Results of the December 27 2023 Meeting of the Board of
Directors

The Board approved, among others, the Election of
Munuel V. Pangilinan and Amanda Roselie A. Bengron
as new directors of the Company, and election of Pedro
Emilio O, Roxas as independent director, effective on
December 27 2023, Appointment of the following persans
to the ollowing positions in the Company:

o  Manuel V. Pangilinan as Chairman, President, and

¢ Leandro Antonio L. Leviste as Vice-Chairman

o Amanda Resclle A B as Director, Chief
Compliance Officer, and Comporate Sceretary

» Domionsdor M. Camu, Jr. us Chief Operating
Officer

¢ Anthony Matthew N, Co ax Assistant Treasurer

s Jo Mananni P. Ocampo as Assistant Corporate
Secretary

28 December sMGreen, the renewable en development arm of
023 MGen announced on October 12 2023 that it has agn

with SP New Energy Corporation (the “Company”) and
with its parent, Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings,
Ing. (“SPPPHI™), to invest Php 15.9 billion to subscribe to
15.7 billion commaon shares and 19.4 billion redecmable
mvmmg shares in the Company (the “Subscripnon

28 Decembier Appointment of Officers from SP* New Energy Carporation
2023 (“"SPNEC™
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section |7 of the Secunties Regulation Code and
Scction 177 of the Revised Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the

1ssuer undersigned, thereto 4t£ul1\\r suthorized, in  Mandaliyong Giy on
April 15, 2024
By:
A— v
MANUEL V. PANGILINAN ROCHEL DONATO R. GLORIA
Precident and Chief Executive Officer Treasurer and Chief Finance Qfficer
/Mw il
(. BRION AMANDA ROSELLE Y. BENGSON
Hv.ad ontrollership Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate

Seeretary



SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 15" of April 2024 in NASSMLWING CITY
personally appeared the following affiants exhibiting to me their government-issued Ds:

Name Government D No. Date and Place of
Issnance
Manuel V. Pangilinan Philippirie Passport No, | December 18, 201 8/DFA
POOAI36IA NCR East
Amanda Roselle A. Bengson | Philippine Passport No. | July 10, 2018/ DFA NCR
PT869583A Sosth
Rochel Donato . Gloria Philippine Pussport No. | November 14, 2019/ DFA
P3844 1778 NCR East
Alicia G, Brion Philippine Passport No. | August 18, 2018/DFA NCR
PE412528A East
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! SOLAR
ANNEXA 4 % PHILIPPINES
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of 8P New Energy Corporation (Consolidated) s rasponsible for the
preparation and falr presentation of the financial statemants Including the schedules attached
thergin, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the vesr ended December 31, 2023, for
the six-month period ended Decornber 31, 2022, and for the year ended Jure 30, 2022, In
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such inlemal control as
management delemmines js necessary |o enable the preparation of financial statements that
are fres from malerdal misststemant whather due to fraud or emror,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's abifity to continus as & golng cancem, disclosing, es applicalble matiers relaled to
going concern and using the going concarn basis of atcounting unless management slthier
intends (o liquidate the Company lo cease operations, or has no reallstic altarnative but to do
50,

The Board of Directors is responsible for averseeing the Company's financial reporting
RPrOCEss.

The Board of Dirsclors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same o the siockholders or members.

SyClp Goires Velayo & Co., the Independent auditors, appointed by the sicckholders. has
audited the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, end in its raport to the stockholders or members, has axpressed its opinfon on the
Twimess of presanialion upon complelion of such sudil

(-_].J' ,f..__
Modiist V. Pangllinan
Praspigfony, CEL and Crhoiman

Rechet Dot R Glaria
Troasurdr and CFD

=i

Signed iHis _‘5&'& Lt . 028
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN Io befores me this dayn! , 2024,
affients exhibiting 1o me their passport 10s, as lollows:

Name Passport Validity period
Manuel V. Pangilinan PO9GOIGIA  Vald until 17 Dec 2028
Rochel Donato R. Gloria  P38441778  Vaiid until 13 Nov 2029

Alicia G. Brion PB412528A Vahd until 17 Auwg 2028
Doc. No. 2%~
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No. of Siocboiters Asical Meeting (Manth | Sy} Fivcal e (Merst | D)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stuckholdemn
SP New Energy Carporation

20™ Floor AIA Tower

BT67 Pused de Roxas

Makati City

Opinlon

We have nudited the consolidated financial statements of SP Now Energy Corporation (SPNEC, 1
subsidiary of MGen Renewuble Encrgy, Ine,) and its Subsidiarics (collectively referred 1o us “the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated sitements of finangial position as a1 December 31, 2023 gnd
2022, und the consoliduted statements of comprehensive income, consoliduted sttements of chinges in
equity snd consolidated statemens of cash flows for the year ended Decentber 31, 2023, for the
six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and notes to the
vonsolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy infomution.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated finzncial statements present turdy, in ol material respects,
the financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023, and 2022, and its financin) performince and
1 cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period endisd December 31, 2022,
and for the year ended June 30, 2022 in sccordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRSs). '

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our mudits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
respansibilivies under those stundurds are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Conselidated Financiol Statements section of our report. We wre independent of the Group in
accordunce with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit of the consolidited financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in aceordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We bielieve that the sudit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate 1o provide s basis for our opiion.

Key Audit Matters

Key sudit mattees are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the cansolidated fnancial sttements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
cantext of our sudit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
theseon, knd we do not provide 4 sepirste upinian on these matters. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit sddressed the matter is provided in that context
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We hive fulfilled the responsibilitics described in the Audicar s Responsibilities far the Awdit af the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accardingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed o respond to our assessment of
the risks of muterial misstatement of the consolidated financinl statements. The results of our aodit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying congolidated fnancinl statements.

Acconnsing for Common Control Transactions

In 2023, SPNEC und Solur Philippines Power Project Huldings, Ine. ("SP Project Holdings™) exsanted
various deeds of absolute sale of shares where SP Project Holdings transferred and eonveyed to SPNEC
all is nghts, title and interests in and to various entities for total considerdtion of P3,175.8 million. The
transactions wefe commaon control transactions and accounied for using the poeling-ol-inferests method
wherein the assets und habilities of the transferred entitics were recognized st their carrying values, and
al equity adjustment wiis recorded for the difference between the carrying values of the assets noguired
and libilities assumed and the consideration given. We considered the accounting for these transactions
#5 a key audit matler due to the complexity und significant fAnancial impact w the Group.

The Group's thisclosures related to these transactions are included in Notes 2 and 21 (o the consoliduted
financial statements,

Audic

We reviewed the deeds of ubsolute sale of shares related to these trinsaction. We testéd management’s
upplicution of the pooling-of-intereste methad, the balances of the translerred entitled Lo SPNEC and the
resulting equity adjustments. 'We slio reviewed the presentution and disclosures relibted w the comman
control transsctions in the consolidnted financial statements,

Accounting for the Acguisition of Terva Solar Philippines, Inc.

On June 9, 2023, SPNEC sequired 49.99% interest in Terra Solar Philippines, Inc, (Terra Solar), which
wis tieated as an jnvestment b psuociate and accounted for using the equity method. On December 11,
2023, SPNEC acquired additional 50.01% interest in Terru Solas, which resulied to SPNEC oblaining full
ownership and control over Terra Solar. Accondingly, the Group consolidited Terra Solir on a line-by-
lihe basis and recognized u gain of P5,964.0 million arising from the remeasurement of its previously held
interest in Terra Solar.

The acquisition of Terra Solar wis accounted for as business combinution under PFRS 3, Business
Comibination and accardingly, on the date when the control was obtained the Group petformed notional
purchase price ullocation using the provistonal fair values of the assets acquired and Habilitics assumed
trom Ferra Salar which resulted in the recognition of goodwill amounting to #9.95 milben.

This matter is important to our audit because the amounts involved are matenal and significant
munagement judgment and estimates are involved in the determination of the provisiona! fair values of
the assets ncquired and Habilities assumed from Term Solar and the determination of the provisional fair
value pf the previousty held interest, bused on the available mformation as at the acquisition date.

The Group's disclosures related to these transactions arc incladed in Notes 2 and 22 10 the consolidated
financial stazements.
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Audit Respongg

We reviewed the deeds of ahsolute sale of shares and other documents covering the transictions and
afsexsed whether the transactions were properly acoounted for, We considered the terms of the relevant
agreemenis and documents in evalyating the Group's determination of the total costs of acquisition.

We also evaluated manugement's basis in determining the provisional fair values of identifiable assets
sequired und liahilities sssumed using the available information us of the weguisition date. We involved
out internal specialist in evaluating the methodologies and assumptions used in arriving at the provisional
fair values of the ussets acquired and Habilities assumead. We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

Impairment Assessment of Deposies for Land Acquisition

As of December 31, 2023, the Group hus deposi for land sequisition with a carrying value of

P3.396.8 million fur the scquisition of purcels of lund. Under PAS 36, Impalriment of Assets, an entity
chall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is iny indication that in asset may be
impaired. Management's assessmetit of impuirment considers informuation from various sources,
including those aboit the land acquisition process and the reluted requitements, the current status of land
acquisition, the timelinie of activities and factors that may affect the timing of completion of the
transaction. We considered this as a key sudit muiter becanse of the materiality of the smount involved,
and the significant mansgement judgment required in nssessing whether there (s any indication of
impairmenl,

The reluted disclosures on the Group's deposits for Jand pequisition are included in Notes 3 and 10 o the
consolidated fingncial statements

Audit Response

We obtained munigement's assessaient on whether there is any indicution that the deposits for land
acquisivon may be impiizred. We read the contracts entered into by the Group and obtained am
understunding of the sigmificant provisions relevant to the assessment, such es the subject propertics,
payment terms, and rights and obligations of the contracting parties. In addition, we abtained suppotting
documents on the payments mode by the Group, and inguired of the land noquisition process and the
related requirements, the current status of land acquisition. the timeline of activitics and faciors that may

affect the timing of completion of the transsction, and evaliated how management considered these
information in their impeinment asscssment,

Ohither Informatlon

Management is responsible for the ather information. The other information comprises the

SEC Form 17-A for the year ended December 31, 2023 but does nnt includo the consolidated financial
stutements and our puditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the dute of this auditer's repore,
and the SEC Form 20-18 (Definitive Informntion Statement) and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 20623, which are expected 1o be mude uvailuble 1w uk after that date:

Cnr opinion on the consoliduted finuncinl statements does not cover the other information wod we do not
and will norexpress any (oo of askurunce conclusian Berson.

In connection with our sudits of the consolidated finuncinl stmements, sur responsibsility s w read the
other information |dentificd sbove when it becomes wvailable and, in doing so, congider whether the other
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inforniation is matenally inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obiained in the audits, or otherwise appears 10 be materially misstated.

If, bused om the work we have performed on the other information thut we obtained prior to the date of
this anditar’s report, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibilitics of Management and Those Charged with Gavernance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Munagement is responsible for the prepamtion and fir presentation of the consolidated financiul
staterients n accordance with PFRSs, and for such tnternal control s management datormines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial wlataments that are free from muterial
musstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statenents, munagement is responsible for assessing the Group's
ahility to continue #5 & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related (o goifyg concem and
asing the gong concem basis of nccounting unless managesient either intends 1o liguidite the Group or
cense operstions, or has no realistic altetnative but to do so.

Those charged with governunce are respansible for overseeing the Grip's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finanelal Statements

Our objectives are to obtuin ressonable wsurunce sbout whether the donsolidated linancia] statements s o
whaole are free from material misstatesnent, whether due to fruud or error, and to issue an auditor's repon
that includes our opinion, Reasonable usaurunce is o high level of gssurance, but is nol a guarantes that un
audit conducted in bocordunce with PSAs will always detect n material misstaiement when it exists.
Mixsstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aguregate, they cotld reasonably be expected t influence the econvmic decisions of wsers taken on the
basiy of these financial sttements.

As part of an sudit In accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
profedsivnel skepticisn tougliont e audit. We also;

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consalidated financial siatements.
whether due o fraud or error, design and perform awdit procedures responsive to those risks, snd
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error,
&5 fraud may mvolve coltusion, forgery, imentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of
intemal control,

*  Obtain mn wderstanding of iniernal control relevant to the audit i order W desipn audit proceditres
thut are appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expresiing an opinion on (he
effectivencss of the Group's intemnal control,

e Eviluae the appropriateness of necounting policies used ind the reasonableneds of secotinting
estimates and relnted disclostires maide by management,
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Conclude on the approprateness of management's use of the going concern basis of sccounting and,
based on the midit evidence obtuined, whether i material uncertainty exists related (o events or
canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continne as a going concem.

If we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to drmw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated fimancial stutements or, if such disclosures are
inudequeste, to modify o opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidenve obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, finure evenis or conditions may cause the Group to cense
to continue as a going concem.,

Evuluate the overnll presentation, strustyre and content of the consolitlated financinl statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
trunsactions and events in o manoer that achieves fir presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropeiate audit evidence regarding the finmeinl information of the enuities or
business activities within the Group to exprexs un opinion on 'the consolidated finmycial stulements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the ausdit. We rermain solely
respansible for our sudit opimion

We commumicute with those churged with govermnance regarding, among otber matters, the plunned scope
and iming of the audit und significant andit findings, including any significint deficiencies in internal
contral that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governiance with a stitement that we have complied with relevant
elhicdl requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships und other
mrimiters thit muy reasondbly be thought o bear on ol independence, and where upplicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those chirged with povernance, we determine those matters that
wete of most significance in the sudit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period sl
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our puditor’s report unless law or
regulntion precludes public disclosure about the matter onwhen, in extremely mre circumstunces, we
determing that a matter should not be cotnmumicaied in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expecied to outweigh the public mterest benefits of such commumication.
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The engagement purtner on the sadit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Jhoanna Feliza C. Ga

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

i

Jhoanna Feli

Pariner

CPA Centificate No, (0114122

Tax ldentification No. 219-674-288

BOA/PRC Reg. No, 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until Apdil 15, 2024

BIR Accreditation No, 04-001998-103.2022, Navember 7, 2022, valid until November 6, 2025
PTR No. 10079942, Junuary 5, 2024, Makati City

April 12, 2024
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Eclja Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2023 22

ASSETS
Curreni Assels
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 23) H10,040,424,627 #37.232.084
Trade recervables (Notes 5 and 23) 256,268,062 -
Subscriptions receivable (Notes 16 and 23) 1,319,056 651,115,661
Inventonés [(Note 6) 24,900,913
Diye from related parties (Notes 14 and 23) 126920310 ¥11388.310
Other current nssels (Notes 7, 23 and 29) 744,366,136 18,638,843
Total Current Assets 11,224,119.104 | 528,374,908
Noncurrent Assels
Propenty, plant and equipment (Note 9)

Al cout 10,136,123,220 1,671.233,624

At revaiued amount 12467340008 _ -
Deposits for lund acquisition (Note 10) 31396776396  2.026,8923%
Intangible ussets (Note 22) 13.261,891,642 -
Goodwill (Note 22) 9,954,384 -
Deferred incaime tax asseis - net (Note 19) 9,646,601 10.201.126
Investment propertics (Note B) - 312,626,000
Otber noncurrent ussets (Notes 11 und 23 676 959 654,395,146
Total Nencurrent Assets 39,958,695, 202 4,675,344 302
TOTAL ASSETS B51,182.814.306 Mim,mg 10
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Linbilities
Trade and other payables (Notes 12 and 23) P482,626,040 Ph5, 218,072
Due to related partics (Notes 14 and 23) 608,442,826 22, Ti229
Current portion of:

Lumg-term debt (Notes 13 and 23) 366,847,748 -

Lease labilitiés (Notes 20 and 23) H.962. 861 4.538.676
Total Curreni Linbilities 1,466,879,475 02,526.977
Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent partion of:

Long-term debr (Nows |3 and 23) 2,729.6%5.924 _ -

Lease lubilines (Notes 20 and 23) K1, 109 300 208,509,744
Deferred tix liabilities (Notes 19, 21 and 22) 4,086,521,200 -
Other noticurrent lishilities (Notes 15 wod 29 98,633,404 —
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,295,959 H28 298,599,744
TOTAL LIABILITIES P8.762,839.303 391,126,721
(Forwardg)



December 31

2023 2022
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock (Note 16) FIAITI05000  P1.000,000,000
Additiona! paid-in capital (Nole 16) 5,713,764,409  4.938.722.430
Deposit for future stock subscription (Note [6) 15 894,042,026 -
Equity reserve (Note 211 525,755,142 -
Revaluation surplus (Note 9) 8,268,091,263 -
Retained eamings (Deficit) 5,546,151, 067 [126,125.941)
39385,108,907 5812596489
Non-controlling Interests 3,034 866,096 -
Totul Equity 42419975003 5812596449
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY PSLIBLEI4.306 B6.203.723.210

Sow arpoegmmping Noter to Cansalichared Fommcin! Shanmomis,



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerly Solar Philippines Noeva Ecija Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 11, 2022* AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

December 31, Detember 31,
2023 2022 Jung 30, 2022
{One Year) {Six Months) (One Year)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Notes 3 and 29) PGISA5L21T = B
COSTS OF SALES AND SERVICES
(Note 17) (327,103,277)
GROSS PROFIT 308347940 - -
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (Notc 18) (207,914.077) (38,010.968) (63.356,174)
FINANCE COSTS (Notes 13 and 20) (167.232,021) (4,532,695) (9, 142,009)
INTEREST INCOME (Mote 4 and 7) 29,993,447 2398960 B, 180
OTHER INCOME - pet (Notes 9, 14 and 22) 6008335292 - —
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX £.971,530,581 (40,144, 695) {71.950,003)
PROVISION FOR (RENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX (Note 19)
Curent 24,680,990 - -
Deferred (731,160) 268,128 {11,370 555}
23949530 265,138 {11.370,555)
NET INCOME (LO5S) 15,947 580,751 (P40,409,833) (P60 579 448)
Net income (loss) attributuble to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company PS5,706,730,751  (P40.409,833)  (P60,579,448)
Nun-controlling interests 240,850,000 -
P5,047.580,751 (P40, 409,853} (P60.579,448)
Busic/MMluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share _
{Note 24) P.2356 (PH.0043) (PO.0087)

* The Parent Compuery prepared consilidnied Giuncial statesients as of and for the dix-month pertod aided Decembet 51, 022
il coanection with the chivige of tie fiacel period end fron Jine 1, 2007 1o Deveniber 1), 2007 (see Notes il 7}

See devnmpiaiiny NModer o Consvifidited Finsecial Stislesthpnts



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022* AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

December 31,  December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
(Dne Year) {Six Months) (Onie Year)
NET INCOME (LOSS) P5,947,580,751 (P40,409,833)  (PH0.579.448)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)
Orher comprahensive income not @ be
reclassified to profit or losy in subseqguant
periods
Revalustion merement on lund (net of wx
eifect nmounting 10 ®#2,013.9 million)
iNote 93 6,041,693.185 - -
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits
(et of tax effect amounting to
PO million) (Note 15) {198.82E) - -
6,041,394 357 - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) PI1.988.975,108  (P40.409.833)  (PG0.579,448)
Total comprehensive incone (loss)
ateributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P11.748,125,108 (P40,409,833)  (P60,579,448)
Noa-controlling interests 240,850,000 - —
PI1,9B8.975,108  (P40,409,853)  (P60L579.448)

* The Paremt Company prepered consolidated finimeial staterments & of and for the aix-momh perod ended Deoembe 11, 2022
in commection with the chompe of the fiscal poriod emd [rom June 30, 2007 1o Decomber 31, 2022 (see Nows | and I}

Sow acoompiararing Never to Camvolidaned Finanmial Stisemiiss,
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Fermerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecijo Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2023, FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022* AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Becember 31,  Ducomber 31,
plibal T e 30, 2023
{Omne Year) {Six Monilis) {Ome Year)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income {lozs) before incoms e F5.071.530,581 D, 144 695y (F71.950,00%)
Adpmitments for:
Gain an remeasiremient of previouply cxisting equity
inlerest in Term Solar (Note 22) (5.964,035.242) - -
Other income (Nose 14) (25,960,000) -
CGinin on sale of property, plunt and equipment (Node 9) (17.834,545) - -
Interest income (Note 26) (29,991 447) (2,398, 9610) (548,180)
Finance costs (Notes 13 and 20) 167,232,021 4 532 605 9. 142009
Depreciation and amortizanon (Notes 9, |7 nmd 18) 216,232,722 2 584,193 5420370
Provision for impainnent Joss (Notes 5,7 and 18) 756,172 - =
Retirement benelit expenas (Note 15) 352ET0 - =
Unrzalived fipeeign mihm_w: loss (gain) 11,72 {545388) 7509
Operating incaome (loas) before working supiial dhanges J1R546.858 (353.972,155)  (37,661,095)
Decicase (lucninse) jn:
Trude receivables (Noie 5) 126, 704.719 = =
Invenories [Note 6) (T45.861) - -
Other current ansets (Note 7) (21,654, T65) 2,150,545 (20.013,297)
Increase {decrense ) in made and othier payables (Note 12) (358.754.343) 52.217.812 6272205
Met cash flows from (used m) opemtions 6d, 160,567 18396202 (71,402,187}
Interest meecived 0,943 447 298 9060 48180
Neet cash Mo feom (used in) operating activities 93,174,014 20,745,162 (VO.854.007)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquinitiom of Solar Phifippines ascts, net of cash acgurod
(Motes 21 and 22 (B.IE7.411.475) - -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Noie 9) 33938501 - -
Addrions to:
Dieposite for lend soguisition (Nose 10) (T2,096.532) (1405 392.463)  (541.700,m00)
Preperty; plant and cquipment (Note 9)
Al cost (OTTHRR4ETT) (460,794,817 (906,740, 770)
Al revalied amount (26.892,762) - -
Invesmient propenics (Note §) - [F12ed6010) -
Degrense (inirense) in
D from reluted partics (Note 14) 60420010 (279710439  (R4,499,933)
Difer nonewrrent ssgets (Nale 11) WI.TO 96 (540.176.775)  [112.848.087)

Net cash Nows used in investing activities

(9313,157301) (LOUK TOOSEG) (1.645707,7%0)

{Formvrd]
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December 31,  Deécember 31,
2023 2022 Junc M, 2022
{Dne Year) (Six Mosithy) {One Year)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AUTIVITIES
Proceeds from {euance of shares of sinck, net of
subscriptions receivible und trumsaction eosts (Note 16)  FL402413,635 B2 127833748 P2590338022

Cuallection of subscriptions receivable (Note 16) 649,796,605
Equity infusion (Mo 16) TTE.041,979 = -
Depusil for future stock subscription (Node 16] I5.594,042,026 - .
Payments of: (Note 27)

Long-term debe (16,261,855} = -

Interest (136,800,476) -

Leanse labjlities (Note 20) (18.526,22% - {14,004 465)

Diviidenids (61,570,424) - -
e 1o eelated platies (114,724, 705) - .
Additional capital contribution (Note 16) - - 1R,000,000
Net cash (lows froem financing activities 19223 410,556 2127834748 2603333557
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGFS ON CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (234, 726) 5459808 (274,700
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS VLDA3, 192,543 (B49.52621H)  AR0.407.05)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF

PERIOD A7.232 084 REA.TSRI02 35125

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

PERIOD (Noles 4 and 23] P10.040.424. 627  F37.232.084  FREATSE 302

* The Parent Company preparad oomsofidited fnuncial statemonts as of and for the six=month period cvdosd Degember 37, 2622
in coanestion with the ch=oge of the fiacl period cad from Juna 30, 1022 1o December 31, X122 (ree Mo | and 2),

Sex socompamying Notes b Constilidaiid Flameial Siobemente



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I, Corporate Information
{n) Organization

Si* New Enargy Corporation (the “Parent Company”™ or “SPNEC™) wus incorporsted and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Fxchange Commigsion (“SEC™) on

November 23, 2016, primarily to engage in the construction, operation and maintenance of all
types of rencwable encrgy plants and related services.

mmmmnhﬂmufmiﬁmﬂmdmmm}pmucsmm%{ 'PSE™) beginning
Decomber 17, 2021 and tmded under the ticker, “SPNEC",

The Parent Company and iis subsidiaries are hereby collectively referred to as the “Giroup™.
All subsidiaries are incorporated in the Philippines (see Note 2). As of April 12, 2024, the
Parent Company has subsidianies that are in commereinl opemtions (see Note 2).

On March 27, 2023, Metro Pacific Investments Corparstion ("MPIC™), 8 corporation otganized in
the Republic of the Philippines; entered into 4 Share Porchaie Agreement with Solur Philippines
Power Project Holdings, Ine. (“SP Project Holdings™) 1o acquire the loner's righs, vitle and
interests in and o SPNEC aqual (o 1.6 billion common shires for 4 totel considenition of
#2.000.0 smiillion (see Note 16),

Subsequently, on November 30, 2023, MUen Renewable Encryy, Ine. ("MGreen™) and SPNEC
entered into a Subscription Agreement, whereby MGreen subsenbed (i) 15.7 billion common
shures with par value of #1.0 per share and (i) 19.4 billion preferred shares with par value of
170,01 per share for a total subscription price of #15.9 billion (see Note 16). MGreen is o
wihally-owned subgidiary of Meralco PowerGen Corporation (“MGen"), which in tum is a
whaolly-owned subsidiary of Manila Electric Company (“Memleo™). Meraleo, MGen and
MUreen are registered with the Philippine SEC. The shares of Merlco are lsted in the PSE
under the ticker, “MER™.

As of December 31, 2023, the shures were not yel issued 10 MGireen pending the approval of
SI'NEC"s increase in suthorized capital stock (see Note 16).

Agof April 12, 2024, SPNEC 1s 35.7% owned by MCGreen, 37.93% owned by 8P Project
Holdings, und 3.2% owned by MPIC, with the balance as tie public Moat.

(b) Change in Corporite Nome and Fiscal Year

D Aujgust 8, 2022, the Board of Directors (“BOD) of the Pirest Company approved a
resolution 1o gmend the Arbicles of lncorparation and By-Laws to (1) change the corpomie name
from “Solar Phitippines Nueva Eciji Corporation™ to “SP New Energy Corparation™; and

(2) chingo the Pareot Company's fiscal year from July 1 (o June 30 of cach year lo Jannary 1 to
December 31 of cach year. This was subsequently approved by the Parent Company s
stoekholders on Augusi 30, 2022

On October 24, 2022, the SEC approved the application for amendment of the Parent Company's

Articles ol Incorporation and By-Laws.
(TR



On October 28, 2022, the complete requirements for the change in avcounting pedod for tex
plrposes were submitted to the Burean of Intemal Revenue ("BIRY). On Jamary |1, 2023, the
BIR approved the change in accounting period.

(e) Principal Office Address

On Apnl 12, 2024, the BOD approved the amendment of the Parent Company's Anticles of
Incorporation to change the principul office from | 12 Legaspi Street, Legaspi Village, Brgy. San
Lorenzo, Makati City 1229, Philippines 1o Rockwell Business Center, Ortigas Avenue,

Brgy. Ugong, Pasig City 1604, Philippines.

(d) Authorization for the lssuance of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 und for the

yeur ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the
year ended June 30, 2022 were authonized for issue by the BOD oa April 12, 2024,

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Complinnce and Material Accounting Policy Information

Busis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis, except for
land carried at revalued amount. The consolidated financiz! statements are presented i Philippine
Pesa (P), the Group's lunctiooal sud presentation currency. All smounts are rounded (o the nearess 8,
unless otherwise indicated,

The amounts in the consolidated stutements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity, consoliduied statements of cash flows and the related notes, as of and for the
six-month period ended June 30, 2022 were presented for the fractional period due to the change of
the reporting penod of the Parent Company from fiscal year beginming July 1 and ending June 30 w
calendar year January | and ending December 31 (soe Note 1), As a result, the amouants presented in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated ststements of chunges in equity.
consolidated statements of cash lows and the reluted notes for the six-month period ended
December 31, 2022 are not comparabie with those stutements for the years ended December 31, 2023
and June 30, 2022

ent of Compliance
The consolidated financinl statements are prepared in compliance with Philippine Finangial Reporting
Standards (“PFRSs") as issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted
by the Philippine SEC.

i of
The consolidated financial staternents comprige the financial statements of the Group as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023, for the six-month period
ended December 31, 2022 and for the yt::rnndnd June 30, 2022, The financial statements of the
stbsidiaries are prepared lor the same reporting year as the Parent Comipany using uniform
accounting policies, When necessary, adjustments are made to the separate financial statements of
the subsidiunes to bring its sccounting policies in line with the Parent Company's acoounting
policies.
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Control is achieved when the Group is exposed. or has rights, 1o vaniable remms from it involvement
with the mvestees nod hes the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group contrals an invesiee [, and only if, the Group hos:

*  Power over the investee (ie., existing righte that pive it the current ability (o direet the televant
activities of the invesice);

= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

& The ability 10 use its power over the investee to aflect its returms.

Generlly, there is a presumption that a majarity of voting rights resull in control. To support

this presamption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances n assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

= The contrsetual urrangement with the othier vote Bolders of the mvestee;
=  Rights ariging from other contructuil mrrangements; and,
= The Group's voling rights and potential voting rights,

The Ciroup re-nssesses whether or nod it controls an investee if’ facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three clements of control, Conselidation of a subsidiary
beging when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assots, linbilities, income and expenses of o subsidinry acquired or disposed of
during the year are included m the consohdated statcrments of comprehensive ingome from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidinry

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (“OCT”) are attributed to the equity
halders of the parent of the Group and 1w the non-conirolling interests (“NCT™), even if this results in
the NCI baving a deficit batunce. When necessary, adjustmenis are made (o the financial statements
of subsidianes to bring thelr accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All
intra-group assets and linbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating 1o unssctions
between members of the Group are elimingted in full on consolidsnon. A change in the ownership
interest of o subsidiary, without 4 logs of control, is accounted for us on equity trmmoction,

11 the Group loges control over 4 subsidiary, it derecognizes the relatel] adsels (including goodwill),
lalsilities, non-controlling interests and other components of equity, while sy resultant gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Any investment retaingd is recognized at fair value,

NCT repeesents the interests in the subsidiaries not beld by the Parent Company and are presented
separniely in the consolidated statement of income and within equity in the consolidated stntement of
firnuncinl position, separalely from equity attributable o holders of the Parent Company. NCI shures
in losses even i the loases exceed the NC1 in the subsidiary.

bsidiari
Except with respect 1o SP Holdings, Inc, (“SP Holdings™) and Term Nueva, Ing. ("Termn Nueva®'),
which ure mvesiment holding entities. the rest of the subsidinries has power gencrution as iis primary
purpose of business.

Except for Solar Philippines Calaugun Corporstion (“SP Calatagan™) und Solar Philippines Tarlac
Corporation ("SP Tardac™), all other subsidiaries have not started operutions.
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The consolidated finuncial stateynents comprige the Parent Company and the following suhsidiaries of
the Group:

Pereentage of Ownership (%)
2023 2022
Subsidiaries Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect

Term Nueva, Inc. (Terrn Nueva) 100 - 100 -
Solar Philippines Calatagan Corporation (SP Calatagun)’ 62 - - -
Salar Philippines Tarlac Corparation (SP Tarlac) 100 - - .
Solar Philippines Roofiop Corporation (SP Roofop) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Batangas Corporation (SP Batangas) 100 - = -
Solar Philippines Batangas Baseload Corporation

(SP Butungus Baseloud) 100 - = =
Solar Philippines Central Visayas Corporation

(SP Centril Visayas) 100 = = .
Solur Philippines Eastern Corporation (SI* Ensteri) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Retuil Electricity, Inc. (SPREI) 100 = = =
Solsr Philippines Sonthern Mindanae Corpolation

(5P Southerm Mindinao) 1ou - - -
Solar Philippines Southem Tagalog Corporation

{SP Southern Tagalog) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines South Luzon Carporation

{5P South Luzon) _ 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Tarlac Bascload Corporation

(5P Tarluc Baselond) 100 - -
Solir Philippines Visayus Corporation (5P Visayas) 100 - - -
Solar Phatippines Westem Corporation (SP Western) 100 - =
SP Holdings, Inc. (SP Holdings) 100 - -
Torma Solar Philippines, Inc, {Term Solar) ioo - - -
Laguna Rooftop Solar Corporation (Laguna Rooftop) &l - - -

Clhnsmi damrt 8 AU e Bl 1 P b wam

The following significant transactions affected the Parent Company's investments in subsidiaries in
2023:

Acquisition of Solur Philippines Assets
In 2023, SPNEC execuled several Deeds of Abgalute Sale of Shures (“DOASS™) with certain
affiliates for the following transactions.

Date Counterparty Asset Aeguired Consideration
{in millions)

SP Tarlac P2241.7

May 15, 2023 =
. i 3P Hoofiop 1007
June 9, 2023 SP Project Holdings I'g 1 Philippincs Axscs 80.5
| June 29, 2023 SP Calotagan S02.8
November 20, 2023 | Leandro L Leviste | SP Calatagnn 2499

On November 9, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Deed ol Donation and Acceptance with Coumtryside
[nvesimenis Holdings Corporation (“Countryside™), whereby Countryside donated and conveyed all
is rights and obligations in SF Holdings, In¢. ("SP Holdings™) 10 SPNEC.

Leandro L. Leviste is the major shareholder of SP Project Holdings and Cpuniryside.

L HEERT



= o

The foregoing share sale snd donation transactions were accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Detailed infornuation of the trangactions i included in Note 21 to the consolidated financinl
stalements.

Acguisition of controlling interest in Terra Solar fram Prime Infrasteucture, Ine. (“Prime Infra ")

As provided under the Memotandum of Agreement (“MOA™) between SP Project Holdings and
Pritue Infraand Prime Metro Holdings Corporation (“Prime Metro™), SPNEC acquired Prime Infiu's
$0.01%% interest in Tema Solar on December |1, 2023 for B6,000.0 mullion. Tliereafter, Term Solar
became a wholly owned subsidinry of SPNEC,

This step ncquisition is accounted for using the acquisition method. Detailed information of the
transaction is inchided in Note 22 1o the consolidated financial statements.

5P Calamgan

SP Calatagan is registered with the Bosrd of Iovestments (“BOI™) entity. Under the provisions of
Repuablic Act No. 9513, “Rencwable Encrgy (“RE™) Act of 2008, the Company shail be entitled to
sewven (7) yeass income tnx holiday (“TTH™) from start of actual operations or two (1) months from the
dute of commissioning or testing, whichever comes carlier, duty-free importation of machineries fot o
periosd of 10 years and exemption from VAT, among others.

While all of the common shares of SP Calutagan sre held by SPNEC and the preferred shares by
KEPCO Philippines Holdings, Ine, ("KEPCO™), the voting interest is shared 62% and 38%,, in fuvor

o SPNEC, The preferted shares are voting, non-participating and carn cumulative dividends at

P0.08 per share until December 31, 2035 subject 1o availability of retalned eamings and approval of
the BOD. These are convertible to comman stock at the option of KEPCO through

December 31, 2022 and ot the option of SP Calatagan after December 31, 2035, provided the
cumuiative dividends are paid. Unpaid dividends are entitled (0 compounded interest at 9.5% per
annum until fully paid. As at December 31, 2023, undeclared dividends on the SP Calutagan preferred
shares amounted 1o P256.7 million, und necumulated intesest recorded umounted (o B 1O million.

SP Tarlag
SP Turlae is also registered with the BOT and s entitled to 7-year IT beginning September 12, 2019,

All of the comtnon shares of SP Tarluc are held by SPNEC while alf redeemable preferred shares
totaking #1,500.0 million are held by Prime Metro. Such redecmuable prefierred shares are non-voting
and entitied to cumulated fixed dividend at o mte of 12% per annum, subject to availability of
retained earmings and approval of the BOD, These shares are redeemable al the option of SP Tarlac
atter five (5) years from issuance and convertible to common smock equivaleat lo SO% equity at the
option of Prime Metro,

As ot December 31, 2023, comulnnve undeclared dividends nenounted FSR9.9 million,

Laguna Rooflop

Lagunia Rooftop wis incorporated and regisicred with the SEC oa July 6, 2021, primurily 1o éngage in
the development, financing, construction, lesting, operstinn, mainteaance and ownership of rooflop
solat electricity genemtion projects lendered by Mitsubishi Motors Philippines Corporation
(“"MMPC™) and its subuidiary, Asian Transmigsion Corporation ("ATC™),

Th: n:oru-ululamd nnuuh!:lm:rmnu i:u:tud: n:h!nhmﬂ mfn‘uuufm ahml suhndmrm that have NCI
that are materinl to the Group, Manugement determined material partly owned submidiaries as those
with balance of NCI greater than 5% of the total NCI and those subsidiaries which tvpe of activities

thait are impotint bo the Group as at the end of the year.
R
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The following are the summarized finaocial information of SP Calutagan and SP Tardac as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2023

SP Calatngan SP Tarlac
Suminarized halance sheet information
Current assels PO9T7,606,656  P4BIO4L.795
Nongurrenl assets 5,674,606,019 6,765,727 668
Current lmbilities 288,533,947 591,246,084
Noncorrent lighilitics 1, 403366474 2290906373
Summarized comprehensive income information
Revenue from contract with customer P69% I8 RTR B430 568,929
Costs of sale of electricity (225986 476)  (267,640.960)
Giross profit 473295 402 162,927,969
Finante costy (106,336,371)  (167.762,523)
Gieneral and administrative expenses (51,953,243) (33,030,536)
Other income 28,638,095 16,791,424
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 26,761,760 B.225.408
Net ineame (loss) 116 8K2 043 (29,299,074}
Other comprehensive income 78,381,150 22,450,003
Total comprehensive income (Joss) 395,263,233 (6,848,981)
Summurized cash Dows information
Operating P457,619.789  P240,993,169
Investing (47,455,146)  (1R,449,129)
Financing (334,360,453)  (277,861,215)
Exchange mte effect on cash B3.580 255736
Net increase (decresse) in cash 75,887,770 {55,061,439)
NCI

The NCT in the consolidated finuncial statements represents mainly the ownership of KEPCO in
SP Culstagan, Prime Metro in SP Tarlse, and of DGA SP BV, ("DGA™) in Lagnna Rooftop.

ALIPLR T F RS _i L3 . 118y 12 kel Db AfE B
The aceounting palicies adopted are consistent with those of the previous fnancial year, except for
the adoption of new standards effective 2023, The Group has not early adopted sny standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been ssued but is not yet effective,

The adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the consolidated financial stalements,

*  Amendments to Philippine Accounting Standards (*PAS™) 1 and PFRS Practice Stntemeent 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policiex

The moendments provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements 1o

nceounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim (o help entities provide accounting policy

disclosures that wre more useful by:

o Replacing the reguirement for entitics 10 disclose their *significant” accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their *muterial” accounting policies, and

o Addmg guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality In muking decisions abowy
aceounting policy disclosures

The umendments 1o the Practice Stement provide non-mundutory guidince.

MR R o
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o Amendments o PAS K, Definition of Accounting Extimntes

The amendments introdiee o new definition of secounting estimates and clarity the distinetion
between changes in accounting cetimutes and changes in nceounting policies and the correction of
errors, Also, the amendments clarify that the effects on an sccounting estimate of n change in an
input or a change in & measurement technigue are chunges in socounting estimates if they do nol
result from the comection of prior periad emors.

¢  Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities avising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narow the cope of the initial recognition sxception under PAS 12, 5o that it no
longer applies (o ransactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible tempocsry dilferences.

The amendments also clafy that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax
purposies, it s a matter of judgemont (baving considered the applicable tax law) whether such
deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognized in the financial staterments
{and interost expense) or to the related asset companent (and inferest expense),

o Amendments o PAS V2 fnrernational Tax Reform = Pillar Two Mode! Rules

The amendments introduce a mandatlory exception in PAS 12 from recognizing and disclosing
deferred tux assets and labilities related to Pillar Two inchme taves,

The amendments also clanfy that PAS 12 applies to income taxes arising from tax [aw enacted or
substuntively enacted to mplement the Pillur Two Model Rules published by the Organization for
Economic Cooperation and Development (“OECD™), including tax law that implements qualified
domestic minimam lop-up taxes. Such tax legislation, and the income taxes arising from il are
referred 1o as “Pillar Two legistation” and “Pillar Two imncome taxes’, cespectively.

The lemporiaey exception from recognition and disclosure of information - 7 -elered taxes ad e
requirement to disclose the spplication of the exocption, apply immedintely and reliospéctively
upon adoption of the ameniments in June 2023,

Mesnwhile, the diseloyure of the current tax expense reluted 1o Pillar Two income tixes and the
discloxures in relution to periods before the legislation is effective are required for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | Jonuary 2023,

The Group has yet to implement BEPS 2.0 Pillar Two because the Group's entities are operating
in purisdiction/s (Philippines) which the legislation hos aot yet been enacted or substantially
enacted ag of December 31, 2023, The Group has not exceeded the threshold nmount in
vonsolidated revenue of €750 million, hence there is no impact on the consolidated financial
stitemicnts as of Deceomiber 31, 2023,

'i'hn aﬁmummgpuliuﬁ set ot bdnw have been upplied consistently to all periods presented in the
Croup’s consolidated finuocial statemenis, unless otherwise indicated.

Business Combinations and Goodwill

Businiess combinations are secounted for using the sequisition method. The cost of an soguisition 15
micastired 3 the aggeegite of the considenstion transfemed messured at acquisition date fiir vatue and
the attiount of any NCT in the acguiree. For each business combinatson, the Group elecis whether 1o
measure the NCT in the scquiree st fair vilue or al the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
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identifigble assels. Acquisiton-related cosis are expensed as inenrred and included in genceral and
adminisirative expienses,

Whent o bsiness is acquired, an assesiment is mude of the identifiable asdets acquired und Habilities
assumed for appropaate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
ecanomic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the ncquisition date. This includes the
scparation of embedded denvatives in host coalracts by the acjuires.

11 ihe business combinatian is achicved in stages, any previously beld equity interest is remeasimed at
its acquisition date and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of
income,

Aty contingent consideration to be transferred by the scquirer will be recognized at fair value nt the
icquisition dute, Contingent consideration classified as an asset or linbility is measured at fir value
with changes in fair valie rocognized in the consolidated statement of income. Contingemt
consideration that is clussified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent setilement is accounted for
within eguity.

Cioodwill is miually memsured at cokt, being the excess of the aggregate of the consaderation
transferred and the amount recognized for NCI, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifisble assets scquired and linbilities sssumed. 1f the fair value of the net assets scquired is in
excess of the aggregaie consideration trunsferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has cotrectly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilitics assumed and revisws the procedures used
to measure the amounts Lo be recognized ut the acquigition duate. 11 the reassessment still results in an
exceds of the e vislue of net assets sequired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
giin iy recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

If the initial sccounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting date in
which the business combinalion oceurs, the provisional amoutits of the items for which the
aceounting is incomplete are reported in the consolidaed financial statements. During the
measurement petiod, which shall be no longer than ane (1) year from the acquisition diite, the
provisionul amounts recognized at acguisition date are retrospectively adjusted to reflect new facts
and circumstances obtained that existed as ar the scquisition date and, if known, wonld have affecred
the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. During the measurement period.
additiomal nssets or habilites are also recognized if new information is obiained about facts and
circamsiances that existed as at the scquisition date and, if known, would have resuled in the
recognition of thosc assets and habilitics as af that dae.

After initinl recognition, goodwill is messured nt cost less any sccumulated inpairmient losses:

For the purpose of inpairment festing, goodwill soguired in o business combination is, from the
nequisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (“CGU™) thit are expected to
benefit from the combinution, freespective of whethet other assets or linbilities of the acquiree are
assigned to those units.

(WA
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Where goodwill has been ailocated 10 a CGU and part of the operation within thay unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associnted with the disposed opecation is included in the carrying amount of the
aperation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
messired based on the relutive values of the disposed operation und the portion of the CGU retnined.

Husmm :umhmum oi‘ mmm mdu‘ common control are avcounted for by upplying the pooling-oi-

interests method. The poaling-nf-interesis method generally involved the following:

s The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected in the consolidated financial
stutemints ut their carrying smounts. No adjustments are made to reflect fair value or recognize
any new assets or liabilities at the date of combination. The only adjustments that are made ane
these adjustments 1o barmaotitze the sccounting policles.

» Nonew goodwill 15 recognized os a resalt of the combimation. The only goodwill that is
recognized 15 any existing goodwill relating to cither of the combining entitics. Any difference
botween the consideration paid or transferred and the entity soguired is reflected within equity.

o  The consolidated stutements of income, comprehensive income ind cash flows reflect the result
of the combining entities from the date when the combination ukes pluce,

o Comparative finmeial information are presented as if'the entities had alwitys been combined, or
on date the common control existed on the combining entities, whichever comes earlier,

*  The effects of any intercompany transactions are eliminated 10 the extent possible.

+ Equity reserve is recognized for the difference between considertions paid or transferred and the
net assets of the entity acquited through business combmations involving entities under common
control.

of C Financi 15
The Group has clecied to present all items of recognized income and expense in two stitements; a
‘statement displaying componenis of profit or loss (consolidated statements of income) and a second
statement beginming wilh profit or loss and displaying components of OCH (consolidsted statements:
of comprehensive income).

'Hw{'irmp ptumumeu nndl[lbilmum the consolidated staternents of financid] position based on
the current/noneurrent classification, An assel is current when il is:

expesied to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal opemiling cycle;
expevted to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

cash or cosh equivalens unless restrictad from being exchanged or used 1o settle a lishility for at
Teust 12 monthy after the reporting period.

All otlyer axcers are clavsified as noncanent
A Hsbility is current when:

Tt is expecied (o be settled in the normal operating eyle;

It is held pnimanily for the purpose of trading;

It is due 1o be sertled within 12 months afier the reporting period; or

There is no uncondinonnl right to defer the settiement of the Linbility for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

The terms of the liakdlity thil could, at the option of the countiErparty, result in its setlement by the

issuz of equity do not affect jts classification.
L
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The Grouap clussifies all other Hubilines us noncurrent.

Deferred incaome tax assets and lishilities are ¢lassified &= noticurent dsasts and lobilities,
respectively.

Cush and Cash Equivalenty

Caih and cash equivalents in the consolidated staterments of financial position compeise cash on band
and it banks and short-{erm deposits with original matarities of three (3) months or less from dates of
acquisition und thal sre subject 1o meignificant rigk of chunges in value

Financial Instruments
A finuncinl instrument ks any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
linhility or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition ond measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recogmition, as fimaneial asscts at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprebensive meomy (“FVOCI™), or fair value through profit or less (“FVPL™).

The clnssification of financial sssets st initial recognition depends oa the financial usset’s contrnetunl
cash flow charactenstics and the Group’s busimess model for manuging them. The Group mitially
measures A financial asset at its faiv value plus, in the case of o financinl asset not st FVPLL
trunsaction cosm.

Tt order for & finuncinl assel o be classifed and messured ot amortized cost or FVOCL, il needs to
give rise to cush Mows Uthat are “solely payments of principal und interest ("SPPI™)" on the prineipal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPT test and i3 performed ot an instrumeit
leved.

The Group's business mode] for rmanaging fimancial pesets refers 10 how il manages its financial
assels in order to generate cnsh flows. The business model determined whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cach flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or comvention in the marketplice (regular way trades) are recognized on the irade date,
i.e., the date thit the Group commits to purchase or scll the asset.

Subsequent Measurement
For purposcs of subsequent measuremient, fimancial assety arc classified in four categories:

Financial ussets ot amortized cost {debt instruments)
Finaneinl assets at FVOCT with recyeling of cumulative gaing ond losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at FYOC! with no recycling of cumulntive gains and losses upon

derecognition (equity instruments)
» Financial ussets at FVPL

Financial assets af amortized cast (debt instrimenis)
The Group measares financial assets ot amoriized cost if both of the following comditions are met:

»  the finmncinl assct is held within a business model with the objective 1o hold financinl assets in
order o collect contructunl eash ows; and

s thie contractual lermy of the financii] asset give rise on specified dutes w cagh fows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
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Financial sssets al amortized cost are subsequenily messored using the effective inlerest (“EIR™)
mithod aod are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolldated
statemetits of comprehensive income when the asset Is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial ussets at pmortized cost include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
subseriptions receivable, due from related parties, shori-lerm investments and bonds (under other
current agsets), and longderm receivables (under other noncurmont assets) as of December 21, 2023
and 2022 (see Notes 4,5, 7, 11, 14, 16and 23),

The Group has no financial assets at FVOCT and FVPL

Einancial labilittes

Loans and borrenvings

Financial linbilities are classified in this category if these are not beld for trading or not designated as
at FVPL upon the inception of the liability, These melude mbilites ansing from opemtions or
bomowings.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair vafue of the consideration received, less directly
aitributable transaciion cosis. Afler initinl recognition, such loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured ai amortized cost using the effective tnterest method. Amortized cost is calenluted by
taking tnto pecount any reluted issue costs; discount or preoam. Gains and losses are recognized n
the cansolidated statement of comprehensive income when the habilities are derccognized, us well us

through the amortization process.

The Group's Touns and borrowings include trade und other payahles (excluding payable to
government agencies), due to related parties, long-tetm debt and leage labilities as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 (see Notes 12, 13, 14, 20 and 23).

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has no financial labilities ot FVPL.

Fiﬂmmh-' d.ﬂﬂ
A financtal asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial nssets)
ia derecognised when:

»  the nght 10 receive cash flows from the asset has expired: or

=  the Group retains the nght Lo receive cush Mows from the asset, but hus assumed obligation (o pay
them in full without material delay to o third party under n “puss-through™ nrangement ind either
(u) the Group hus transferred subistantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or () the Group
his neither transferred noe retained the risks and rewards of the asset bint has transferred the
control of the igset.

Where the Group has translered i3 right 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
“pass-through™ armngement, and has neither tmnsferred nor retsined substantinlly all the risks and
rewnrds of the wsset nor tansferred control of the asset, the asset is recogaized w the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset,

Continuing involvenent that takes the form of a guarmntee over the tansforred asset is measured

the Jower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group cottld be requiired to repay.
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Financial liability
A financial lalulity is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
o bas expired. Where an existing (inancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substintially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such

or modification 15 treated as a derecognition of the anginal bability und the recognition of 2
wew Hability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consalidated
stitement of compshensive mcomi,

Inpairment of Finaneial Assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs™) for all finuncinl assets except
debt instruments held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractun! cash flows
due in sccordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects 1o reccive, discounted
ot an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collmternl held or other credit enhoncements that are mtegral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognired in two (1) stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been o
significant increase in credit sk since initinl recognition, ECLs ure provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been u signiticant increade in credit rigk since initisl recognition,
a loss allowance is required for eredit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the defiult (a lifetime ECL)

il
Financial assets and financial liubilities are offsel and the net amount reported in the consolidated
stutements of financial position, if and only if, there 18 2 qurrently enforceable legal right to oflsel the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultancously, The Group assesses that it hus a eunmently enforeeable nghit of offset if
the right Is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforcenble in the normal course of
business, event of default, and event of insalvency or bankruptey of the Group and all of the
counterpartics.

Fair Value Meassrement

Fair valoe 15 the estimated price that would be recerved to sell an assot or paid to ransfer a lisbility in
an orderly nansaction between market participants ai the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption thit the tmnssction to sell the ussct or munsfer the lability
inkes place either:

® inthe principal markel for the asset or linbility, or
* in the ab=ence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market For the asset or ability.

The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible to the Group,
The fair value of an asset or 2 lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best imterest.

(VG



sf%s

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial wsset Lakes into account 4 market participant’s ability w
generate econvinic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best wse or by selling it to another
murket participant that would use the ssset in its highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation technigues that are sppropriate in the circumnstances and for which
sufficient data are svailable to measure fiir value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All ussots and lubilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are calegorized within the fair value hiermrchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fuir villue measarement as 1 whole:

¢ Level | « Quoted (nnadjusted) murket prices in notive markets for identical asaets o labilities;

» Level 2 - Valustion 1echniques for which the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the falr value
measurement Is directly or indirectly observable; and

*  Level 3~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest level fnput thi |s significunt to the fair value
measurement is unobaervable,

For ansets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on # recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierrchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that 1 significhnt to the fair value
measurement a8 2 whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assels and labilities on
the basis of the pature, charncteristics and risks of the asset or Hability and the level of the fulr value
hierarchy as explained nbove.

lnventories

laventaries are vatued ut the lower of cost (weighted average method) and net eealizable value
("NRV"). The NRV of finished goods and work-in-process is hased on estimated selling price, less
estimated costs of completion (for work-in-plocess) and the estimated costs necessiry (6 make salc.
The NRV for raw matenials is the current replacetment cost. In determining NRV, the Group
considers any adjustment for obsolescente.

F
Plint construction materials are carried uf cost and are presenied as noncurrent assets as these are
intendeed 10 be used in the construction of 2 project.

Advances (o Supplicrs

Advances (o suppliers pertain fo advince payiments made for purchases of construction materials,
other services, and rental of equipment. Advances to suppliens is measured on initial recognition at
cost, and ix reclussified to the proper asset or expense account and doducted from the supplicrs®
billings as specified an the provision of the contract

Eroperty. Plant and Equipmens

Property, plant and equipment, except for land and construction in progress, is stated ol cost less
accuminted depreciation, amortization and impairment in value, if uny. The iniial cost of property,
plant and equipment consist of’ the purchase price mcluding import dutiex, borrowing costs (during
construction period) and other costs directly uttributable t bringing the ussets to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Cost ulso includes the cost of replacing part of the
property, plunt and equipment, and the borrowing costs for long-term construction prajecis il the
recognition criterin are met. When significant parts of . plant und :qu“fﬂ.nu are required to
be replaced at intervals. the Group recognizes such parts as individual pssets specific useful

LT
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lives, depreciution and amortization. Likewise, when a major mspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the currying wnount of the property, plant and equipment as o replacement if the
recoghition eniteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance cosis are recognized in profit o
logs as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decominigsioning of an assel afler its
nge is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision aré meL

Depreciation and amortization of an item of propesty, plint and equipment begin when it becomes
available for use, i.e., when itis in the location and condition necessary for it (o be capable of
operating in the manner intended by munagement. Depeeciation and amortization cease ut the earfier
of the date that the item is classified as hedd for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
a4 held for sale) in accordunce with PFRS 5, Noncurremt Adereis Held for Sale and Discontinued
Cperations, and the date the asscl is: red. Leasebold improvements are amertized over the
lease term or Lhe economic life of the assct, whichever is shorter,

Each past of an ftem of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the ifem is deprecinted separately.

An item of propenty, plant and equipment, and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits ure expected from its use or
disposal. Any gam or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculuted as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the usset) is included in profit or loss in the vear
the usset is derecognized.

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed ot each financial year-end and
sdjusted, prospectively, if appropriate. The estinused usefil lives of property, plait and equipment
ure as follows: '

Category Nitmsber of Years

Solar power plant 0

Right-of-usc assers 25 -30

Machinery and equipment ]

Land improvement L]

Ofice and warehouse equipment 5

Trensportation oquipment 5

Fumityre and fixtures 5

Leasehold improvernents 5 or term of the lease, whichever is shorter

Land

Land is measured at fair value less impairment losses, if any. Valuations are performed with
sufficient frequency to cosure that the carrying amount of a revalued asset does nol differ muterially
from its fair value.

A revalustion defieit is recopnized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to the extent
that it offsets an existing surplug on the same asset recognized in the revaluation surplus. Upon
disposal, uny revaluation increment relating fe the particular asset being sold 1 transferred to retained
eamings. The approisal increment, net of the relnted tax effect, i credited o the “Revalustion
surplus™ account inchided a8 OCH in the consolidited statement of comprehengive income and as
ather component ol equity in the equity section of the consalidated statement of financial position,
except 1o the extent thal i reverses 4 revalmbion decrease ol Lhe same assel previously recopgnized in
the consolidated sttemuent of income, in which case the incresse is recognize in the consolidated
statement of income.
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Canvtruction in progress (“CIP") _

CIP repeesents stritctures under construction mnd is stated a1 cost, nef of accunmudated impairment
losses, if any. This includes costs of construction amd other direet costs. Costs also mclide interest
o fease Hability and amortization of right-oT-use asscts incurred during the construction period.
Congtruction in progress is not depreciated until sach time that the assets are put into operational use.

Right-atse ("ROU™) assets

ROU assets are included as part of property, plant and equipment. The Group recognizes ROU nssets
at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the underlying asset is available for use). ROU
agsets are meaiured at cost, loss any accumulated depreciation and impaiment loses, and adjusted
tor any remeasurement of lease habilittes. The initial cost of ROU assets includes the amdunt of
lense labilites recognized, imitial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received und estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismuntling and removing the underdying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying usset to the condition required by the teems and conditions of the lease,
unless thise costs are incurted to produce inventories,

Unless the Group is reasonably certain (o oblain ownership of the lessed asset at the end of the lease
term, the recognized ROU assets are depreciated on a struight-line basis over the shorter of their
estimated useful life and the lease term, ROU 2g5cts are subject to impairment (refer to Tmpairment
of Nonfinuneinl Assets policy).

Investment Propertics
Invesiment properties include parcel of lands held by the Group for capital apprecistion and are
curricd #t cost including transaction costs, not of accumulided deprecintion,

Investment propertics ure derecognized when cither they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdoewn from use and no future ecanamic benefit is expected
from its disposul. Any gains or losses on the retirement or digposal of un investment property are
recognived in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the yesr of retirement or
disposal.

Trunsfers are made 1o (or from) investment property when, and anly when, there s s chinge in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-oceupation or commentement of an openiting lease tw another pirty,
Trunsfers nre made from investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of pwaer-occttpation or commencement of development with o view to sell,

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property ot inventories, the cost of
property for subsequent accounting is 1s carrying value at the date of change in use. I the property
occupicd by (he Group as an owner-oceupied property becomes an investmont property, the Group
accounts for such property i accondance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to
the dute of change in use.

intangible Assct
Intangible assel pertains to the Power Supply Agreoment of Terr Solur thit was existing ut the time
of the soquisition (see Notes 22 and 29).

Intangiblc assets acquired separutely are initinlly measured b cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried st cost less nccumulited amoitization and any nccumulnted impalrment
toss. The useful lives of intangible aseets are assessed at the individual nsset level as having cither
finute or indefinive weeful lives.

M n
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Intangible assets with finite fives are amortized over the useful ecnnamic lives of 20 years using the
straigght-line method and assersed for impairment whenever there is an indication tht the intanyible
assets may be impaired. At a minimum, the amorntization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite uscful life are reviewed at cach reporting date. Chunges in the expected
usefsl life or the expected consumption pattern of future economic benefit embodied in the asset are
accoynted for by changing the amortization period or method, 2s sppropriate, und treated as change in
sccounting estimates. The amortzation expense of intangible nssots with finite lives i recognized in
the consalidated statement of income.

Intangible assets with mdefimte useful lives ure bot wmortized, but are assessed for impairment
annually either individually or nt the cash-geneenting unit level. The assessment of intangible assets
with indefinie useful life is done annually at evéry reporting date to determine whether such
indefinite usefil life continues to exist. Othierwise, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefimite W finite is made on a prospective bagis,

Cains or losses arising from derecognition of an infangible usset are measured as the difference
between the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the
congolidated statement of income.

Intangible assets generated within the business are not capitalized md expenditures are charged to
profit or loss in the year these are incurred.

Projest devilopment copts

Project development costs pertain to power plant project in the development phase which meet the
“identifiability” requirement under PAS 38, Intangible Assets, as they ure separable and susceplible
to mdividual sale and are comied at acquisition cost. Thesie assets are transferred 1o “Froperty, plant
and equipment” when construction of the power plant commuences. During the period of
development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Valpe-Added Tax ("VATT)

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amoumnt of VAT, if’ applicable.

When VAT from sules of goods and/or services (ouput VAT) exceods VAT passed on from
piirchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized a8 piyable in the consolidated
stutement of Gnuncinl position. When VAT pussed on from purchuses of goods or services

(input VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of goods and/for seiviees (output VAT), the excess bs
recognired ax an asset in the consolidisted sttement of finencial position (o the extent of the
recoverable amount.

- Beqetit Obligai
The Group has an unfunded, non-contribwtory defined benefit plan covering substantially all of its
qualified employess,

The defined benefit obligation is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reparting period. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
actuarially determined by an independent qualificd aetwary using the projected unit eredit method.
Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

»  Cument service cost
*  Remeasurements of nst defined benefit linbility of asset

Cunent service costs are recognived us expense in profit or loss.
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Remeasuremenis, comprising sciuatial gaing und Josses, ire recognized immediately in the
consolidated statements of financial position with a comesponding debit or credit to retained camings
through siher comprehensive income in the period in which they oecur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods, but ave elased directly to retained camings at the
end af every reporting period.

L s fior Lo ;
Deposits for land scgnisition pertain (o non-refundable deposits and payments made in relation 1w the
seguigition of parcels of tand that are intended for future expansion, and are stated w1 the smount paid
legs any impairment in value. Upon successful transfer of title, the deposits for land sequisition shall
be reclassified lo land as pan of cither investment property or property, plant and equipment.

. N al
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that these nonfinancial asscts
migy be impaired. I any such indicution exists, or when sanuul frmpairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates these nonfinancial assets” rocoverable amount. An asset’s recovernble
amount is the higher of an asset®s or CGU fair value less costs to sell and its value in vseand 15
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other asscts or groups of assets. Where the carmymmg amount of an asset or
CGLU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considercd impaired and is writien down io its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the cstimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a discownt mte that reflects current murked sssessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific w the asset. An impairment losg i charged (o profit or loss in the period
in which it arises. In the case of input VAT, un allowance is provided for any portion of the input
VAT that cunnot be cluimed agiinst owput VAT or recovered as tax eredit aguinst fiture income Lax
linbnlity.

An aticssment is made ot each reporting date To determine whethier there s any indication (hat
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 11 such
indication exigts, the Groop makes an estimate of recoverable amount. Any previously recognized
Impairment loss is reversed only if there bas been a change in the estimales tsed o determine the
sasct’s recovernble amount smoe the last impairment loss was recoginized, [ thit is the case, the
carrying amount of the ussel i incrensed (0 its recoverable amount. That increased amoumt cannod
‘exceed the carrying amount thai would have been determined, net of depreciation and amartization,
had no impairmend loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods. Such reversal is recognized in
the consolidated stitement of comprehensive income.

Capttal Stock
Capital stock is measured at par value and is classified as equity for all shares of stocks issucd

i

n (pmid) ital (“APIC)
When the shaves of stock are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value
is credited to the APIC secount.

Direct costs incurred related 1o equity issuance, such os underwritmg, sccounting and legal fees,
printing costs und taxes are reduction o the APIC. If APIC is not sufficient, thie exoess is churpedl
agninst the “Retuined enrmings™ secount,

Subsériptions Receivable

Subscriptions receivible represents unpaid portion ol sibseriptions and is presented as current iesets
when it i expected (o be collected within 12 months after the finuncial reporting date. Otherwise,
this is presented as reduction from equity.



E i for B Siock Subsigin
Deposits for futune stock subseriptions represent fitnds recerved as payment for additional issunnce of
shares,

The Parent Company classifies a contract to deliver its additional equity instruments as a “Deposit for
futore stock subscriptions™ if and only if, all of the following elements are present es of thie reporting

period:

. the umissued authorized capital stock of the Parent Company is insufficient b cover the smoun! of
shares mdicated in the contract:

b. there is BOD's approval on the proposed increase in muthorized capital stock:

e.  there is stockholders” approval of the said proposed increlise; and

d. the application for the approval of the proposed increase was presented for filing or has been filed
with the SEC,

: Banlisgy (Deficit
Retained camings (deficit) represent the comulative balance of periodic net income or loss, prior
period sdjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments. When the
retained earnings account has u debit balance, it is called “deficit”. A deficit is pot an asset but o
deduction from equity.

Leases .

The determiimation of whether an arrangement is (or containg) a lease is bused on the substance of the
armangement al the inception. The amangement is, or containg, a lesse it ful iiment of the arrangement
15 dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets snd the armngement conveys a right o use the

maset or assets, even if that right is not exphicitly specified n an armngemeni.

The Grroup assesses at contract inception afl arangements to determine whether it is, or containg, o
lense. Thal is, if the contract conveys the right 10 control the use of an identified asset for a period of
ume in exchange for consideration.

Group as o Lesser

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of lowe-value aasets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities 1o make lease
puyments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying ansets,

il ROU axiens
Reter to ROU ansets policy.

i1) Lease linhilitiey
Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilitics messured at the
present value of lcase payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed
peyments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, vanable
leaase paymants that depend on an index or 2 mate, ond smounts expected 10 be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the excrcise price of & purchase option
reasanably certam to be excrcised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminuting a lease,
it the lease torm reflects the Group excrcising the option to terminate.

The vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a mle are recognized s experise in
the period on which the event or condition that trigigers thie payment ocetirs.
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In caleulating the present valve of fease puyments, the Group uses the meremental borrowing rate
at the lease commiencement date if the interest rute implicit in the lease is not readity determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease labilities is increased o reflect the aceretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In nddition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilinies is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in-substance fixed |ease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the wnderlying asset

Shore-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of vehiele

(i.e., thosc leases that have a lease term of 12 montha or less from the commencement date and do not
contain & purchase option), Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized us expense on o
straight-line basis over the lease term.

.E‘a'a'r.- af rfet.rm .Fa)-

Revenue from sale of electricity is bused on the Renewable Encegy Payment Agreement (“REPA™),
Power Supply Agreements (“PSAs”) and Power Purchase Agreements (“PPAs™). Sale of electricity
is recognized over time as the power generated by the Group is transimitted throngh the trangmission
line dessgnated by the bisyer for & consideration and is presented ig “Revenue from contragts with
customers” in {he consolidated smtement of comprehensive income. Revenue from sale of clectricity
i2 based on sales price dnd recognized monthly hased on the actual energy delivered.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgments, estintales snd assumptions relating Lo revenue
from contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

Stgnificunt financing component

Revenue from installation services included in contracts with customers have significant financing
component considering the period botween the customer's payment of the price of the revermue from
installation services amd time of the transfer of control aver of the installed asser, which is more than
one year. The tmnsaction price for such contracts 18 determined by discountmg the amount of
promised consideration using the appropriste discount rite. The Group concluded that there is a
significant finamecing compongot for those contracts where the customer elects o pay in arrears
considerng the length of tme berween the customer’s payment and the transfer of installed asset 10
the customer, ns well as the prevailing interest mies in the murker.

Imterext income

[nterest mcome is recognized as infetest secrues, using thie EIR method, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial mstriment Lo the
nel carrying amount of the financial nssel

Costs and Expenses

Costs and expenses are decresses in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form) of
outflows or depletions of assets oc incurrence of liabilitics that resull in deceeases in equity, other than
those reluting to distributions W equity participants. Costs and expenses are generally recognized
when the servives ire used or the expenses wrise.

Cots of sale of powds
Costs of sale of goods include dircst matenals, porsonnel expenses,; utilities, and other manufacturing
costs. This is recognized when the imventorics are sold and title is wansferred to the buyer,



Coats of rale of electricity

These include exposes incurred by those directly responsible for the generation of revenuces from
solar energy (Le., plant operatinns, plant maintenance and power plant preventive maintenance
sehedule), at operting project location. Costs of sales of electricity are expensed when incurred.

Costs of insrallation services

Costs of installation services mainly consist of costs of personnel direetly enguged i providing
installation services. These also include construction costs such as direct materials and those indirect
costs reluted to contract parformance. These are generally recognived when the installation services
are used or the expenses arise.

Genoral and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses are incurmed in the direction and geoerml admunistration of
day-to-day operations of the Group. Genernl and administrative expenses ane generally recognized
when the services are used or the expenses anise.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities in the respective
fumetional vurrency spol rate prevailing ut the dute ol imnsaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets und labilities dencminuted in foreign etirrencies are translated st the functional
cuirrency rale of exchunge ruling at the end of the reporting period. Al diffierences are taken to profit
or loss.,

Non-nwmetary items that are meissured in terms of historical cost in & loreign currency are translatéd
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction, Non-manetary items measured al tair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fiir value
was determiined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measurcd ot falr
value in ireaded in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the ¢change in fair value of the ilem
{1.c., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recopnized in OC] or profit or
loss are also recognized in OCI or profit ar loss, respectively),

In determinmg the spot exchange mite to use on imtal recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a noo-monetary liability relating to advance
considenation, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognizes the nons
monatary asset or non-moneary linbility arising from the advance considerntton. 1 there arc multiple
piyments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of ndvance consideration.

Pevisi
Provisions are recognized when the Group his o present obligation (legal or constrisctive) o a result
ol o pist event, it is probable that an outllow of risources emboldying econpmic benefits will be

required 1o setile the oblizgation und & relinble estimate can be maile of the amount of the oblipution,

Where the Group expects some of all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized us a separale asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expenses
relating 1o oy provision are presented in prolit or loss, net of any reimburiement,

IF the effect of the time value of money is material, provigions are miade by discounting the expected

tisture cash fMlows at & pre-tix rate that reflects the rsks speaific to the hahility. When discounting is
used, the incrense in the provision due to the passage of time 15 recognized as an ilensst expense.
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[ngeine Taxes

Current Income Tiax

Cuarrent income tax assets und liahilities ave measured at the nmount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the txation suthorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those thi
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates
and generutes taxtible Income.

Current income tax relating w items recognized directly in equity is recognized in eqaity and not in
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the income Lax retums with
respect to situations in which apphcable mcome tax regulations are subjeet t interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate,

Daferved Income Tax

Deferred income tux is provided using the balance sheet lishility method on temporry differences
between the mcome tax bases of assets and |isbilitics and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes st the reporting dite.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,

Delerred income tux sksets are recognized for all deductible emporary differences, the caryforwand
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred income tax assets are recognized 10 the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tix credits and unused tax losses can be vtilized,

The carrying amount of delerred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o
the extent that it is no longer probuble thit sufficient taable profit will be availuble to allow all or
pan of the deferred income tax asset to be atilized, Unrecognized deferred income tax asvets are
re-assessed at exch reparting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred income tax asset (o be recovered.
Deferred imcome tax asets nnd lisbilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply the
year when the asset is realized or the linbility is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enncted or substantively enncted at the reporting date.

Deferred inpome tnx relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
tass. Deferred income tax items are recognized in correlution (o the underlying trangsction cither in
ofher comprehensive income (“OCT) e dircctly in eguity.

Dieferred mesme tix sssets and defetred Income tex lighilities are offsel il a legally enforceable right
exists (o sot off cureent tax ussets aguinst current tax Habilities and the defiemed trxes relate o the
sime taxable entity and the same trxntion muthority.

Eamings (Loss) Por Share ("EP§"™)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to comman sharchalders of
the Group with the weighted average mumber of commen shares outstanding during the year, after
giving retroactive effect to any stock dividends or stock spliss, if any, declared during the yenr.

Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner, with the net income for the year attribuable to

sommuon shareholders of the Group and the weighted average mamber of conmmon shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted for the effect of all dilwtive potential common shares.

A 0



setiting S
Dperaling segments are coimponents of SPNEC Group that are eagaged in business activities from
which they may eam revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by
SPNEC Group's Chiefl Operating Dedgion Maker (“CODM™) to make decisions sbout how resources
are to be nllocited to the segment and assess their performances, and for which discrete financial
fnfirmation is available. '

The Group's npu‘nting-bus&nmummgnimd and managed scpamtely on a per company basis,
with euch company representing & strategic business segment. Previously, the Group has no
aperating segments as it has not yet commenced its commersial operations as of December 31, 2022,
Financial information on aperating segments are presented in Note 26 (o the consolidated fnancial
statements,

1
Contingent labilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
i the notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic henefits is remote.
Contingent asscts are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the
noles when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

venits After the Fi ial R in

Events after the finuncinl reporting date that provide ndditions] informatian about the Group's
position 4t the balance sheet date (adjusting events) ure reflected in the consolidated finangiil
statements, Events after the finoncial reporting dote that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
noles (o consolidated financial stalements when miterial.

B at 0 g Polici
Pronoincements issucd but not yel effective are listad below, Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect tht the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial stutements. The Group intends to adept the following pronouncements
when they become effective.

Effective beginining on or after Janary 1, 2024
»  Amendments to PAS |, Claxsification of Liabilities ay Current or Non-cwrrens

The amendments clarify;

o That anly covenanls with which an entity must comply on ar before reporting date will affect
a linbility's cinssification as current or non-current.

o That clossification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exereise its defirral right.

& Thut only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is il an equity instriament
would the terms of o liability not impact its classification.

The amendments are ellective lor nnisal reporting penods beginning on or after January |, 2024
and must be applied retrospeetively.

*  Amendments to PFRS 16, Leure Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments specify how a seller-lessec measures the lease linbility ariging in & sale and
lebschack Linmsaction in & way Ut L does el recoguize any ainount of ithe gain o loss thal
relates (o the right of use retained.

The amendments are ellective lor annual reporting pertods beginning on or aftes Jwniary |, 2024
and must be applied retrospectively, Earlier wdoption is permitted and that fact must be disclosed.
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¢ Amendments to PAS 7 and PERS 7, Disclasures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments specify disclosure requirements (o enhance the current requirements, which arg
miended to assist users of financial statements in undenstanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements an an entity’s lisbilities, cash flows and exposure 1o liguidity risk.

The amendments ire effective for animunl reporting periods beginning on or after Januiry |, 2024,
Earlier adoption is permitied and thut fact must be disclosed.

Effective heginning on or afler Jowary 1, 2025
= PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is o comprehensive new accounting siandard for insurance contracls covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4, Inssrgnee Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of
insurance contracts (i.e., life, noo-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of
entities that issue them, s well as to cerain guarantess and financial instruments with
diseretionary participation featenes. A few stope exceptions will apply.
The overall objective of PFRS 17 1 to provide an accounting muode! for imsunince contracts that
is more useful and consigent for inswrers. In contrast to the reguirements in PFRS 4, which are
lurgely based on grindfathering previous lovul accounting policics, PFRS 17 provides a

ivee model for insurnce contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PERS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adapiation for contracts with direct participation features (the viriable foe
approach)

* A simplified approach (the premium allocation approdch) mainly for short-duration
contracls

On December 15, 2021, the FSRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from
January 1, 2023 to Jonary |, 2025. This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 202062 irsued by
the Insurance Commussion which deferred the myplementation of PFRS 17 by twao (2) years after
its effective date sy decided by the TASH,

PFRS 17 is effcctive for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with
comparative figoresd required. Eady application is permitted.

= Amendments o PAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability

The amendments specify how un entity should assess whether o eurrency is exchangesble and
bow it should determing a spot exchange rate when exchangenbility i lacking

The amendments are elfective for annual repotting periods begianing on or afler January |, 2025,
Earlier sdoption is permitted and that fact st be disclosed. When upplying the amendiments, an
entity cannol restate comparative information.



Deferred effectiviny
«  Amendments to PFRS 10, Cansolidated Financinl Statements, and PAS 28 Sale ar Conteibution
of Avsets hetwven an Iivestor and its Associate or Joint Ventire

The amendments address the conflict berween PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed 10 an associule or jolint venmre. The
amendments clarify that s full gain or loss is recognized wien a transfier 10 an associate or joint
veniture involves o business s defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sidle or
contribtition of assets that does not constinite u business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors” interests in the associate or joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the Financinl and Sustamability Reporting Standards Councll defered the
original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendnients until the JASB completes s
brosder review of the research project on equity accounting thal may result in the simplification
of accounting for such ransactions and of other uspeets of sceounting for associates and jotnt
venhiires.

3. Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The consolidated finusncial stafernents prepared in sccordance with PFRSs require matiagement to
miuke judgments wiid estimates thit affoct smounts reported in the consolidated finaneil statemients
and relmted notes. The judgments and estimates used in the consalidated financial statements are
based upon management’s evaluation of relevant faels and sircimsiances s of the date of the
consolidated fivancial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Judgments and cetimates arc continually cvaluated and are based on histerical expeniences and other
factors, including expectations of future events thit are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The items are those matters which the Group assess (o have significant risks arising
from cstimation uncortantics:

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policles, management has made the following
Judgment, apart from those lnvolving estimations, which have the mosi significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statemonts. This judgment is bascd upon
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the consphidated
financial statements.

Dyrermination of Control Over an Invester Company

Control s presumed to exist when un mvestor i exposed, or has rights, o variable retams from ns
mvalvement with the investee und has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the
investee. The Group has established that it hus the sbility to control its subsidiaries by virtue of either
100% or a insjority of the voting micrest in the investee company,

Ditermination of Acguisition Date in Business Combinstions
The sequisition date is the date the acquirer obtaing control of the acquires, generally the specified
closing or completion date of the budiness combination.

The date on which control passes is 8 matter of fact. In determining the sequisition date, the Group
contiders all the terms and conditions of the srrangements and their economic effects. One or more of
pertingnt ficts and circumstances surrounding a business combination wre considened in assessing
when the aoquirer has abtained control of the acgiires:
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*  When the consideraion s trangieemed;
When sequiree shares or underlying net pssets are soquired;
When the acquirer is exposed, or bas rights, to variable retums from iis involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investes;

e Agreement date designed 1o achieve an overall commerncind effect of business combination and
economically justified by the partics:

The date on which the Group obtains control over the Solar Philippines Assets is the date on which
the Group legally transfers the consideration, noquires the assets, and nssumes the linbilities of Solar
Philippines Assets.

Axyeswment of Acquisiion s Business Combination

Where uxget is scquired through the dequisition of corpatate interests, manageiment conkiders the
substance of the assels and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether (e neguisition
represents wn acquisition of i bukiness. The Group sccounts for un scquisition as 4 business
combination where an integruted set of activities is acquired in addition to the nsset.

Whete such acquisitions are aot judged to be an acquisition of a busincss, they arc not treated as
business combinations, Rather, the cost 1o sequire the corparaté entity is allocated between the
ideatifiable asscts and linbilings of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition date.
Otherwise, corpornte acquisithans are accounted for as business combinations. The cost of the
aequisition is dllocated to the assets and lisbilities acquired based upon their relative fair values, and
no goodwill or deferred tax is recognizad.

The Parent Conipany's acquisition of Terra Solur have been accounted for as business combination
(5ee Note 22),

Business Combination of Entities wnder Common Cantirol

A combination involving entities or husinesses under common control is “n business combination in
which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the business combinatian, and that control is not transitory . This will include
transactions such as the tranler of subsidiuries or businesses between entities wilhin a group,
provided the trunsaction mects the definition of a business combination in PFRS 3.

The trunssctions enteced by the Parent Compuny with ST Projece Hollings und Countryside were
determined 1o bé common contral business combinations (see Note 21).

Change in Operating Segments

The Group changed the structure of its intemal organization that caused the composition of its
reporiable segments o change  Previously, the Group has no operiting segments a5 it hns not vet
commeneed its commercial operations, As of December 31, 2023, the Group's operating businesses
nre organized and managed separately on a per compiny basis, with ench company representing o
strategic bustness segment. Financial information on operaling segments are presented in Nate 26 of
the consolidated inancial ststements. The reported operating segment informution {5 in accordance
with PFRS 8.

Assessimg Impairment of Deposits for Land Acquisiclon

The Group assesses at each finanginl reporting date whether there is mdication that the deposits for
fand noquisition may be impared. Management's assessment of impairment considers information
from vanous sowrces, including those trom the lind sequisiiion process and the relited requiremenis,
the current status of land acquisition, the timeline of agtivities and factors that may affect the tming

of completion of the transachion.
LR



bz&ﬁ

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, management hus assessed that there were no mdicators thal the
deposits for land scquisition may be timpaired. The carrying value of deposits for lasd sequisition
amounted to B3 396.8 million and P2.026.9 million ax of December 31, 2023 und 2022, respectively
(ke Note 100

Evaluating Revenue from Contracts with Custoater's
The Group apphed the tfollowing judgments in the détermunation of the amoun! and oming of rovenue

recognition

= Jdentifving Performance Olligations
The Group identifies performance obligations by considering whather the promised goods or
services in the contract are distinet goods o services, A good or serviee (s distinet when the
custormer can benefit from the good or service onits own or together with ather resources that arc
readily available to the customer and the Group's promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is sepanilely identifiable from the other promises m the contract.

The Group sssesses performance obligations as a serics of distinct goods and services that are
substantially the sume and hove the same patiern of wronster i

1. eich distinet good or services in the series are transfered ovet time; and
2. the sanie method of progress will be used (i.c., units of delivery) to measure the entity's
progress iwands eomplete satisfaction of the performance obligation

For sale of electricity, the obligation under esch contract is a single performance obligation,

For installation services where the Giroup hus to deliver the components of solar photovaliaic
("PV™) systems and perform installation services, the obligations are combined and considered ay
a single performance obligaton since these are not distinet within the context of PFRS 15 as the
Group provides a significant service of integrating the goods or services with other goods or
services prumised in the contragt into a bundle of govds or services that represent the combined
outpul for which the customer has contracted. The risk of transferving individual goods or
services is insepamble because sobstantiol part of the Group's promise to the customer is to
ensure the individual goods or services are incorpomted mto the combined output

For revenue from manufacturmg of goods performance obligation is comprsed of
noa-distingt goods or services, which include issuance of materipls to production, assembly,
testing and packaging considered s single performance obligation.

Further, allocation of transaction prices is not necessary as the obligation under each contract
with cusiomers are accounted for as u single performance obligation and the Group does not have
any other aneillary services 1o b performed in conneet to all the contracts with cuktomers

(see Noto 29),

o Revenie Recegnition
The Group recognizes revenne when it satisfics an identified performance obligation by
transferring = promised good or service o a customer. A good or service is considered to be
trunslerred when the customer oblains control. 1he Giroup determines, al conlract inception,
whether it will tansfer control of & promised good or service over time, [ the Group docs not
sutisfy a performance ohligntion over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at s point in
Lime.

For sale of electncity, the Group conchuded that sale of electnicity 1s to be recognized over time,
since the customer simultancoualy receaves and consumes the benetits as the Group supphies

clectricity.
LU R
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Revenue from mamuficturing of goods is recognized over time or a1 a point in lime. For tirnkey
contructs whore in the products created hive nb alternative use to the Group and the Group has
right to payment for performance completed to dute including the reluted profit margin, in case of
terminution for redsons other than the Group's fitilure to perform s promised, revene is
recognized over ime. For goods manufactured nidt covered by customer purchase order= or firm
delivery achedule, revenues are recognided ot a point in time,

For revenue from sale of ingtallation services, the Group concluded thal revenue from sale of
installation services is recognized over time as the sutisfaction of the performance obligationg
creates assets that the customers control as the assets nre created.

*  [dentifying Methods for Meaxuring Progress of Revenue recognized over Time
The Group determines the appropriate method of measuring progress which is either throngh the
use of input or output methods. Input method recognizes revenue on the bass of the efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation while outpul method recognizes revenue on
the busis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services transfenmed
o doie.

For sale of electricity, the Group determined that the output method is the best method in
measuring progress a8 actu] electricity is supplied to cestoamer. The Group recognizes revenue
bused on the el renewable enarzy peneration (sec Note 19),

For revenue from munufacturing of goods, the Group measures progress lowands complete
satisfsetion of the performunce phligation using an input method {i e | costs meumad)
Munagement believes that this method provides o faithful depletion of the transfer of goods or
services 1o the customer because the Group provides integration serviee to produce a combined
output and cach item in the combined outpitt may not transfer an equal amount of value to the
Cuslomer.

For installation services. lh:ﬁmtqnlﬂmnnmt!thnuhe irput method (on the basis of cost
incurred) is the best method in memsuring progress towards camplete satisfiction of the
performance obligation.

Set out below is the disageregation of the Group's revenmie from vontracts with vustomers
in 2023:

Sale of clepincity #619,252 204

Sale of installalion services 16,199,013

Toul revenue from contracts with custoners Piais icl.illzl?
Estimutes

Estimating Impairment of Financial Asvets

The measurement of impairment losses under PFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets requires
Jadgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash Mows, including
collectability, collateral values and other credit enhancements, when determining impairment losses.
Increases or decreases 1o the allownnee balance ane reconded as genoral and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Under PFRS 9, Financial Insruments, sdditionnl judgments are also made in assessing a significant

murease o cnedil risk in the case of fnancisl sssets measured uning the general approach. These
catmaies are driven by a number of Toctors, changes in which can resolt in diiTeren levels of

allowances.
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The Group’s impairment calenlations ane ouputs of statistical models with a number of undettying
assumptions regarding the choice of viriuble inpuis and their intérdependencies. Elements of the
impairment models that are considered necounting judgments and estimates inchade:

¢ The Group's criteria for defining defimult mnd for assessing if there has been a significant increise
in credit risk;

«  The segmentation of financial and contract assets when impairment is assessed on a collective
basis;
The choice of inputs and the various formulas used in the impuirment calculution;
Determination of relationships between macroeconomic keennnios mnd, economibe inpals, such us
unemplovment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs; and,

& Selection of forward-looking miacroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
desive the ecannmic inpats into the impitirment models

It has been the Group™s policy to regularly neview its models in the comext of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessury.

Measurement of ECL
ECLs ire devived from unbimsed and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and ure
measured as follows:

»  Financial axsels that are not credis-impaived ai the reporting date: a8 the present viloe of all
cash shortfalls over the expected lifo of the financial asset discounted by the effective interest
mite. The cash shortfall is the difference between the cashi flows due to the Group in accordince
with the contriet and the cush Mows that the Group expeels (o receive,

v Fingneial assets that ave credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference betvween the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated luture cash {lows discounted by the

elfective interest mie.

The Group leverages existing risk management indicutons (e g., intemal credit risk classilication and
restructuring triggers), credit risk rating chunges and reesonable and supportable imnformation which
allows the Group 1o identify whether the credit risk of financinl assets has significantly increased.

As of December 31, 2023, the total allowance for ECL recognized on trade recervables ampunted 1o
P69.3 million (see Note 5), The aggregite carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents (excluding
cash on hand), trade reccivables, subseniptions roceivibles, shori-term mvestments and bonds (under
other cumrent assets), due from relsted parties and long-term receivahies (under other noncurreni
nasets) amoumted to #11,385.5 million und P1,525.2 million as of December 31, 2023 amd 2022,
respectively (sec Notes 4, 5, 7, 11 and 14).

Frovisional Fair Value Assessment oy o realt of the step-avguisition of Terra Solar

I 2023, the Group's scquisition of Terra Solar was accounted for usmg the acquisition methad which
require extensive use of decounting estimutes and judgmenits to allocate the purchise price o the fair
market valies of the scquiree’s identifiable pasets and linbilibies at acquisition date. It also requires the
aequiret to recognize gain on bargain purchase or goadwill, The Group's nequisition of Terma Solar
hus resulted in goodwill, The Group vilued certain ussets acquired and liabilities assumed, including
any identifinble intungible sssets from the scquisition. The valuation hid not been completed by the
date the consolidated finmcial statemenis weie approved for insue by the BOD, Pending the
valuation, the Group provisionally determined the fair values of the assets acquired and Iabilitics
assumed tham the acquisition. See Note 22 for the detailed mfmmstion on the trandaction.
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As of December 31, 2023, the Group hus yet 1o finalize the determinition of the fiir values of the

asscts acquired und liabiditics assumed from the acquisition of Terra Solar (see Note 22). The Group

determines the acquisitiva-date fair values of identifiable nssets sequired and lnbilitics assumed fram

the aeguinee without quoted market prices based on the following:

¢ For assets and linhilities that are short-lerm in nalure, carrying values tpproximate fair values;
und

»  Forintangible assets, fair values are determined based on mulli-penod excess camings method
which estimates the sum of the discounted future excess eamings attribugable to the intangible
ussels.

In 2023, the Group remeasured its previously held equity interest in Terma Solar, previonsty un
associate, to fair value and recogaized the restlting guin in profit or loss, as u result of its step-
nequisition upon obtaining control on December 11, 2023 (sce Note 22).

Estimating NRV for Inventories

The Group provides allowance for inventories, whenever NRV becomes lower than cost due to
dumage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, chunges in price levels or other causes. The wllowance
account is reviewed pernodically w reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records. As ol
December 31, 2023, total invenlosics and lotl allowance for impaitment loss ameunted to

F24.8 million and P27.5 milban, respectively (see Notes 6).

Revaluation of Land

The CGiroup carries its land ot revalued amount with changes in fisir value recognized in OCL The fair
value of the Group's lund measured using the fair value model is based on the valustion carried out
by an independent appraiser ag of December 31, 2023, The vahuation was arrived by reference lo
markel cvidence of transaction prices of similar properties.

External appraisers used market approach 1o value the lnd properties by using sules comparison
method in particular. The valuation analysis involved key assumpitions such as listing prices of
reasotiably comparuble properties and adjustments related to the chamctenstics of the land propertics
such as size, location, utility, and other relevant conditions.

In 2023, the total increase in land as a result of revaluation amounted to 87,9199 million. As of
December 31, 2023, the total revaluation surplas amounted to P8.268. | million, net of the deferred
income tx lability, As of December 31, 2023, carrying value of revalued lend amounied to
P12.467 3 mullion (see Note 9).

Extimarig weful lives of Propevty, Plant and Equipment (except Land anid CIF)

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment {except land and CIP) based oo
the period over which these assets are expected 1o be availuble for mie. The estimated useful lives are
reviewed penodically and are updated if expectations differ from previots estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial ohsolescence and legul or other limits on the use of these
assets. In addition, estimation of the useful lives is hiaged on collective axeesanent of industry
practice, intemnal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible that future
resulls of operations could be materially affecied by changes in these estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period
wunld be affected by changes in these fuctors and circumsianoes.

The carrving values of property, plant and equipment {except lund and CIP) amounted to
F7.497.9 million and F281.7 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (sce Note 9).
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Extimating Impatrment of Nowfinancial Assets
The Group assesses impairment of nonfinancial pssets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicute that the carrving amount of an asset mnay not he recoverable.

The fiictors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

» Significant underperformance relative o expected histarical or projected future operating results;

« Significent changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the sirategy for overall business;
and

* Significant negafive industry or economic trends,

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the earrying amount of an nsset exescdd its recoverable
amount The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of un asset’s fair value less costs 1o sell and
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount ofttainable from the sale of assets in an
arm’s length tramsiction while value in use is the present valie of estimated fature cash Nows
expected Lo arise from the continuing use of an ascel and from ifs disposal at the end of its useful life.
Far impairment loss on specific essets, the recoversble amount represents the fitlr value less costs o
sell.

The carrying amounts of asscts that are subject to impairment esting when impairment indicators are
present (such as obgolescence, physical dumage, significant changes to the manner in which the asset
is used, worse than expected econamic performance, or other external indicators) are as follows:

2423 02
Other current assets® (Note 7) P168.555877 P15.638 844
Property, plant and equipment - at cost (Note 9) 10,036,123,220  1.671.233.624
Deposits for land ncguisinion (Note 10) 3.396,776.396  2026,592.396
Intangible nssews (Note 22) 13,261,891 642 -
Investment properties (Note &) - 312,626,010
Ohher noncurrent assets®* (Note 11) 3579853121 654395, 146
P17.321,332.456 P4.683, 786,020
*c fufing shaied feem peneismwa
*=Lacaaliin fnog were recomishies

There were no indicators of impainment of nonfinancial assets for the for the year ended
December 31, 2023 for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the vear ended
June 30, 2022

Esrimating the Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Asseis

Deferred income tx ussct is recognized for all deductible lemporary differences 1o the extent thit it is
prabable that sufficient future txable income will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary diferences can be utilized. Significant managemnient estimite Is required to
determing the smount of deferred income tax ssset that can be recognized, based upon the likely
uming and level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of recognized defemred inconme tax assels amounted (o P41.4 million and P30.2 million as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 19), The Group did hol recognize defemred
income Lax assels on the carryforwind benefits of unised net opersting loss carmyover (" NOLCO™)
ambsunting to P479.2 million and #254 4 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, as
mitagement helieves that there is no sufficient fiture taxable income (o allow all or part of the
deductible temporary ditference 1o be utilized belone its expimtion (see Note 10)
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4. Cash and Cash Eguivalents

2023 2022
Cash on hangd snd in banks #9.934,772,578 P37,232.084
Shori-term deposits 105,652,049

P10,040,424,627  $17,232.084

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of ug 1o three (3) months and eam intercst &t the
prevailing short-term deposit interest rates.

Cash in banks cam inferest at the respective hank deposit rates. Total interest earned from the
Ciroup"s cash and cash equivalents, ner of final i, amounted o #9.5 willion, B2 4 million and
P0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended
December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, respectively,

Cash in bunks mehude the bulance of escrow secount where the net proceeds of the laitinl Pyblic
Offering (“TPO™) and Stock Rights Offering (“SRO™) of the Parerit Company nre deposited. As
provided in the eserow agreement, the escrow agent ghall release (o the Parent Company the offer
procecds within five (5) banking days ffom the receipt of an instruction letier from the Parent
Company directing such relesse and certifying that the amount released shall be used solely in
sccordinoe with the purpose stnted in the use of proceeds of 1PO and/or SRO,

Ire the event of any change in the use of proceads, the Parent Company shall provide the escrow agent
with & copy of the certification by the Parent Company's corporate secretary of the board resolution
approving such new use of proceeds and u certification by the Parent Company s corpomte secretary
that the new use of proceeds has been disclosed to the PSE in accordunce with applicable PSE rules.

. Trade Reccivables

The Group's trade rescivables as of December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Trude receivables
Third parties {Note 29) P35] 397 454
Reluted party i}, 189,066
355,586,520
Less allownnee for doubtful accounts (69,298 458)
P80, 288,062
Movement in allownnce for doubtiul sccounls ari ad follows:
Effect of business combingtion ander common eattral (Note 21) PAO 645 553
Provision for impairment loss (Note 18) 75,280
Reversal (422.375)
Bulance at end _uf_pndud PEOJ0R 458

Trade receivable arises from the revenue from the sale of clectricity, sale of goods and services.
These wre either intenest or non-inerest besring depending on the clse indicated in Uie contract snd
generlly collectible within 40 10 60 duys.

The Group has no trade recgivables ns of December 31, 2022

E
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6. Invenlorics

The Group’s inventorics st NRV as of December 31, 20123 is as follows,

Cost

Mourniting struciures P19,423 306
Panels and myvenem 12,924,499
Cables 10297 327
Otbyers 9,696,234

5Z.341.370
Less allowance for impairment loss (Z7.540.457)
P24 800,913

Movement in allowance for impairment loss follows:

Effect of buginess combination under common contrgl (Note 21y B29,382 300

Reversal (1,841 8431
Badlance at end of peniod P17,540457

Unther inventories include cost of consumables. supplies nccessories and electricals, which includes
cost of batterics, switch bonrds and transformers, that will be used in the construction projects of SP
Roofiop.

Inventories charged tw costs of sules and services for the veur ended December 31, 2023 amotnted to
#X.7 million (see Note 17).

The Group has no inventories as of Decembier 31, 2022,

7. Other Current Asscls

2023 222
Shost-term investments P575.810.259 R
Input VAT 41,086,277 -
Bonds (Note 23) 35267363 15552038
Deferved transaction costs (Note 16) 3106978
Advances to suppliers 15,330,330 -
Creditable withholing taxes t,748,265 -
Others (Notes 18 and 29) 43,626,491 3,086,805
749,975,960 18,638,843
Less allowanoe for impairment (5,609,824)

#744,500,136  PI5.638.543
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Movemenis n allowance for impainment loss on input VAT are ax foilows:

Effect of business combinntion under conmmon control (Mate 210 P5,133 866

Provision for impairment loss (Note 18) 680,892

Reversal (2044.934)

Bulance at end of period P5.6409,824
Bonds consist of:

Beneficiary Contract Term Expiry Dute Amount
Departimeni DAR conversion Refundable upon 720,267,363
of Agrarian  order canversion of
Reform land and
("DAR™) compliance with

the conditions set
forth in the DAR
conversion order

Ang Power' Supply Callghle upon August 10,2024 15,000,000
Electri Agreement for demand
Corpoeation |5 MW, solar power
(“"AEC™) project
Totul P35.267.363

Short-term invesiments pertain (o the restricted interest-hearing accounts opened and established by
SP Calutagan and SP Tarlac in secordunie with certain lonn and service agreements that will serve is
a cash reserve ar deposit to service the principal and/or interest payments due on the long-term debs,
and a8 performance securnity 1o their respective PSAs (see Note 29). For Lhe year ended

Décernber 31, 2023, mteeest earned from shuirt-teem investments amounted o P14.9 million,

Advances to suppliers pertain o advance payments made by the Group (o third-party supplices for the
purchase of muterials.

Others include other prepayments and advances t employees of SP Project Holdings that are subject
to liguidation within 30 days. '

. Investment Propertics

As of December 31, 2022, investment propertics consist of several parcels of lund lecated in

Nueva Ecija with total sres of 316.46 hectares for the solar power plant of Terra Solar. These
properties were acquired from various landovwners through various Deeds of Absolute Sale (“DOAS™)
Agresments exceuied in 2022

The total cost af the investment peoperties, including land-related costs amuounted to P312.6 million
as at December 31, 2022

In 2023, 15 & result of the consolidation of Terra Solar (ser Nole 2), the investment propertics were
reclassified os land under property, plant and equipment (see Note 9).
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2022
Transportation Constriction
Equipmemt in Progress  ROU Amset Tatal
Cost;
Balances at beginning of period P-  P21385618  PI0LK3T.BO3 P 223223421
Additions (Notes 14 amd 2 207 600 AR 164,123 - 468171,723
Balances st and of period 207,600  1389,547.741 301,837,803  1.691.595,144
Accumulsted deprecintion, amortization
and impairineit loasen
Balaooes sl beginaing of period - - 14,927 309 14,927 309
Deproviation and wmortization
(Nole 18) 13,840 - 584,193 2598033
— Amortization capitaiized to CIP = = 2836178 2836178
Balunces at end of period 13,840 = 7680 20361520
Net book value PIO3.760 PLISD 540,741  P2SIA90.123 PL671233.624
Solar Power Plantx

As of December 31, 20123, solar power plams of P Calutngan and SP Tarlue ("Solar Power Plants™)
ure pledged ws colluteral for their respective Tong-lerm debi contracted separutely for Lhe respective
projects (see Notz 131

In 2023, the Group recognized gain on sale of property, plant and equipment nmotnting 1o
P17.8 million presented as part of “Other income —net™ in the consolidnted statement of

comprehensive income,

CIP
This pertains to capitalized costs relaled mainly to the SPNEC's Phase | and SP Tarlat's expansion
projects (see Nole 28).

ROU qssels

I'he Group entered nto vanious land lease sgreements tn Concepelon, Tarloe, and Ste. Rosa, Noevs
Ecijn with various third-party lessors for the development of viriots projects under non-cancelable
Jease ngreements.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group's total land arca under lease is ot 454,92 hectares and
34742 hectares, respectively.

I'he cosis of ROU assets are amoruzed usmg the stragit-lne method over the lease term. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the remaining terms of (he leases range berween 20 to 30 years
(including extension of five (5) years) (see Note 20).



Abrevalued gmount
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Effect of business combination under common control (Note 21) #3775 546,200

Additions 36,070,190
Reclassifications from:
Investment properties {Node 8) 312,626,010
Deposits for lond acquisition (Note 10) 287,506,647
Revalustion increment during the year R.055,590.913
FIl#E-TM

As part of the business combination under common control, o ral of 135,68 Bocturss of land of

SP Calmagan and SP Tarlac with combined value of #3,775.5 million were transferred to SPNEC
{see Note 21 ).

SPNEC opted to ndopt. the appraisal accounting consistent with the provisions of PFRS 13, Fair
Valie Measuremens. Consequently, it engaged an independent firm of appraisers to conduct 1
revaluation of the consolidated lund aren of the Group. The appraisers used Level 3 key observable
npuis 1o measure the fatr value of the land ind determined thot it is in the range of #2,300 - #4,900
per squire meler.  The resulting values are as follows:

Entity Land Area  Acquisition  Appraised value as of Revaluation

(In hectares) cost December 31, 2023 Increment in 2023
(In Millions}
Term Nugva 534.76 Pr36.2 P8.556.1 P7.9199
SP Calatagan 105.26 2,390.7 2421.1 30.4
SP Tarlse o4l 1.384.8 1.490.1 105.3
—a 67043 P4411.7 12,4673 FB,055 6

The foregoing properties of SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac were used a8 collateral to secure their
respective long-term debis (see Note 13).

The total value of the lund - ot cost, s P4,411,7 million as of December 31, 2023,

{0, Depaosiis for Land Acquisition

Following is a summary of the deposity for land ncquisition of the Group:

Entity 2023 2022
Land Areu Deposit Pad Land Ares Deposit Paid
{in hectarey) {in hectares)
Provineis Investments
Corporation ("PIC™) 68,62 BI67.000,000 6i8.62 P267.000,000
Lupang Hinirang Holdings
Corporation “LHHC™) 56.81 270,000,000 56.81 270,000,000
Lesndro L. Levigte 87.50 421,618,085 - -
Various landowners 200272 2.438,158.311 1,727.36 1,489 K92 106

2.305.65 F3.396,776,396 1. 85279  $2.026.R92_194
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The 87 50-hectires property with deposit for land acquisition (o Lesndro L. Leviste is pledged to a
locdl bunk for the loan obtained from a lncal bank by SP Tarlae (see Note |3).

Following Is the movement in the Group's deposits for land acquisition with various landowners:

2023 2022
Balances at begmning of period #1489 892 196 FE4, 499,933
Effect of business combination under common
control (Note 21) 12,676,070 -
Additions 723,096,532  1,405,392,463
Reclassifications from (to):
Deposit (Note 1) S00.000,000 -
__Land (Nate 9) (287.506,687) -
Bulinces ot end of period F2,438,158.311  P1.489.892 396

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the remaining balance amounting to P11 1 1.8 million and
B674,1 million, respectively, will be payable when the conditions under the coniracts to sell are

sutisfied
11, @iher Noncarrent Assets
2023 2022
Long-lerm receivables (Note 29) £118.977.637 =
Input VAT 134,451,932 144,640,016
Deferred input VAT T8,188.325 480,000
Praject development costs 75,062,130 -
Plunt construction materialy 50,624,254 -
Refundable deponits (Note 14) - 500,000,000
Others (Note 20) 15,786,849 9403298
677,091,127 654 525314
Less allowance for impaimment of input VAT (128,168) (1281 68)

P676,962959  PASA.395.146

Term Nueva paid SP Project Holdings #500.0 million on December 26, 2022 for the latter to assist in
the land conversion activitics covering 975.75 heetares of land acquired by Terra Nueva (Note 14).

As of December 31, 2023, deposits pertiining 1o a total of 898,59 hectares of lind with conversion
order issued by the DAR have reclassified 1o the “Deposits for land acquisition™ account.

Project development costs pertnin to pre-development costs incurred by Terra Solar in relation w the
construction of its solar power project (see Note 22).



12, Trade and Other Payables

2023 2022

Accounis payable
Related partics (Note 14) Pig5013,429 115,039,314
Third parties 49,127,667 -
Interest payable (Now 13) 99315,778 -
Accrued expenses (Note 29) 80,501 394 2836359
income tax paynble 2, 77.307 -
Witkiholding rax payable 13,793,524 47,298,615
Accrued purchinses 10,743,183 -
Otber payubles 13,333,758 43,784
_ P4R1,626,040 P65.218.072

Accounts payable are noo-interest beanng and settled within one (1) year in the narmal course of

Accrucd linbilities pertain to unbilled liabilities for costs of benefits to host communities provided
under Depariment of Energy (“DOE™) Energy Regulutions No. 1-94, professianal fees, differential
cost of replacement energy charged by Meraleo consistent with the provisieas of the Power Supply
Agreement of 8P Tardue.

As agreed between Meralco und SP Tarluc, the Iatter may offset the payment for such replacement
eneryy agiinst the billings for energy sold every manth. As of December 31, 2023, the total cost of
replacemmont energy to be offect ngaingt SP Tardue's future hillings to Meralco amounted to

#1075 million {see Note 29).

Other payables pertain to statutory labilitics that wre to be remined 10 the nppropriate government
agency.

13.

Long-term Debt
Following are the details of the long-term debt assumed through business combination:
Originnl Loan Outstunding  Interest
Enlity Amonri Imercs) mte Repayment schedule bularive Expense
{Toe Milf5erri)
SI* Tarkac FLIZAD  T.EA%, subjeci to 200 getti-annual "1935.8 Pins. 2
repricing in July nstaliments starting
2024 and second Jarmry 3, 2021 until
repricing in July 3, 2031
July 2029
sr 34000 Fovear benclunark 24 serni=annunl 1L IGHER 51.3
Calatagan plus a pre-agreed mataliments sarting
spread October 3, 2018 yntil
April 3, 2029
Tintal 3,034.0 1565
Less unsmortized debt transaction cost (3.0
3606
Current poriions {366.9)
,I_.ﬂ-t:rm-dch; net of current portion 2. 7287

LT
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Movements in the debt transaction costs are 25 follows:

SP Tarac SP Calatagan Total
Effect of business combination
under common control P35,943,554 P7.300,919 P43 244,473
Amortization during the period (4,142,179) (1,095,966) (5.238.145)
Halance at the end ﬂt'End FSLEUIIETS B6.204.953 o PIRDL6 328
SP Turlae

Opmnitued Lown anad Security Agreement (R2,225 0 million Loan)
On June I8, 2019, SP Tarlac signed un OLSA with BDO Unibank, Inc. (“BDO”) fora long-term loan
facility of P2,225 0 million to solely finance the constmetion of the Cancepeion Solar Project.

Far the yeur ended December 31, 2023, 1ol interest expense smounted to #105.2 million and is
presented as part of “Finance coms™ in the consolidated statement of compreliensive income. As of
December 31, 2023, accrued intenest relating to the long-term debt smounted o B77 6 million

(see Note 12).

Under the OLSA, SP Tarloc is roquired 1o muintain o maximum debt-to-oquity mtio of $0:50, In
addition, a debt service coverage ratio (“DSCR™) of at least 1.20%. As of December 31, 2023,
SP Tarlac's DSCR is at 0.94x and SP Tarlue has obtained a waiver for the compliance of the
mimmpm DCSK from BDO,

Ad of Decembor 31, 2023, the OLSA is sceuicd by the following:

SP Tarlue's solar power plunt with net boak vishse of #4,513.5 million (see Note 9)
Tarfac 1A Project with revalued amount of P1,490.0 million (see Note &)

Leasehold rights over leased Tarloe | A Project lund of 61.48 hectares (see Note 20)
Parcels of land with lund arca of 87.50 hectares owned by SP Calatagan (see Note 14)
SP Tarlac’s common stocks

Wb L b

SP Calatigan

Onmerstbues Lexen and Security Agreement (P3,400.0 million Loan)

On February 14, 2017, 5P Calatagan signed an OLSA with BDO, Philippine Business Bank (“PBB")
and United Cocotut Planters Bank (“UCPB™) (collectively referred to as the “SP Calstogan Lenders™)
for & long-term loan [acility of #3,400.0 million to finance the repayment of shori-term loan facility,
inchiding accrued interests, and project advances from SP Project Holdings and Solar Philippines
Commercial Rooftop Projects, Inc. (“SPCRPI™). which were used 1o partinlly finance the constrisetion
of the Calatagan Solar Power Project. On April 3, 2017, SP Culatugan received the fifll proceeds of
the long-term lopn,

For the year ended December 31, 2023, total interest expense dmotinted to PS1.3 milllion and wis
presented as part of “Finance costs™ in the consoliduted stutement of income. As of

December 31, 2023, uccrued interest reluting to the Jlong-term Tacility amoumsed to P21.7 millkon
{see Note 12).

Linder the OLSA, SP Calatugan i required tb maintain & maxinism debl-ao-equity nutio of 70:30 and

manntain 4 dedt service coverage ratio (“DSCR™) of at Jeant 1.20x, As of Decemnber 31, 2023,
SP Calamgan’s debt-to-equity mitio s 70:30 and DSCR is at 1,30x
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As of December 31, 2023, the loan is secured by the following:

I, SP Calatagan’s solar power plant precented ns part of “Property, plant and equipment” with nel
book value of P2,508.9 million us of December 31, 2023 (see Note 9);

2. SP Calatagan’s Project Lands with revalued amount of B2,421.1 million as of December 11, 26123
(see Note 9); and

3. SP Calstagan’s capital stock comprising of common stock and pecfbmed stock smounting to
P1,099.5 million and P305.9 million, respectively.

14, Related Party Transsctions
Partics are considered 10 be related if, among others. one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
conttol the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in muking financial und
operating decisions, the parties are subject to common control, or the party is un aksociale or a joint
venture. Partics are also conssdered 1o be reloted if they are subject to common control or Gommon
significant influence which include affiliates.
Affilintes are relsted entities of the Graup by virtue of common ownership and representation 1o
munugement where significant influence is appareat,
Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding accouttts with related partics shall be seitled in cash,
The trunsactions are made at termis and prices agreed upon by the parties.
Following arc the Group”s related party transactions for the year ended Decamber 31, 2023, for the
six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the vear ended June 30, 2022, and the related
outstanding balunces a8 of December 31, 2023 and 2021
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¢. SP Project Holdings

Dyed of Assignment between SPNEC and SP Project Holdingx

On Junuary 11, 2021, a Deed of Assignment was entered into by the Parent Company, as the
assignee, und SP Project Holdings, ak the assignor, wherelyy, SP Project Holdings assigned to the
Parent Company all of its rights and obligations under the September 6, 2016 lease agreement
covermg a tatal land area of 169.9 hectares, among others, and the Parent Company accepted and
nsimind all of the said rights and ohligations thus assigned, pyrsanant 1o the said Deed of
Assignment {seg Mote 20),

Management Services Agreement (“MSA ") besween SPNEC and SP Progeer Holdings

On Apnl 30, 2021, the Parent Company eniered into a MSA with SP Project Holdings 10 provide
exezutive and leadership support and execute its strategic direction while managing its business
oporations for a period from May 1, 2021 1o April 30, 2024, rentwable upon mutuul sgrocment of
bath parties, for a monthly fee of B2.0 million, subject 1o 5% annoal escalativn

The MSA covers all necessary sdministrative and advisory serviees on mandgement, investment
and technical mutters involving the Parent Compaiy s operations, Including but not limited 1w
Buman resources, legal, finunce, and information techhology,

Prior to My 2021, the administrative and finance fiunctions of the Parent Company were being
handled by SP Project Holdings nt no cost to (he Parent Company, Starting May 2021, the key
sdministrative and finance functions are performed by SP Project Holdings through the MSA.
Maunagement fee recognized for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-manth petiod
ended December 31, 2022 and for the yeur ended June 30, 2022 amounted o P26.0 million,
#12 8 multion and #24.0 million, respectively, presented as “Management fees” under

“Ciengral and administrative expenses™ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive ncome
{sec Note | 8),

AR



-‘i.

Constrution Support Services Agresment ("CSSA ") with SP Project Noldings

On September 30, 2022, the Pareat Company enitered into a CSSA with SP Project Holdings
wherein SP Project Holdings shall provide support services, including engineering, procurement
and construction (“EPC"), legistics, warchousing and other contractor-relnted services during the
construction of the Parent Company's Phase 1 Project.

Construction suppart services recognized for the year ended December 31, 2023, fior the six-
month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the yeur ended June 30, 2022 amounted to
F36.0 million, P68.0 million and nil, respectively, which were capitalized us part of CTP
(seec Note ).

Administrative Services Contract (“ASC") between SP Calatugan and SP Projeet Holdingy

On May 27, 2020, SPCC entered into an adonnistrative service contract with SPCRPL an
affiliate, to provide necessary and advisory servioes on management, investment and technical
mutters involving SPCC's operations, including but not limited 1o human resources, lagal, finance
and infixration technology. Under the contract, SPCC shall pay SPCRPI a monthly foe

FLO millvon for a period of ten (10) years fréim January 1, 2020, On Janoary 22, 2021, SPCRPI
execuled i Deed of Assignment tranaferring all of its rights und obligations under the
adrministrative service contruct to SP Project Holdings, In 2023, SPCC recognized professional
fees smounting 10 P6.0 million, which is presented as “Management {ees™ under “General and
sdminigtrative expenses™ in the consolidated statement of income (sec Note 18),

Site Acquisition Services Agrevment (“SASA *) berween Terra Nueva and SP Project Holdings
On December 26, 2022, Terma Nueva entered into a SASA with SP Project Holdings to cover
total land area of 992.73 hectares for a considermtion of #1500 million for site soquisition
services, exclusive of VAT, from October 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

As of Decamber 31, 2022, Terra Nueva has fully paid for the site scguisition services rendered by
SP Project Holdings and has presented this as pant of “Deposits for land nequisition” in the
consolidated statement of financial positicn (see Note 10).

Depasit and Services Agreement between Terra Nueva wnd 8P Project Holdings

On December 26, 2022, Terra Nueva entered fnto an agreement with SP Project Holdings,
wherein the latter shall provide assistance, representation, facilitalion of documentation and
subnussion of necessary documents and liaison with relevant government units, agencies and
offices including government owned und controlled corporations (o secure land use conversion
orders from the DAR for the 992.73 hectures aequined by the former including the delivery of thie
relevant conversion orders ftom the date of the agreement until December 31, 2024, To facilitate
and expedite the performance of the services by SP Project Holdings, Term Nueva has provided
the former a refundable deposit amounting to #500.0 millicn which was presented in “Deposits”
as part of "Other noncurrent assets™ as of December 31, 2022 (see Note 1 1),

In 2023, SP Project Holdings has secured multiple lund conversion orders from DAR for parcels
of lantd with & total land areq of 992.73 hecures. Terra Nueva then reclassified the Deposits
smounting to B500.0 million a5 part of land-related costs under “Deposits for land acquisition™
account (see Note 10),

Intercompany Advance Agreement (V144 ") with SP Project Holdings and Terra Nuewa

On May 5, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the nuthority to enter in o loan srrangement with
SP Project Holdings in which SP Project Holdings may lend 1w SPNEC an amount up to the net
proceeds of the Share Purchase Agreement with MPIC (see Note 14) (net of mxes. costs, and
fess), under the terms and conditions approved and recommended for bourd approval by the
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Relaed Party Transactions Commitice of STNEC, and the proposed on-lcnding from SPNEC 1o
Tema Nueva of the proceeds of this loan.

On June 2023, SPNEC entered into an [AA with SP Project Holdings wheteby SP Project
Holdings shall extend a loan to SPNEC wherein the laner shull exclusively use the proceeds of
the loan for on-lending to Terrs Nueva Per IAA, SPNEC shall not directly or indivectly use the
proceeds of the Loan for any other purpose without SP Project Holdings's prior written consent.
The TAA shall have o term of ang (1) year, subject to exténsion mutudlly agreed by the parties

On the same diste, SPNEC esitered into an TAA with Téma Nueva wherehy SPNEC shall extend a
loan to Terra Nueva wherein the latter shall exchisively use the proceeds to sequire the Project
Land, us delined in the IAA. Per IAA, Tetra Nueva shall not directly or indirectly use the
peoceeds of the Loun for any other purpose without the Lender's prior written consent. The [AA
shall have a term of one (1) year, suliject to extension mutuslly agreed by the partics.

In 2023, SPNEC recaived advances from SP Project Holdings which were then subssquently
ailvanced 10 Terra Nueva amounting to #300,0 million.

Drevd of Assignmient of deposit betweem SPNEC and 5P Project Holdings

Om December |1, 2023, §P Project Holdings entered into & Deed of Assignment with the Parent
Compuany whereby the foemer assigned the deposits in Terma Solar amounting 1o P25.96 million
tw the lafter. In 2023, the Group recognized other income amounting to #25.96 million presented
ax part of “Other income - net”™ in the conselidated statement of income.

. LHHC

MOA with LHITC
On April 19, 2021, the Parent Company entered info o MOA with LHHC (0 sectre land covenng
a ol aren of S6.81 hectares for 4 total amount ol#270,0 million (see Note 10),

PIC

MOA with PIC

On February 20, 2021, the Parent Company emtered into a MOA with PIC, which was later
amended on March 3, 2021, to secure land covering 4 total ares of 68.62 hectares for a total
amount of P267.0 million (see Nole 10)

SPCRM

Project Development Services Agreement ("PDSA ") and Amendment Agreement with SPFCRP]
On September 30, 2022, the Perent Company entered into 2 PDSA with SP Project Holdings
wherein SP Project Holdings shall provide project developiment services, inclhiding site
identification, permitting and lind acquisition, covering a total area of Y25.6) hectares, for a
consideration of #150.0 million, exclusive of VAT,

On Ogtober 5, 2022, SP Project Holdings assigned all of its rights and obligations under the
PDSA to SPCRPI.

As of December 31, 2022, the Parent Company has fully paid the services rendered by SIFCRPY

and has presenied this as part of “Deposits for land segusition’ in the consolidmed statements of
finomcial position {see Note 10),



CXSA with SPCRPT

On Septeenber 30, 2022, the Pavent Company enltered intd a separute CSSA with SPCRP! wherein
SPCRI' shall provide suppont services, including FPC, logistics, wanshousing and other
contractor-related services during the construction of the Parent Campany's Phase | Project for a
consideration of P100.0 million, exclusive of VAT,

On October §, 2012, the parties agreed to amend the consideration of the CSSA from
PLOO.0 million lo P219.5 million, exclusive of VAT, As of December 31, 2022, B219.5 million
wins capitnlized in CIP (see Note 9),

Sular Maintenance Servicss Corporation ("SMSC*)

Support Services Agreement between SPNEC and SMSC

On September 29, 2022, the Parent Company entered mio a Support Services Agreement with
SMSC, an affiliate of the Parent Company, wherein SMSC shall provide support services during
the construction and development of the Parent Compuny’s Phase | Project. Munpower servives
recognived for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended

Decernber 31, 2022 and for the year ended Tune 30, 2022, amounted 1o B43.6 million,

¥23.5 million and nil, respectively, which were capitalized in CIP (sce Note 9).

Property Management Agreement hetween SP Calatagan and SMSC

SP Calatagan has antmal property management agreement with SMSC to maintuin wnd mansge
the salar power plant In January 2022, SPCC renewed its contract for a period of one year until
December 31, 20622 The agreement was mitomatically nenewed and extended for anothier period
of one year, subject to standard escalation of service foe at the rate of 10%. Tn 2023,

5P Calatagun recognized outside services amounting Lo #9.9 million presented as purt of “Costs
of sales und services™ tn consoliduted starements of comprehensive income (see Note 17).

Upsration and Maintenance Agreement between SP Tarlac and SMSC

SP Tariae has Operution and Maintenance Agreement with SMSC for the lntter to operule,
muintiin and manage SP Tarlae’s solar power plant for 20 years for an snnual fee of

F21.5 million with an escalation rate of 2% on the secand year of contract and every othier year
thereafter. For the year ended December 31, 2023, SP Tatlae recognized professionl fees
amounting to B14.5 million, which wis presented as part of “Costs of sules and services™ in the
consolidated stalement of comprehensive income (see Note 17),

Property Maintenance and Managemient Agreement hesween SP Roofiop and SMSC

S Roofiop has various property mainienance and munageinent agreemients with SMSC where
the latter shall maintain and mannge the solar power plants with tesms varving lor two (2) vears
up to 20 years. SP Rooflop shall pay the total of salaries and wages cost plus 10% 1o SMSC for
employees of SMSC who directly muintuin and manage the solar power plant. For the year endied
December 31, 2023, SP Roaftup recognized “Personnel costs™ which was presented as part of
“Costs of sales and services” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounting
to #0.4 million (see Note 17),

CSSA between SP Roofiop and SMSC

SP Rooftop has three (3) C58As with SMSC where the latter shall provide suppon services,
mclading EPC, logistics, warchousing, and other contractor-related services during the
construction of the different projects of ST Rooftop for one year. SP Rooftop shll puy SMSC the
total of salarics and wages cosi plus 10% of the employees of SMSC who directly assisted to the
construction of the power plants,
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Codstruction support serviees recognized as part of CIP and “Persoanel costs™ under “Costs of
sales and dervices™ in the consolidated stntement of comprehensive invome amounted to

P51 million and #5.4 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 20733

(see Notes 9and 17)

£ Individual Stockholder
MOA with SP Calaragan
On February 12, 2019, SP Calatagan entered into a MOA with the Individual Stockholder (o
purchise 87.50 hectares of land for P421.6 million,

On June 28, 2019, the 87.50 hectares of lund specified in the MOA were pledged as part of the
secanitics 1o abtun o loan facility of 8P Tarlac (see Notes 7, 10 and 13),

15, Retirement Benefit Obligation
The Group Kas an unfunded non-contributory defined benefit plan covering substantially all of it
qualified employees. The defined benefit obligation is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2023 ore 4s
follows:

Eifest of business combination under common control (Note 21) P2.628.137
Current service cost 290,944
Interest cost 02,926
Hemeasurements ariging from changes in:

Financial assumptions 1,122,862

Deviation of experience assumptions (205332)
Trunsferred Linbility (724,983)
Balance at end of the year P3.204.554

In 2023, the principyl actuarial assumptions used in determining the projected benefit obligition were
discount rate and salary increase rate were 6,10% und 8.0%. respectively. Az of December 31, 2023,
the Group recognized retirement benefit obligation of ®3.2 million presented under other noncurrent
linbilitics in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined bused on ressonably possible chisnges of cach
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation 4s of December 31, 2023, nssurming all other
ussumptions were held constant:

Increase (Decrease) in

IncreaseDecrense Defined Benefit

in Percentage Point Obligation
Dhigcount rale +1% (R440.3581)

-1% 545,803

Future salury increases +1% 525319
-1% (435,666)

Employes tumaover =10%% 1A3RTT
1% (133.577)

RS mam e i
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The maniity anatysis of the undiscounted hanelit paynients a8 of Decensber 31, 2023 are as follows:

More than 1 to 10 years P3.642,143
More thun 1010 15 years 1,981,946
More than 15 10 20 veurs |0.988 836
More thun 20 years 43711040

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation ax of Decembor 31, 2023 ix
17 to 22 years.

16. Equity

Cupitil Stock und Additions] Paid-in Capital
The details of the Parent Company s capital stock as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are a8 follows:

1023 2023
Shares Amount Shares Ansount

Common shares - 0.1 par value per
share
Halunces ot beginning of period  10,000,000,000 ¥1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 mmn.unumu
Incrense in authorized capital stock 40,000,000,000 _4,000,000,000

Balances at end of period 50,000.000,000 #5,000,000,000 lmmww H.mu,mmm
Essued mnd putsiinding:
Hulances gt beginning of period — 10,000,000,000 #1LO00000,000 8,124 350,005 51 2,435,00
Issuance of shares 24, 373,050,000 2437305000 1.H75.049.995  187.564,99
af period 34,37, B3.437305.000 10, 0,000 #1.000,000,000
o

(in December |7, 2021, the Parnent Company completed its TPO) and was listed in the PSE under the
stoek fymbaol “SPNEC™,

SRO

On September 15, 2022, the Parent Company completed its SRO and issued 1,875,649,995 new
commuon shares for & total considerstion of #2,213.5 million or at #1.50 par value The Parent
Campuny offered the option 1o pay in installments, with a down payment af 25% and the balance of
75% within three (3) months of the offer period. This resulted in an additional paid-in capital of
£2,591.4 million, net of tansaction costs of #34.5 million,

On December 1, 2022, the Parent Company extended the payment period for partially peid Right
Shares for a period of three (3) months, from December 5, 2022 to March §, 2023,

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, subscriptions receivable resulfing from those that subsenbed on
mstallment payment amounted o P1.3 million and P651.1 million, respectively. As of

April 12, 2024, the Parent Company has already received at loust 99.84% of the paymenits and is
currently coordinating with the relevint parties for the completion of the requtirements of its SRO.

First Increase in Authorized Capital Sioék

On June 1, 2023, the SEC apyproved Lhe Parent Comipary's application los increase in authorized
capital stoek from P 1O hillion divided inta 10,0 billion common shares at PO.10 per share, to

P3.0 hillion divided into 50,0 billion conimon shares at #0, 10 per share,
A0
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Investment by MPIC

On March 27, 2023, MPIC enlered into a Shire Purchisse Agreement (“SPA™) with SP Project
Holdings to sequire its rights, title and interest in und to SPNEC for 2 total of 1,600,0 million
commaon shares (“Sale Shares™) for a Lolal consideration of P2,000.0 million. MPIC paid the sotal
congidemtion on May 10, 2023

On May 5, 2023, SPNUC entered into an Option Agreement with SP* Project Holdings and MPIC,
which grants the MPIC Group the option 1o acquire up to 17,400.0 million shares of SPNEC,
comprising up to 10,000.0 million primary shares for wp to #12,500.0 million (Primary Option) and
up Lo 7,400.0 million secondary shares for up to P9,250.0 milllon (Secondary Option). Together with
the initinl sequisition by MPIC from SP Project Holdings of the Sale Shares, o full exercise of these
options may result in the MPIC Group investing a totul of 23,750,0 million for 19,0000 million
shares and becoming the largest sharcholder with approximately 42.82% ownership in SPNEC. The
Option Agreement was termanated on Oclobier 12, 2023,

Subseriptlon Agreement with SP Project Holdings _
On May 10, 2023, SPNEC reoeived £2,437.3 million from SP Project Holdings for the subscription
of 24,373.05 million commaon shares at PO.10 par value.

In 2023, transaction costs incurred amounting to B34.9 million were presented as a direct charge
against “Deficit”.

Capitual Infusion

In 2023, SPNEC reccived cash infusion from SP Project Holdings amousting to #775.0 million, ay
addinonal prid-in capital to SP Project Holdings® existing subscription in SPNEC. This was
recognized as addiions| paid-m capital under equity.

Second Incroave in Authorized Copital Stock
ALits October |1, 2023 ineeting, the BOD of the Parent Compiny dpproved (he following:

L Amendment of its Articles of Incorparation o increase its authorized capital gock from 50 billion
common shares with par value of #0.10 per share (o 75 billion commaon shares wath par value of
P10 per share and 25 billion preferred shares with par value of PO,01 per share, divided into
Clais A preforred shares and Class B prefemed shires.

i.  The BOD shall determine: (a) the features of the Class A preferred shares (whether voting
or non-voling) at each issuance of the Class A preferred shares; (b) the frequency of
issuince of Class A peeferred shares (which may be issued in one or mare series), and
{c) the prelerence as to redemption, dividends and other preferences for each issunnce of
Class A preferred shares. The Class A preferred shares shall not have pre-emptive rights
uver other issuances ar re-tssunnce of preforred shares or commaon shares

il.  Class B prefermed shares shall be {a) voting; (b) non-cumulative; (¢) not entitled to any
ceanpmmic retwms or dividends; (d) redeemable at the option of the Parent Company, at
issue price, at such terms and conditions as may be determined hy the BOD (and shall be
immediaiely reticeable upon redempiion thereof): and (e} in the eventof the ligudutson,
dissolution or winding up of the Parent Company (whether voluntary or involuntary),
Class B preferred shares shall have preference over the commuon shares in respect of the
assels of the Parett Company available for distribution afler payiment of the labilites of
the Parent Company;

b, Anthorization to execute un pgreement for an investor (o subscribe to shares in the
Parent Company to support the above-mentioned incresse in autharized capital stock.
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¢ Comduct of a Follow-0n Offering with an aim to support the expansion of the Parent Company's
project portfolio and increase the public ownership of its shares,

These were subsequently approved by the stockholders of the Parent Company on Deceinber 4, 2023,

In 2023, the Parent Company paid filing fees amounting to B32. 1 million, which was presented as
"Deferred transaction costs” under “Prepiyments and other clirment assets” (see Note 7). This shall be
reclussified to retained camings upon approvil of the Parent Company's second increase in
authorized capital stock and fssuance of shares,

On January 17, 2024, the SEC approved the Parent Company's application for increase in suthorized
capital stock.

Investment by MGreen _

On October 12, 2023, SPNEC and SP Project Holdings entered into an Option Agreement with MGen
which grants MGen the option to subscribe, out of the second increase in authoriasd capital giock,

(1) 15.7 bullion common shires with par value of P1.0 per share and (ii) 19.4 billion preferred shares
with par value of #0.01 per share for 2 tolzl subscription price of 15,9 billion. The BOD of the
Parent Company shall comprise of nine (9) directors, wherein MGen shall elect five (5) directors and
SP Project Holdings is allowed to elect no more than two (2) directoni. On the same date, MGer, by
virtue of a Decd of Assignment and Assumption, assigned all its rights and obligations tinder the
Option Agreement 1o MGreen.

On November 30, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Subscription Agreement with MGireen (o subiscribe
(i) 15.7 billion common shares with par value of P1.0 per share ind (ii) 19.4 billion peefermed shares
with par value of B0.01 per share for u total subscription price of P15 9 billion. On

December 27, 2023, MUreen completed the neguisition of 50.53% voting equity interest of SPNEU
with the full payment of' the common and redeemable voting preferred shares subscription price,

On December 6, 2023, (he Parent Company filed its application for the aforementioned increase in
authorized eapital gtock with the SEC. As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company presented the
cash subscription amounting to #15.9 hillion as “Deposits for future stock subscription™ under Equity.
On January 17, 2024, upon the SEC's approval of the application for increase in authorized capital
stock, the subscribed shires were issued to MGreen.

Pledge of Parent Company 's shares owned by SP Project Holdings

On June 25, 2021, SP Project Haldings executed a pledge over all the Parent Company’s shares it
holds to secure @ loun by its affiliate, PIC, from ACEN Corporation (formerty AC Energy
Corporstion; “ACEN")L. ACEN is a corporation organized in the Republic of the Phulippines, and its
shares are listed in the PSE under the stock symbol “ACEN™. The pledged stock cemificates of the
Parent Company s shares were delivered to and is in the custody of the lender. The lender hiss agreed
to provisionally return the stock certificates representing the pledged shares and to have the same
placed under escrow for the exclusive putpose of enabling the TPO.

On Junuary 25, 2023, SP Project Holdings executed definitive agreements with AUEN th provide
500 million shures of SPNEC us pre-payment for part of the loan’s principul and puyment of interest,
other foes, and in considention of ACEN releasing its pledge over shares owned by SP Project
Holdings in SPNEC.

(e
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17. Cost of Sales und Services

Costs of sales and services for the vear eaded Decomber 31, 2023 wre s follows:

Deprecintion and amottization (Note 9) P210,672,075
Insurance 26,389,038
Munpower services (Nole 14) 25.163 828
Security services 11,564,952
Solarics and wiges 11,123,826
Inventories issued (Note £) #.714.838
Rentyls 6,731,915
Others 25,737.805

F327.103.277

Others include charges of Independent Electricity Market Operator of the Philippines ("IEMOP"),
professioonl fees, supplics, tepairs atd muintenance and utilities

18, General amd Administrative Expenses

December 31,  December 11,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{Ome Year) (Six Months) (One Year)
Professionnl fees F67.000,766 P6,401,289 B, 540,000
Tuxes anid Licenses 40,924, 882 0,848,628 10,592 654
Management fee (Note 14) JL040,000 12, B00, 000 24,000,000
Renals 8,152,107 = -
Insuranee 7,503 489 2,121,316 -
Bid-relited costs 7499177 - 1,634,000
Penaltics and surchurges 6,180,173 1819212 48,055
Deprecintion and amortizaticn
(Note 9) £,560,640 2,598,031 £420370
Provigion for impainment logs
(Notes S and 7) 756,112 - -
PSE liling feea - - 12465411
Othery (Notes 5 and 7) 32196565 5,422 482 2655684
#207.914077 P35,010,960 Fﬁﬁjﬁiill_

Others include government share, betefits to host communities, premiums, notarial fees, trust fees,

utilities, miscellancous and representation.



1% Income Taxes
a. A recongilistion between stmtary income tx and effective income tee are as follows:

December 31, December 11,

2023 2022 June 30, 2022
(Ome Yenr) {Six Months) (IO Ytier)
Income tax benefit asiaory
inEome fax rate (1. 200, 445) (P4, 170, 289) (P7_ 195 ()
Adustments for:
Movements in unrocognized
deferred income ax awcls 31,893,033 4254, 468 5,908,169
Nuntaxable meome (3.583.334) = -
Income from ITH-registered
sitivity 1,641,854 - -
Transiction costs chirged 1o
APIC and retained
camings (5,415,454) (3.452.558) (10,066, 194)
Interest income subject to
finkl tux (2,384,129 (744, 149) (54.818)
Nondeductible expenses 3,078311 377,665 37,292
Provisies for (benefit from)
delierred income nx H.!Iﬂi'&! I‘Iﬁiil.’}ﬂ !Fl 1,370,555}
b, The Giroup's deferred income tax assets and liabilites presented in the consolidated stsfements of
financinl position are as follows:
2023 2022
Deferred income tax sssets PY,646,601 P10.201,126
Deferred income mx rabilities (4,086,521,200) =
The componetits of the Group’s recognized deferred income tax assets and linbilitics are a3
follivws:
i 22
Delerred income tax asedc
Lease linbililien P37,081 . 548 P10, 219,543
Long-term receivables 1,626,393 -
Retirement benefit obligation 320455 =
Contrict linbilitics 209,558 =
Others 145,936 -
41,383,990 30.219.383
Deferded inconie tax linhilities
Revaluation of land {2,756,0300,419) -
Intongible aiest (1.326,189,164) -
ROU Assals (36,039,006) (20,018,457

{4,118,258,589) (20,018.457)
(P4,076,874,599) P10201.126
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As of Decenber 31, 2023, the Group has NOLCO for which no defered inconie tax agsets have been
recognized as follows:

Penod Incurred Valid Until Amolint
Junuary | 1o December 31, 2023 Deceimber 31, 2026 P124 436 BR6
July 1, 2022 o December 31, 2022 December 31, 2025 68,221 542
July 1, 2021 to Junc 30, 2022 Junc 30, 2027 172,229,330
Januury | to June 30, 2021 June 30, 2026 6,762,211
January | to December 31, 2020 December 31, 2025 7,162,169
P479.212.138
The movements in NOLCO are as follows:

2023 022

Balances at beginning of period P254 375252  PI90.618.674

Additions 224 B36,BRA 68,221,542
Expurations - {4,464, 964)

Bulances at end of peniod P479.212138  P254375282

Nao deferred income tax siiet was recognized on the carryforward benefits of NOLCO s of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 as management catimates thit there would bis no sufficient fiture taxuble
income vet to allow all or part of the deductible temporary difference to be utilized prior to their
expiration.

o and Tox meentiver for Enterprises (CREATE) der
O June 20, 2023, the BIR issued Revenue Memorandum Circular (RMC) No. 69-2023 reverting the
Minimum Corporate Income Tux ("MCTT™) rate to 2% of gross inceme effective July 1, 2023
pursunnt to Republic Act ("RA™) No. 11534, otherwise known as the “Corpornte Recovery and Tax
Tncentives for Emterprises ("CREATE™)" Act. MCIT nute was previously reduced from 2% 1o 1%
cffective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023 upon the effectivity of CREATE Act in 202].

Bavanihan to Recover as One Act (Bavanthan 2)

On September 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revorme Regulstions (“"RR'™) No. 25-2020 implementing
Section 4 (bbb) of Bayanihan 2 which state that the NOLCO inctirred for taxahle years 2020 and
2021 ¢an be carvied over a8 o deduction from gross income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable
yeirs immediately following the yeur of such loss.

20

L cases
Leaso liabilitiés as of December 31, 2023 anid 2022 are as follows;

2023 2022
Balances at beginning of period _ Fa03,138,420 P23 578 54R
Additions through business combination under
common contral (Note 21) 48,120,014 -
Adjustments (16,616,847) =
Interest expense capitalized to CTP" (Note 9) 13,213,102 4, 726877
Interest expense (Note 26) 10,743,700 4,532,695
Paymcols (186,526,228) -
Total lease liahilities 390,072,161 303,138,420
Current portion of lease Habilities H.962 861 4,538,676
Nonewrrent portion of lense linbilities F381,109.300 PI9E.599.744

*mnarren durtigy #he clmpracion Sevivd foee Nowe IV



lsz&

Additions through business combinatioas under commyn control pertain to SP Tarlac's various land
leases with & tolal land ared of 10249 hectures, out of which 61,48 bectares were held as securily for
the OLSA (see Note 13).

Parvent Company ar a lessee

In 2019, the Parent Company entered into a land lcase agreement with various landowners to develop
solar fmrm projects in Peffaranda, Nueva Ecija for a total area of 95.8 hectares. The land was mode
aviluble tor use oo Jamuery |, 2019 with s coe (1) year rent-free penod plus 25-year term. Furtber,
the lease is subject for renewal of 3 years upon mutual agreement by the parties.

Om January 11, 2021, a Deed of Assignment was entered between the Parent Company, ss the
assignee, and SP Project Holdings, as the assignor, whereby, the Intter nssigned all of its rights and
obligations under the September 6, 2016 lease agreetent for certiin purcels of land with a total arca
of 179.6 hectares in Pefioranda, Nueva Ecija. The Parent Company accepted and assemed ull of the
watid righis and obligmtions thus ussigned, in pursuance of the said Deed of Assignment, Fuirther, as
:mgzlh: parties, the lease of the updated total tand area of 169.9 hoctans commenced in

i} 1.

In May 2021, the Porent Company entered into u land leuse ugreement with various landowners
davelop solar furm projects in Pedamnda, Naeva Ecija for a totad lund arew of 1.75 hectures. The
land wan made available for use on the execution dute of the contruet with o one (1) year retit-free
period plus 25-year term. Funthier, the lense is subject for rencwal of five (5) yeirs opon mutwal
ngreement by the purties.

As of April 12, 2024, leased Lands that have DAR order equal to 352.42 hectares of leased land, of
which 169.9 bectares of leased land have DAR Centificate of Finality Onler.

Set out below are the smwounts recognized in the consolidnted statements of comprehensive income:

December 31, December 31,

2023 022 June 30, 2022
{One Year) (Six Maouyilss) (Chie Yeur)
Interent aceretion of leane Hiabilitics #10,743,700 4,532,095 P9, 142,009
Amaortization of ROU assets 9,982, 698 2584193 5,420,370
Expenscs relating to leases af
low-value assets (included in
costs of wales anyd carvices,
Note 17) 5,731,918 - -~

Expeites relating 1o leases of
lowvalue assels (included in

eneral and sdeinistrstive

expenses, Note 18) 8,252,107 = -
Total amounts recognized in the

consolidsted statements of

compreliegsive income F35,710.148 BT 116,888 Pl14,502 379

A



-5.1-.

21. Business Combination of Entities under Common Control

Avquivition of Solar Philipprines Asséts
On Febiruary 24, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of 100% of the
outstanding shares of SP Project Holdings and uffiliates in the Solur Philippines Assets,

On May 5, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the modified acquisition by SPNEC of 100% of the
shures of SP* Project Holdings in various Solar Philippines Assets to be at cost and paid in cash using
the proceeds SPNEC received from the subscription of SP Project Holdings of 24,37 billion comman
shares of SPNEC (see Note 16),

On May 15, 2023, SPNEC (“Buyer") entered into a Contract to Sell Shares with SPPPHI and
Individual Stockholder (“Sellens™ for the Buyer to purchuse Selicrs’ righis, titles, und interests in und
to the Solar Philippines Assets, using the proceeds of SPPPHI's subscription of 24.37 billion of the
Buyer’s common shares, premised on the approvil of the Buyer's finst increase in suthotized cupitsl
stock (see Note 14),

On the same date, SPNEC entered into DOASS with SPPPHI for the former (o purchase the laiter’s
nghts, titles, and mtcrests i SP Tarloc and SPRC for a total purchnse price of #2.342.4 million,

Cin Jung 9, 2023, SPNEC ettered into another DOASS with SPPPHI for the former to purchase the
fatter’s rights, titles, and interests in ond to the following Solar Philippines Assets for o total purchase
price of FR0.S million.

Solwr Philippines Batangas Corposution

Solar Philippines Batangas Basclosd Corporstion
Solar Philippines Central Luzon Corporation
Solar Philippines Central Visayns Corporation
Solar Phulippines Eastern Corporation

Solar Philippincs Retail Electricity, Inc.

Solar Philippines South Luzon Corporation

Solar Plulippines Southern Mindinao Corporation
Solar Philippines Southern Tagalog Corporation
Soler Philippines Tordac Baseload Corporation
Solur Philippines Vissyas Corporation

Solar Philippines Western Corporation

Laguna Roofiop Solar Corporation

Terra Solar Philippines, Inc.

& & ® ® & & & & F & 8 & @ ®

On June 29, 2023, SPNEC entered mto a DOASS with SPPPHI for the former to purchase the Intter's
rights, titles, and interests m and 1o SPCC for a purchase price of #5028 million. Consequently, on
November 20, 2023, SPNEC entered into a DOASS with the Individua! Stockholder to acquire the
larter's rights, titles, and interests in and ro SPCC for #2499 million.

On Navember 9, 2023, SPNEC entered into o Deed of Donation and Acceptance with Countryside for
the latter to cede, transfer and convey SP Holdings shares by way of donation, including any and sll
liabilities und obligutions siuched (o such shures.

Leandro L. Leviste is the major sharcholder of SP Praject Holdings and Countryside,
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Prior to the transactions, SPNEC has no existing interests in and to the Sofar Philippines Assets, The
aforementioned transactions resulted in SPNEC owning 100% inierest in the Solur Philippines Assets,
except for SP* Calatagan, Laguna Rooftop and SP* Centrul Luzon in which SPNEC sequited 6244,
60%, and 1% interests, respectively, and oxciuding preferred shares in SP Tatlac,

SPNEC acquired the Solar Philippines Assets through the transfer of shares with SP Project Holdings
and Countrymde. As the trunsactions were outside the scope of PFRS 3, the sequisitions and donation
of shires were nocounted for using the pooling-of-interests mothod. In spplying the pooling-of=
interesis method, the nssets and linbilities of acquired entities are taken into the merged business st
thew carrying value at their respective acquisition and donation dntes, Likewise, no goodwill was
recognized in the business combination of entitics under common control (see Note 2).

The Parent Company his obtained the Contificates Anthorizing Registrution (“CARs") covering the
shares of the assets transferted, peading the CAR related to the acquisition of the Individual
Stockholder"s shares in SP Calatagan.

Ownership % prior fo acquisition of SPNEC's
interest
SPProject  Individusl Country nfter
M of entitics 1o be tmpafered Ioldings  Stoakholder side  SPNIOC  aoquisitibn
Solar Mhilippines Calnagan Corporation
~ {5P Calntagan) 5533 6065 - - fi2
Solar Philippincs Tarlse Corporsion (SP Tarlac) {1} - - - 100
Selar Philippises Rooflop Carporation (SP Roeoflop) 100 R - - 1m0
Solur Philippines Hatangas Carporation
(5P Batutigus) ] - - - 100
Soler Philippines Batangas Baseload Corparation
(8P Batangas Baseloud) 100 = = - J00
Solar Philippines Central Visavas Corparation
(5P Cemml Visayas) 100 - - - 100
Solar Plilippines Eastern Corpurativn (5P Fastern) 100 - - - 106
Solar Philippines Retail Electricsty, Ine. (SPRET)} 100 - - - 100
Solur Philippinies Southern Mindumo Corporation
(51 Southern Mindanao) 160 - - - 100
Solar Philippioes Southern Tagaloy Corporation
(&P Southern Tagalog) 100 - - = [ii]
Solar Philippines South Luzon Corpomition
{SP South Luzon) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philipplies Tarlae Bascload Corpuration
(SP Tarlie Buseload) 100 - " - 100
Solar Philippings Viduvas Uorpotation (SP Visyis) 100 = - - loo
Solur Phlippines Weuntern Corpotatiog (SP Weslsin) 1o z - = 100
SP Holdings, Inc. (5P Holdings) . - 100 - (L)
Lugunu Rooflop Solur Corporation
{ Laguma Rooftop) il - - - 6o

LT
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Details of the balances of the Solar Philippines Assets which ware consolidated w the Group at the

reppective acquisition and donation dates are as follows:

Assets
Cash wmad cash equivalunts PIRT 150952
Trade reccivables 413,076,781
loventones 24,035,051
Prae from related partics 265,952,000
Other currenl nssets 48,137,129
Property, plani and equipment
Al cost B022 735 308
At revaluied amibunt 3,775 546,200
Depasits for land scguisition 434,194,156
Deferred income tax assels - net 1.107.,678
Other nangurrent idsels S50216 178
14331171733
Liahilities
Trade and other payables S42.958.643
Other current liabilities 122494306
Long-term debt 3262.805.527
Lensc lizbilities O98,120.014
Dividenids payable 61,570,424
Due to related partics 666,408 376
Dieferred income tax linbilitics < net TAR 221 668
Other notcurrent liabilities 105898207
P560R 477225
Total ldentifiable Net Assecis B8, 722 694 SOR
Less: Noo-controlling inlerests 2,794,016,096
Other comprehensive income closed to Revaluntion surplus 2,226,398,078
Otlier compeeliensive income dlused (o Delicit 736,450
3,701.543,882
Consideration paid 3.175.788,740
Eﬂﬁ TESETVE B525,755.142

Froem aequisition dites to December 21, 2023, the contribution of the acguired Solar Philippines

Assets 1o revenue and net loss are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers P617.320,666
Cosls of sales ind services {327,103,279)
Girass profit 310226387
Gienernl andt aministrative cxpenses (70,217,345)
Finanoe costs (157,434,925)
Interesi income 22876610
Cither invome - net 22292474
Nist meome P127.743 201
Net Income (loss) attributable to:
Equity holdens of the Purent Company (P113,106,799)
Nun-controlling interests 240,850,000
#127,743,201

LRI
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If the transactions had taken place at the beginning of 2023, the contribwtion of the Solar Philippines
Assets o revenue and net loss would have been P1.154.7 million and #22.9 million, respectively.

Consideration transferred was paid in cash on the respective nequisition dimes of the subsidinries. Net
cash outflow on sequisibon s as lollows:

Cash comziderution B3.175, 788,740
Less: cash aoquired with the subsidinrics’ (187,150,952)
MNet cush owtflow P1988 637, 78K

Tucdudend b curih flarves frtiin imyeming o vk

. Business Combination

Aeguisition of controfling interest in Tevra Solar fram Prime Infra

As provided under the MDA between SP Project Holdings, Prime Infra and Prime Metro, SPNEC
sequired Prime Infra’s 50.01% interest in Terma Solar on December 11, 2023 for B6,000.0 million.
Thereafler, Terra Solar became a wholly owned subsidiary of SPNEC.

Prior to the acquisition, SPNEC has 49.99% interest in Terra Solar and Prime Infim has 50,01%
interest in Term Solw. The aforementioned sequisition resulted to SPNEC owning 100% eguity
interest in Terrs Solar. The transaction was socounted for using the acquisition method under
PFRS 3, Business Combination,

As of December 31, 2023, the Growp is stll i the process of completing the detemunation of fuir
values of the assets and labilities acquired, including the identifiable nssets. An allowed by PFRS,
the Grotip has provisionally asscssed the fair values of the assets acquired and lisbilities assumed.
The provisional fair values will be adjusted within one year from the acquisition date once relevant
infermation has been obiained.

The Group remeasured 11s previousty held mterest in Terra Solur based on the provisional fair value
which resulied in a remeasurement guin of 85,964, 0 million presented as part of “Other income - net”
in the 2023 consolidated statement of income.

Details of the provisional fair values of the identifidble nét sssets of Terma Solar which were
consolidated to the Group at December |1, 2023 are ug follows:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P1.276,287
Other current assets 4,192 447
Project development costs 75,062,130
Intangibic assels 13,261,891 642
Other noncurrent assets 3334133
13345 756,639
Liahilities
Trade and other payables F487317
Deferred tux liability 1.326,189.164
Diue to reluted purtics 33 988,926
1. 365,665 407
Total ldentifinble Nei Asseis 11,980,091 232
Considerntion 11.990,045,6 16
Guoodwill P54 R4

L LT
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The cast of the business combination is made up as follows:

Cash paid to Prime Infru P6_ 000,000,000
Fair value of equity interest in Terra Solar prior to business

combinmtion 5,480 045,616
Totl considerution PILO990.045 616

Goodwill arose i the acquisition of Terra Solur because the cost of the combination included &
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively included
amaunts in relution (o the benelits of expested synergics and future market growth. These benefits are
not recognirved separately from goodwill because they do not megt the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

Net cash outrflow on acquisition is as follows:

Cash considerntion P6.ODO.05D 374
Less: cash acquired with the subsidinries’ (1.276,287)
Mt gash ourflow !fiﬁﬂ!,??d ,ﬂﬂi

!t dudind o wah fharrs fevom T

No profit and loss for the year was attributable to the additionsl business generated by Term Solar. If
the business combrination had talen place at the beginning of 2023, Tera Solir would have
cantribuled a net loss that will reduce the Group's net income by F3.3 million. As of April 12, 2024,
Terma Solar has not yet started its commercial operations.

Initial accounting for the acquisition of Terra Solar hos only been provisionally determined as the
acquisition pecurred close (o the end of the reporting period. At the date of finalization of the
consalidated financial statements, the necessary market valuations and other calculations has not been
finulized and (hey have therefore only been provisionally determined based on the management's best
estimnte of the likely values:

. Financial Instruments snd Financial Risk Management

Financia! Risk Managemeni Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and casl equivalents (excluding cash
on hand), trade receivables, subscriptions receivable, short-term investments and bonds (under other
current asstts), long-term receivables (under other noncurrent assets) and due 1o and from related
parties, trade and other payibles (excluding statutory habilities), long-term debt and lease habilities.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operutions,

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Ciroup’s risk
management framework. The Group®s risk management policics are established 1o identify and
manage the Group's exposure 1o financial risks, w sel appropriate transaction limits and controls, and
1o monitor und ussess risks wnd complinance to intemnal control policies. Risk munagement policies
und structure are reviewed regulnely to reflect changes in murket conditions and the Group's
Helivities:

The Group has exposure to liquidity and credit risks from the uses of its finoncial mstruments. The
BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing this risk as summurized below:

L LT
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! Edi; Iliill
Credit risk s the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a finuncial instrament or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

Cash and vavh equivalents fexcluding caxi on hand)

The Group applics the low credit risk simplification for cash and cash equivalents. The probability of
default and loss given defauks are publicly available and are considered to be low credit risk
imvestmenis. (015 the Group's policy 1o measure ECLs on such imstruments on o 12-month basis.
However, when there has been n significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be bused on the lifetime ECL. The Group uses the mtings from the extemnal credit rating
ngencies to determine whether the debt instrument hay gignifleamly increased In eredit risk and to
eatimate ECLs.

Trade recelvables

One af the Group's sale of electricity is with National Transmission Corporation (“TransCa™), o
govemment-owned and controlled corporation, which accounts for 22% of the todal trade receivables,
Any failure on the part of TransCo 1o pay their obligations to the Group would significantly affect the
Ciroup’s business operations, As a practice, the Group monitors closely its collections from TraunsCo
and may charge interest on delayed payments following the provision of the REPA, Receivable
balanues are momitored on an ongoing basis o etsure that the Group's exposure (o bad debis s not
significunt.

Dhae from refated parties and Bonds

The Group®s exposure to credit risk s influenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of each
connterparty. The credit quality is further classified and assessed by reference to historical
mformation about cach of the comnterparty's lustonical default rates. Based on assessment of
qualitative and guantitative factors that are idicative of the risk of defauil, the Group has sssessed
thit the outstanding balances are exposed 10 low credit risk. ECL on these balunces have therefore
been assessed ns insignfionnt

With respect to the credit risk arising from other finuncwl asety, the Grobp's exposure o credit risk
arises from definalt of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Group's cash and cush equivalents (excluding cash on hand), trade
receivables, subscriptiotis receivable, due fram related parties, short-term investments and bonds
{under other current assets) and long-term receivables (under other noncurrent assets) amounied o
P11385S million and #1 5252 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 respectively.

- . ¥ .
Financial asscts are classified as high grade if the counterpartics are not expected to default in setiling
their obligntions. Thus, the credit risk exposure |5 minimal. These counterparties nomally include
cstomers, banks und related parties who pay ot or before due date. Financial sssets are clisified as
a stanidard grade if the coumerpariies settle their obligation with the Group with wlemable delays. Low
grude ucoounts are accounts, which have probability of impairment based on historical trend. These
accounts show propensity of default in payment despite rogalar follow-up actions and extended
pnyment terms. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, finoncind assets categonzed as neither past due
nor impaired are viewed by management us high grade, considering the collectability of the
receivables and the credit history of the counterpartics. Meanwhile, past due but not inpaired
finuncial axsets are classified an stmdord grade.

With respect to the credit nisk arising fromn other lnancial asseis of the Group, which comprise of
cush and cash equivalents (exchading cush on hand), tade receivables, subscriptions reecivable,
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short-term investments and bonds (sndior otlior cument asscts), long-torm receivables (under ovher
noncurment assets) and due from related parties, the Group”s exposure to eredit risk arises from defiull
of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying smount of these instruments.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the uging analysis per closs of finsncial assets thar were past due

s s follows:
2023
Paet due but not impaired
Nolther past Loss
due thun Jiw  More than
nor impaired S0 days 60 duys 60 days Impuired Totul
(o Thawxand Peson)
Cash aind emah
efulvalents® Flo040,120 B b - = Flo040,020
Trade recelvahles R0, 20K - - - [ kLLE 2]
Subscriptions recelvabile 1319 - - - - 1319
Short term Investments 75810 - — - - ST75.810
Bonds 36,037 - - - - an.na7
Due from related parties 126,920 - - - - 126,920
Long-term recelvables JIR978 = - - - 318978
FlLi 385472 # [ " P69.596  P11455.068
T P ———
022
Pust dus but mol impaired
Neither past due  Less than W  More than
nor imgaived 30 davs 60 days 60 days  Impaired Totl
fln Thouund Peros)
Cashi and el
gijmvalcnt® 7,152 [ [ LB - r3va3z
Subseriptions recemvable 651,116 - - - 651,116
Bonds 15.552 - - - - 15552
Due from relited parties K21 388 - - - - 821344
— P1A25.168 o o - B~ Pi525184
*Exchadtr carh o hond

Liimsidtsy il |
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be ahle to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group's obiectives 1o managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as T as possible, that it will
always have sufficient ligquidity to meet its liabilitics when due, under both normal and stressed
cynditions, without inqurming unacceptable losses or risking adverse effect to the Group's credit

standing.

The Ciroup Manages liquidity risk by mainmining a balance berween continuity of funding and
flexibility. As part of its liquidity nsk management, the Group regularly evaluates its projected mnd

nciual cash fMows.
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The tabies below summarizes the maturity profile as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 of the Group's
financial assets used for liquidity purposes bused on contractual undiscounted cash flows, and

financinl linbilitnes based on contractual wndiscounted payments:

13
Lo More than
On Demand <1 Year § Yeary 5 Years Total
(T Thousanid Peves)
Financial assots ot amortized cost:
Canh and cash equivalents* F10,040,020 " [ B~ FLOL040,120
Trade receivables 191,893 94,395 - - Lh6, 288
Subueriptions recelvabile 1,319 - - - 131y
Shari-1erm Investments 575810 - - - 375,510
Pme from related parties 126.920 - - - 126,920
Bonds 36.037 - - - 36,037
Lang-term receivables - - 318,978 - J18.978
= PLO.9T2 004 P94.395 P318.978 - PI13885472
Financial Babilithes af amprilzed cost:
Trade and siher payables** P~ T L = R
Due (o reinted purties 508 443 - - - H0N, 443
Lease labilities*** - 13517 118,834 677,113 B29.474
Long-term debt*** - 374,150 1.554450 1205950 3,134 530

P6OR443  F721.409 PI,6RY I84 P1ERI.0EI 4.596.199

*Exchwlon exn s lamsd
S Erehnlen arimemey ilabd| ey
= S lipufen fiirire indecens piiceds

20713
Tt More than
OnDemand < | Year 3 Yeun 3 Years Tom]
(T Theresund Pesox)
Finuncial asscts st amortized cost;
Cash and cush equivalents® L AR ] B #7132
Subscriptiohs receivable 651,116 - - - 651,116
Due fiom reluted parties E21.388 - - K2 384
Bonds 13,552 - . - 15,530
P1.525.18% P- R B Pl 32588
- ——— ——
Financinl labilitics st amortized cost: _
Teade sl othes paysbles*® PlaaYs e P- " PIT 475
Duie 10 a related party 22,770 - - - 2,770
Lesse lubilitipa®** 4.510 4,539 101,981 567270 678,329
[EATT B S0 PI0)GR]  PSAT.XTD PTIR9T
*Exrdmlis canh ow Nused
**achude aumdsey, St e
% *fnctisih i Matiard oobres if fusrmisidi
Fiir V Ct fFi

The following methods and assumptions were tsed o sstimate the fair value of cach elass of financial
instraments foe which i is practicable 1o estimate such valie:

Cask and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), Trade receivables, Subseriptions receivable,
Bonds and short-ferm jnvestments (under other currenl azsets), Long-term recetvalles funder other
soncurrent assets), Trade and other payebles (excluding statutory Habilities) and Due o and from

related partfes
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The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due 1o their
short-term maturitics.

Long-torm Receivables

In 2023, the fair value of long-term reecivables was computed by discounting the expecied cash flows
using the applicable rate of 5.38%. As of December 31, 2023, the Fur valoe and carrying vilue of the
fong-term receivables amounted to #353.3 million and #300.0 million, respectively.

Lemg-rerm Dehu
The fair value ol lohg-term debt wak calculited based on the discounted value bf future cash Mows

using the applicable risk-free mtes (or similor types of loans adjusted for credit rigk (Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy). The distount cates used in 2023 ranges from 6.50% 1o 8.87%, Asof
December 31, 2023, the fair value und currying valne of the long-term debt amounted to

F3,141.7 million and #3,090.5 million, respectively.

Lenge Linhilities

The fair values for the Group's lease linbilities are estimated using the discounted cash flow
methodology adjusted for eredit risk (Level 3 of the fair value hicrarchy). The discount mtes used ire
b, 44% to Y.35% and 8,59 as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The fair value of the
lease liabilities amounted to #368.7 million and #2331 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022
respectively, while the camying value of the lease Liabilities amounted o #390, | million and

P303.1 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the fair valao of lease labilitics are measured using Level 3
valation echmique. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no (ranstens into
and out of Level 3 fair value measuromants.

Capital Monagement

The Croup manages its capital structure and makes adjusuments to i, in light of changes in business
and economic conditons. To mamtain or adjust the capital structure, the Group muy issue new shares,
No significant changes hsve been mude in the objectives, policies and processes of the Group for the
fur the yeur ended Decetuber 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2002 wnd for
the vear ended June 30, 2022

The Group considers the following us i core capital:

2023 2022
Capital sock P3,437,305,000 P1,000,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 5,T13,764,409 4938722430
Deposit for future stock subseription 15,894,042,026 -
Equity reserve 515,755,142 -
Rovaluation surplus 8,268,091.263 -
Retained carnings (Deficit) 5.546,151.067 (126,125.941)

P39,385,108,007 'S 812596459

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries, except for SP Calaiugan and SP Tarlic, are not subject to
any externally impuosed capital requirement. SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac were able to meet their
capital mumagement objectives as of December 31, 2023



24, Baxic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The busic/diluted etrnings (logs) per share amounts were compited as follows:
December 31,  Decerber 31,

2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{One Year) (Six Manths) (One Yeur)

(4} Net income {loss) attributable
to equity holders of the
Paremt Company #5.706,730,751 (P40,409,833)  (P60,579,448)
(b Weighted averags number of
common shares outstanding  24.217.612,500 9574, 783,335 6,999.350,008
Basic/dituted camings (loss) per
share (a'h) #1356 (P43 (FUO0ET)

The Group does nol hive any dilutive potential common shares s at December 31, 2023 and
2022,

25, SigniNeant Laws

|
On January 30, 2009, Republic Act No, 9513, An Act Promoting the Development, Utilization and
Commercialization of Renewable Encrgy Resources and for Other Purposes, otherwise known as the
“Renewable Energy Act of 2008™ (the “Act”), became effective.

The Act aims 1o

#) accelerate the explorution and development of renewable energy resources such as, but not
fimited to, biomass, solar, wind, hydro, geothermal und ovean energy sources, including hybrid
systems, lo achieve energy self-relisnce, through the adoption of sustainable encrgy
development strategies to reduce the country’s dependence an fossil fuels and thereby munimuze
the eountry’s exposure to price fluctuations m the mtemational markets, the effects of which
spiral down to aimost all sectors of the economy;

b)  increase the utitization of renewable energy by institutionalizing (he development of national
and local capabilitics in the use of renewable energy systems, and promoting its efficient and
cost-effective cammercial application by providing fiscal and non-fiscal incenitives;

¢) encourage the development and utilizanon of renewable energy resources s wolk to effectively
prevent or reduce harmful emissions and thereby balance the goals of cconomic growth and
development with the protection of health and environment; and

d)  establish the nccessary mfrmstructure and mechanism o ooy out mandaies specified i the Act
and other Liws,

As provided in the Act, RE developers of RE facilities, including hybrid systerms, in proportion to and

to the extent of the RE component, for both power and nop-power applications, as duly certificd by
the DOE, in consultation with the BOL, shall be entitled to the following incentives, among others:



i
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Incomie Tax Holiday (“ITH")— For the first sowen (7) years of its commercial operations, the duly
registered ILE developer shall be exempt from income taxes levied by the National Croversment:

Duty-free Importation of RE Machinery. Equipment und Materials - Within the first teti { 10)
years upon issuance of o certification of an RE developer, the importation of muchinery und
equipment, and matesinly and parts thereof, including control and communication equipment,
shall not be subject o (il duties;

Special Realty Tux Rates on Equipmient and Machinery — Any law 10 the contrary
notwithstinding, realty and other tixes on civil works, equipment, machinery, and oither
improvetrients of o registered RE developer actually and exclusively used for RE facitities shall
nit exceed one and a half percent (1.5%6) of iheir original cast less secumuluted normal

depeeciation or net book value:

NOLCO - the NOLCO of the RE developer during the first three (3) years from the stan of
commercial operation which had not been proviously offset as deduction from gross incoms shall
be carried over as deduction from gross income for the next seven (7) comsecutive taxahle years
immedimely following the year of such luss;

Corporale Tax Rate — Afler seven (7) years of ITH, all RE developers shall pay a corporate tax of
ten percent (10%) on its net texable income a4 defined in the National Internal Revenue Code of
1997, s amended by Republic Act No. 9337;

. Accelerated Depreciation — I£ and only if, an RE project fails to reccive an ITH before full

operation, 1t may upply lor nceelemied depreciation i is tax books and be luxed based on such;

vil. Zero Percent VAT Rate ~ The sale of fuel or power generited from renewable soutees of energy,

the purchise of local goods, propenics and services needed fur the development, construction und
mstallation of the plant facilitics, as well as the whole process of exploration and development of’
RE saurces up (o its conversion into power shall be subjeet to zeto percent ((90) VAT,

viii. Cush Incentive of RE Developers for Miseionary Electrification — An RE developer, established

after the effectivity of the Act, shall be entitled to & cash generntion-based incentive per kilowatt-
hour rule generated, equivalent to fifty pereent (509%) of the universal charge for power necded 1o
service missionary areas where it operates the same;

Tax Exemption of Carbon Credits — All proceeds from the sals of' carbon emission credits shall
be exempt from nmy und all toees; und

Tux Credit on Domestic Capital Equipment and Services — A tax credit equivalent 1o one bundred
pereent (100%%) of the value of the VAT and custom dutics that would have been paid on the RE
machinery, equipment, matenials and parts had these items been imported shall be given o an RE
operating contract holder who purchases machmery, equipment, materials, and parts from a
domestic manufacturer for purposes sei forth in the Act. RE developers and local manuficturers,
fabricators and suppliers of locally produced RE equipment shall register with the DOE, through
the Renewuble Encrgy Management Buresu (“REMBY). Upon registrntion, a certificution ghall
be issued to cach RE developer und local munufucturer, fabricitor and supplicr of locully-
produced renewable energy equipment (o serve as the basis of their entiternent 1o the incenilives
provided for m the Aet. All certificunons required to quulify RE developers (o avaidl ol the
incentives provided for under the Act shall be issued by the DOE through the REMB,
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As provided in the Act, all manafacturces, fabricators and suppliers of locally-produced RE
equipment and components duly recognized and sccredited by the DOE, it consultution with DOST,
DOF and DTI, shall, upon registrtion with the BOT, be entitled to the privileges set forth under this
section:

L Tax and Duty-free Tux und Duty-free Importation of Components, Parts and Materials, — All
shipments necessary for the manuficture and/or fabrication of RE equipment und compotients
shall be exempted (rom importation tanff and ditics and value added tx: Provided, however,
That the suid components, parts and materials are: (i) nol manufactured domestically in
reasonuble quantity and quality at competitive prices; (ii) divectly and actually nesded and
shall be used exclusively in the masufacture/fabrication of RE equipment; and (1ii) coversd
by shipping documents in the natne of the duly registersd munufactsrer/Gabricator to whom
the shipment will be directly delivered by customs suthoritics: Providad, further, That prioy
Ipprﬂ::l of the DOE was obtained before the importation of such components, parts and
miterials;

i Tax Credil on Demestic Capital Components, Parts and Materials, — A 1ax credit squivalent
to one hundred pereent (100%) of the amount of the vahue-added tix and customs dutics thai
would have been paid on the components, parts and materials had these items been imporied
shall be given to an RE equipment manutacturer, {abricator, and supplier duly recognized and
recredited by the DOE who purchases RE components, parts and musterials from a domestie
manufacrurer: Provided, That such components, and parts are directly needed ond shall be
used exclusively by the RE manufacturer, fubricator and supplicr for the manufacture,
fabmcation and sale of the RE cquipment: Provided, further, That prior approval by the DOE
wiis obtained by the local manufhcturer;

li.  Income Tax Holiday sand Exemption. - For seven (7) yeuis starting from the date of
recognition/secreditition, an RE manufacturer, fabricutor and supplier of RE equipment shall
be fully exempt from income taxes levied by the National Government on net income desived
otily from the sale of RE equipment, machinery, parts and services; and

. Zero-rted value sdded tax transactions - All manufacturers, fabricators and suppliers of
locilly produced renewable energy equipment shall be subject 10 zevo-mted value added mx
o its ransactions with local suppliers of goods, propenties and services.

i No, 2023110034
Inn November 2022, the DOE issued Department Circular Mo, 2022-11-0034 which amends the
Implementing Rules and Regulutions of the Act. The amendment removes the nationality requircment
imposed on the business engaged in the explomation, development, and utitization of sotaz, wind,
hydropower and occan encrgy, thereby allowing the entry of foreign cupital into the country’s
renewnble energy mdustry.

oy F

On December 27, 2021, [EMOP rclcased its gudelines and procedures for the implementation of the
BIR Ruling OT-323-2021 poblished last August 24, 2021. Changes to Transea's FIT billing system/
FIT revenue payment process are effective on January 2022 billing month and March 2022 payment
date. A significant change brought about by the BIR ruling includes invoicing requirements whereby
the nuling has recognized that the distribution utilities (“Dus™) are the customers/ buyers of the
clectnieny generted and sold by the RE developers, who are the gencrutor! seller, to the market,
Therefore, the RE developers should issue the official receipts (*ORs™) under the numes of the Dok
based on the settlement statements and puyments/remittances made by the [EMOP payment facility.



(COCs™ for Generation Fucilitics

On October 12, 2023, ERC published Resolution No. 2023417 that outlines the revised rmiles on
application for COC and the standards, requirements aad procedures for its issuance. Article IX
Transitory Provisions of the resolution stated that for existing generation facilities with pending
application for renewal of COC filed before the ERC, the validity period of siteh COC {s extended
until 2024, and the date of which shall be the day and month of its original expiry. Generation
fucilities with issued Provisionyl Authority 1o Operate ("PAO"), the validity period of such PAO is
extenided until 2024, and the date of which shall be the diy and month of its ariginal expiry, After
whith the generation compuny shall apply for issunnce of COC or PAD not later than 60 calendar
days prior to the expiration of the extended validity period.

26,

Operating Segment Information

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about reseurce allocation and performance assessment. Segment revenue snd segment
cxperisies are measured in accordance with PFRSs. The classification of segment revenue 15
cansistent with the consolidased statements of income. Segment expenses pertiiin 1o the costs and
expenses presented in the consolidated statemenis of income excluding interest expense and financing
charges, depreciation and amortization expense and income taxes which are managed on o per
company basis. '

SPNEC has only ane geographical segment as all of its operating issels are carrently located in the

Philippines. SPNEC Group opertes and derives principally all ol its revenue leom domestic
operations. Thus, geographical business information is not required.

LT
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Diecember 31, 20622

Eliminatmg
SPNEC Termn Nueva eniries® Toal
Curremt nssets F3,114,526,970 16,907,181 (P1,603,059.243) #1.528374,908
Nonourent assets 3.070,703.855 1,604,744 446 (100,000) 4675348 302
Tonal PG, IB5.230 825 P1.621.651 627 (Pl .6G03,159.24%) B6,203,723.210
Current liabilitics FO9,626975 PILO625.959245 (#1.,603,059.243) PY92.576,977
WNoncument habilities 298,999,744 - - 298,599,744

Total P368.226,719 B 625959245 (P1,603,059.243 P3V1,126,721
*Frrtaing ao frserconsn enmasciion Mt sery ofFinerfnd soo com o Rahion

June 30, 2022

SPNEC
Currenl nssels #1449 247 690
Noncurrenl asists 1,954, 480,680
_"I;ml — P3.403,728 370,
Current linbilities B40,331,284
Noneurrent linbilitics 289,340,172
Total P329.671,456

27, Changes in Liabilitics Arising From Financing Activities

December 3, 2023
EiTeel of Businces
Comblnation uniler
December Commai Condi'ul Deceniber 31,
31, 2033 (Notes 21 und 22) Cuah fows Oibers
e v relutod purtles P1L,7T0.119 PaA2.419.450 (P 14.724,708) POT STTNEY POONJAZNLH
Long-term thebt = 3. 261 R05.527 (166,261 855) -  MIWES4LETE
Acerved inlerest . T EIT.829 (36800, 476) 156,48%.328 99 31 TTH
Lease linbllities ANELR) ] 98,120,014 (10526,239) 7,139,956 190072161
Tzl lnbiithes from
actvities BIL1S STL 13 [ B 113 I 7
Degomber 31, 2022
Deécember 31,
Judy 1, 2022 Cash flows Othets 222
Due to a related party P22.792 348 e (#22.119) $22.770.229
Lesse liabililies 293 R78 B4¥ - 0.250.572 N3, 1318420

Totul linhilities from
finaning activitics 316,671,196 P POA3TAS3  P325.908,649




lune 30, 2022

July 1, 2021 Cash flows Othets  June 30, 2022
Due to g related party B22,792 348 P B P22,791,348
Lease liabilitics 289,525.826  (14.004.465) 18,357 487 291,878 845

Total lishilities from

Mmm F.'HEIE]'I'M IPI4'III]4.4&5J P18.357 487 P316.671,196

. Service Contracts with the DOE

The Group has the following Solar Energy Service Conracts (SESC), Solar Energy Opemting
Contracts (SEOC) nnd Wind Energy Service Comtract (WESC) with the DOE.

SINEC

Star. Rover Nuwews Ecija 2 Solar Power Project ("NE 2 Praject™)

SPNEC is developing o two-phase 300 MW, ("MW solur power plant located in Nieva Ecijn and
is divided 1o two (2) Phases. Solur Energy Servite Contract (“SESC™) No. 2017-06-404 was
asgigned by an affilinte, Solar Philippines Camumercial Rooftop Projects, Ine. ("SPCRPI™) au
December 29, 2017. The assignment wis appruved by the DOE with the issuance of 8 new
Certificate of Registration (“COR™) and a Cenificate of Confirmation of Commescinlity.

The first phase of the NE 2 Project is a 225 MW, solar power plant (Phase 1) in Burangay Las
Piftas, Pefiarandz, Nucva Ecija with sub-phascs of Phase 1A at 50 MW, and Phasc 1B at

175 MW The Parent Company targets that Phase | A shall be commissioned by mid-2024 while
Phase 1B is plurmed to be commissioned by end of 2025, The second phase of the NE 2 Project is a
275 MW, solar power plant (“Phase 2%).

The Parent Campany began construction of Phase 1A on December 27, 2021 and is 56.26% complete
as at Necember 31, 2023,

Green Energy Awction Program ("GEAP")

On June 24, 2022, the Parent Company was awarded as one of the winnmg budders by the DOE on its
First Green Energy Auction Round. The Parent Company will supply the electricity from the
J80MWa NE 2 Project, The winomg bids under the GEAP, which are expected to commenoe
opertions between 2023 and 2025, will be awarded 20-year power supply agreements. In 2022, the
Purent Company subtitied a surety bond as ote of the requiremenits for the bidding process, Also,
ihe Parent Company submitted a performunce band amaunting 1o P2.765.8 million valid wntil

Anpust I, 2024,

Total preminms paid were P75 million in 2023 and 2002, respectively, The unamontized portion of

the prenuum included a8 prepaid premivm amounted o #5.0 ouallion and #3530 million as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 7).
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SP Calatagan

SP Calwagan owns and operates a 63.4 MW solar photovoltaie (“PV") fucility situsted in Calatagan,
Batangas. It has an Encrgy Regulatory Commission (“ERC™) awarded Feed-in-Tariff (“FIT™)
Certificate of Compliance (“COC™), which entitles SP Calatagan fo a base FIT rate of PE.69 per kWh,
subject 1o an prmual escalation, 1 be spproved by the ERC.

WESC

On December 23, 2019, SP Calatagan entered into WESC No. 2019-10-126 with the DOE granting
SP Calatgan the exclusive right to explore, develop and utilize the wind energy resource with the
contract area covermg a tolul of 486 hectares. The WESC allows for live vears non-extendable term
for pre-development within which the developer should be able to declare commerciality.

A Cettificute of Confirmation of Commerciulity shall be issucd by the DOE to affiem the declarstion.
The contract sial] remain in force for the balance of a period of 25 vedrs from the effective date.
One year before the expiration of the initinl 25-year period, SP Calatagan may submit to the DOE an
uxtension of the WESC for another 25 yoars under the same torms and conditions so long as

SP Calatagan iz not in default of sny matedal obligations under the WESC,

GEAP

Om June 24, 2022, SP Calatagan wis swarded as one of the winning bidders by the DOE on its First
CGreen Encegy Auction Round. SP Calatagan will supply the clectricity from the 30 MW Calatagan
Wind Project, The winning biids under the GEAP, which are expected 10 commence operations
between 2023 and 2025, will be awarded 20-year power supply agreements. SP Calatagan sabmirtod
a performance bond amounting to B571.1 million valid until August 1, 2024,

SP Tarlac

SESC

On Augpst 15, 2017, SPCRPT, un affilinie of SP Tarloc, entered into a SESC with the DOE granting
SPCRPI the exclusive right 1o explore, develop and utilize the energy resuurce with the contraict arey
covering o total of 646.0 hectares. The SESC allows for two years not-extendable term for
pre-development within which the developer shiuld be able to deelae commerciality,

A Certifieate of Confirmation of Cotmmerciality ahull be iseued by the DOE to affirm the
declarution, The contract shall remain in force for the balince of i period of 25 years from the
effective date. One year before the expiration of the initinl 25-year period, SP Tarlac may submit 1o
the DOE an extension of the SESC for another 25 years under the samé terms and conditions so long
85 SP Turlac is not in defaglt of any matenial ebligations under the SESC.

On Seplember 27, 2017, SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all its rights and
ohligatinns under the SESC No, 201 7-07-442, including all of its annexes to SP Tarlse which has
been approved. On October 6, 2017, the DOE acknowledged snd spproved the Déed of Assignment
between SPCRPI and SP Tarlec. On thit same day, the DOE issued a COR under the name of

SP Tarlee us an RE Developer of Solur Energy Resources in Concepeion, Tartac which covers
SESC No. 201 7-07-442.

On October 20, 2017, SP Tarlao issued its Decluration of Commerciality stating the commercial

vinbility of the Tarlac 1A Project and was confirmed and approved by the DOE by issuing o
Confirmation of Commerciality on December 6, 201 7.

SP Rooftop
On December 14, 2022, the DOE awarded ST Rooftop with SEOC No, 2022-11-644, for the
exciusive right 1o explore. develop and operute its 2.04 MW DMPT Bupo Solar Power Project. The
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SEOC has a contrmct period of 25 years and will expire an 2047, SP Rooftop shall develop,
construct, install, commission, and operate the solar PV system within the period of the fimst five-year
work progmm.

3P Ratangas
On Docember 20, 2019, the DOE awarded SP Batangas with SESC No. 2019-02-500 for the

exciusive right to explore and develop the Padre Garcin Solar Power Project. SP Butangas shall
underinke exploration, ussessment, hamessing, prloting and other studies of Solur Encrgy resources in
Lipa City and Padre Guroin, Batangns. The SESC allows for two (2) vears non-extendable term for
pre-development within which SP Batangas should be able to declare commerciality.

SI Batangus Buseload

On August 22, 2017, SPCRPY, an affiliste of the SP Batungas Bagcload, was awarded the

SESC No. 2017-05-384 for the exclugive right to explore and develop the Balsyan Solar Power
Peaject, respectively, wherein SPCRPL shall undertake exploration, assessment, hamessing, piloting
and other studies of the solnr energy resources in Balayan and Caloca, Batangas. On May 26, 2021,
SPCRPT executed a Deed of Assignment trunsferring all his rights and obligations to SP Batangas
Basclopd. As of Apnl 12, 2024, SP Batungas Baseload is stll awaiting for the scknowledgment and
approval from the DOE of the Desd of Assignment between SPCRPI and

SP Batangus Baseload.

SP Central Visayas

On February 9, 2017, SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Central Visayas, was awurded

SESC No, 2017-02-364 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Medellin Solar Power
Project, wherein SPCRPI shall undertake exploration, sssessment, harnessing, piloting and other
studies of the solar energy resounces in Medellm, Cebu. On March 23, 2022, SPCRP] executed a
Deed of Assignment trnnsferning atl his rights and obligations 1o SP Central Visavas.

On March 23, 2022, SP Central Visayas has submitted to the DOE the necessury documents for the
mansfer of the SESC under the name of SP Centrnl Visayas: As of April 12, 2024, SP Central
Visayns is sull awniting for the acknowledgment und approval from the DOE of the Deed of
Assignment between SPCRPI and SP Central Visityas,

SP Easterii

On April 11, 2019, SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Cagtern, wiss awarded SESC No. 2018-03-479 for the
exclusive right (o explore aind develop the Tayabis Solar Power Project, wherein SPCRPI shall
undertuke explomtion, astesament, hamessing, piloting and other studies of the solar energy resources
i Tayabas, Quezan, On March 23, 2022, SPCRPI executed a Decd of Assignment transfierring all its
rights and ebligations 1o the Tayabas Solur Power Projecl. On March 23, 2022, SP Eastern has
submitted to the DOE the necessary documents tor the transtir of the SESC under the name of

SP Eastern. As of April 12, 2024, SP Enstern is still awaiting for the ackmowledgment and approval
from the DOE on the Decd of Asmignment between SPCRPM and §P Eastern,

SP Southern Mindunan

On December 23, 2019, SPCRPI, an affiliate of 8P Southerm Mindumao, was awurded SESC No.
2019-05-514 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Genemal Santos Solar Power Project,
wherein SPCRIM shiall yndertake explombon, asscssment, hamessing, ploting and other studies of the
solar energy resources tn General Santos City, South Cotabato, Om March 23, 2022, SPCRPI
executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all its rights and obligations 1o General Santos Solar
Power Project. On March 23, 2022, SP Southern Mindanuo applied with the DOE for the transfor of
the SESC under the name of §P Southern Mindanno. Ax of Apnil 12, 2024, SP Southern Mindanao is
atil] wwaiting for the acknowledgment und upproval ffum the DOE on the Deed of Assignmint
between SPCRPI and SP Southern Mindanan.
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On April 11, 2019, SPCRPL, an affiliste of SP Southem Tagalog. was awarded the
SESC No. 2018-03-477 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Cabatang Tmong Solar
Power Project, wherein SPCRP] shall undertake exploration, assessment, hamessing, piloting and
other studies of the solar energy resources in Cabatang Tinong, Quezon. On March 23, 2022,
SPCRPI executed o Deed of Assignment transterring alfl his nghts and obligations 1o SP Southern
Tagalog. On the same date, SP Southern Tagalog has submitted to the DOE the necessary documents
for the transfer of the SESC wnder the name of SP Southem Tagalog. As of Apnl 12, 2024,
SP Southern Tagalog is still awniting for the acknowledgment amd approval from the DOE of the
Dieed of Assignment between SPCRPI and SP Southern Tagalog.

SP Souh Luzon
The following SESCs were awarded to SP South Luzon.

SESC No. Awnrd Date Project Name
2019-10-531 Devemnber 20, 2019  Binangonan and Cardona, Rival nnd Laguna de Bay
Solur Powel Project

2019-05-513 Deceniber 23, 2019 Pill and Nuga City, Cumarines Sur Solur Power Project

SP Tarlee Baseload

On July 18, 2017, SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Tarlac Baseload, was awitrded SESC No. 2017-05-385
far the exclusive right to explore and develop the Calumba-Tansuan Solar Power Project, wherein the
SPCRPI shill undertake explomtion, nsscssment, hamessing, piloting and other studics of the solar
energy resourees in Tatlac City nnd La Par, Tarlac. On May 26, 2021, SPCRPI executed Deed of
Assignmen! trunsferring all his rights and obligatons (o SP Tarlac Baseload. As of April 12, 2024,
Tarlac Bascload is still awaiting for the acknowledgment and approval from the DOE of the Deed of
Assignment between SPCRPI and SP Turlae Baselond.

SE Visavas

On December 27, 2019, DOE awarded SP Visayas with SESC No, 2019-05-51 2 for the exclusive
right to explore and develop the Kananga-Ommoc Solar Power Praject, wherein SP Visayas shall
undertake exploration, assessment, hamessmg, prloting and other studies of the solar encrgy resources
in Kananga and Ormoc City, Leyte. Farther, on that same day, the DOE issued and approved a COR
under the name of SP Visayns which recognizes SP Visayas as a RE developer.

GE4P

In 2022, the SP Visayas won awnrded as one of the winming bidders by the DOE for the fust roond of
the GEAP, which promotes the necelerution of renewable energy systems und the promation and
eommerctalization of 1S spplication, encourspe thee and active privite seclor pureipaton ind
vivestment in all energy setivities, and provide adequate cupacity to meet demand. In 2022,

SP Visoyus stibmitted o surcty bond, a8 part of the bidding requirements. Also, SP Visayas subnitted
4 performance bond amounting to P2,.963 4 million valid until December 2, 2024,
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Tsizs Solar
The following SESCs wers awarded to SPCRPL, an affiliate of Terra Solar,

SESC No. Award Date Project Name
201 7-02-365 Februnry 9, 2017 100 MW Iba-Palsuig |
201 7-06-421 Auguse 22, 20217 100 MWMaragondon-Naic |
201 7-06-407 August 22, 20217 140 MW San [ldelfonss, Bultycan
2017-06-405 August 22, 20217 140 MW San Rafas! | Bulacan
2017-07-434 April 11, 2019 100 MW Santa Rosa Nueva Ecija

On June 30, 2021, SPCRP executed a Deed of Assignment iransfeming all its rights and obligations
to Terra Solar, On Murch 27, 2023, Termn Solar applied with the DOE for the approval of the
assignment of the SESCs. As of April 12, 2024, Terra Solar awsits the approval of DOE.

lagonn Roofiop
The following SEOCs were awarded to Laguna Roofiop. Each SEOC has a coniract period of 25

years and will expire on 2047

SEOC No. Awurd Date Project Name Capacity (MWy)
2022-03-618 April 5, 2022 ATC Solar Power Project 1,752
2022-05-623 June 92022  MMPC Phase | Solar Power Projest 4,097
2022.05-624 June 10,2022 MMPC Phase 2 Solar Power Project 0.130

The BOI approved Laguna Roofiop's registration as RE Developer for the following projects:

Award Date Project Name Capacity (MW,)
December 19, 2022 ATC Solir Power Project 1,752
Janugry 16, 2023 MMPC Phase 2 Solar Power Project 0.130
August 24, 2023 MMPC Phase | Solar Power Project 4,096

The BOI centifications served as the basis of entitlement (o incentives under RA No, 9513, otherwise
known &€ the RE Act of 2008, which grnts Laguna Rooflop Income tux holiday for a period of seven
(7) years from the start of its commercial operation, duty free importation of machineries for ten (10}
years, snd zero-rated VAT among others.

On November 24, 2023, Laguns Rooftop received the Distributed Engrgy Resources Centificate of
Campliance (COC) from the ERC. On Jonuary 8, 2024, the ATC solar power project started its
commercial operations.

As of December 31, 2023, Laguna Rooftop is still in the process of secuning the related COC from the
ERC for the MMPC solar power projects.
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268, Contracts and Commitments

SINEC
Change in Allocation of IPO Proceeds
On December 20, 2021, the BOD of the Parent Compiny approved the following:

a) Pending the use of IPO proceeds for future land dequisitions and caprinl expenditures, effective
by January 19, 2022, 1o allow the Parent Company to allocate such 1PO proceeds lowards bid
bonds, bid security, and other expenies for potential off-mke agregments, to énible the Parent
Company to be respongive tis contracting opportunitics as soon as they arise, in suppon of the
Pirent Company’s strategy to pursuc off-4ake on an oppornunistic basis.

b) The suthority to transsct with financial institutions 1o secure bid boads and bid security for the
prajects of the Parent Company.

¢) Subject to applicable law, nules and regulations 1o be clarified, the incorporation and fiunding of
whally-owned subsidiaries to hold the IPO"s use of proceeds und to recedve instructions from the
Parent Compuny for the use of siush proceads,

d) The authority to file and submit all compliance, disclosures and any other reportorial
requirements of the Parent Company 1o the relevant regulatory agencies and the PSE.

¢) ﬂﬂwm‘rl:ﬂ.larypum and authoritics necesgary and proper for the exceution of the above
app A

On Febraury 14, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of land in support
of the Parent Company *s plan to develop ten (10) gigawatt of solar projects, to be funded from
proceeds of 2 righis offenng and the proceeds from its (PO, us available, and the delegution of
authority (o the Parent Conmpany s President or his authorized repregentative Lo determine the
location, particular parcels and teoms for such land. and suthority Lo execute contracts for this
pUIpasE.

On April 6, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the authonzation to alloeate IO
proceeds Lo advance funding for pursoing off-take agreemients and developing projects for Terra
Renewables Holdings, Inc, ("TRHIF) snd its associated developments o SP Holdings, given that SP
Holdings is u sharcholder in TRHI and thet SP Holdings i to be a subsidiary by the Parent Company,
provided this would only be from the excess of the amount needed by Phase 1A of the NE 2 Project
and would form part of the expansion of the Parept Compasy's projects.

Memorandwm of Agreements { “MOA ") berween SP Project Holdings, Prime Infra and Prime Meno
On Febroary 9, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the MOAs between SP Project Holdings and
Prime Infra for their joint ventures in Terra Solar, Solar Tanguan Corporation {“Solar Tanauan™), and
SP Tarlee. The MOASs cover the fallowing:

a) Amendments to the Shareholders” Agreement of Terrn Solar between SP Project Holdings and
Prime Infra to streamling the decision-making process and reach agreements efficiently and
commercinlly vie deadlock resolution mechanisms. On this basis; the parties agreed to continue
thedr joint venture in Teres Solar. Terra Solar has signed a 850 MW, Mid-Merit PSA with
Meralco with a scheduled detivery dute by the first quarter of 2026, and plans to break grownd
within 2023.
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b)  Sale of common shaies in Solar Tansuan by SP Project Holdings to Prime Infra for 21,0 billion
upon execution of the agreements, which would result in Prime Infra owning 10004 of Solar
Tanauun (with the procecds of this sale going 1o SPNEC after the shure swap, subject to
regulatory approval). Solar Tanauan has a PSA with Meralco for 50 MW... has secured over 140
hectares of land, and s cumrently under construction.

¢) Redempiion or purchase of preferred shares in SP Tarlss of Prime Metro by SP Tariac or SP
Project Holdiogs for B1.5 billion plus accrued dividends on or before March 31 2024, which, with
ndditional equity, would result in SP Praject Holdings (or SPNEC after the share swup) owning
100% of SP Tarlsc. SP Tarluc hasa PSA with Merlco for 85 MW, hus secured over 140
hectares of land, and currently has 100 MW operating and 50 MW under construction.

Terms of the MOAs spplied 10 SPNEC upan the completion of its share swap with SP Project
Holdings.

Deed of Assigument benween SP Project Holdings and SPNEC

Om My 16, 2023, a Deed of Assignmeni was entered between the Pareat Company, as the assignee,
and SP Project Holdings, us the sssignor, whereby the latter assigned all its dghts and obligations
under the February 9, 2023 MOA with SP Project Holdmgs, Prine Intra, Prime Metro and SP Turlac,
including but not limited 10 SP Project Holdings' nght to purchase Prime Metro's preferred shares in
SP Tarlac on or before March 31 2024,

Renewable Power Supply Agreement with Angeles Elecrvic Carporation (“AEC")

On February 7, 2022, the Parent Company secured a 10-yesr Offtake Agreement with AEC,
distribution utility in Pampanga Province, under which the Parent Company will supply AEC
97.8 MWh daily, representing a portion of the NE 2 Project’s capacity to supply energy once
compleled. The Offtake Agreement awnrded is for a term of ten (10) years commencing on
Murch 26, 2023, or upon ERC approval, whichever comes later,

On January 23, 2023, the Panent Company and AEC jointly filed the PSA with the ERC. As of
Apnil 12,2024, the Parent Company and AEC are =till mvaiting the approval from the ERC,

The Parent Company provided a performunce bond in relation to the NE 2 project smounting (o
P15.0 million valid until August 10, 2024,

As of Decembier 31, 2023 and 2022, perlormance bond amounted to P15.0 niillion was presented ns
purt of “Bonds™ under “Other current acsets™ in (he consaliduted stistements of linancial position
(sex Note 7).

SP Culutagan

Canngction Agreement

In 2015, the Connection Agreement was entered between SPCRPL, an affiliate of SP Calstagan, and
Nationa! Grid Corporation of the Philippines (“NGCP") wherein the Calamgan Solar Power Plant's
generntion facility shall connect o NGCP's transmission system. SPCRI'T nssigned 1o SP Calatagan
all of its rights and obligations under this agreement through a deed of assignment exeowuted on
February 3, 2017. A copy of the Connection Agreement was sent 1o the NGCP on the same day,

Transmission Service dgreement
Transmission Service Agreement duted May 24, 2016 wias entered between SPCRIM wnd NGCP fon

the 69 kilovol ("kV7) live of NGCP along the Calutigen, Batingis aren. SPCRPI wusijgned to SP

Calnngan all of its rights and obligations under this sgreement through a deed of assipnment
executed on February 3, 2017,
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Metering Service Agrecment

The Metering Service Agroement dated May 24, 2016 wus entered between SPCRPT and NGCP
wherein the tatter s suthorized 10 st as the metering service provider of the Calatugan Solir Power
Plant which requires revenue metering facilities and services for measuring the energy consumed
und/or genenated by its grid-connected facilitien. The term of the agreement started on

Fobruary 26, 2016 and would expire on February 25, 2026, unless carlier lerminated in sc¢ordance
with the terms and conditions of the agreement. SPCRPI assigned to SP Calatagan all of its rights
and obligations under this agreement through o deed of sssignment executed on February 3, 2017.

The Connection Agreerhent, Transmission Agreement, and Meleting Service Agreement of SP

with NGCP are governed by the rules, terins and conditions for the Provision of Open
Access Transmission Service ("OATS™) rules, which govern the provision of tandmission services to
qualified grid users.

FIT Syshem

FIT is an incentive scheme under the RE Act of 2009 1o attract investments and hasten the
deployment of renewable enevgy sources. FIT provides priority frestment to renewable energy
developers in termus of connection to the grid, purchase and transmission of sad payment for by grid
operators, und a fixed premium rate for o specified period of time. On March {4, 2016, the DOE
issued COE-FIT No. §-2016-03-05, which entitles SP Calaiagan to a base FIT rate of #8.60 per kWh
for 20 yeurs.

All eligible RE plants shall be entitled to the approprinic FITs as established and such FTTs shall be
paid by all on-grid elecinicity consumers in accordance with FIT system. An RE plant shall be
deemed eligible upon issuance of COC authorizing to operate ns FTT-cligible RE plant, subject to the
term and condifions attached o 1, among them, m complumce with the Philippme Grid Code (PGC)
end ather pertinemt laws; rules and regulations of the ERC. SP Calstagan obtained its COC with

No. 16-06-M-DO072L from the ERC on June 29, 2016 valid from June 28, 2016 to June 27, 2021,

On June 24, 2021, SP Culatagan received a letter from the ERC granting a Provisional Authority to
Operate (PAOT) for 4 period of one year from June 28, 2021 o June 27, 2022, On August 28, 2022,
the ERC grant an extension of PAO fir n period of one year from June 28, 2022 o June 27, 2023,
pending SP Calatagan’s compliance and submission of the necessary reguirements. On August 15,
2023, ERC issued n certification for the second extension of PAD valid for g period of six months
from the duie of its issuance or until Febsuary 14, 2024, As of April 12, 2024, ERC is still in the
process of evaluating the requirements for the renewal submiitted by SP Calatagan.

DO May 26, 2020, the ERC approved Resolution No, 06, Series of 2020 which adopred FIT rate
adjustments, for the years 2016 to 2020 using 2014 as the base year for the consumer price mdex and
furelgn exchange. The aaid resolution was published in a newspaper of geneml circulation on
Novemnber 17, 2020 and became effpetive 15 days after.

While waiting for the approval of the FIT mics for the years 2021 1o 2023, management has assessed
that the lower between the ERC approved 2020 FIT rates and the TransCo forecasiod FIT ries for the
years 2021 {o 2023, represent the best estimale of the tnsaction price SP Calatogan will be entitled
W in exchunge of the defivered energy. It is expected that the adiusied FTT rates applicable for the
years 2021 to 2023 will also be callected in arrears in accordance with the approval of the ERC.

As of December 31, 2023, the long-term receivable from TransCo amounted to #319.0 million
tsee Note 11), The current portion af the long-term receivables amounted 1o B57.3 million is
presented as part of “Trade receivables™ in the consolidated statements of financial position as of
December 31, 2023 (sce Note 5). For the year ended Decembier $1, 2023, interest accretion on

LTI
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reccivables from TransCo amounted 1o B13.5 million which was presented under “Tniterest income™ fn
the consalidate statement of meome.

REPA

On Murch 17, 2016, SP Caluagan and TransCo, designated as the FTIT-All Fund Administraor,
entered into 3 REPA. The REPA-0037 dated March 17, 2016 for the 63.359 MW, Caluagan Solar
Power Plant was doemed cffoctive as of July 4, 2016 through & leticr signod by TransCo Officcr-in-
Charge. The REPA govems the rights and obligation of the partics in respect 1o the full payment of
all actual renewable energy ganerstion of SP Calmtagan from March 11, 2016 1o March 10, 2036, the
period of SP Calatagan's FIT Eligibifity Period,

WESM

Under Section 30 of Electric Power Indusiry Reform Act ("EPIRA™), the ERC may authorize entitics
to become eligible as members, either directly or indirectly, of the WESM, All genemating
companies, distribution wiilities, suppliees, bulk consumers/end-users and other similar entitics
suthorized by the ERC, whether direct or indineet members of the WESM shall be bound by the
WESM spot market rules with respect (o transactions in the market.

(n February 24, 2016, SP Caluatagan regictered with Philippines Electricity Market System
("PEMCT) as Direct WESM Member and Trading Participant-Generator Category.

Energy Regulotions No. 1-94

Cin March 10, 2016, SP Calatagan entered into o Memorandim of Agreement with the DOE for the
establishment of Trust Accounts for Acerued Finaneial Benefits from the commercial operations of
the 63.359 MW, Solar Power Plant. This is in compliance with the provision in the EPIRA under
R.A. 9136 tind maore importantly to help recognize the contributions of the host communities and the
people affected by the project thereby lessening conflict and promoting coaperation among the
sinkeholders. Under this sgreement, SP Calatsgan should set aside one centavo per kilowart hour
(PO.01/Wh) of the total electricity sales as financial benefit (o its host community.

SP Tulig

PSAs with Meralea?S MW (o 85SMW PS4

On Auggast 25, 2017, SP Tarlac entered into a PSA with Memleo for the sale of 75 MW up to

85 MW of clectricity for & period of 20 yeans from the commencement date at i price of P2.9999 per
kWh subject to 2% annual escalation. SP Tarlac received the final spproval of the 8SMW PSA from
the ERC oo March 4, 2019, In accondance with 75MW to 85 MW PSA, the commencemeat is nine
months from the recept of the provisional approval from ERC which ik on August 20, 2018, SP
Tarlac and Mernico agreed that the Commercial Operation Dite (*COD") of the Tarlac 1A Project
wiis on September 26, 2020, SP Turlae obtained its COC Na. 19-090-M-001221 dated Seplember 12,
2019 from ERC which was valid for *five (5) years from September 12, 2019 to September 11, 2024,

(I



-T8 =

In accordance with the provision of the 75 MW to 85 MW PSA, SP Tarlac shall supply or deecmud
supply replacement energy to Meraleo from (he commencement dute of the PSA up o the COD of e
Tarlne 1| A Praject.

“As of December 31, 2023, the current portion of the replucemient energty cost payable presented ax
others in the “Trade and other payables” amounted to B12.1 million, and the noncurrent replacethent
encrgy cost paysble presented as “Other noncurrent lishilities™ amounted to F95.4 million.

50 MW PSA at P2.3456AWh

On August 17, 2018, Mermleo awarded another PSA (0 SP Tardie for the sale of 50 MW of eleciricity
fur a period of 20 years from the commencement date a price of #2.3456 per kWh subject to snnunl
excalntion e of 16% starting on the | 1™ contraet vear. In March 2019, SP Tarluc and Meralco then
jomtly requested for the spproval with the ERC. As of April 12, 2024, SP Tarluc is still waiting for
thie spproval of ERC.

Canntection Agreement
In 2017, SP Tarlac entered into Connection Agreement with NGCP where the former's Tarloe 1A
solar power plant’s gencmtion facility shall conneet (o NGCP's transmission system.

Transinisiion Service Agreement
SP Tarlac has Transmussion Service Agreement dated November 26, 2018 with NGCP for the 69 kV
line of NGCP along the Concepeion, Tarlac area, which is valid until November 25, 2028,

Metering Service Agreement

SP Turlac has 0 Metering Service Agreement with NGCP wherein the lutter ix mulhorized w sct as the
metering service provider of the Tarlsc 1A Propect which reguires revenue metering facilitics and
services for mensunng the energy consurmed andfor generuted by tls grid-connected facilivies. The
agreement s valid vntil March 25, 2029, unless carlier terminated in secordance with the terms and
conditions of the sgreement.

Energy Rogilations No. 1-94

On June 29, 2020 and Jonuary 20, 2021, SP Tarlae entered into Memorandum of Agreements with
host communities in Brgy, Sta. Rosa and Municipality of Concepeion, Tarlae for the establishment of
Trust Acconnts for Acerued Fmancial Benefits trom the commercial operutions of the Tarlae 1A
Projecl. This is in complianee with the provision in the EPIRA under RA. 9136, Under this
agreement, SP Tarlae should set eside one centavo per kilo wit hour (B0 AWh) of the total
electricity sales a5 linancial benefit to the oyt communities. For the year ended December 31, 2023,
benefits 1o host communiticy amoanted to 1.9 million which is presented under “General und
sdministratve expenses” i the consoliduted statements of income (see Note 18)

SE Rooftop

EPC Agrevmenis

Robinsons Land Corparation {"RLC")

On Oetober 23, 2018, SP Rooftop entered into five (5) EPC sgreements with RLC for the design,
engincering, procurament of components for, sod construction of PV symoms for the project sitles. As
of December 31, 2023, SP Rooftop has completed the construction of four (4) projects und is in the
process of completing the remaining activities on the rematning project. As of December 31, 2023,
the remaiiing receivable anveuntied to P2E4 million (see Note 5),

DR
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Mitsubishi Motors Philippines Corporation (“MMPC")

I June 2023, SP Rooftop entered into an electrical system modification agreement with MMPC for
the supply, delivery, installution, termination und testing of the electrical works of a solar PV system
for a contract price of P5.8 million. The project was completed and completed on October 20, 2023,

Power Purchase Agreements (“PPA ")

5P Rooflop entered mto three (3) PPAs for the finmnce, design, construction, operation and
muintenunce of 'V system electric gencration (“PSEG™) lucilitics on the rocRtops of three (3)
establishments. Each PPA shall be for n term of 20-25 years, throughout which SP Rooflop shall
mike wwiilable ull the energy output produced by PSEG Tacililies ingtalled on the tooftops of sach
el ut the applicable payment rates stipulated in cach PPA. As of December 31, 2023, SP Rooftap
hos thres (3) PPAs. Under each PPA, SP Roaflop thall own the PSEG facilities and all the nssoviated
environmental attributes, and ghall be eatitled to owm, claim and retun any and all the tax benefits
and incentives associated with the ownership of the PSEG facilities, unless the respective mull
ovwners purchase the PSEG facilities us allowed in the purchase option provisions of each PPA.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, SP Rooflop recognized revenue from sale of electricity
ameunting to P26 million, As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding recervable from sale of
clectricity amounted to P09 million (see Note 5).

Ewergy Equipment Leasing imd Service Agreements (EELSA)

SP Rooftop has entered into six (6) differemt EELSA where SP Rooftop will develop, construer,
operate and lease solar generstion facilitics totaling to aound 4. 5MW,;,. Each FELSA shall have a
tgrm of’

25 years beginning on the day the solur geaeration Mcility unit was commissioned.

Under each EELSA, SP Rooftop shall own the solar generution facility wnits s well as the
improvements and shall be entitled to retain owmenship upon expiration of the term subject to certain
conditions, As of December 31, 2023, the construction of five () projects arc in progress, while one
has not yet started constroction.

WESM

Under Section 30 of EPIRA, the ERC muy authorize entities to become cligible as members., either
directly or indirectly, of the WESM. Al generating companics, distribution utilities, suppliers, bulk
consumers/end-wsers and other similar entitics authorized by the ERC, whether direct or indirect
members of the WESM shall be bound by the WESM spot market rules with respect to transactions in
the market.

On Februory 18, 2020, SP Retail Electricity was registered with TEMOP ax Direct Member — RES
Category.

FPA with 1DGA

On Seplember 15, 2020, SP Rooftop and DGA entered into PPAs with ATC and MMPC to finance,
constriact, install, test, own, operate, and maintuin PV systems, ATC and MMPC agreed to puichase
ull the energy output produced bry the PV systems at the applicable payment rales stipulaed in the
PPAs. The PPAs huve i term of 20 vears and 25 yeais, respectively.

On Oetober 27, 2021, Lagunis Rootlop entered info i Deed of Assignment with SP Rooflop and DGA

to sssign all their rights, benefits, titles and obligntions of the Assignors i and (o the PPA with ATC
to Laguna Rooftop, respectively, Subsequenily, on April 28, 2022, Luguna Rooftop entered inlo a
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similur agreement with the Assignors to asgign all their rights, benefits, titles and obligations in and to
the PPA with MMPC 1o Laguna Roofiop. ATC and MMPC, unconditionally and imevocably,
consented, acknowledged and agreed 1o the nssignment.

On October 19, 2022, Laguna Rooflop and MMPC entered inlo a compensition sgreement wherein
Luguni Rooftop agreed to pay P14,000 for every day of delay on the igreed project timeline, The
agreed construction completion date and commercial opermtion date were set on October 15, 2022 and
December 9, 2022, respectively. However, &stwd:hjumm;mmlmmﬂmhnp
incurred compensation charges amounting to P35, 1 million in 2023,

The commercial opemtions date of the ATC Solar Power Project is on January 8, 2004, As of
April 12, 2024, the remaining projects of Laguna Rooftop are estimated to be completad in 2024,

Muster EPC Contract

On Junuary 7, 2022, Lagun Rooflop entered into a Master ERC Contract with SP Roofiop 1o
cstablish o framework within which Laguna Roofiop may issue confirmanion memorandums for the
performance of works in relation to the design, engineering, procurement, construction works, testing
and comminsioning of PV systems.

Coufirmation Memorabdumy
In 2022, Lugtns Rooftop entered into three (1) confirmation memomndums with SP Rooflop for the
engineering, procurement and construction works of PV systems for the following project sites:

Project Name Lacation Contract Price
MMPC Phase | Solar Power Project Sia, Rosa, Laguna P149.524.511
ATC Solur Power Project Calnmbu, Laguna 68,247,200
MMPC Phase 2 Solar Power Project Sta. Rosa. Laguna 8,856,663
#226.628,394

Laguna Rooftop is entitled (o claim damages from SP Rooftop on the delay from the date of
provisional acceptance of the PV syslems, such claims will be utilized 1o pay for compensation
charges of MMPC.

As agreed with SP Roollop, Laguna Rooftop is entitled ta claim domages equal to the total
compensation charges (inally agreed with MMPC,

-

Tena Solar

PSA with Meralco

On Octaber 24, 2022, Term Solar entered into a PSA with Memlco to provide and sell electrieaty for
Contmct Copacity of 850 MW, Tema Solar intends to construct at least 2,500 MW solar power plant
and 400 MW battery encrgy storage system Lo make uvailable the Contract Capacity. This shall be
delivered to Memloo mto two phases: Phase 1 or 600 MW is scheduled to be delivered by February
20 2026, and the Phase 2 or 250 MW is scheduled to be deliversd by Febroury 26 2027, The PSA
shall expire on the 20* year following the commercial operations date of Phase 2. renewable for
nnother ane yeur.

On February 15, 2023, Terra Solar and Meralco filed a joint application of the PSA dated

Novernber 2, 2022 for the approval with the ERC. Terra Solar and Meraleo obtained the ERC's
approval of the PSA which was doeketed under ERC Case No, H23-014 RC dated Augusi 18, 2023,
Terra Salar and Meralco shall anly be allowed to implement the afrementioned PSA apan
sibmission of requirad dociiments to the ERC,



By D Garbare ‘algn B Con.  Tod |35 Bm6 T Aoy
BTED Agutm Aaserain P (EX2) 881G 972
133 Mpnam Cry gl

Bufifing a bitinr e
WO ICIY w1 i

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
5P New Energy Comoration

20* Floor AIA Tower

8767 Pasco de Roxas

Makati City

We huve audited in accordance with Philippine Stundirds on Auditing, the consoliduted fruncial
stotements of 8P New Energy Corporation (a subsidiary of MGen Rencwable Energy, Inc.) and its
subsidinries (collectively referred 1o as the “Group™) 48 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the year
etided December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, und have tssued our report thereon dated April 12, 2024, Our audits were made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated finuncial stutements taken as & whole. The schedules
listed in the Index to the Caonsolidated Financial Statemenis and Supplementiry Schedules are the
responsibility of the Group's management. These schieditles are presenied for purposes of camplying
with the Revised Securitics Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not past of the busic consolidated fimancial
stalements. These schedules have been subjected to the mdumgpmthxu:pp!tnd in the audit of the
basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the
financial information required to be set forth therein in relition 1o the basic consalidited financinl
statements taken as a whale.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,

i

Ihnmn Felizn C. Go

L*Pﬁ Cemificare No. 0714122

Tux Tdentifcation No. 219-674-288

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, Auvgust 25 2021, valid until April 15, 2024

BIR Accreditation No, 08-00]99%-103-2022, Novemnber 7, 2022, valid until Navember 6, 2025
PTR No. 10079942, January 5, 2024, Mukati City

Aptil 12, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors end Stockholders
SP New Energy Corporation

20" Floor AJA Tower

8767 Puseo de Roxas

Mukati City

We have audited in sccordance with Philippine Standands on Auditing, the consolidated finunciul
statements of SP New Enerjty Corporstion (a subsidiary of MGen Renewable Energy, Inc.) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred 10 s the “Group™) 18 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the year
ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended
Yune 30, 2022, and bhave issued our report thereon dated April 12, 2024 Our audits were made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the hasic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, The
Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions, formulas,
calculntion, and their sppropriateness or usefilness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the
Group's management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of opemting performance
defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) and may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures presented by other companies. Thig schedule is presented for the purpose of complying
with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exclinnge Commission,
and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financial stutements prepared in accordunce with
PFRSs, The components of these financis! soundness indicators hive been traced to the Group®s
consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the year ended Decembie
31, 2023, for the six-month period ended Decernber 31, 2022 und for the vear ended June 30, 2022 and no
moterinl exeeplions wene noted.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,

S fr e

Jhowsma Fel

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0114122

Tax [deatification No. 219-674-288

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, Auguat 25, 2021, valid until Apeil 15, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-103-2022, November 7, 2022, valid until November 6, 2025
PTR No. 10079942, January S, 2024, Makati City

April 12, 2024
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SPNEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of MGen Rengwable Energy, Ing.)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

DECEMBER 31, 2023
Schedule _ Coutents

Index to the Consvlidated Finanvial Statements

I Map Showing the Relationships Between and Among the Companies in the
Group, its Ultimate Parent Company and Co-subsidiarics

I Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Availabie for Dividend Decluration
I Financial Soundness Indicators

Supplementary Schedules
A Financinl Assels
N Amaounts Receivable from Directors, Officéns, Employees, Related

Partics, and Principal Stockbolders (Other thun Related partics)

Amounts Receivable from Related Partics and Amounis Paviible o Related Parties

C which sre Eliminated during the Consolidation of Finanvial Statements
D Long-Term Debt
E Indebtedness 1o Related Partics

Guarumtees of Sccunties of Other lssuers (nof applicable)

o

Capital Stock



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(A Subsidiary of MGen Rencwable Energy, Inc.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2023

Deficit, Junuary 1, 2023
Add: Deferred tax assets

(P121,718,325)
(10,201,126}

Deficit, January 1, 2023, as adjusted

Net loss during the yeur closed to deficit

Less: Non-ectunl/unrealized income (net of tnx)
Benefit from income tax - deferred

Net loss avtusl/renlized during the vear

(131,919.451)
(P104,993,864)

910,119
(104,083,745)

TOTAL DEI-"ICITI December 31, 2023 N

:Fgﬁ.ﬂﬂl,luﬁj
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SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

SP New Energy Corporation
(Fomerdy Solwr Philippines Nuevy Ecija Corpiarition)
und Subwidiarics
As ol Decembier 31, 2023 and 2032

Ratlo Formula December 2023 | Diecember 2022

Cuarrent ratio Dividing totil current ssets 1.68 1652
over total ciirrent linbilities

Agid test ratio Diividing tatal current assets 763 16,52
lesy inventory aver tntal
current liabilities

Selveacy ratio Dividing net income excluding 0.70 N/A
depreciation and non-cash
provisions over tolal

debt obligations

Debt-to-equity ratio Dividing total labilities over 0.21 0,07
stockholders” equity

Asset-to-equity ratio Dividing total assets over total ] 107
stockholders’ equity

Interest rade coverage ratio | Dividing earnings before 36.70 N/A
interest ind taxes of one
period over interest expense of
the sume period

Nel debito-cquily Ralin | Dividing total inferesi-bearing .16 N/A
debis legs cash and cash
equivalents over tntnl

stockholders' equity

Returm on equity (%) Dhviding the net income 14.02% N/A
{annual basis) by wial
stockholders” equity (average)

Return on assets () Dyviding the et income 11.62% N/A
(mtnual basis) by the total
assels (average)




¥201§ jende) g

(a)quaj)dde JoU) SIENES| JBYIQ JO SININDAG JO SINVRIRN "4
$3LIe4 PRIP|SY 0] SSAUPANGSPU| I

(#)qoojjddp jou) 1qaq wiai-Sust g

SUSWAMS [FIIURULY JO UOJIRR{joSU0]) I Bulinp
PRIBULIIT S48 UHYm Sa|1IRd PIIEjaY WOL JgRAlE33Y SJUNowWy ')

(s3(3ed paueioy ueyl J910) saployyaos redisulid pue
‘saakoithurg ‘S190())0 “SI01335)0 WOl SjgEAjaIaY SIUNOLY g

SI9TIY jupueuly 'y

senpauds Amyuawaddng

£ wa)) 'y=4) ulog
SIINAIHIS AYYLNIWI1ddNS OL XIaNI

uopesodso) efjog vaany sauiddijyg Jejos



L'E65' 6L 9REEHT'0GE' L) IVioL
S}aSSY DARTALEAQ

TdAd 10 Jatee |Eoueuy
STUSWY DALY 107
spuaunsaay| Antry

120Ad 18 513538 |BjIUBULY

657'018'GLS WNCIY MAIISIY ENAIES 000

LE9°LL6'8)E S2)0RAIa29) uLiay Huoy

950'61€°1 S3)qRARIITY SIUNGDIY FPE1-UON

- SIGRAKIIAS SH0U PUV SuEE

OLE'DT6"9TL sajliud parwias wouy ang

790°887'987 RIGUAIRsIY BpRs)

L E66'67 £219'¥2Zy' 01001 suspeAinba yses pue yses
“Sa)qeANIaL PUE SUROT

PArLOIE y3ays aceleq
PUB PAAIS33S JWO|| 3] Wi UMOUS Junowy F5N 4283 j0 vonRDosIR J ANIu3 Buinss| Jo awen SLISSV IVIDNVNIA
207 " 1L Jaquiacag jo sy

SLITSV VIDNVNLS - ¥ 3T1703HDS
NOLLYHO4YOD Yri23 YAINN SINIddTNIHG BV 10S




B8 2 'whT
L1'976'886'EE

‘A8dS VDA
INI SONICIOH S318VMINTY VL)

RE789'265'LE ; NOLLYHOJHOD SONIAIOH SLNIWLSIANI 3QISANINNOD
60°GLL 959985 00°6TT0LLTT "IN "SONIGTOH LI3r0ud HIMOd S3NIddITIHd Y105
paisad jo pua e aduejeg poLad jo BujuuiBaq 1e asueleg $9|1IEd pR1RIaY JO 2wey

207 "L quiaiaq Jo by
S3lLYYd QILYTIY OL SSINQILEIANI - 3 TINAIHOS
NOLLYHOJHO0D V123 YAINN SINId4MNIHE ¥VI05




"P2R00Ud 14SUSY WRRLAITM BYY Wou) PEIONPED B4 lRYS TUSWBINAI 40 AW #y) 18 aoureq SupuersIne Aur ‘saeiodius PaLLIEIU0D @A I
Wwawale uanlim Jad By ITIUIPLIL0D FIITIRN FY310 puk sealojdwa 0 uoINEep § MUY ST UD VOIRWIoH) St staay Auedwod oyl 10N

PEPESS FPEF'TSS (108'zse's) | ££0°L28'2 86164 IVLOL
LTTRETTY
PEP' IS5 FEF'ESE (lo8'zes's) £50° 't §61 6L saadoyuy
pojing Jo WA JoN ALy pa13ane) WOPPY Joyqan
pu3 e ourieq oy Jo BijuuiBag e souwieg | jo uoneLSisag
pu ey

€202 ' LT Jaquanaq Jo sy

(S3LL¥Vd GRLYTIY NVHL Y3HLO) SYSATOHNIOLS TVAIDNIEL ONY STIAD 1WA ‘SHIILLHO ‘SHOLITHIO WOUS TIRVAEIIY SLNNOWY - § TINATHIS

NOLLVEOdE0D VI3 VAINN SINIddIMIHG ¥Y105




(TR {n e TILMLE [ree el jiso'osooee il | el on R ALTTS
| ey . ‘ '\ Ry obarTeg L Sy g
= = il - . [Tt “hine W, R ) g ]
] ‘ 't . L Hiwy sty S Sy A
L & SEURT - - T W) |y ey T | G IR
L] ' ek n . o ey T ) By e By g
o - g ] - - L2 A =] g
_hg.. . b L . (LE B W ) 000 00 T 118 1k 1] LR o T e Ry
T
P iy | e sy ] MG | e ey [r— s PIR Sy serrmpep—
et v
= T T
LN, PR oA et ) gl BT 2 | e (e L PR L, g YISy - ) PR




ST
1L ey VR | e | Wi | e e |
_.Eﬂ S VNG s LTI G TS PR [ L RS | ) ey
[ 1 Winanem
[t ] e L s A et L s e 4
- Sl el s = i
Ty, M g B L —— S R ] o i et Bt | g e i, Yo TR o sy v onmnyg iyt By iy e




SDURIENE
jo aunmen

Buipuemsino
pue paajuesens
JUNOWE [E10 |

paIueiens sanUNSss 1o
SSEP 4IeD O Gnss jo AL

PAIL 5| IWSWTEYE SIL YIIYM
10} Auedwos o Ag pasnuesimB saunoas jo Avae Suinsst jo swey

£202 'LE J9quisaag Jo sy
SYANSS! HAMLO 40 SILLAENDTS 40 STAUNVEVND - 4 TINAIHIS
NOLLYHOdY¥OD Yr123 YAINN SINIddTIHG HY10S




B66'SES £09'r2

|000" 050" ELE D 000" 000" 000 "0 AUTYE UOULIDT
(P =TR1) wifiu EEpD pue UDKLBALOY - )
Sanoaxs Aiy pow woRenc A EH_,_ ___n.”ui 'Epueim oo Joy msutiu._ " P __uE_:__ sy Jo ikl
£ Pl SuRys J0 JRguUmy e pany DM ESE) ST |0 Ry y _ _ N

ETOZ 'L Fequiacag o vy
MIOULS VLYY = O 3MN0RHDS
ROLLYHOJSE0D Y133 YASIIN S3NIddNTIHG ¥vI05




ANNEX 8 .. SOLAR

/ g PHILIPPINES

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of SP New Energy Corporation (Consolidated) is responsible for the
preparation and fair prasentatian of the financial statements including the schadules attached
therein, as of Decambar 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 and for the Parlod rom July 1, 2022 Io
December 31, 2022 and lor the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 In accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporling Standards, and for such inlernal conlrol as managament
delermines is necessary lo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
malerial misstatement whether due (o frawd or ermor

in preparing the financial stalements, managemeni is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to conlinue s a going concern, disclosing, 2 applicable matiers relaled lo
going concern and using the going concem basis of actounting unless managament either
inlands lo liguidale the Company lo cease operalions, or has no realistic altemative bul to do
so.

The Board of Direclors s responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
procass.

The Board of Direclors revisws and approves the financial staleménts including the schedulas
altached therein, and submils the same (o the slockholders or mambers.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co,, the independent auditors, appoinied by the stockholders, has
audited the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders or members, has exprassed ils opinion on the

mdﬂmmmmm

LEANDRO L. LEVISTE Passport No.: PO049385C
Chairman of the Board/CED Explry date: May 12, 2032
HAZEL IRIS'P. LAFUENTE Passport No.: PO3334628
Assistani Treasurer Expiry date; January 20, 2020
Signed this _ day of 2023

Z0™ Floot Phiamiife Tower, 8767 Pasen De Roxas Avonpe, Makall City 1227 Philippines
B «8128 817 2585 | B2 www solarphilippines ph



SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME. this 17 APR 71 at
MAKATI CITY - Afliants exhibiting thelr Competent Evidence of ldentiny:

Leandro L Loviste Passport POOS93BSC___ | Expiring 13 May 3033
Huzel Iris P. Lufvente Pussport PD3334628 Expiring on 20 Janusry 2020
NOTARY PUBLIC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SP New Energy Corporation

20™ Floor ATA Tower

8767 Pusco de Roxas

Moakati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SP New Enetgy Corporation (formerly Solar
Philippives Nueva Eciju Corporation, a subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, lne.)
(the Parcnit Company) and its subsidiary (collectively refored to as “the Group"), which comprise the
consolidated sintemnents of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, and the
consolidated stutements of comprehensive Income, consolidated stutements of changes in equity wnd
consolidated statements of cash flows for the period from July |, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the
vears ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summury of significant sccounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statomcnts present fairly, in all material respocts,
the finanelal position of the Group as of December 31, 2022, and June 30, 2022, and its (inancial
performunce and its cash flows for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 in accordance with Philippine Finaneial Reporting Standords (PFRSs).

Basls for Opinlon

We conducted our wudits in sccordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilitics under those standards are firther described in the Auditor 's Rexponsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Giroup in
sccordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountunts in the Philippines (Code of Ethies)
tagether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our nudit of the consolidnted financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethicul responsibilities in secordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and approprinte to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key andit matters ar those maters that, i our professional judgment, were of most gignificance in our
audit of the cansolidated finuncial statements of the ¢ument period. These matters were sddressed in the
context of our audit of the consalidated Mnancidl statements as 3 whale, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide 4 separate opimion on these matters, For the mutter below, aur deseription
of how our nudil sddressed the mater is provided in (hat contex!.
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We hive fulfilled the responsibilitics describéd in the Auditor s Respansibilities for the Audit of the
Consoliduted Financinl Statentente section of our report, including in relation to these matiers,
Accordingly, our sudil included the performnnce of procedures designed 1o respand to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial stulements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our
audit upinivn on the secompunyiog consoliduted financial statements,

Tmpairment Assessment of Deposits for Land Acgquisidon

As of Decamber 31, 2022, the Group has deposits for land acquisition with a carrying valwe of

B2,026.9 million for the acquisition of parcels of land. Under PAS 36, Impalrment of Assets, an entity
shall assess at the cnd of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be
tmpaired. Manugement’s assessment of impairment considers information fram various sources,
mcluding those about the lund aequisition process and the related requirements, the current statos of land
acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that may affect the ming of completion of the
transaction. We considered this as a ey sudit mutter because of the materinlity of the amount involved,
and the significant management judgment required in assessing whether there is any indication of
impairment,

The related disclosures on lb:ﬁpr‘sdcpmiu for land acquisition are included in Notes 3, 8and 11 10
the consolidated financial statements.

Audit Response

We oblained monagement’s assessment on whether there in any indication that the deposits for tund
acquisition may be impaired. We read the contracts emiered into by the Group und obtained un
undenstanding of the significant provisions relevant to the assessment, sach as the subject propertics,
payment terms, and rights and obligations of [he conlracting parties. [n addition, we obtained supporting
docaments on the pnyments made by the Group, and inguired of the kind nequisition process and the
related requirements, the current status of land aequisiton, the timeline of activities und factors that may
affect the timing of completion of the transsction, dnd evaluated how masagement considered these
information in their impairment negessment.

Othier Tulyrmuion

Munugement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

SEC Form 17-A for the yeur ended December 31, 2022 but does not include the consolidated finnncin
statements and our auditor's repart thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s reporn,
and the SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Repont for the year ended
December 31, 2022, which are expected Lo be made available to us after that date.

Our apinion on the conkolidated financial statements does not cover the olher information and we do not
and will not express any form of sssurance conclugion tigreon,

In connection with our andits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes availuble and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statenients ar our knowledjie
obtuined in the nudits, or otherwise appears 1o be muterially misstaied.
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If, based on the work we hisve pedormed on the other information that we obluined prior 1o the date of
this suditor’s report, we conclude that there t5 2 imatenal misstatement of 1his ather information, we are
required to report that flict. 'We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governanee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
stutements in secordance with PFRSs, and for such intemal control as manmgement detenmines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consalidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatemnent, whether due to froud or emor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, munagement 15 responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to contimue gs a going concern, disclosing, as applicshle, matters reloted to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless munagement sither intends to lignidate the Group or t
conse oparations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

These charged with govermnance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial repurting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Consalidated Financisl Statements

Orir objeetives are to obtain reasonable rssurance shout whether the consolidated finumcial statements u o
whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an suditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaritee that an
audit conducted in pocordance with PSAs wall wlways deteet w matenidl misstitement whes it existe
Misstatements can anse from freud or error and are considered material if, individuully or in the
nggregate, they could reasonebly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users (aken on (he
basiz of these finuncial smtements

As pan of an audit in sccordance with PSAs, we exerélse pirofessional judgmenit and maintain
professionnl skepricigm throughout the sudit. 'We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated (inancial stalements,
whetlrer due to Tl of enur, design and perfoni audit procedires responsive (o lose tisks, sl
obitain andit evidence that is sufficient and approprisie o provide a basls for our opinion. The risk of
Aol delecting 3 material misstalement resulting from fraud is higher than for ene resulting from enor,
a8 fraud may involve collusion, lorgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
mtemal eontrol,

o Ubtiun an understanding of intemal control relevant to the sudit m onder 1o design audit procedures
thit are appropriate in the circumstances, but ot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group™s istemal comrol.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rensonablenesys of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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= Conclude on the approprintensss of management's use of the going concern hasis of sccounting and,
bused on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncenainty exists relnied 10 ovents or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue 15 & going concem. If we
conclude that a moterial uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repoet to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if sueh diselosures gre intdequare,
to modify oor opinion. Our conclusions are based on the sudit evidence obtuined up to the date of our
auditors repart. However, future events or conditions mity ciuse the Group 1o cease to contimie 25 o
going concem.

=  Evahute the overall presentation, sirueture and content of the coniolidited finsnsial ditements,
including the disclosures, und whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlving
trumxagtions and events in a manner thil achieves fair presentution.

*  Obizin sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial inlormation of the entitics or
business activities within the Group 1o expreds an opinion on lhe consolidated fimncial statements.
We arc respansible for the dircetion, suparvision and parformance of the audic *We romain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We cottmunicale with those charged with governance regarding. among other maiters, the planned scope
and timing of the sudit und significant audit findings, including any significnt deficiencics in intemal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those chisged with governance with # sintement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requircments regarding independence, and 1o cominunicate with them all relationships and other
matters thit may rensonably be thought to beur on our independence, and where applicable. refated
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those matiers that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financinl satements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our anditor’s report unless law oe
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstanees, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the ndverse convequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement purtner on the sudit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Jhoanna Feleza C. Go.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

e

Thoanna Fel
Parner
CPA Certificate No. 0114122
T TdentiMewiun No. 219-674-288
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 114122-8EC (Group A)

Valid to cover mudit of 2021 1o 2025 financiul stitements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Acereditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover andit of 2021 0 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Acereditabion No. U8-001998- 103-2022, November 7, 2022, valid smtil November b, 2028
PTR No. 9564628, January 3, 2023, Makuti City

April 17, 2023

A i Py aF e W g b



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,

A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Ine.)

AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, June 30,
2022 2022

ASSETS
Current Assots
Cash (Notes 4 and 16) P37,232,084  BYR6,TSE.I02
Subscription receivuble (Notes 12 gnid 16) 651,115,661 -
Due from related parties (Notes | 1 and 16) H21.388320 541,700,000
Other current heseti (Note 5 I8 638 N4 24,789 385
Total Current Asvels 1,528.374.908  1.449.247 690
Noncurrent Assets
Deposits for land acquisition (Note 8) 2,026,892 396 62),499,913
Property, plant and caquipment (Notes 1 and 7) 1,389,743 501 92] 385,618
Investment propertics (Note 6) 312,626,010 -
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) 281 490,123 286,910,494
Deferred income tax asset - net (Note 14) 10,201,126 10,460,264
Other noncamrent nssets (Note 9) 654,395 146 114218.37]
Total Noncurrent Assels 4675348302 |.954 480,680
TOTAL ASSETS P6,203,723.210 93,403,728 370
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts puyahle and acerued expenses (Notes 10, | 1 and 16) P65 218,072 P 13,000,260
Due to a reluted party (Notes 11 and 16) 22,770,229 22,792 348
Current portion of lcase liabilities (Notes |5 and 10) 4.538.676 4 338676
Total Current Liabilities 92,526,977 4,331 284
Noncurrent Liabilities
Leaso liahilities - net of current portion (Notes 15 and 16) 198,599,744 289,340,172
Tatal Linbilitics 3L126.T21 329,671,456
Equity (Note 12)
Chapital stock 1,000,000,000 R12435.000
Additional paid-in cupital 4938, 722,430  1,347.338,021
Deficit (126,125.941) (85,716,108)
Totnl Equirty SH12,596,489%  1.074,056.914
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQI‘JITY Filﬂ.!,?ll‘_l i #3403, 728,370

Tow sconmipaiiyisg Nover to Cossollidited Fimmacial Statenemts.
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

{Formerly Solar Philippincs Nueva Ecija Corporation,

A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc,)
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2022 TO DECEMBER 31, 1022 AND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

December 3, June 30, June 30,
1021 2022 2021
{Six Manths) {One Year) {One Year)
INTEREST INCOME (Noic 4) 2,398,960 P548,180 26,090
EXPENSES (Mote 13) 41,543,655 72,498,143 22,674,993
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 40,144,695 71,550,003 22,668,903
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)

INCOME TAX - DEFERRED (Note 14) 265,138 (11,370,555) 904,291
NET LOSS 40,409,833 60,579,448 23,573,194
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 240409833 P60_5T79.448 #23.573.194
Basic/Diluted Loss Per Shure (Note | 7) P0,0043 POLOORT PO.OS1L

See accompanzive Nedes o Convoliduted Frazeneind Sirderiirts.
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerdy Solur Mhilippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,

A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1,2022 TO DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

December 31, June 3, June 30,
102 2022 2021
{51z Maomiths) 1Oie Yenr) (One Yenr)
CASI] FLLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (P40,144,695)  (B71.950,003)  (F22,668.903)
Adjustments for:
{oterest accrcuon of lease liabilities (Moto 15) 4532695 9,142.008 7648 652
Amoribzstion of dght-of-use assets {(Note 15) 1.584,193 L4203 4,038.205
Interest inctine (Note 4) (2. 394,960) (S48 180 (6,000)
Unrealized foreipn exchunge loss (gain) (S45.388) 174,700 ~
Provision fior impaitment of lopul VAT = - 109.09]
Operating loss before working capital changes (35,970,155)  (57,661,005)  (10,878,985)
Detreise {incrense) in other curment wsises 2,150,545 (20,0103,207) (B69.053)
Increase in nocounts payvabie and neemed expenses 51,217.812 6,272,205 6,269 HES
Chxh wied n operations 18,396,102 (T1.402,187) (3,478.153)
Intesest received 1598, %60 S48, 180 X
Nt cash Nows lrom (wsed i) opersiing scovities 20,795,062 (708540071 (3.472.003)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions ro;
Deposits for lend scquisition (Nom §) (1405392 463) (541 TO0000) (337,000,000 )
Other nomctarrent assets (Note ) (540,176,775)  (LI2B48,087) (B02361)
Popesty, plast and equipmend (Niote T) (460794 X20) (904 740 TT0) -
Investment properties (Nole ) (312,626,010) - -
Due from telated parties (Note 11) (279,710, 430) (B4 459 933) =
Right-of-use sssets (Note 15) = - (20,121.600)
Ciigh flows ueed in investing activities (L9958, 700.516) (16457977900  (S57.923.961)
CASH FLLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from ssuance of sbares of siock, net of sabscniphon
réveivable ind tmmsaction costs (Note 1 2) L1227, 833,748 2,594 335022 555006517
Additional espital contnbution (Note 12) - 18, 000,000 =
Payiment of"lease Halilities (Noie 15) - {14,004 465) -
Nel ddvances fiom relsted paitics = = 7,428,728
Collection of subscription recebvable (Note 1) - - 1R7.500
Med cash Mows from Nuancing scbvilies AT B3 T4R 1603333557 563,009,742
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH S5 NR |274.70%) -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (B4%.526,218) HR6.407.051 213718
CASH AT BEGINNING OF FERIOD B$6.758,302 351,251 137,533
CASH AT END OF PERIOD iNotes 4 and 16) PIT.0532.004 PREEG. TR0 351,251

See mvnmpmuying Nober fo Cangifivbeped Finamsied Shobem oy
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerly Solur Philippines Nuevs Ecija Corporation,
A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Fower Project Holdings, Inc.)

AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|, Corporate Information

(a) Organization

SP New Energy Corporstion (formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecijs Corporation)

(the “Parent Company™ or “SPNEC") was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Secunties and Exchaage Commission (“SEC") on Noveniber 23, 2016, primarily to constrict,
erect, assemble, commission, operate and maintain power-generating plants, installations, shops,
lwhonitories, pipelines, repnir shopa, elecrrical works, power houses, warchouses, terminals, and
related facilitics for the conversion of rencwable energy into usable form it for eloctricity
generation and distribution: to promote and undertake research, development, utilization,
mumafacture, sale, marketing, distribution sd commercial spplication of new, rencwable, non-
corventional and environment-fraendly energy nources and systems including but net imited 1o
solur, wind, witer, heat, gteam, ocean. tidal, biomass, biogas, chemical, mechanical, clecirical.
synthetic, agricultural, and other natural, fossil or non-fossil fuel basad, artifieial, orpanic or
othérwise, and of energy systems that use new, renewable and any energy resources applying new
and efficient encrgy conversion und/or utilization technologies for commercial application; and to
perform other ancillsry and incidental activities as may be provided by and under contract with
thee Govemment of the Republic of the Philippines, or wry subdivigion, instrumentality or agency
thereol, of nny govemment-owned and controlled corporation, or other entity engaged in the
development, supply and distribution of resewalile encrgy. As of April 17, 2023, the

Purent Company hug not yet started commercial operutions [see detaild in (b) The Project below).

The Parent Company and Terra Nueva, Tne. (“INI), ils subsidiary, sre hereby collectively
referred 1o a5 the “Croup™.

Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Ine. (*SPPPHI™), a company incorporated i the
Philippines, is the ultimate parent company of SPNEC. As of December 31, 2022, SPPPHI holds
54.24% ownership of SPNEC"s outstanding common shares.

(h) The Project

On August 22, 2017, Solar Philippines Commercia! Rooftop Projects, Inc. ("SPCRPI™), an
uffiliate of the Parert Compuny, was awarded Solar Energy Service Contract (“SESC™)

No. 2017-06-404 for the exclusive right to explore and dovelop the St Rosa Nuevu Ecija 2 Solar
Power Project (“the Project”), wherein SPCRPT shall undertake exploration, assessment,
hamessing, piloting and ofhier studies of the solar encrgy resources in Santn Ross, Pellaranda and
Sun Leonirido, Nueva Ecija. On December 29, 2017, SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment
trunsferring all its vights and obligations provided under the SESC No. 201 7-06-404 to the Parent

Company.



(€)

-3

Cin February 23, 2018, the Department of Encrgy (“DOE™) acknowledged and approved the Deed
of Assignment between SPCRPI and the Parent Company: Fuirther, on that same day, the DOE
issued and approved a new Certificate of Registrution ("COR") under the nume of the Parenit
Company which recognizes the Parent Company as a Rencwable Energy (“RE™) developer.

The Project is a 500 megawatt peak (“MWidc") solar power plant project located in Nueva Ecija
and s divided into two (2) Phases, The fimst phase of the Project is a 225 MWdc solur powaor
plant (“Phase |7) in Barngay Las Pifas, Pefiranda, Nueva Ecija with sub-phases of Plase | A at
50 MWdc and Phase 18 at |75 MWdc. The Parent Company targets that Phase 1A shall be
commissioned by mid-2023 while Phase 1B is planned to be commissioned by end of 2025, The
second phase of the Project is a 275 MW(dc solar power plant (“Phase 2",

On August 20, 2019, the Parent Company has declired commerctality which the DOE confirmed
vin the releaze of the Cemificate of Confirmution of Commerciality CCOCOC™) last
November 15, 2021,

On Decemiber 27, 2021, the Parcst Company began construction of Thase 1A (see Note 7),
Initisl Pubilic Offering (“1IPO™)

The Parent Company filed un application with the SEC for the registration and un application
with the Philippine Stock Exchunge, Inc. ("PSE™) for the listing ol sll its issued and outstanding
stock on July 29, 2021 and August 20, 2021, respectively.

O November 29, 2021, the SEC and the PSE approved the application of the Pacent Compury
fior the listing of its 8,124,350,005 commaon shares on the Main Boand of the PSE

The common shares of the Parent Company consisting of 8,124.350,005 shares, inclusive of the
primary offering of 2.700,000,000 commaon shares and the issued and outstanding shares of
5,424.350,005 comman shares, were listed on the Main Board of the PSE on December 17, 2021
and are corrently being iraded under the stock symbol "SPNEC (see Note 12).

(d) Stock Righis Offering (“SRO™)

ie)

On Febrnry 14, 2022, the Bowrd of Directors (“BOD") of the Parent Compuny approved the
conduct of tn SRO where eligible stockholders would have the opportunity 1o subscribe to shares,
subject o terms to be determined by munagement and relevant regulatory vequirements and

approvals.

Om August 25, 2022, the SEC und the PSE approved the ppplication of the Parent Compuny for
the listing of its | 875,649,995 common shares on the Main Board of the PSE.

On Seprember 15, 2022, the primary offering of 1,875,649,995 commaon shures were listed on the
Muin Board of the PSE (sec Note 12).

Share Swap
On February 24, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of 100% of the

outstanding shares of SPPPHI and affiliates in vanous entities (“Solar Philippines Assets™)
(see Note 12),
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On July 4, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the suthorization 1o sccept the
tranafer by way of donation of shares in Solar Philippines eatities owned by Leandro Antonio L.
Leviste ("LLL"), the Chairman, President and Chiell Executive Officer of the Parent Company, tr
Countryside Invesiments Holdings Corporation (“CTHC™), including shares in SP Holdings, Tnc.
{“SPHI™), which are not directly held by SPPPHI,

(1) Change in Corporate Name and Fiscal Year

On August B, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company spproved a resolution o amend the Articles
of Incorporation and By-Laws to [ 1) change the corporate name from Solar Philippines Nucva
Ecijn Corporation to S" New Energy Corporstion; and (2) change the Parent Company's fiscal
vear from July 1 1o June 30 of ench year to Janoary | o December 31 of each year. This wis
subsequently approved by the Purent Company’s stockhalders on August 30, 2022

On October 24, 2022 the SEC approved the application for amendment of the Parent Compuany's
Articles of Incorpatation and By-Laws

On October 28, 2022, the complete nequirements for the change in accounting period for tax
pusposes were submitied 1o the Bureau of Intetnal Revenue ("BIR"). The BIR approved the
change in accounting period on January 11, 2023,

(g) Principal Office Address

The registered business addrass of the Parent Company is at 20th Floor, ATA Tower ( formerly
Philamlife Tower), 8767 Pasco de Roxas, Makut City, Philippmes 1226, The principal place of
business based in the Articles of Incorporation is 112 Legnspi Street, Legaspi Village,

Brgy. San Lorenzo, Makati City.

{hy Authorization for the Issuance of the Consalidated Financial Statements
The conaolidated financial ststements of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022 and for the penad from July 1, 2022 w December 31, 2022 and lor the years ended
Jurie 30, 2022 and 2021 were authorized for issue by the BOD on April 17, 2023,

. Basiy of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated finuncial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis, The
eonsolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (¥), the Group's functional and
presentation currency, Al umounts are rounded 1o the nearcst P, unless otherwise indicated,

The amounts presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
stitements of changes in equity, consolidated statemonts of cash flows and the related notes, which
are for the six months ended December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respeetively, are not comparable,
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The consolidated financisl stetements are prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reparting
Stundards (“PFRS4™) ns issued by the Philippine Finuncinl Reporting Standurds Counci wid adopted
by the Philippine SEC.

N I ions nod Amendments

The accounting policies sdopted are consistent with these of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of new standards effective starting July 1, 2022, The Group has not early adopted any
standind, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but ks not yel effective,

The adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

« Amendmen 1o PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Prepirstion and
Presentation of Financinl Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments added an exception to the mgniumprmmplc of PFRS 3,
Business Combinatipns 1o aveid the issue of potential ‘day 2°gains or losses arising for liabilities
and contingent labilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingem Assers or Philippine-IFRIC 11, Levies, if incurred separately,

At the samie time, the amendmenits add & new paregraph to PFRS 3 1o clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition st the acquisition date.

o  Amendmenis w PAS 16, Property, Plani and Equipmons: Procesds bufore Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the codt of an item of property, plant and
equipmeni, any proceeds from selling ftems praduced while bringing that assel to the location und
condition necessary for it Lo be capable of opersting in the munner intended by management.
Instead, an enlity recognizes the progeeds from selling such jtems, and the cosis of producing
those items, in profit or loss.

*  Amendments to PAS 37, Onerons Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when gssessing whether a
contract is nneroas or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly reluted cost approach”.
The costs that refate directly te i contract 1o provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of costs directly related 10 contract sctivities. General and administrative
costs do not relate directly (o a contract nod are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable (o
the counterparty under the contract.

o Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

o Amendments to PERS 1, First-time Adopeion of Philippines Finanelal Reporing Standardy.,
Subidiany as o firn-time adopier



The amendment petmits o subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS | to
mcasure cumulative teanslation differences using the umounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements, based on the Group®s date of rangition 1o PFRS, if no
adjustments were made for consolidntion progedures and for the cffects of the business
combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary, This amendment is also applicd to
an associate of joldnt venture that elects o spply paragmmph DI 6{a) of PFRS 1.

e  Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instniments, Fees in the “10 per cent’ test for
derecognition of financial labifities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified Anancial Eability gre substantially different from the terms of the eriginal
financial lability. These foes include only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the barrower or lender o the other's behall

= Amuendments to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in faiv vahie meastirements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude cish
flows for txation when meaguring the fulr value Hf sssets within the scope of PAS 4]

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial slatements comprise the financial sitements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiary as at December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022,

Control i achicved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement
with the investees and has the ability to affeet those returns through its power over the investee,
Specifically, the Group controls e investee if, and only if] the Group has:

o Power over the investee (Le. existing rights that give it the current sbility (o direct the relevant
activities of the investee),
Exposure, or righits, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, nnd
The ability to use ils power over the invesiee to affeet ils retumns.

Generally, there bs a presumpdion thist & majority of viting rights cesull in control. To suppon
Ihis]munmlpnunand when the Group has less than 2 majority of the voting ar similar rights of an
itivestee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
ver an investes, including:

» The comtractual armngement with the other vote holders of the mvestec;
= Rights anging from other contruimusl errungements; and,
& The Group's voling rights and potential voting rights,

The Group re-assesses whether or nob it controls an investee I lacls and circumstances indicale that
there ire changes to one or more of the three elements of control, Conselidation of a subsidiary
beging when the Giroup oblains control over the subsidinry and ceises when the Group loses control
ol the subsudiary. Assets, labihives, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the yeur are included in the consolidaied siemants of comprehensive income from the date
the Grroup gains control until the date the Parent Company ceasest o control the subsidiury,
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Profit ot Ioss and each component of OCT are attributed 1o the equity holders of the patent of the
Group s to the NC1, even if this resulls in the NCI having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjiesiments are made (o the financial sssements of subsidiaries 1o bring th:inmnunﬁng policéies into
line with the Geoup's accounting policies. All intra-group sssets und liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating lo transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
ot consolidanon, A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of coatrol, |s
aceounted for 48 dn equity transaction

If the Giroup loses control over a subsidinry, it derecognizes the related assets (including goodwill),
linbifitics, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss,. Any investment retained s recognized at fair value.

The Parent Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Terrs Nucva, Inc. (“TNT"), were scparately
incorporated and reguatered with the Phlippine SEC.

TNI was incorpornted on August 31, 2022 primurily to invest in, purchsse, or otherwise gequire, own,
and hold on assets purely for investment purposes.

mthmpwmummmdhwiﬁm mthummhﬂumdm:sufﬁumﬂlmﬂmhsﬁun
the current/noncurrent classificiation. An aset is curront when it s

expected lo be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle:
expeated to be raalized within twelve months after the reparting period,;

held primarily for the purpose of trading or

Cush or cush equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lishility for ot
least twelve months afler the reporting period.

All other sty are claskified oy poncurient
A liability is current when!

It is expected 1o be settled in the normal operating cvele;

1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due o be settled within twelve (12) months after the reporting period: or

There is no unconditional right to difer the settlement of the Tinbility for at least twelve (12)
memihs sfler the reporting period
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The terms of the Rability thot could, at the oplian of the counterparty, resilt in its settlement by the
issue of equity do not allect its classification.

The Group classifics all other Habilities as noncurment.

Deeferred income tax assets and |iabilities are classified as noncusrent assets and Habilities,
respectively

Cagh
Cash in the consolidated statements of financial position comprise cash on hand and cash in banks.



A financial instrumeasl is any contract that gives rise to & financial asset of one entity and a financial
linhility of equity Instument of another entity,

Fingncial assefs

Inftlal recognition and measaremnt

Finmneinl sssets are classified, at initial recognition, as fimancil assets at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOUL), or thir value through profit or loss (FVPL).

The classification of finmmcial assets at initial recognition depends on the fimancial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. The Group initially
measures o financial asset at s fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL,
transaction cosis

I order for = finmetal nsser o be elussified and measured at smuortized cost or FYOCI, it needs o
give rise o cash fows that nre “solely payments of principal and imterest (SPP1)” on the principal
amount outstanding.  This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed of an [nstriiment
Tevel.

The Groop's business model for managing linancisl ussels refers to how il mankges its financiil
asuets in order to gencrate cish flows. The business model determines whether cagh flows will result
from collecting contruetual cash flows, selling the financinl assets, or both,

Purchases or sales of financial assels (hat require delivery of assets within a time frme established by
regulation or convention in the markeiplisce (regular way trades) are recogniceed on the (rade date,
1.e, the date that the Group commits to purchisse or sell the usset

Subsequent Measureneni
Far purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classifisd in four categoncs:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at FVOCT with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instrumeis)
Financial ussets designated it FYOUT with no reeycling of cutnulative gaing and losses upon
derécognition (eqguity inktruments)

o Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at anortized cost (debi instrumenis)
The Group measures financial assets at amortzed cost if both of the following conditions are met:

s fthe fioancial siset is held within a business model with the objective 1o hold financial assets o
order to collect contractual cash flows: and

» the canmctunl tenms of the finurcinl asset give rise on specified dates w cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financinl sssets ot amortized cost are subsequently messured using the effective interest (“EIR™)
method and ure cubject o impairment. Guinn anld losses dre recognired in the contolidnted
stilements of comprehengive incame when the ssset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's finsncial amscts st amortized cost inclinde cash in banka, subsengption receivable, duc

from related parties, surety and performance bond and cash bond deposit included under other current
ussets, as of Decernber 31, 2022 und June 30, 2022 (se= Notes 4, 5,9, 11 and 16).

LT LRI
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The Group has no financial assets st FVOCT and FVPL

Financial lighilisey
Loans and borrowings

Financial lishilitics are classified in this category if these are not held for trading or not designated as
it FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising frow operations or
borrawings.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at farr value of the consideration recerved, less directly
antributable transacrion costs. After initinl recognition, such loans and borrowings are subscquently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  Amortized cost & caleulated by
taking into sccount xny related issue costs, discount or premium.  Gauins and logses are recognized in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the linbilities nre derecognized, as well ns
through the smortizstion process.

Thie Group’s loats and borrowings include secounts payable and nocrued expenses (excluding
payable to emploviees ind government sgencies), due to o relnted party and lease lisbilities as ol
Detember 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 (52« Noteg 10, 11, 15 and 16)L

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the Group has no financial liabilitics st FVPL,

A fingncial asset (or, where applicable, u part of o financial asset or part of a group of linancial ussels)
15 derecognized when;

» the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

»  the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has sssumed obligation (o pay
therm in full withoul materind delay to a third party under a “pass-through™ arangement, snd cither
(a) the Group has transfesred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (h) the Gronp
his neither transferred nor retnined the risks and rewands of the asset but has transferred the.
cantrol of (the nsget.

Where the Group has trunsferred its night to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into o
“puss-throtgh” wrungement, und has neither transferred tor retsined substantially wll the risks und
rewards of the issel nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group's continuing imvolvement i the assel.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transfemred aesel is messured at
the lower of oniginal carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required 1o repay.

Financial liability

A financinl Habitity is derecognized when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled
or hus expined. Where an existing financial Tiabilisy is replaced by another from the same lender on
substannally different terms, or the terms of an existing hiability are substantially modified, such
exchange or modification is trested as a derecognition of the original lability amd the recognition of a
niw linbility, and the difference in the respeotive carrymg smounts is recognized in the consolidated
staicments of compreliensive income.



Th-: Gruup nxugnmu an sllnmm-c for expected ceedit losses ("ECLs™) for all financial assets exeept
debt instruments held at FVPL. ECLs me based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in secondince with the contract and all the cash Alowsy that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the origmal EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
af collsterl held or other eredit enhancements that are integml 1o the contractual lerms

ECLs are recognized in two sagss. For oredit exposurss for which there has not been n significant
increase in credit rsk since initel recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possilble within the next 12 months (a | Z2month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a sigmficant increase in credit nsk smce mitial recognition, a loss
allowunee is required for credin losses expected over the remaining life of the expasure, imespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Offsciting Financial Instruments
Financial aesets and Gooancial lobilies are offee and the net mmount reported inthe consolidated

stulements of financial position, if and only if, there i5 # currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the

ized amounts nnd there 14 an tention o settle on o net basis, or 1o Fealive the ssset and settle
the Hability simultimeoudly. The Group nssesses thit it hos o curvently enforcenhle right of affset if
the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforéeable in the normal course of
busingss, event of default, and event of insolveney or bankrupiey of the Group und all of the
counterparties,

Fair Valye Megsnirement

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants ut the megsurement dute. The far value
measurement is based on the presamption that the tunssction to se¢ll the asset or tansfer the liability
tikes plage sither:

in the prancipal market for the wsset or linbidity, or
» in the nbsence of a principal market, in the most advantageons market for the usset or linbility.

The principal or the most advanizgeous murket must be gecessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the ussumptions that market pirticipants
wolild use when pricing the uddet or liabllity, sssuming that markel purticipants act in their econamic
bokt interest.

A fair value measurement of 3 nonfinancial asset takes info secount 3 market participant’s ability to
genemte economic benefits by using the assct in its highest and best use or by sclling it to another
miwrket participant that would use the asset in s highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data arc available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant obsorvable inpits
and minimizing the use of unobservable imputs.

All msscts and lisbilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the comolidated finuncial
stniements are caregonzed within the tair value hierarchy. described as tollows, based on the lowest
leved input that is significant 1 the foir value measurement as & whole:

s  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in gctive markets foe identical nssets or hublities;
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s Level 2 - Valustion techmques for whicl the lowest level input that i significant to the fair vahie
measursment is directly or indirectly observable; and

o Level 2 - Valustion techniques lor which the lowest level input thut is significant to the fiir value
messurement is unobservable.

For asscts and liabilities that are recognized in the consoliduted financial statements on a recurring
basas, the Group determmes whether transfers have ocenrmed between Levels m the hierarchy by
re-assessmg categorization (based on the lowest level imput that is significant to the fair valug
measunement 08 & whole) ul the end of ench reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group hes detenmined closses of assets and labilities on
the basis of the nature, charncteristics and risks of the asset or lubilivy aod twe level of thie fhir valoe
hierarchy as explaned above.

Advances to Contraciors

Advances to contractors pertmin to advance payments made for purchases of construction mipterials,
other services, and rentul of equipment.  Advances (o contractors is measured on initial recognition at
vost, and is reclissified to the proper ssset or expense account and deducted from the contractor’s
billings a specified on the provision of the contract.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plent and equipment is stated af cost less secumulatod depreciation, amortization and
impairment in value, if any, The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consist of the purchase
price including import duties, borrowing costs (during construction perod) and other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets o its working condition gnd location for its intended use. Cost also
mcludes the cost of replactng part of the property, plant and equipment, and the borrowing costs for
long-icrm construction projects if the recognition caterim are met. When significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as
individual assets with apeeific useful fives, depreciation and amortization, Likewise, when s major
mspection is purformed, its cost s recogniied in the cumying amount of the property, plant and
sguipment a5 a replacemnent if the recognition critena are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs wre recognized in profit or loss sé incarred. The present value of the expecled cost for the
decommissioning of un asset after its use w0 included in the cost of the meepective assit o7 the
recognition criteria for o provision are met

Depreciastion anid amortization of an iterm of property, plant and eguipment begin when it becomes
uvilluble for use, Le_ when iLis in the location uhd condition necessary for it o be capable of
operating in the munner intended by munagement. Deprociation und amortization cesde ut the carlier
of the date that the item i3 classified as held for sule (or included in a dispasal group that is classified
a5 beld for sale) in sccordance with PFRS 5, Nancurrent Assete Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, and the date the asset is derccognized.  Lestehold improvenients are amortized over the
lease term or the economic life of the related ussel. whichever is shorter.

Each past of an item of property, plint and equipment with a cost thal is significant in relution to the
ol coat of the item & depresiatesd separately.

Anitem aof propecty, plant and equipment, and any significant part imitially recognied is
derceognized wpon disposal or when no fisture economie benefits are expected from its use or
disposal  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference berween
the net disposal proceeds and the currying amount of the assct) i incloded in profit or Joss in the year
the asset 1s derecogmazed.
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The useful lives of property, plant und equipinent are reviewed al each finuncial year-end and
adjusted, prospectively, if npproprinte.

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated #t cost, nel of
accumulated impairment losses, ifany, This includes costs of constniction and other direct costs,
Casts also tuclude interest an lease Hability e umortization of right-of-use ("ROLU™) assets incurred
dunng the construction penod. Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time that the
asscts are put info operational use.

It is the Group's policy to olassify ROU assots as pant of propenty, plant and equipmont, The Group
recognizes ROU assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underdying asset is
available for use), ROU assets are measured at cust, Jess any accunmlited deprecintion and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The inital cost of ROU
assets includes the amount of lease linhilitics recognized, initind direct costs incurred, lease payments
made ut or before the commencement dote less any lease incentives recerved and estimate of cosis o
be incarred by the lessee indismantling und removing the undeslying assel, restoring the site on
which it is locuted or restoring the underlying asset to the condition reguired by the lerms and
conditions of the lease, uniess those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtuin ownership of the leased asset at the enid of the lease
termy, the recognized ROU assets are deprecisted on a straight-line basis over the sharter of their
estimated usefil life and the lesse térm. ROU ssgets dre subject to impairhient (rells (o Tnpairment
of Nonfinancinl Asscts policy).

Lavesment Propertics

Investment properties include parcel of lands held by the Group for capital appreciition and are
mcasured initially af cost less any impairment in valie. Euhm{ucnl to initinl recognition, investment
propertics are stated at {air value, which reflects marked conditions at the reporting date. Gains o
losses urising from changes in the fair villues of investment properties are included in profit or lnss in
the period in which they arise, including the coresponding mx effect.

Invesiment propertics ire derecognized whien either they have been disposed ol or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future sconomic benefil s expected
from its disposul. Any gaink or losses on the retirement or disposal of an itvestment property are
recognized in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive meome in the year of retirement or

disposal.

Transfers are made to invesiment property when, and oaly when, there is n change in use, evidenced
by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to spother party. Transfers
wre made from investunent property when there is a chanjie in use, cvidenced by commencement of

owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sell.

Fora trmsfer from investment property to owner-ocqupied property or myventories, the cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. If the properny
vccupiod by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
sccounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to
the date of chunge in use.

Nl Tax
Input VAT represents the VAT due or paid on purchases of goods and services that the Group can
claim against any future Lability to the BIR for output VAT from sale of goods and services. Input
VAT is stated of cost less accamulated impainment losses, if any.

ARG
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Deposits for land acquisition pertain to noa-refundable deposits and payments made in relation to the
acquisition of parcels of land that are intended for future expansion, and are stated at the amount paid
less any impairment in value. Upon successfitl transfer of title, the deposits for land acquisition will
be reclassified to land as pary of cither investment property or property, plant and equipment.

LRI IT ARREARE ARE MO RRITRATIGRE ] Pl i

The Group asscsses at each reportmg date whether there is an indication that these nonfinancial nssets
may be impaired. 1T any such indication exists, or when annunl inpairment testing for un waset is
required, the Group estimates these nonfinancial sssots’ recoverable mount. An wiset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-genertng unit*s ("CGU™) fuir value less costs to sell und
is value in usc and is determined for an individual asset. unless the aswet does not generate cash
mflows that are lrgely independent of those from other assets or groups of asscts. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the aseet is considered impaired
and is written down o its recoverabile amount. In asscssing value in use, the estimated future cnsh
flows are discotnted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
ussessments of the time value of money and the rigks specific to the assel, An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the year In which it arises. In the case of iput VAT, an allowance is
provided for aiy portion of the mpul VAT thil ennnol be cleimed aguinst output VAT or recovered a4
tax credit ngainst future income tax Hiability.

An assessmenl bs made at ench reporting date to determing whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 1 such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimale of recoverable amount. Any previously recognized
impairment Joss s reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impoirment loss was recognized. 1f that is the case, the
cumying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That incressed amount camnot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreeiation and amortization,
had no imypairment loss been recognized for the et in prior years. Such revensal Is recognized in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive ncome.

Capual Sk
Capirmi stock is measured at par valoe and is claskified as equiry for all shares of stocks jssued

1ol =it capital (AP
When the shares of stock are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value
is credited o the APIC account.

Direct costs incurred related 1o equity issuance, such as underwriting, accounting and legal fees,
printing costs lnd taxes are chargeable 1o the APIC account. I APIC is not sulficient, the excess is
charged against the “Equity reserve” account.

Subscription Receivable

Subgeription receivable represents shares of stock subseribed und igsued by the Parent Company but
puyment fromn the sharcholders has not yet been received. Subscription receivable is presented as
current assete when it is expeeted to be collected within twelve monihs after the financial reporting
date. Otherwise, this is presented as reduchon from equity,
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Retained eamings (deficit) represent the cumulative bilance of petiodic net income or loss, prior
period adjustments, effvct of chunges in accounting policy and other capital adjustments. When the
retaingd cwnings secount hus o debit balance, it is called “deficit™. A deficit is not an asset but a
deduction from cquity.

Leascs

The determmation of whether an armmgement is (or contnins) s lease is based on the substance of the
wrrangement al the inception. The armangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the armangement
15 dependent on the use of a specific sssel or asscts and the arrangement conveys a right 1o use the

asset or assels, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrmngement.

The Ciroup assesses at contruct inception all arangements to detetmine whether it Is, or cotitains, 3
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asget for o period of
time in'exchange for consideration

Coampany is 2 Lessév

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-lerm leases und leases of low-value sssets, The Group recognizes lease liabilities to muke lease
payments and right-of-use assels representing the nght to use the underlying assets.

i) ROU axsety
Refer 1o ROU assets palicy.

) Lewse Nabilities

Al the commencernent date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed puyments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or o rate, and amounts expected (o be paid under residual value gumuniees.
The lease payments also include the exerose price of n purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penaltics for terminating a lease, If the lease term reflects the
Cirowp exercising the oplion 1o lermibnale.

The varinble lease payments thit do not depend on an index or o rate are recoghized 2s expense in the
period oo which the event or condition that triggers the payment ocours.

[n calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group (ises the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commiencement dite if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not :ﬂdufdtlu‘mmhh
After the commencement dule, the amount of lease linbilities Is increased (0 reflect the aceretion of
interest and reduced for the lease puyments made. In pddition, the carrying amotnit of lease Habilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, # change in the in-substance fixed
leuke payments or 4 change in the assessment to purchase (he underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group spplics the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of vehicle (ie.,
those leases that bave a lease rerm af 12 months or less from the commencement date and do oot
contain a purchase option). Lease paymenis oo short-tarm leases is recognized as expense on a
straight-ling basis over the lease werm.
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Duterest Income

Interest indome is recognized as interest seeries, using the EIR method, which is the e thet cxactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial mstrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial sssel.

Expenscs
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or

decrease of assets or incumrence of Habilities that result in degreases m equity, other than those
reluting to distributions Lo equity participants, and are recognived when these are incurred. Expenses
are generally recognized when the services are wsed, or the expenses arisc,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Ciroup has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a refisble estimale can be mude of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expecis some or il of a provision 1o be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recogmized as o separile ssset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expenses
reluting to any provision sre presented in profit or losk, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tux rate thit refleets the risks specifie w the lability. When discounting is
used, the incrense in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognized as an inlerest expense.

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income taX assets and liahilities are measured af the amount expected 1o be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authotities. The tax rates and tax Luws used 1o compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group opetates
and generates tixable income.

Current income tax relating 1o items recognized direetly in equity is recognized in eguity and not in
profit or loss: Management periodically cvaluates positions taken i the income tax returns with
respect o mitmations in which applicable income tax regulations are subject to inlerprettion and
cstablishes provimons where apprapriste.

Deferved Ticome Tax
Drelierred meome tax i provided using the balance sheet lability method on temparary diffenenoes
between the income tax bases of assets and lisbilities and their carrying amounts for fnanciu

reporting purpaoses at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax linbilities are recognived for all teable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets ure recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of untised tox credits and any unused tax lpsses. Deferred income tax gssels are recognized to the
extenl that if s probable that taxuble profis will be available agamst which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses cun be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred incotne tax assets Is reviewed & each reporting date and reduced (o
the extent that it is no longer probahle thit sufficient taxable pmfit will be available to allow all or
pirt ol the deferred Income tax asset 1 be utilived. Unrecognized deferrod income tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable thit
fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred income tax assel to be recovered.
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Deferred income tax 2sxets and liahilitics are measured ol the tax rates thal are expected (o apply the
year when the asset i realized or the Liability i sctiled. based on tax dutes (and tax Lews) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted it the reporting date,

Deferred income tax relating Lo items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Dieferred income tax ilems are recognized in correlation to the underlying trunsaction either in
other comprehensive incoma (“OCT™) or directly in equity,

Delerred incame tux assets and deferred income tax liahilithes are offict il a legally enforceable right
exists to set of T curront tax assets against current tax liabilitics and the deferred waxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation autharity.

Eamings (Loss) Per Share ("EPS™)

Basic EPS 15 computed by dividing net income for the year attnbomble to common shareholders of
the Group with the weighted avemge number of common shares ontstunding duning the year, after
giving retroactive effect to any stock dividends or stock splits, if any, declared during the year

Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner, with the net income for the vear attributable 1o
common shareholdens of the Group and the weighted average number of common shares oulstanding
during the year, adjusted for the effect of all dilwtive potentinl common shares. As of
Diecernber 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the Giroup does not have any dilistive potentul common
shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the same as bakic EPS.

b =
The Group has no operating segments as it hus not yot commenced its commercial operutions ax of
December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022

Contingent liabilitics ure not recagnized in llte consalidated finuncial stataments. These are disclosed
in the notes unless the possibility of an outflow of reseurces embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes when an inflow of cconomic benefits is probable.

Evmu aRer th: fi nm:ml mmtng ﬂ.ﬂ: that provide additionnl information sbout the Ermp .
position at the batance sheet date (adjusting evenis) are reflecied in the consolidated financial
stements.  Events after the financial reporting date thit are not adjusting evenis ure disclosed in the
notes to consolidated financial statements when material.

E in Acc lic

Pronouncements rssued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Giroup
does not expect that the futre ndoption of the snd pronouncements to have a significant impact dn
the consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronoumcements
when they become effective.

Eﬂiﬂ.‘:lrbeﬁmm on or after Jenuary 1, 2023
Amendments to PAS | and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Palicies
» Amendments to PAS 8, Dofimition of Accountmg Eitimates
o Amendments to PAS 12, Diferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities ariving from a Single
Transaetion
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Effective beginning on or gfter Januwary 1, 2024
s Amendments to PAS |, Claxsifficarion of Liahilittes ax Current or Not-cuirreni
=  Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Liahiliny in a Sale and Leaseback

Effective heginning on or after Junwary 1, 2025
e  PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Deferred effectivity
s  Amendments (o FFRS 10, Comsoliduted Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and ity Asseciate or Jolm Venture

. Significant Accounting Exiimate and Assumption

The consolidated finxnciul statements prepurcd in sccordance with PFRSS require munagement to
rake judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the consolidated finnncinl statements
und relsied noles. The judgmenis and estimales used in the congalidated Mnaneial statements are
bosed upon management’s evaluation of relevant fuety and circumstances as of the dute of the
cansolidated financial statements. Actunl results could differ from such estimates,

Judgmenty snd estimates are continually évalunted and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events (st are believed o be resgonable under the
circumstances, The iems are these matters which the Group assess o have significant risks arising
from estimation uncertainties:

Judgment

In the process of applying the Group's avcaunting policies, manugement hus mude the following
Judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most signifivant effiect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial satements. This judgment is based upon
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements,

Determination of Controd Over an investee Company

Control is presumed 1o exist when an investor is exposed, or hos rights, to variable retums from its
involvement with the investee und has the ahility to affect those returns through its power over the
mvestee. The Groop his established than i bas the nbility to conteol ns subsidizey by vinue of 100%
voting interest in the investee compiny.

Assessing Impairment of Deposits for Land Acquisition

The Giroup asscsses at cach financial reporting date whether there It indication that the deposits for
land sequisition may be impaired. Management's assessment of impairment considers information
from vidrious sources, including those from the kind acquisition process and the related requirements,
the current stalus of lend acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that mey affect the timing
of completion of the tansaction.

As of December 31, 2022 und June 30, 2022, munagement has assessed that there were no indicators
thast the deposity for land acquisition may be impaired. The currying value of depoits for land
auquisition amounied 10 22,026.9 million and #6215 million & of December 31, 2022 jund

June 30, 2022, respectively (seeNotesBand 1),
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Estimiey _

Espimating Usefied Lives of ROU Assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of ROU assiets based ot the period over which esch ssset is
expected to be available for use and on the collective assessmimt o industry practives, internal
evaluution end expenence with similar armngements. The estimated useful [ife is revisited at the end
of sach financial reporting peniod and updated if expeaations differ muaterinlly from previous
catimates.,

The carrying amount of ROU assets amounted 1o ®281.5 million and #2869 millian as of
December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively (see Note 15),

Extimating Impuirment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses under PERS 9 across all eategories of financial sssets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the smount and timing of foture cash flows, inchnding
collectability, collmternl values and other credit enhancements, when determining impairment losses.
Iucreises or decreases to the allowance balunce are recorded os general and sdministrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,

Under PFRS 9, Finunelal Inssruments, nddityonal judpments are also msde i dssessing o sigificant
increose in credit risk in the case of financial assets measured using the general approach. These
estimates are driven by & number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowinges.

The Group's impairment caleulations are outputs of statistical models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choiee of variable inputs und their interdependencies. Elements of the
impairment models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

e The Group's eoteria for defining delimlt and for assessmg iT lhere has been a significant increase
in credit risk;

»  The segmentation of financial und contruct assets when bopairment is assessed on & collective
banis;

o The chivice of inputs and the various fortoules used in the impatrment calcalution;

s Determination of relationships between macrocconomic seenarios and, coonomic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the offect on PDs, EADs and LGDs; and,

= Sclection of forward-looking macrocconomic seenarios and their probability weightings, w
flerive the sconnmic inpuits intn the impadrment models

It has been the Group's policy o regularly review its models in the context of actunl loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

Mueaswroment of expected evedil losses
ECLs are detived from unbiassed and probability weighted estimates of expected loss, and are
meastred as follows:

o Filnunctal agsets tha! are not credit-impatred ot the reporting dute: s8 the present vilue of il
cnsh shortfalls over the expected life of the finuncial asset discounted by the effective interest
mate. The cach shortfall is the dilference between the cash flows due to the Group in a¢cordance
with the cuntmet and the cash Mows thul the Group expects (o roceive.
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s Financial assets that are credit-tmpaired at the reporting dale: a5 the ditference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fows discounted by the
efective intereat rute.

The Group leverages existing risk management indicators (e.g.. internal eredit risk classification and
restruciuring tnggors), credit nsk rating changes mnd reasonable and supportsble information which
allows the Group to identify whether the credit risk of finuncinl assets has significamtly increased.

No provision tor ECL was recognized by the Group for the penod from July 1, 2022 10

December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The aggregate cirmying values
of cush in banks, subscription receivable, due from related parties, performance bond and cash bond
amounted to P1,525.2 million and P1,4435.3 million as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022,
respectively (Notes 4, 5, 11, 12, and 16),

Estimatting Impairment of Noxfinancial Assels
The Group assesses mg:minnm ol nonfinuncial assets whenever events or changes in circumstuices
indicate that the carrying amount of un asset may not be recoverable,

The fuctors thal the Group considers importunt which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

¢ Significent tnderperformance relutive to expected historicol ar projeeted future operating results;
o Significant changes in the manner of use of the scquined assets or the strategy for overall business;
und

» Significant nigative industry or cconomic trends including impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

An impairment logs is recognized whenever the carryving amoum of mn ssaet eXceeds its recoverable
amount. The estimated recoversble amount is the bigher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
vitlue in use. The (nir value less costy to sell 1= the amount obtainable from (he sale of ussets in un
arm’s length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated fature cash flows
expected 1o arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life,
For impainen! loss on specific assets, the recovernble amount represents the fair value less conts to
sell,

The carrying amotnts of assets that are subject 1o impaiment testing when impairment indicators are
present (such s obsolescence, physical damage, significant changes to the manner in which the asseh
1 used, worse than expected ecomomic performance, or other external indicators) are as follows:

December 31, June 30,

022 2022

Deposiis for land acguisinon (Note 8) P1026,892396  P62]1 490033
Property, plant and equipment (Noteg | and 7) 1,389,743,501 921 385618
Investment properties (Note 6) 312,626,010 -
Right-of-tse 2ssets (Note 15) 281,490,123 286,910,493
Other noncurrent ascets (Nole 9) 654,395,146 114218372
Balances ot end of year P4,665,147,176 PLO440|4.416

There were no indicators of impairment of nonfinancial assets for the period from July 1, 2022 10
December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
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Estimuating the Realizabilify of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probahle that sufficieat luture taxable income will be weailable in the future sgainst which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant managerment estimate is required 1o
determine the amount of deferred income tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing und level of future taxable income together with future wx planning strategies. The canying
value of recognized defemed meome Lax assots amounted to P30.2 million and #31.0 million as of
Pecember 31, 2022 and Junc 30, 2022, respectively (see Note 14), Th:Gfuq: did not recognize
deferred income tax assets on the camyforward benefits of unused net operating loss curryover
("NOLCO™) amounting to P254.4 million and #190.6 million as of December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022, respectively, 25 management helicves that there is no sufficient future faxable income
to allow all or part of the deductible temporary difference to be utilized before e expirtion

isee Note 14).
4. Cuash
December 31, June 30,
2022 2022
Cush in banks B37.131,084 FERG 658 302
Clish on hand 100,000 100,000

17,232,084  PRHEA.TSE302

Cash in banks carn imtervst ot the respective bank deposit mtes. Total interest eamed on cash in.
bunks, net of final tax, pmounted 1o B2.4 million, #0.5 million and #6,090 for the perioad from
July 1, 2022 1o December 31, 2022 and for the yoars ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Cash in banks include the balance of escrow account where the net proceeds of tie [PO und SRO of
the Parent Company are deposited. As provided in the escrow agreement, the escrow agent shall
telease (o the Parent Company the offer proceeds within five banking duys from the receipt of an
ingtruction lettor from the Parent Company direcling such release und certifying thar the smount
released shall be used solely in accordance with the purpose stuted in the use of proceeds of 1PO
intlor SRO.

In the event of uny chinge in the use of proceads, the Parent Company shall provide the escrow agent
with a copy of the cetification by the Parent Cumpany's corpomte secretary of the board resolution
approving such new ose of proceeds and a cenification by the Parent Company s corpomte secretary
that the new use ol procesds has been disclosed to the PSE in aceordance with applicable PSE rules.

4. Other Current Assets

December 31, June 30,

n1 2020

Surety and performance bond (Note 20) P15,000,000 F15,000,000
Prepaid promiums (Notes 13 and 20) 1,969,843 1,350,000
Cash bond deposit (Note 13) 552,038 352,038
Others 116,962 3,887,350

P18,638.843 P20, 789,388

[T LT
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As part of the bid requirements for the Contract Capacity of 280MWidc under the Gireen Energy
Auction Program ("GEAP”) of DOE, the Parent Company acquired bid seeunity bond und
petformance bond, 1n 2022, the Parent Company paid premiums exclusive of VAT and ather charges
of P1.35 million for the bid security bond which wis valid until September 15, 2022, and P7.5 million
tor the performance bond which shall be valid until August 2, 2023 (5ee Note 20),

Premiums recogmized (or the period from July |, 2022 w0 December 31, 2022 and for the years ended
June 30, 2072 gndd 2021 wmounted to #2.] million and nil, respectively, presented in “Others™ as pan
ol “Expenses” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 1)

Others inelude advinees 1o employees of SPPPHI vsed for the operations that wre subject for
liquidition within 30 duys.

6. Investment Propertics

As of December 31, 2022, invesunent propesties peinarily include parcels of land located in
MNueva Ecijis with a total arca ol 11646 hectares, These properties were obtained by TN from
vitrious landowners through various Deeds of Absolute Sale (“DOAs™) Agreements executod in 2022,

Thie tostal cost of the investinent properties, incliding land-relnted coste amounted Lo #3126 million
A of December 31, 2022,

The Group did not recognize any rental imcome and direct operming expenses unsing from the
investment properties for the period from July 1, 2022 w December 31, 20222 As of
December 31, 2022 the cartying amount of the investment properties approximate their fair values

7. Preperty, Plant and Equipment

December 3, 2022
Transporiation Canstruction

Equipment in progress Yotal
Cost:
Balunce at beginning of the perlod LS P921 388 618 F321.345,615
Aslditions (Notes 8 and 15) 207,600 468,164,121 468,371,723
Balances atl eud of the period 207,600 1,349,549, 741 1,380,757 341
Ascumulated depreciation, amartization

and Impairment losses:
Depreciaton (Nobe 13) 13_840 - 13,840
Biilances at end of the period 13,840 - 13,540
Nel book value 193, 7ol F1 89 549741 IIEBITHES_BI
Jume 30, 3022
Constrgetion
in_progress

Conl
Balance st begmping of the pepod P-
Additions {Netes 9 and | 5) 221385618
allnl:t atend nl’miod - Ppaz| aks 6l

The construction in progress pertains (o costs capitalized for the Project of the Parent Company
{see Note 1),
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£ Deposlts for Land Acquisition
Memuprandum of Agreements {“MOA™)

al  Provincia lmvestments Corporation (“PIC")
Un February 20, 2021, the Paremt Company entered into a MOA with an affiliate, PIC, which
MOA was lster amended on March 3. 2021, 1o secure Innd for future expansion in excess of the
capacity comemplated for the Project.  The MOA covers certain parcels of land with a total area of
6B .62 hectares;

In October 2022, PIC filed with the National Trrigation Authority {“NIA™) for the issuance of
certificate of non-irrigation coverage for approximately 18.0 hectares, As of April 17, 2023, PIC is
still awaiting the release of the NLA certification and is in the process of preparing the application
for the next balch of lands that will be filed witk NIA in 2023

b) Lupang Hinirang Holdings Corpongtion (“LHHC")
Om April 19, 2021, the Parent Company enfered inio a MOA with an allillate, LINC, (o secure
land for future expansion in excess of the capacity contemplated for the Project. The MOA covers
certain parcels of land with a total arca of 56,81 hecures,

LHHC is finalizing the collation of all the necessary documentary requirements to be submined to
the DOE and Local Gavemmen| Unit for the issuance of certification as priority project, and to the
NIA for the ssuance of certificate of non-imrigation covernge. LHHC aims to submit these

documentary requirements to the appropriate government agencies n 2023,

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2032, deposits for land acquisition related 1o these MOAs
wmounted to B537.0 million which represent full payment (see Note 1 1)L

Contracts o Sell with Various Landowners

In 2022, the Group entered into Contmacts to Sell ("CTS”™) with various landowners for the deguisition
of parcels of land intended for future expunsion. These CTS with a total contract price of

P2000.8 milhon, including land-related costs, covers certain parcels of land with i total anea ol
1,601.93 hectures.

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, defosits for Land dequisition to vanous landowners,
including land-relited costs amopnted to ¥1,489.9 million and B84.5 million, respoctively
(see Note [1). The remaining balance will be seitled when the conditions under the CTS are satisfied

9. Other Noncurrent Assels

December 31, Jume 30,

2022 02

Depaosits (Notes 1] and 16) #500,000,000 P-

Input VAT 144,640,016 26601001
Deferred inpur VAT 480,000 1,200,000
Advances to coniracions - B,295.3%2
Cithers (Note 15) 0,403,298 8,250,146
654,523.314 L4 346,530
Less allowinde for impairment of inpil VAT (128, 168) (128 _LGKR)

P6S4,395,146  PII421£371
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Dieposits periajn to the refundable deposit amounting o P300.0 million that TNT has provided (o
SPPPHI o facilitate and expedite the performance of services by SPPPHI under the Deposits and
Services Agreement entered into by both partics (see Note 1),

Advances to confractors pertum o advance payments for the purchase ol goods and services in
comnection with the comstruction of the Project (see Note 1)

0.

Accounis Pavable and Accrued Expenses
December 31, June 30,
2022 2022
Accounts payable (Note 11) 15039314 PO T66,610
Withholding tux payable 47,298,615 691,094
Acaued expenses 1 836359 2,538,034
Other payables 43,784 4,522

R6S2I8072 13,000,260

Accounts puynble are non-interest bewring and are normally setiled within ane yes. Withholding tax
puyable pertaing to withbalding taxes un professional fees. Acerued expenses includes secrual of
professional fees

.

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related If, among others, one party has the ability. directly or indirecily, o
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making finsocial and
operating decisions, the parties are subject to common control, or the party is an associnte or a joint
verdiire.

Affilmtes are related entitics of the Group by virtue of common ownership and representation o
management where significant imfluence i3 appurent.

Except as otherwise mdicated, the austanding accounts with reluted parties shill be setled in cash.
The transsctions are made ot erins and prices seveed upon by the partieg.

i Following tire the Group™s related party transietions for the period from July 1, 2022 10
Deeember 31, 2022 and for the yeoars ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and thé related outstanding
balances as of December 31, 2022 jind June 30, 2022:
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Dead af Asvignment with SPPPHT

On January 11, 2021, s Deed ol Assignmen| was entered into by the Parent Company, 48 the
assignee, and SPPPHI, as the assignor, whereby, SPPPHI assigned 1o the Parent Compay all of
its rights and obligations under the Scpiember 6, 2016 lease agreoment covering a total land asca
of 169.9 hectares, among others, and the Parent Company sccepted snd assumed all of the said
righis und obligations thus assigned, pursuant to the sakd Deed of Assignment (see Note 15),

Munagement Services Agroement (' MSA ") with SPPPHT!
On April 30, 2021, the Parent Company entered into 3 MSA with SPPPHI 1o provide executive
and leadenship support and execute its strategic direction while munaging its busincss opentions
for a penod from May |, 2021 to Apnid 30, 2023, renewable upon mutual agreement of both
parties, for o monthly fee of #2.0 million, subject 10 5% annual escalation,
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The MSA covers all necessiry administrutive and advisory services on management, investment
and techmical matiers involving the Pareat Comspany's operations, including but not limited to
human resources, legal, finunce, and information teshoology,

Prior to May 2021, the administrative and finance functions of the Parent Company were being
handdled by SPPPHI at no cost to the Parent Company. Starting May 202§, the key ndministrative
and Anance functions are performed by SPPPHI through the MSA, Management foe recognized
for the period from July 1, 2022 10 December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021 amerenied to Bi 28 million, #24.0 million and #4.0 million, respectively, presented as
“Munagement foe” under “Expenses”™ in the consolidated statements of comprebenyive income
{see Note 13).

Consirwction Support Sorvices Agreament {“CSSA”) with SPPPHI

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into 4 CSSA with SPPPHI wherein SPPPHI
shall provide support services, including engineening, procurement and construction (“EPC'),
logistics, warehousing and other cantractor-related services during the construction of the Project.

Construction support services recognized for the period from July 1, 2022 t9 December 31, 2022
and for the year ended June 30, 2022, amounted (b POR.0 million, and nil, respectively, which
were ciapitulized as part of construction in progress (see Note 7),

Site Acquisition Services Agreement (“SASA ") between TN and SPPPHI

On December 26, 2022, TNI entered into a SASA with SPPPHI which will cover site acquisition
services covering o lotal srea of 99277 hectares for & consideration of B150.0 million, exclusive of
VAT, from October |, 2022 to December 11, 2022,

As of December 31, 2022, “INI has fully patd for the site acquisition services rendered by
SPPPHI and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition™ in the consolidated
statement of finuncial position (see Note 8}

Depasit and Services Agreement between TNI and SPPPHI

On December 26, 2022, TNT entered into an agreement with SPPPHI, wherein SPPPHI shall
provide assistance, representation, fucilitation of documentation and submission of necessary
documents and Laison with relevant government units, agencies and offices including
government owned and controlled corporstions w secure land use conversion orders from the
Depariment of Agranian Reform ("DAR") for the 992.77 hectares noguired by TNT und the
delivery wo TNI of the relevant conversion orders from the dute of the ugreement until

December 31, 2024, To facilitsie and expedite the performance of the services by SPFPHI, TN
hus provided SPPPHI a refunduble deposit amounting to #500.0 nullion which is presented us
“Deposits™ as pant of “Other noncurrent assets™ in the consolidated statements of finascial
position {see Note 9),

LHHC
MOA with LHHC

Un April 19, 2021, the Parent Compuiy entered into i MOA with LHHC to secure land covering
# total area of 56,81 hectares for a total amount of #2700 million (see Note 8),
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PiC

MOA withy PIC

On February 20, 021, the Parent Company entered into n MOA with PIC, which was luter
amended on March 3, 2021, w gecure land covering a total aren of 68,62 heetares for o total
amount of P267.0 million (see Note 8)

SPCRPI

Prafect Development Services Agreament {"PDSA ") and Amendment Agreoment with SPCRPI
On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into 3 PDSA with SPPPHI wherein SPPPHI
shall provide project development services, including site identification, permitting and land
noguisition, covering atodal area of 925.61 hectares; for g consideration of #150,0 million,
exclusive of VAT.

On October 5, 2022, SPPPHI assigned all of s rights and obligations under the PDSA to
SPCRIML

As of December 31, 2022, the Parent Company has fully pud the services rendered by SPCRPI
und has presented this as pant of “Deposits for land sequisition™ in the consolidared statements of
Minanciul position (see Note T).

OS54 with SFCRP!

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a separite C8SA with SPCRPI wherein
SPCRPI ghall provide suppon services, including EPC, logistics, warehousing und other
contractor-related services during the construction of the Project tor a congidération of

P100.0 million, exclusive of VAT.

On Detober 5, 2022, the parties ngreed to amend the consideration of the CSSA from
P100.0 million to P219.5 million, exclusive of VAT,

As ol December 31, 2022, #219.5 million was capitalized as part of construction in progress
(see Note 7).

. Solar Maintenunce Services Corporntion (“SMSC™)

Suppart Services Agreement with SMSC

O Seplember 29, 1022, the Parent Company entered into a Support Services Agreement with
SMSC, an affiliate of the Parent Company, whercin SMSC shall provide support servives during
the construction and development of the Project. Manpower services recognized for the period
from July 1, 2022 1o December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
mu:t:dtnFH.&mllimandrﬂLw!unhwmpmﬁm gs part of construction in progress
{5ce Note 7).

LD
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12, Equity

i

The details of the Parent Company's capital stock as of Decerribet 31, 2022 und June 30, 2022 nre a5
follows:

December 31, 2022 June 30, 2022
Number of Number of
Shures Amount Shares Amunt
Common ghares - 0.1 par value
per share
Authorizad [@Iﬂ-& !IME I mmu;muanm F1.000.000.000
lesned and outsinniding:
Halances ot heginning of
period B. 124,350,008 PRIZAZS00]1 5424350000  $342435 000
Tssuance of shurés during the
period 1,875,649,995 187,564,999 2 700,000,005 270,000,001
Ral!am ot end W m,mmlm Flﬂ!ﬂﬂwlﬂ Ili'l H,]Eﬂil'H'Ii PRI2 435001

In July 2021, the Purent Company issued five (5) shares 10 the new diroctom.

T duly 2621 and November 2021, the Parent Company entered into a Memorundum of Agreement
with SPPPHIL whereby SPPPHI provided P1A0 million and P2.0 million, respectively, representing
additional payment for shares previonsly issued. This was recognized ns additional paid-in capital
under equily.

Iro

On December 17, 2021, the Parent Company completed its IPO and was listed in the PSE under the
stock symbaol "SPNEC™. The Purent Company issned 2,700,000,000 new commort shares for a total
considemtion of P2,700.0 million, or at ®1.00 per share. This resulied to an additional paid-m capital
of #2329 3 million, net of transaction costs nrounting o #100.7 million,

Inerease in Authorined Capital Stock

On January 10, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved smendments in the

Parent Company's Articles of Incorpomtion to increase the authorized capital stock from P1.0 billion
divided into 10,0 billion commaop sharss at PO.1 per share, to B5,0 billion divided into 50.0 biflion
comanon shares at #0. | per share. This was subsequently upproved by the stockholders of the Paremt
Company on March 7, 2022, The proposal o increase the Parent Company's asuthorized capital stock
wold enable the Parent Company to acquire other solar projects and fand the expansion of its
portfolio.

As of April 17, 2023, the Parent Company is in the process of filing the required documents with the
SEC.

3RO

On Februiiry 14, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the conduct of a SRO where
eligible stockholders would have the opportunicy to subscribe to shares, subject to terms to be
delentiined by munugement and relevanl regulalory requirements and approvils
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(n March 28, 2022, pursuant to the approvil ot its BOD, the Paremt Company confirmed its pian 1o
file the SRO bused on its chrrent unigsued authorized capitul stock of 1.875,649,995 shares, at an
entitlernent ratio of | share [or every 128 dhares hold {froin {ts carrent public float of 2,399 614,000
shnres), al un offer price mnge that has been fixed at #1,60 (0 P1.76 per share, with the middle of this
range being B1.68 per share,

D April B, 2022, the Parent Company filed with the SEC an application for Confirmation of Exempt
Transaction covering the common shares to be issued relative to the SRO, pursuant o Section 10.1(¢)
(in respect of tie Rights Offer) wnd 1001} {in respect of the QB Take-Up) of the Securities
Regulntion Code ("SRC™) under which the exemption is based. The SEC issued the Confirmation of
Exempt Transaction on July 19, 2022,

Un August 18, 2022, the Parent Company notified the PSE of the final offer price of #1.50 per share,
and offered the option to pay m installments, with a down payment of 25% and the talance of 75%
within three months of the offer period.

On Septernber 15, 2022, the Parcnt Company completed its SRO and issued 1,875,649,995 new
common shares for a total consideration of P2,813.5 million or at #1.50 pur value, This resulted o an
additicnal puid-in capitel of 1,591 4 million, net of tanssction costs of #34.5 million

On December 1, 2022, the Parent Company extended the payment pefiod for partially paid Right
Sharés for o period of three months, from December S5, 2022 to March 5, 2023,

Az ol December 11, 2022, subscriplion receivable resulting (rom these thal subscribed on installmeni
payment umonnted to PES1 | million. As of Aprl 17, 2023, the Company has already received mt
least 99.84% of the payments and is currently coordinating with the relevant partics for the
completion of the requirenicats of its SRO.

Shirre Swap

On Febrary 24, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company spproved the scquisition of 100% of the
outstanding shares of SPPPHT and affilistes in various entites (“Solar Philippines Assets™) including
but not fimited to;

Solar Mulippines Calatagan Corporstion

Solwr Phlippines Tarlae Corporation

Solar Philippines Batangas Hageload Corporation
Solar Philippines Batsngas Corporation

Solnr Philippines Central Luzan Corporstion
Solar Philippines Central Visayas Corporation
Solar Philippines Eastern Corporaton

Solur Philippinis Retail Electricity, Inc.

Solar Philippines Rooftop Corporation

Solar Phalippines South Luzon Corporation
Solar Plnbippines Southern Mindanao Comoration
Solar Phalippines Southern Tagalog Corporstion
Solar Plilippines Tarloe Baseload Corpuration
Solar Philippines Vizsayos Corporation

Solar Philippines Western Corporation

Lagunn Solar Rooftep Corporation

Solar Philippines Tonsuan Corporation

Terra Salar Philippines, Inc.

® & & & ® ® & & & § 8 &8 8 & & 8 8@
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&SP Holdings, Inc.
» Solar Philippines Commervial Rooftop Projects, Inc,

The Parent Company would acquire the Solar Philippines Assets through an assct-for-share swap,
with SPPPHI subscribing 1o 24,373,050,000 shares of the Parent Company at #2.50 per share
(“Share Swap™). This Share Swap is supported by « thivd-party valuation and faimess opinion by

an mdependent valuation and fammess opation provider acoredited with the SEC and PSE. The Solar
Philippmes Assets would serve ss the Parent Company's subscripion payment for the increase in its
muthorized capital stoek from 10 billion common shares to 50 billion eommon shares.

Pledge of Parent Company s Shares owned by SPPPH]

On June 25, 2021, SPPPHI exccuted a pledge over all the Parent Company’s shares it holds 1o secure
2 loan by its affiliate, PIC, from AC Energy Corporntion ("ACEN"). The pledped stock certificutes
of 1he Parent Campany 's shares were delivered to snd is in the custody of the lender. The lender has
agreed 1o provisionally return the stock centificutes representing the pledoed shares and to have the
sume placed under escrow for the exclusive purpose of enabling the [PO.

On January 25, 2023, SFPPHI excented definitive agréements with ACEN to provide 500 million
shires of SPNEC ux pre-payment for parl of the loan's principal und pavment of interest, other fees,
and in considerution of ACEN releasing its pledge over shares owned by SPPPHI in SPNEC,

13, Eapenses
December 31, June 30, Jume 30,
2012 2022 2021
(Six Months) (One Year) {One Year)
Management fee (Mate 11) P12800,000 P24, 000,000 4,000,000
Tuxes ond licenses 6,848,628 10,502 654 1,453 987
Professionnl fees 6401289 6,540 000) 2,652,032
Interes) decretion ol leake

linbilities (Note 15) 4,532 695 Q142,009 7,648 682

Amortizstion of right-of-use
segets (Note |5) 2584103 5420370 4038265
Penaltics and surcharges 1,519.211 48,055 -
Supplics 1,395,501 400,081 -
Advertiging 784,398 - —
PSE Filing Fee - 12465411 -
Hid-related costs - 1.634,000 1,909,091
Others (Notes 5 and 7) 53771.139 2,246,603 972 960

P41.543,655 Wi2A08,183 B22,674.993

Far the penod from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022, other expenscs include premiums, notarial
fees, Liust fees, wiilities, deprecmtion expense and travel expenses.

L TR



14, Income Taxes

Thiere 5 no provision for curment income tax for the penods ended December 31, 2022 and
June 30, 2022 die to the Group's net 1axable loss positions.

The reconciliation of income tax benefit at the statutory income tax rates to the provision for (benefit
fram) income tax mre as follown;

December 31, June 30, June 30,
012 2022 2021
(Six Months) {Une Year) (Cne Year)
[ncome tax benefit at statutory
income tix rate (P4,170,289)  (B7,195,000)  (P2,266,890)
Adjustments for
Movements in unrecognized
deferred income tax
asscls 8,254, 469 5.908,169 3,840 747
Transaction costs charged o
APIC und retuned
cumings (3,452,55%) (10,066,198) {743, 848)
Interest income subjedt to
final tax (744,149) (54,818) (609)
Nondeductihle expenses 377,665 37,292 65,891
Pruvision for (benefit from)
deferred ncome tax P265,138  (P11.370.555) P904,29]

The components of the Group’s recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilitics follow:

December 31, June 30,

022 21122

Deferred income tax asset on lease lability #30,219,583 FIL026.757
Deferred income tax lability on ROLT assel (20.018457)  (20.560.493)

Netdeferrod income tx pssct #10,201.126 PiD466.204

As of December 31, 2022, the Giroup has NOLCO for which o defierred income thx assets huve been
recognized as lollows:

Period Incurred Valid Until Amount

July 1, 2022 w0 Desember 31, 2022 December 31, 2025 P68.221.542
July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 June 30, 2027 172229330
January | to June 30, 2021 June 30, 2026 6,762 211
Jamuary | to December 31, 2020 December 31, 2025 7,162,169

P254,375,252

LT
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The movements in NOLCO are as follows:

For the
six-month For the year
period ended™ ended
Balances ut beginning of penod P190.618,674 P19.078.574
Additions 68,221,542 172,229,330
Expirations (4,464.964) (689.230)

Hatances ut end aof
" g bwndng ] purioal H - [

Na defirred income tax asset was recognized on the carryforward benefits of NOLCO as of
December 31, 2022 and Jupe 30, 2022 amonnfing to P254.8 million tnd P190,6 million, respectively,
as management estimates that there would be no sufficient future taxable income vet to allow all or
part of the deductible temporary difference to be utilized prior to their expiration.

il

Bawmihan to Recover qs Qne Act (Bavanihan 3)
Cn Septemiber 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations ("RR™) Na, 25:2020 implementing

Section 4 of Bayanihan 2 which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable years 2020 and 202§ can
be carried over us a deduction from gross income for the next five (5) consecutive tsxable years
immedistely following the year of such loss.

. Leases

. In 2019, the Parcat Company entered into a land lease ngreement with varivus lindowners to
develop solur farm projects m Pefiarnnda, Nueva Ecijo for s total anes of 95.8 hectares. The Jlund
was made available for use on January 1, 2019 with a one (1) year rent-frec period plis 25-vear
term. Further, the lense is subject for renewnl of 5 years upon mutus! ngreement by the parties.

b, Un January |1, 2021, a Deed of Assigmnent was entered beiween the Parent Cuompany, as the
asssgnee, and SPPPHI, s the asignor, whereby, SPPPHI assigned all of its rights and obligntions
under the September 6, 2016 lease ngreement for certhin parcels of land with 3 total arcs of
179.6 hectares in Pefisrands, Nueva Ecija. The Parent Company accepted and assumed all of the
satid righus wd obligations thus assigned, in pursiange of the said Deed of Assignment, Further,
ws ugreed by the purties, (he lesse of the updaied total Tand area of 169.9 hectares cotnmenced in
Maurch 2021.

¢ InMay 2021, the Parent Company entered into o land leas agreement with various landowners

to develop solar firm projects in Pefiuranda, Nueva Ecija for 4 total wrea of 81,75 beetares. The
band was minde available for use on the exectition date of the contract with 4 oo (1) year rent-free
periodd plus 25-year tem. Further, the lense is subject fur renewal of five (3) yeurs upon mulual
agreement by the parties.

d. ROU ossets as of Decemnber 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 are as follows:

December 31 June 30,

2022 20122

Balances at beginning of period P286.910494  P297 751,234
Amortization capitalized to construction in progress” (2,836,178) (5,420,370)
Amyurtization during the period (Note 13) (2,584,193) (5.420.370)
Balances al end of penod PF281,490.123 P2E6.910494

*trvmrred desing phe comsirr g perisd (ses Kioes J und Ti
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e, Lease liabilities a5 of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 ure as follows;

December 31 Tune 30,

2022° 2022

Halances st beginning of period 193,578,848 PI89.525,826
[nterest expense capitalized to construction in progress’ 4,726,877 925478
Intesest expense (Note 13) 4,532,695 9142009
Pavments - {14,004 465)
Totnl lease liabilities 303,138,420 2R ATR B4R

Cutrent portion of lease liabilities (4,538,676) (4.538.676)
MNoncurrent %uﬂ of leuse liahilittes 298,599,744 P289.340,172
*fevarread divstng tie st tive patiod fran s | o 7)

[ The following ure the amounts recogaized for the period from Jaly 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022
and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 in the consolidated sintements of comprehensive

income:
December 31, June 30, June 30,
2022 il b 2021
Months Chne Yenr One Veur
Interest accretion of icase linbilities #4532695 PO, 142009 B7 648 652
Amartization of ROU assets 1584193 5420370 A4 03K 268
Total amount recognized in the
consoliduted stitements of
comprebensive incame P7116888 P14.562379 Bl 686917

£ Az of December 31, 2022 und June 30, 2022, cash bond deposit amounting to PO.6 million.
pertain to cush bond deposits paid w DAR for the conversion of leased land from sgriculiural 1o
industrial land,

b On April 30, 2021, the Parent Company received the DAR order for the conversion of
169.9 hestares of lensed land. On October 11, 2021, the DAR issucd the Centificate of Finulity to
the Parent Company to effectively canse the conversion of said fand from agricultural to
industrial clssification.

i On December 28, 2022, the Paront Compmny received the DAR order for the conversion of
83.8 hectares of leased lands.

16. Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Managemen
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Poligics _
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise of cash, subscription receivable, due from
related partles, performance bond, cash bond deposit, accounts payable and accrued expenses, due 10
# eeluted purty and lease liabilitice. The main purpose of these finonneial instrements is to fnance the
Uroup's operations.

HEam e
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The BOD has overall responsibiiity for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management frmework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and
manage the Group's exposure to financinl risks, (o set appropriste transaction limits and contrals, and
W0 monitor and asscss risks und rompliance to imtemul control policied. Risk manigement policies
and structure are reviewed regularty to reflect changes n market conditions and the Group's
activities.

The Groap has exposure to liquidity and credit risks from the uses of its financial instruments. The
BOD reviews und approvey the policies for manuging this risk as summarized below

Credit Ris}
Credit risk 15 the risk thut o counterpaty will nol meet its obligations under a financial instrament or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

With respiect to the credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash
in banks, due from related parties, performance hood and cash bond deposit, the Group’s exposure to
eredit risk arises from defanlt of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carTying
amount of these instruments. The Group's cash in banks, subscription receivable, due from related
parties, performance band uted cash bond deposit amounied to #1,525.2 million and #1,445.3 million
as of December 31, 2022 und June 30, 2022, respectively.

Cash in banks

For cash in banks, the Group applics the low credit risk simplification. The probability of defsult and
loss given defiulis are publicly available and are considered to be low credil risk investments. Tf i
the Group's policy to measure ECLs on such mstruments on i 12-month basis. However, when there
has been o mgnificant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECL. The Group uses the ritings from the external eredit rating agencics o determine
whether the debt istrament has significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLs,

e from related parties, performance bond and cash bond deporit

The Group’s exposare to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
counterparty. The credit quality is further classified und assessed by reference (o historical
uformstion aboist esch of the counterparty's histoneal defhnlt rates. Based on assessment of
Qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default, the Group his assessed
tht the outstanding balunces ere exposed to low credit risk. ECL o these balances have therefore
been assessed as insignificant.

Liquidisy rigk
Liquidity risk i the ridk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group's objectives to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far us possible, that it will
always have sutficient liquidity to meet its labilities when due, under both normal and stressed
canditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking ndverse efTect 10 the Group's eredit

sianding.
The Group manages bquidity risk by muiotaining o balince between contifnity of fuinding und

flexibility. As part of its hquidity risk management, the Group regularly evalates its projected and
sctus! cash Mows.
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The tables below show the maturity profile as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 of the
Group's financisl aseoti used for liquidity purpoges baced on contractual undiscounted cash Nows,
and finaneial Hobilities based on contractual undiseounted payments:
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Fair Value and Catepory of Finsncinl Instruments

The following methods and sesumptions weris weed 10 edtimate the fair vislue of each cliss of finuncil
instraments for which it is practicable to estimate such vilue:

Caazh jn hanks, subycription receivable. die from related parties, performance boand cash bond,
accounty payahle and accrued expenses and due 1o a related party

The carrying amounts of these finamcial instruments approximate ieir fair values due (o their

short-term maluntics.

Lense liahilines

The fair values for the Group's lease liabilities are estimnted using the discounted cash flow
mgthodology adjusted for eredit nisk (Tevel 3 of the fair value hiorarchy), The discount rates wsed are
8.59% and 7.46% as a1 December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively. The fair valoe of the
lense liabilittes amounted to P233. 1 million and P253.4 million us of December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022 respeetively, while the carrying value of the lense liabilities amounted to

P303.1 million and #293.9 million as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the far value of lease labilities are mensured ussng

Level 3 valuation technique. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, there were
no trankfers into and out of Level 3 fior value measuremenis
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Capital Management

The Group munages its capital structare and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in busingss
and economic canditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Gronp may issuz new shares.
No significant changes have been made in the objectives, policies and processes of the Group for the
for the period from July 1, 2022 10 December 31, 2022 and for the years ended Junc 30, 2022 and
2021,

The Group considers the following s its core capital;

December 31, June 30,

2022 2022

Uapital stock BL D00 000,000 PRI2.435.001
Additional paid-in capital 4938722430  2.347,338,021
Deficit (126,125.941) (85,716,108}

#5812 596,489  B3.074,056,9]4

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the Group was able to meet its capital management
ohjectives.

17.

Basic/Diluted Loss Per Share
The basie/diluted logs per share amounts were computed as follows:
December 31, June 30, June 30,

2032 2022 2021
(Six Months)  (Oue Year) (One Year)

(a) Net loss atmbutable to equity holders of

the Parent Company B40409.833 PHOSTY 448 P23 573 194
(b) Weighted average number of common

ﬂm:smismtdiug 9,374 5 6,999 350,005 461,195 834
Basie/diluted loss per share (u/h) PUO.OD43 POORT BOOSHI

The Group does not have any dilative potential common shares as st December 31, 2022 and
June 30, 2022

Henewable Energy Act of 2008

On January 30, 2009, Republic Act No, 9513, An Act Promoting the Development, Utilization and
Commercialization of Renewable Energy Resources and for Other Purposes, otherwise known as the
“Renewahle Encrgy Act of 2008” (the “Act™), became effective

The Act atms to:

#)  accelerate the exploration and development of renewable energry resources such as, but nit
himited 1o, biomass, solar, wind, hydro, geothermal and ocean enerigy sources, including hybrid
sysiems, (o achieve energy sellreliance, through the adoption of sustainable energy
development strategies (o reduce the country's dependence on fosxil tuels and theseby minimize
the country’s exposure 1o price fluctuations in the intemational markets, the effccts of which
spinsl down to almost ull séctars of the econdmy;

LT
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increase the utilization of renewable energy by institutionalizing the development of nutional
and local capabilities in the use of renewable encegy systems, and promoting its efficient and
cosi-cffective commercial ipplication bw providing figeal and non-fiscal incentives;

encourmge the development and utilization of renewable energy resourves as tools to elfectively
prevent or reduce harmifiil emissions and thereby balance the goals of econnmic growth and
developmest with the protection of health and environment; and

establish the necessary infrastructure and mechaniam (o carry out mandates specified in the Acl
and ather laws,

As providid in the Act, RE devclopers of RE facilities. including hybrid systems, in proportion to and
to the extent of the RE compaonent, for both power and non-power applications, as duly certified by
the DOE, in consultation with the Board of Investments (“BOT™), shall be entitled to the following
incentives, mnong others:

i,

iv,

Vi,

Income Toax Holiday (“I'TH") - For the first seven (7) yeurs ol its commercial operations, the duly
registered RE developer shall be exempt from income texes levied by the National Government;

Duty-free Impormtion of RE Machinery, Equipment and Materials - Within the first ten (10)
years upan wssuanee of 4 cettification of an RE developer, the impottation of machinery ani
equipment, and materials and parts thereof, including control and communication equipment,
shall not be subject to taniff dutics;

Specuyl Realty Tex Rates on Equipment and Machinery — Any law 10 the contrary
notwithstanding, realty and other taxes an civil works, equipment, machinery, and other
improvements of a registercd RE developer actually and exclusively used for RE facilitics shall
ool excezd anc and a half percent (1,5%) of their original cogt less ncoumulated normal
depeeciation or net book value,

NOLCO - the NOLCO of the RE developer during the first three (3) years from the start of
commencial operation which bad not been previoysly offset as deduction from gross meome shall
be carried over as deduction from gross income for the next seven (7) consecutive taxable years
immediately following the year of such liss;

Corporate Tax Rate - After seven (7) years of I'TH, all RE devclopers shall pay 2 corporate tax of
ten percent ( 101%) on its mef taxable mcome us defined in the National Internal Revenue Code of
1997, as amended by Republic Act No. 9337;

Accelerated Depreciniion = I and only (£, un RE project fiuls 1o recerve an I'TH before full
operation, it may apply for aceelerated deprecintion in its tix books and be taxed based on such;

Zero Percent VAT Rate — The sale of fuel or power genersted from renewiible sources of energy,
the purchise of local goods, propertivs and services neeted for the development, construction und
installatioh of the plant facilities, as well % the whole process of exploration and development of
RE soutces up to its conversion into power shall be subject to zero percent (M) VAT,

vili, Cash Incentive of RE Developers for Missionary Electrification - Aa RE developer, established

alter the effectivity of the Act, shall be entitled 2o a cush generation-hased incentive per kilowatl-
hour mate gencruted, equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the universal charge for power needed 1o
sorvice missionary arcas where it operutes the same;
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1. Tax Exemption of Carbon Credils — All proceeds from the sale of carbon emission credits shall
b exenpt foom any and all taxes; and

x. Tax Credit on Domestic Capital Equipment dnd Services — A tax eredit equivalent to one hundred
pereent {100%) of the value of the VAT and custom duties thit would have been paid an the RE
machinery, equipment, muaterials and pasts had these itents been imported shall be given o an RE
operating contract holder who purchinses machinery, equipmaent, materials, and parts from a

domestic manufacturer for purposes

set forth in the Act. RE developers and local manufacturers.

(ubricators and suppliers of locally produced RE equipment shall regisier with the DOE, through
the Renewable Energy Management Buresu (“REMB™), Upon registration, a certification shall
be issued (o each RE developer and local manufactarer, fabricator and supplier of locally-
produced renewable encrgy equipment to serve as the basis of their entitlement 1o the incentives
provided for in the Act. All certifications required to qualify RE developers to avail of the
ncentives provided for under the Act shall be issued by the DOE through the REMB.

In November 2022, the DOE issued Department Cirowlar No, 2022-11 0034 which smends the
Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Act. The smendment removes the nationality requirement
imposed on the business engaged in the explorstion, development, and utilization of solar, wind,
hydropower and ocean energy, thereby allowing the entry ol loreign capital mio the eountry’s

rencwible cnergy industry.

|1

Changes in Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities

December 31, 2022
J 2022 Cash Mows Others  December 31, 2022
Duc to o related party P22.792.348 B (P22119) ¥22 770,220
Lease liahilities 193 K78 B48 — 9.259.572 303,138,420
Total linbilities from
_ financing activities 316,671,196 P B9237453 P325008,649
June 30, 2022
July 1. 202] Cash flows Others  June 30, 2022
Due to o refated party P22, 792 348 P [ P22,792 348
Lense lizbilitics 289,525,826 (14,004 465) 1R.35T ART 2931 R78. 848
Toual linhilitics fron
ﬂnundnl netivities PII2318,174 B 14,004 465 P18,357 487 PALG.6T1.190
June 30, 2021
July 1, 2020 Cash Mows Others June 30, 202 |
Due 10 a relnted party P15.366,623 7,425,725 R- P22,792.348
Eeose Lisbilitics 45.375,963 - Jid4 249,843 289 525 826
Total TiahiliGes from
ﬁnuncing Aetivities B50.642 606 B7 4257215 B2ild 249 843 PI12318.174

LT T
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20. Other Matters

Change In Allovation of 1PO Proceeds
On December 20, 2021, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the following:

a) Pending the use of IPO procesds for future land acquisitions and capital expenditires, effective
by January 19, 2022, to allow the Pareni Company to allocate such 1PO proceods towands bid
bonds, bid security, and other expenses for potential ofi-take agreements, to enable the Parent
Compuny to be responsive 1o contracting opportunitics as soon as they anse, in suppat of the
Purent Company's strategy 1o pursue off<take on an opportunistic basis.

b) The authority to tmnsact with finencial institutions to secure bid bonus and bid security for the
prajects of the Parent Compuny.

¢) Subject to applicable low, rules and regulations to be clarified, the incorparation and funding of
wholly-owned subsidiaries (0 hold the IPO's use of proceeds ond 1o receive instructions from the
Parcat Company for the use of such proceeds:

dl The suthority to file and subrait all compliance, disclosures and nny other repartorial
requirements of the Pareni Compuny 1o (he relevant regulatory agencies and the PSE.

e} Other ancillery powers and authontics necessiry and proper for the execution of the above
approvils.

On Februory 14, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisitionh of land in suppost
of the Parent Compuny's plan o develop ten (10) gigawaty of solar projects, to be [unded from
proceeds of a rights offering and the procecds from its PO, as available, and the delegation of
authority to the Parent Company's President or his authorized representative W detemmine the
location, purticular parcels and terms for such land, and suthority (o execute contracts for this
pupase.

On Apnil 6, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the suthorization to allocate [PO
procesds to advanee funding for pursaing off-take agreements and developing projects for Term
Renewables Holdings, Inc. (“Terma™) and its associnted developments to SPHI, given that SPHI isa
shareholder in T'erra and that SPHI is to be a subsidiary by the Parent Company, provaded this would
only be from the excess of the amount needed by Phase | A of the Nucva Ecija solar project nid
would form part of the expansion of the Parent Company s projects.

Renewable Power Supply Agresment with Angelex Electric Corporation (“AEC™)

On October 14, 2021, the Parent Company expressed its inferest to participate in the Competitive
Selection Process ("CSP”) of AEC, a distribution utility in Pampanga Province for the supply of
renewuble energy o AEC

On Deceriber 7, 2021, the Purent Compuany was determined (o be the winning suppher for the suid
bidding

Omn Februnry 7, 2021, the Parent Company secured a 10-year Offfuke Agreement with AEC, under
which the Parent Company will supply AEC 97.8 MW daily, representing a portion of the Project’s
copacity w supply encegy vnee completed. The Offtake Agreement awarded is for a teem of ten (10)
years commencing on March 26, 2023, ar upon ERC approval, whichever comes luter. Since the
Purent Company his excess capacity beyond this Offtake Agreement, the Parent Company infends to
continue to pursoe additional Offtake Agreements through contracting on an opportanistic basis with
RESs, and/or Distribution utilities (“DLIs™) by participating in farther CSPs. In the absence of
additional Offtake Agreements, the Parent Company infends to supply ils cxoess genembon power
through the Wholesule Eleciricity Spot Marker



g

Omn January 23, 2023, the Parent Company and AEC jointly filed the PSA with the ERC. As of
April 17, 2023, the Parent Company and AEC are still awaiting approval from the ERC.

The Parent Company provided s perforniance bond in relation to the project amounting to
P15.0 million valid until May 25, 2023. The performance hoad s presented as pan of *Other current
aghets” in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 5).

Green Energy Auction Program ("GEAP")

On June 24, 2022, the Parent Compuny was uwarded as ane of the winning bidders by the DOFE on ils
First CGireen Energy Auction Round. The Parent Company will supply the electricity from the
280MWdc Santa Rosa Nueva Ecija 2 Solar Power Project, The winning bids under the GEAP, which
are cxpected o commence opertions botween 2023 and 20235, will be awarded 20-year power supply
agreements. In 2022, the Parent Company submitted a sarety band as one of the requirements for the
bidding process, and a performance bond pursuant to the requirements of the program.

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, prepaid presmiums amounted in P28 milhion and
#1.35 nullon, respectively, presented as part of “Other coment assets™ in the consolidated statements
of finuncinl position (sec Note 5).

21,

Events Afler the Financial Reporting Date

Investment by Metra Pacific Imvestments Corporation (“MPIC") in SPNEC
In March 2023, MPIC hus entered into a sale and puirchase agresment with SPPPHI to scquire 16%
cyuity stake or 1,600,000,000 shares in SPNEC for an aggregute consideration of P20 billion.

The completion of the (ransaction & subjeet to the satisfaction of cénain conditions precedent,
including the procurement of regulatory approvals and execution of a separate agreement whach will,
pmong others, grant the MPIC Group the option to incnease its fnterest in SPNEC to 43% of its
outstanding shares after SPNEC increases its authorized capitul stock from 210.0 hillon to

B50.0 billion through an asset-for-share swap which involves the infusion of SPPH] assets into
SPNEC.

Memorandum of Agresments (“MOA ") betwewn SPPPHT and Prime Infrasiricture, Ing. (' Prime ")
O February 9, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the MOAs between SPPPFHI and Pame for their
Joint ventures in Term Solar Philippines, Ine. (“TSP1"), Solar Tanman Corporation

"Solar Tanavan™), god Solar Philippines Tarlac Corporation ("Solar Tarlac™). The MOAs cover the
following:

a) Amendments o the Shureholders” Agreement of TSP between SPPPHI and Prime Lo streamline
the decinon-muking proceds and reach ugreements efficiently and commerdially vis deadlock
resolution mechanisms, On this basis, the parties agreed 1o contmue their joint venture in TSPIL
TSP has signed a 850 MWae Mid-Meril Power Supply Agreement (“PSA") with Maaila Electric
Company ("Meraleo™) with a scheduled delivery date by the first quarter of 2026, and plans to
break ground within 2023,

b) Sale of common shares in Solar Taniasn by SPPPHI to Prime for P1.0 hillion upon exeqution of
the agreements, which would reault in Prine owning 100% of Solur Tanatan (with the procoeds
of this sale going to SPNEC after the share swap, subject to regulatory approval). Solar Tanauan
has & PSA with Meralco for 50 MWac, has secured over |40 hectares of land, and s carrently
under consiraciion.
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¢} Redemption or purchase of preferred shares in Solar Turlse of Prime by Solar Tarlac or SPPPHI
for 1.5 billioa plus accrued dividends by or before March 31 2024, which, with additional
equity, wonld result in SPPPHI (or SPNEC after the share swap) owning 10094 of Solir Tarlac.
Solar Turlue has o PSA with Meralco for 85 MWae, has seoured over 140 hectares of land, and
currently has 100 MW operating and 30 MW under construction.

Terma of the MOAs will upply 1o SPNEC upen the completion of its shane swap with SPPPHI,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
5P New Energy Corporation

20 Floor AIA Tower

8767 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have andited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statemenis of SP New Encrgy Corpomtion (formerly Solwr Philippines Nucwva Ecija Corporation, a
subsiciary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.) and its subsidiary (collectively referred 1o as
the “Group™) us at December 31, 2022 und June 30, 2622, und for the period from July i, 2022 w
December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, inchuded in this Form 17-A, and
have issued our repont thereon dated April 17, 2023, Our sudits were made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidnted finanecinl statements takeen us o whole. The schedules Tisted in the Index 1o
the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the respansibility of the Group's

- These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities
Regulution Code Rule 68, and are not part of the consolidated finuncial stutements. These schidules have
been subjecied to the auditing procedures applied m the audit of the consolidated financial staterments
and, in our opinion, fairly state, in 4l muterial redpects, the financisl informeation required to be set forth
therein in relation to the eonsolidsted finnncial stalements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

e fc o

Jhmmm Felzn €. Go

EFA Certificate No, 0114122
Tax Identification No, 219-674-288
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partnier Accreditation No, 114122-5EC {Group A)

Vilid to cover nudit of 2021 1o 2025 Minancial statements of SEC coveted Tnstilutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC [Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered {nstitotions
BIR Actreditation No. (8-D01998-103-2022, November 7, 2022, valid until Novembel 6, 2025
PTR No. 9564628, Januury 3, 2023, Malnsti City

April 17,2023
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INDEPENDENT AUMTOR'S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Dhrectors and Stockholders
5P New Energy Corportion

20™ Floor AIA Tower

8767 Paseo de Roxas

Makuti City

We huve nudited in secordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated finpncial
statements of SP New Energy Corporation (formerty Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporution, =
subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, I} and its subsidiary (collectively relemed to as
the “Group™) us st December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, und for the period from July |, 2022 (o
December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and have issued our repart thereon
dated April 17, 2023, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
finuncial statements taken as 2 whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators,
ncluding their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their sppropriateness or usefulness to the intended
uscrs, are the responsibility of the Group’s management, These financial soundness indicators are not
messures of operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) and
may not be comparable to ximilarty titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is
presented for the purpose of complying with the Revised Seeunties Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and 15 not & required parnt of the consolidated finuncial
statennents prepared in accordance with PFRSs. The components of these financial soundness indicators
huave been traced to the Group's consolidmted financinl stntements s a1 December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022, and for the penod fram July 1, 2022 w December 31, 2022 and for the years endod

June 30, 2022 and 2021 und no matenal exceptions were noted.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Lol

("FA Cﬂ'ﬂﬁr«ﬂr_‘ No,D114122
Tax Identification No. 219-674-288
BOA/PRC Rep. No, D001, August 25, 2021, valid until Apeil 15, 2024
SEC Purtner Accreditation No. 114122-8EC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 10 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions

SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)

~ Valid 1o cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial stalements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998- 103-2022, November 7, 2022, valid umil November 6, 2023
PTR No. 9564628, January 3, 2023, Makati City

Apil 17, 2023
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerdy Solar Philippines Nucva Eclja Corporation,

a Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdingy, Inc.)
AND SUBSIDIARY

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Schedule Cantents

Twidex 1o the Caongolidated Financial Staiementy
I Map Showing the Relstionshups Between and Among the Companies in the
Group, its Ultimate Purent Company and Co-subsidiarics
n Reconcilintion of Retuined Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

i Financial Soundoess Indicators

Supplementary Schedules
A Finoncial Assets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Emplovees, Related

B Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related parties)
Amounts Regeivable from Reluted Parties and Amounts Payable 1o Related Parties
C which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statemenis
{rod appdicalle)
D Long-Term Debt (not applicable)
E Indebiedness to Related Pastics
F Guarantees of Securitics of Other lssuers (nod applicably)
G Capiml Stock



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,
a Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Deficit, July 1, 2022 (RRS.T16,108)
Add: Delerrad tax issels {10.466,264)
Deficit, July 1, 2022, as adjusted (96,182.372)
Net loss duning the year closed to deficit (B36,002.217)
Less: Non-actunlunrealized income (ne of tax)

Henefit from income mx - deferred 265,138
Net loss actuslly incurred for the year (35, 737.07%)

TOTAL DEFICIT, December 31, 2022 (P131,919.451)
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SP New Energy Corporation
{Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)
and Subsidinry
As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022

Rutio Formula December 2022 June 2022

Currem ratio Dividing total current assels 16.52 31593
over total current linhilities

Acid test ratio Dividing tolal current assets 16.52 3593
less inventory over tolal
current linbilities

Solvency mtio Dividing net intome excludmg N/A NiA
depreciation and non-cash
provisions over total
debt obligations

Deb-to-cquity ratio Dividing total Habilitics over 0.07 0.11

stockholdens” equiry

Assel-to-equity rtio Dividing total assets aver total 107 111
stockholders’ equity

Interest rate coverage mtio | Dividing esmings before N/A N/A
milerest and laxes of one
period over inlerest expense of
the same period

Net debt-to-equity Ratio Dividing total interest-bearing ™A N/A
debts less cash and cash
equivilents over total
stockholders’ equity

Return on equity (%) Dividing the net income NIA N/A
{unnial busis) by fotal
stockholders” equity (avernge)

Return on sssels (%) Dividing the net income N/A N/A
(nnnaul busis) by the total
assels (average)




Annex 68-E |

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Currani ralia

Ackd lest rotle

Solvency rafios

Deabtlo-equity ralio

Assat-fo-acpity nafio

Intered! il coveroge

Rohun on equily

Net profit masgin

Dirar rafion
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ANNEX C

Sustainability Report 2023

Contaxtual Information
Name of Organtzation: SP New Energy Corporation (SPNEC)
Location of Headguariers: 207 Floor AIA Tower, 8787 Pnseo da Roxas,
Barangay Bel-Alr, Makat| Clty, Philippines 1226°
Location af Opératians: Harangay Las Pifias, Municipallly of Pedaranda,
Province of Nuevs Ecljs

Report Boundary: (Legal enfities and subsidinries | Limited to SP Neéw Energy Corporation (SPNEGC)
included In this repart)

Business Model, including Primary Actlivitles, Renewable energy development and power
Brands, Products, and Senvices: generation
Reporting Perod:

Highesl Ranking Person responsible for this report: | Chief Compliance Officer

© fyou sve @ holding compauy, you cauld have an option wihether f resa on the Soking company onfy or indide the subrid@siies
Howsver, plasse consider ihe princals of malerinley when defning your report baurdary

Materiality Process’

‘Explain how you applied the materiaity principle (o the materiaity process) In dantifying your

SPNEC’s primary purpose is the development of renewahle energy power facilities and the conversion
of renewable energy into usable form fit for electricity generation and distribution. Matesiality is limited to
the Company’s operations which have actual snd relevant environmental, social, and/or community
ImpacL

It is notewarthy (hat in November 2023, MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. (MGreen) entared into a
Subscription Agreement 1o acquire shares of SPNEC. The agreement resulted to MGresn acquinng
B0.53% nnrmmwwmww-mamuﬁc.mmmmmmm
approval spplication for the sscond increase in authorized capital stock with the SEC, this was
subssequantly spproved on 17 January 2024.

We note that SPNEC is in a stale of transition, validation, and consolidafion of data following the
acquisition of MGreen of the controlling stake of SPNEC and consaquently I8 based on matters known
lo the current management of SPNEC,

Notwithstanding the foregoing, SPNEC remains commiited to the objectives of this sustainability
requirements and shall continuafly improve its sustainability reporting which includes the idantification,
monitoring, and discussion of the Company's impacts and relevant actions in succeeding reports.
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

Diract sconomic vakie generatad (rovanue) |BIB. 451217 PhP
Diract scbnomic valles disidboted:
A Cipmrating oonis® 115 A78 451 PhP
b, Employee wages and benafits 11,123,826 PhP
¢ Payments to supplien. othor operating cosls* 134, 704 530 Php
d. Dividends givan lo siockholders and Inferast payments to 108,370,900 e
lo@n providers®
6 Tmwas givan to gavemmant L5924, 882 me
L. Investmanis to comimunily (0.0 donstions, CSRY 32 194,588 PhP

Y

|

Primary business aperalions. Impact | Sharsholders, Business The Company @ms 1o be an ensbler of
in caused by the Compary'n Partnom (suppliors, davelopmant of the provinces in the
reiationship with fis stakehoigers, CuwtomEans, contractom, Fhiippines through provision of green
wie, ), Guvermtreil, Brd enwgy ke developtieml. SPNEC aluo
Host Cominunilies sspks to accslerate the adeplion of solar

SPNEC s committed to the creatlon of
sustainable oonomic opportunites in the
provinces (le., ax-Metra Manila) irough
amployiment 1o the locals thensdn, as well
an continuous provislon of banofits (o hast
communitias and posifive spilover affects
of the taxes pald (o the local govemimenis
during the develcpmant phase and once

SPNEC contimuously engage with vanous
stukehoiders and bo receptive to thair
feodback for the company (o provids beitor
service and work for thelr grealer banadit,

b Ewtiiords s Lalurams ilad WAL rmiinivgg e SRR 1 120
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brpda Uve Corprany's ﬂﬂily o
sanvice lts cuslomers,

Loss of key personns! m=iatsd to
the Company's management and
optalions,

Any Ponalble cislms agalinst the
Company of olher unforeesan

:

Mummm&ydu-m-r
powsr plants Bal the Company
owni or devoloping.

Expansion bayond wharn [(hn power
plant is being developed.

Investments  in  projeets  anos
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Disclosure B = i s

Farceniage wmmmmo{

operations that is spent on local suppliers e b

Note: The in Gurrantly I a ainfe of franallion and has yal i establlah procurmmanl preclicss geaned lowards GG,
ine—he: menitoring this meéric o e -

" and ampany. hrough s sub-contraciar,
ﬂuhwiluhn:m Hnnﬂumuiu- mummmmrﬂml
management serVices confract with for its requiremants for the construction and
I wlliereale patent Gotmgeny, BPPPH|, uperalion s solar power planl profect,
which includes the procurement of s Theough this, SPNEC spur economic
requinements, pativity thet may lesd lo sustalnasbls

progreas ot the grassnacis lavel,
Adignnad torht b Wi o Fenetations of e Tt Firme oy Clemete Belatmet Firsnra e llemes Tiw HOFD Bpa simepond s sy, ssewiy
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The Company Is in the procese of |
ostablishing s own procurement  unit
guided by a clear set of polices and rules.

| - | Ui
Percaniage of smpioyes to whom the organizatir's anih Nl "
cormuptian pallcles and procedures have been communicatad o

Paroantage of business parinens o whom e organizetion’s Ml %
anti-corrlption policies and pirocediures have baen communbcaled L

Percentage of deectors and management that have received il %
anti-cormuption iralning

Paroentage of employees that have roceived ant-comuption NIl »

tragning

HﬂmiMﬂmﬂlﬂﬂ‘ﬂﬂﬁ&pﬂﬁw
Idantifiar, monitored, and pctid upon,




Corruplion policy that will apply o all | Extemal business -mmwml and

stakeholders , Bovammant, m-mmummmm
Innireesn. policy.

incidents of Comyption )

Disciosus Gy [umm

Mumber of Incidents In which direciors ware removed or mil #

disgiplined f%or comuption

Mumbier of incidents in which smployamm wars demissed or Nil ¥

discignad for comuption

Number of mchfants when cantracts with business pariners Nil S

wera terminated due ta incldants of comuption

Pousibls Conflict of intersst and Dhﬂﬂ"l'linm
Bribery (recaipl or offedng gifs) E“'ﬂ '“ﬂmu ke X
General publie

md’:ﬂmm::u! a :
Corrupthon polliy } L] E:lllmd_ busneass
stakeholders

1 SPNEC remains commitiad to improving it
anti-comuption drive through s Policy on
Corporatn Guvernanos and Ethics, amaorig
uvihers,

— SPNEC 6 Manuai on Corporain Gavernance

and Policies on Ralated-party transactions,
Whistle Blowlng, Ettdes, mmoang others, ars
sullicient Lo nsuce Bl Uis risk I properly
igsnilfind, monllotsd, and acted upat,

SPNEC's standards of ethical conduct in Tn
the Carparate Govemance Manual and
create a cear code of conduct and sthical
business policy.




WMHNMMW agzess £ erionmunt-mlsted sustairabiily metrics gven &
mwi hM mmummﬂ?mmumw
POV
mmmmm%




*  nor-renewabis

mdmmmm tn rranufacties the
organization’s primary products and services

wmmm manoged in, or sdjavent to,
_protected aresy

Hahitats protected or restorsd

habitats in aras affected by operations

¥ il |l Lo Fiey Comsmrvption gf Wiy




Disclosurs —— | Guantity_ T tnits
Ditect (Benpe 1) GHG Emissions il Tonnes
COn
Enmrgy ndimet {Seope 2) GHEG Fmisaions il Tonnan
COe
Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (00S) il Tonnes




—

iiiiiif

Jhaifﬂlirg




Totl amount of monatary fines for non-complance with il P

MWMMNMW
Nn. o non-monstany spnctinna for nah.complisnes wih nll 8

Ne. of cases rssalved thisugh disputs resahustion mechanism il [




Nole: The Company fua yul ks consalkiste sfficient information 1o (8 atsess & socal-mésfod stistenabilly mefrks
mrmrﬂhu'mm it boors fo srghasizs howover, MWEMWEHHWHMM
Fegquirmants end shull contisloaly beprove the sustivrubily mpoding rctuding i identficsfion and fhe dsussion o [he
Campany's rrpachs snd nimaan! sciions in (e succedng mearis

Futher, SPNEC andernd info & Manggement Sasvice mmmmmmmmm

Mﬂﬁ%!?ﬁ?mmﬂ"ﬂwd m'iuaﬂmmﬂun:uwm
imvasiment. s fechnical mefters immling the SPNEC mkﬂmhnwmmmmmmm
and infermation fschniofisgy.
Emplovee Management
Emplayes Hiring and Benefits
Eomployes dala
Disclosurs “Guantity Uil |
Total number of amployess?

8. Number of femals employeas: nil #

b Number of male srrpioyises il L]
Attrition rats™ i Rt
Hﬂndlmiﬂdwwmm'nn& nit Rafio

SS5 wa | il il
M e rill il
| Paglig n/a nil il
Paronial lnsves n/a #ill il
Vacution lieves nis rill nll
Sick leaves i nif nil
Medical benefits (auida from PhilHesith) nia mil nil
Hotmsing assistance (aside from Pag-hig) . il Y
Retiramant fund (sside from SSS8) nia il il
Further adueation support nin il il
Company stock opfions n/a il il
Teigomeniding Wi nil nil
Flesihle-working Hows nia il il
{Othors) nn nil il

T

|"| - -f "'."'-'
i

*rr.ﬁl""!_

. FITtRaTy e o ol [ malfu) Q0w 300 S i pt i [ el lsree v sl s i :Jl"l.!ﬂ-r"ll. S C=IRH S iR Rk o 50 il atre
(U Bhasciae st SR Oewwary)

Y AP e = e o e by - e o Betrerraepimocagn of folst ro. af aTrigaapees o peereigs P ol B s ey o
TURTEY pea



memmmmm'ﬁﬁm oy
8 Female employees il Houtn
b.  Mais employses oil Hoiirs
Avarage training hours provided to emplyyass
8. Fenale smploysos nil Hours! Ermployes
b, Male employees ] Hoursl Employes

Disclosure. - T Gamntity Units
% of employess coversd with Collective Bargaining Not apiplicable e
w

Nurmber of consuliations conducted with amployses Mat applicatie W
conceming smpioyee-relasted

Number of employees from Infigencus communities wrd/or
vuinatable sector

nia

T Tovamy [ units
% of femaile wotkars In the workfaroe nin %
e of male workers in the warkforce nia %
B

pecple g with HIV and cther dissasos, solo pamnva. and the popr of the bass of e pyramid (SOP: Cives D snd £).




LaborlawsandHumanRights S

‘N of sl ackaw or employen grievancos kvohing & “None, a8 fherm arm na

Do you have policies that explicitly disaliow violations of tabor laws and human rights (e.g. harsssment, bullying) n
the workplnee?

Tope & (e die

“Disciosure__ i — [ Cuaniy ﬁe__1|
#

hikd nbor Not piphicabie
Hurtan Rights Nt appicable




Do you kave & supplier accredil=tion policy? i ves, pleass attach the palicy or ek to the molicy:

Do you considar the follawing sustairability lopics when accrediting suppliers?

Topic - Tvm b | W¥en, cite refarance In the
I i

Environmenial performance Nohe. The Cempany defes 1o applicabls
laws and feguiations as It enjoins Iis
suppliars o enziime complinnos,

HHEHHE
SB8EE
ARAAE

“Vidnerate sacior hcldes chiren and yaoth, oiderly, poraoas sl disabilfies, viaiombln women, rehgees, igrants. intetally
wm peapls Ning wilh HIV and cther dissasas, solo parsmis, and the poor or the bass of i pyeanmie (B02, Class D

For sporaicns: fml are afieciing 1P, indicale the ntod nuenbor of Froe and Prior nformed Gonsent (FRIG) tnderpoing consiitations
and Contfculion Precaiiitions (Cfy) secured snd sai operalional acd provide o Gopy or fnk k the ceetificates o aveda ble



m - = == = ___

FPIC process s atill undergoing

CP saclired

Disclosure —— — Im Units
Mo of substantiated complaints on product or sanvice nons L
health and safety”

_No. of complaints addrossed R 8

" Subafantnfed compisints mclute compinings fram customers al wen! Brolugh

the orpéntzalion’s el comm)nicafion chsnsl

and grievence mechanisms as well a5 comsluints that were lodged i and acted Lpon by govaminont agenaizs.

Neo. of substantlated complaints on marksting and Ilblqu'_

| No. of complaints addressed

|

o complaints iciuse complats o custormers Bal weal Hroligh te cogensration s frmal cammunmTation Shannals

Subsransated
and griovance meshsnisms ot wal as complaints thet weer lodgad e and scled

dipan by govarrumand aenciag.



usad lor spcohdary

| Disclosure ull | Quantity = .1.!!" ok
Mo, of substantiatad complaings an customer privacy® None g
No, of complaints addressed None ]
. of cunloma s, users and sccount holdery whoss Information s | None o

rposion
* Sudstantiated COMPANNES ieiucdo complwinia om customors it word Biough the orgsnizalion s frmal commrealion Chanels

and grlevance mochanlims me wel ax conygiiaeis Mt were Kodgod fo and acied TR by govermment agancine.




UN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GDALS

Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs
Ky products and services ant s contribulion to sustslnable development.

andServices | ContrbutiontoUNSDGs | Impact of Gomtribution | PP Ch 1o Negative
Generation of Goal 7: Affordable and The Company's primary The Board
Elacticlly Cispn Energy source for s power e Manngamarn
gansralion s renewable rmiing evar mindh|
The Company's power pliks ehergy (RE) particularly ol the Company's role
will  produce Soler Enargy. RE i in a@itaining tha UN
purely friim solar anergy. 8 polsead 1o positively 50Gs. As  such
clean source of anelgy. contibyte,  rather buniness declsions are

rasillant o typhoons which
affoct the country.

By design, solar power
planis have no singls point




Key Products snd

Societal Value |

 Contribution to UN SDGs.

ﬂul 11: Sustainabie Citios
and Communities

The Comparvy's imeestman

In salar power developmant
comributes 1o the ovamll
reéduction in air pollition In
clies and gommunities by
promusing the wse of RE.

Cotnpared o olher anorgy

Souroes,  solar powor

technology produces fittle to
no emission, notse pollulion,
and walar waste.

Cliven lhess fsctors, SPNEC
ballerves thal the uss of solar
power lechnolagy offams the
isasi negatlve Impact in the
commiinities || pparsies in.

Goal 13: Climats Action

The Company is of ihe
forefront of the adoplion of
renewable ensrgy in the
Philippines. SFNEC s sst i
develop 3,500 megawalls
(MW) of sslar penels and
4,000 MW of battary snery
siorags sysiems in Luzon,

* None/ Nof Apgicable i sl an scoeplabie answer. For heltfing comgsenins; e apndezos ang sroducts of B3 subuitisnes miy bo




